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 1               (Hearing commenced at 7:00 p.m.)
 2               (Exhibit BPU 1 was marked for
 3      identification.)
 4                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ladies and
 5      gentlemen, this is the May 2010 Board of Public
 6      Utilities rate hearing with regard to their
 7      request of rate increases.  My name is Phillip
 8      Carson and I'm the hearing officer presiding
 9      over these public hearings.
10               If any of the members of the public
11      wish to speak -- excuse me -- on the public
12      portion of this hearing, please if you haven't
13      already done so, please sign in on the sign-in
14      sheet with this lady right here.  Thank you.
15               Ms. Peters.
16                     MS. PETERS:  Mr. Carson, I'm
17      Kathy Peters, rate hearing for the BPU.
18                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.
19               Have any petitions for intervention
20      been received?
21                     MS. PETERS:  Yes.  As Randy
22      Otting will testify, we have received petitions
23      for intervention that were timely filed on the
24      behalf of the large customer group of BPU
25      currently consisting of General Motors, Griffin
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 1      Wheel, Kansas University Medical Center,
 2      Owens-Corning and WaterOne.  Also Suburban
 3      Water, Inc., doing business as Suburban Water
 4      company.  And also Rick Yarnell, an individual.
 5                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Are
 6      there -- thank you, Ms. Peters.
 7               Are there any attorneys for the
 8      intervenors that are present?  If so, please
 9      enter your appearance.
10               No attorneys present on behalf of the
11      intervenors, okay.
12               Are there any intervenors that are
13      personally present on behalf of themselves or
14      their companies?  If so, please enter your
15      appearance.
16                     MR. YARNELL:  I am.
17                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  You are,
18      sir?
19                     MR. YARNELL:  My name is Rick
20      Yarnell.
21                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Your
22      address, please.
23                     MR. YARNELL:  2424 Nebraska
24      Court, Kansas City, Kansas.
25                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Are you
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 1      represented by an attorney in this matter?
 2                     MS. PETERS:  I am not.
 3                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anyone
 4      else?
 5                     MS. KRAUSE:  I am Laurie Krause
 6      with WaterOne.
 7                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  And the
 8      address of WaterOne, please?
 9                     MS. KRAUSE:  Oh, that is really a
10      good question.
11                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  I
12      know it is everywhere.  All right.
13                     MS. KRAUSE:  The admin
14      headquarters is -- I'm trying to remember.
15      10744 Lenexa.
16                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.
17               Any other intervenors that are present
18      that have not entered their appearance?  All
19      right.
20               Ms. Peters, I'm going to turn the
21      proceeding over to you at this point.
22                     MS. PETERS:  And I would like to
23      call on Mr. David Mehlhaff, BPU's public
24      information officer.
25                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Kathy.
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 1               I'm David Mehlhaff, public affairs
 2      officer for the Board of Public Utilities.
 3               We appreciate you taking your time to
 4      be here at this public hearing.  We thank you
 5      for being our customers and we do appreciate
 6      your business.
 7               We ask that you turn off your cell
 8      phones and pagers or turn them to vibrate at
 9      this time.  If you need to use the restroom, it
10      is right out in the hallway out here.  Right out
11      the door to your immediate right.  If you wish
12      to speak and make comments at this hearing, sign
13      your name and address on the sign-in sheet
14      that's just inside the door.  Also, if you would
15      like to ask a question after our presentations,
16      fill out a card with your question and place it
17      in the box in the hallway.  If you need some
18      cards, let me know and I will make sure to get
19      some to you or you can get them from Jenny over
20      here.  She has cards and pencils and fill those
21      out.
22               We are going to hear presentations from
23      a number of people.  I would like to introduce
24      those folks to you at this time.  First of all,
25      before I do that, we do have two of our board
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 1      members present.  We have three of them:  John
 2      Pettey, our vice-president; Mary Gonzales; and
 3      our president, Loretta Colombel.  Thank you for
 4      coming.  They are here to observe and to gather
 5      all the information they can through this
 6      process.
 7               Kathryn Peters, you just heard from,
 8      she is our attorney with Kutak Rock, LLP,
 9      representing BPU.  She has been with us through
10      our rate hearing process since 1980.  The
11      following staff members will be speaking this
12      evening:  Don Gray, our general manager; Lori
13      Austin, manager of accounting and finance and
14      our chief financial officer; Peggy Howe with
15      Black & Veatch, an international consultant,
16      management consultant, and engineering firm.
17      You will hear more about them later.
18               Blake Elliott, our director of electric
19      supply planning.  Darrell Dorsey, manager of
20      electric production and supply.  Bill Johnson,
21      manager of electric operations.  And, finally,
22      Jim Epp, manager of water operations an acting
23      chief administrative officer.
24               Also, I want to remind you that the
25      same rate hearing will take place tomorrow
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 1      morning, same room at 9:00 a.m.  After that, we
 2      will then have a detailed presentation by Black
 3      & Veatch.  You will hear more about them in a
 4      little bit.  They will be part of this
 5      presentation but a lengthier presentation on the
 6      cost of service study, and that will be
 7      tomorrow.  So we will have more information
 8      about that later.  Again, if you have questions
 9      let me know.
10               At this time, I would like to introduce
11      -- hand the mic back off to Kathryn Peters from
12      Kutak Rock.  Kathryn.
13                     MS. PETERS:  We also have some
14      folks from Black & Veatch present with us.  And
15      a few of them will speak tomorrow as
16      Mr. Mehlhaff mentioned.  Peggy Howe will also
17      speak tonight.  Peggy Howe with Black & Veatch,
18      Ed Overcast, Craig Brown and Anna White.
19               The BPU has set the public hearing for
20      the purpose of discussing BPU's revenue
21      requirements and the proposed changes to the BPU
22      rates to recover more revenues in order to meet
23      our cost requirements.  The format of the
24      hearing is that BPU began by having Black &
25      Veatch conduct cost of service studies in
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 1      electric and in water.  The BPU received the
 2      cost of service study reports from Black &
 3      Veatch and following that BPU published the
 4      90-day notice of public hearing that is required
 5      by the charter ordinance.
 6               The format of the hearing is that we
 7      will present to you by the BPU staff a number of
 8      the reasons for the public hearing request, why
 9      revenues are needed, what the proposed changes
10      in the rates are going to be, what things the
11      BPU has done to cut its costs before requesting
12      a rate increase, what the various capital needs
13      are of the electric and the water operations,
14      and several things about BPU's overall financial
15      condition that leads to this rate request.
16               There will be a PowerPoint presentation
17      by BPU and all of the things that the BPU is
18      saying here today are being taken down by a
19      court reporter.  So, when it comes your time to
20      speak, speak slowly and distinctly so the court
21      reporter can take down your words as will the
22      BPU staff.
23               The PowerPoint presentation, the
24      exhibits, all of the proceedings, the things
25      that our intervening customers have to say will
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 1      all be presented to the board and they will make
 2      a decision based on all of the evidence.  There
 3      will be no decision by the board until they have
 4      received all of the evidence.  And that will
 5      include things that you say in the public
 6      comment portion that will follow the question
 7      period which will follow the BPU's presentation.
 8               The BPU has two phases of the public
 9      hearing.  We have the public comment portion,
10      and as Mr. Mehlhaff indicated, we are making a
11      presentation tonight.  There will be a very
12      similar presentation tomorrow morning.  In
13      addition, tomorrow morning Black & Veatch will
14      give a lengthy explanation of the cost of
15      service report.
16               Following the public presentation,
17      there will be a technical portion.  We have
18      customers who have intervened in this
19      proceeding.  We will be continuing the technical
20      portion of the hearing to have further
21      discussions with our intervening customers.  We
22      expect that the initial rate recommendation will
23      be made to the board sometime toward the end of
24      May, early part of June.  We expect that final
25      recommendations will be made to the board toward
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 1      the end of this year.  And, again, nothing will
 2      happen until recommendations are made to the
 3      board and the board makes its final decision.
 4               Board members may be present in the
 5      audience to listen today.  If they are not here
 6      today, again, the court reporter will be taking
 7      down everything that everyone says, and all of
 8      this information will be provided to all of the
 9      board members before they make their decision.
10               Mr. Carson, I would like to ask you, if
11      you could, to have all of the BPU and the Black
12      & Veatch witnesses who are going to testify or
13      make presentations be sworn in.  And I would
14      repeat that is Mr. Blake Elliott, Darrell
15      Dorsey, Don Gray, Peggy Howe, Randy Otting, Lori
16      Austin, Bill Johnson, Jim Epp, Anna White, Craig
17      Brown, and Ed Overcast.
18                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.
19      Thank you.
20               Those of you that were just named and
21      who are going to speak or make a presentation,
22      please raise your right hands.  Do you swear or
23      affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and
24      nothing but the truth?
25                     (BPU and Black & Veatch
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 1      presenters answered affirmatively I do.)
 2                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.
 3                     MS. PETERS:  And I would like to
 4      ask -- I would like to ask Randy Otting to join
 5      me.
 6                     MR. OTTING:  Sure.
 7                     MS. PETERS:  Mr. Carson, at this
 8      time Randy Otting would like to give the
 9      evidence that notice of public hearing was given
10      in accordance with charter ordinance.
11                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Go ahead,
12      sir.
13                     MR. OTTING:  Yes, we have filed
14      our February 1st, 2010 in the Kansas City Star.
15                     MS. PETERS:  And, Mr. Otting, I
16      am going to read you a few questions.  Please
17      state your name and your business address.
18                     MR. OTTING:  Randy Otting, 540
19      Minnesota Avenue, Kansas City, Kansas 66101.
20                     MS. PETERS:  What is your
21      occupation?
22                     MR. OTTING:  I'm the director of
23      accounting.
24                     MS. PETERS:  What are your
25      responsibilities relating to the current
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 1      electric and water rate hearing with regard to
 2      publication and notice of public hearing
 3      dissemination of information to the public?
 4                     MR. OTTING:  I was the primary
 5      contact person with the public with regard to
 6      information, and I was also responsible for
 7      making sure that the notice of hearing was
 8      published timely.
 9                     MS. PETERS:  Did the BPU board
10      direct staff to set a public hearing on the rate
11      proposal?
12                     MR. OTTING:  Yes.
13                     MS. PETERS:  Please list the
14      dates and places of publication of notice of
15      public hearing.
16                     MR. OTTING:  February 1st, 2010,
17      Kansas City Star.  February 4th, 2010, Wyandotte
18      West.  February 4th, 2010, Piper Press.
19      February 4th, 2010, the Wyandotte Echo.
20                     MS. PETERS:  Could you go ahead
21      and read the notices.
22                     MR. OTTING:  Sure.  The notice of
23      hearing and the affidavits are on file with the
24      BPU and available for review upon request.  The
25      affidavit of publication in the Kansas City Star
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 1      was on February 1st, 2010, which provided the
 2      90-day notice required by statute.  This
 3      document is presented and filed as Exhibit 1,
 4      BPU-1.
 5                     MS. PETERS:  And you have BPU-1
 6      there?
 7                     MR. OTTING:  Yes.
 8                     MS. PETERS:  Mr. Carson, I would
 9      like to have introduced at this time BPU Exhibit
10      1, affidavit of publication.
11                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.
12      It is accepted and admitted into evidence and I
13      find that the 90-day notice requirement required
14      by the charter ordinance has been fulfilled.
15                     MS. PETERS:  Thank you, sir.
16               Mr. Otting, were any petitions for
17      intervention filed with you?
18                     MR. OTTING:  Yes.  We had three
19      on March 3rd, 2010.  Mr. Rick Yarnell, an
20      individual.  March 15th, 2010, Suburban Water, a
21      wholesale water customer.  March 30 -- I'm
22      sorry, March 17th, 2010, we had intervention
23      with the BPU large customer group which consists
24      of General Motors, Griffin Wheel, Kansas
25      University Medical Center, Owens-Corning and
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 1      WaterOne.
 2                     MS. PETERS:  Thank you,
 3      Mr. Otting.
 4               And, Mr. Carson, I note that all of the
 5      petitions for intervention were filed before
 6      March 19th which was the cut-off date for filing
 7      petitions of intervention.
 8                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.
 9                     MS. PETERS:  And any other
10      exhibits and testimony of the BPU and Black &
11      Veatch we will introduce into evidence at the
12      conclusion of the public portion or the
13      technical portion, sir.
14                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.
15                     MS. PETERS:  I would like to at
16      this time turn the floor over to BPU to make its
17      public presentation, and I will introduce Mr.
18      Don Gray, general manager of the Board of Public
19      Utilities.
20                     MR. GRAY:  Thank you, Kathy.
21               Good evening everyone.
22               First of all, I want to welcome all of
23      you that are here this evening.  We very much
24      appreciate you being a witness and being
25      involved in our rate hearing process.  I think
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 1      it is very important and I appreciate and
 2      respect very much that you are here.
 3               As you know, asking our customers,
 4      asking you to consider allowing us to raise
 5      rates is never easy.  In fact, I don't know if
 6      there is ever a good time to ask for a rate
 7      increase.  However, I just want to say that
 8      staff and I are committed to keeping our rates
 9      as low as possible.
10               And also with that, we are trying to do
11      a better job at informing our customers and
12      giving them information on how they can better
13      manage their energy and water.  And we have got
14      in all of the chairs information but included
15      with the information are these cards that give
16      useful tips on water and energy usage.  And,
17      also, on the bottom of the card is our website
18      location where you can get additional
19      information.  And, also, you can contact the BPU
20      office through David Mehlhaff, our public
21      affairs officer, who you met earlier who can
22      also get information for you.
23               As was stated earlier, this is going to
24      be a lengthy presentation.  We have a lot of
25      staff that will be involved in giving technical
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 1      portions of this rate hearing as to not only why
 2      we need the rate increases but what we plan to
 3      do with the additional resources.
 4               So, with that, I would like to start
 5      off by mentioning that I will give an overview
 6      and I will primarily talk about our planning
 7      process, historical trends, controlling cost,
 8      and our rate comparisons.  And then staff will
 9      follow with the remainder of the rate hearing
10      process, cost of service, proposed rates,
11      purpose of the rate increase, and the
12      conclusion.  And, also, with staff, as was
13      mentioned earlier, we have key technical support
14      from Black & Veatch engineering which is an
15      internationally known engineering company who
16      helped us with our cost of service and rate
17      design work.
18               In our planning process, the mission of
19      the utility is "To focus on the needs of our
20      customers, to improve the quality of life in our
21      community while promoting safe, reliable and
22      sustainable utilities."  We are driven by a --
23      primarily by our strategic plan and then within
24      that strategic plan we have our key 20-year
25      electric and water master plans which are the
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 1      primary planning tools that we use.
 2               This is where our challenges are
 3      looking at our historical trends.  Our cash on
 4      hand recently, what that has been showing.  Our
 5      electric sales as well as our water sales.
 6               Our cash on hand since 2004 has been
 7      dropping at a pretty rapid pace.  What this
 8      represents on the 2009, we show a little over 25
 9      million in cash.  That may seem like a lot but
10      it takes roughly 17 to 20 million a month to
11      operate the organization.  So, as you can see,
12      we would like to have ideally about 60 days in
13      reserves.  And we have been running anywhere
14      from 23 days to 40 days recently.  And that puts
15      us dangerously low as far as our liquidity
16      position is concerned.
17               Also, as far as our electric sales, the
18      trends, our industrial sales since 2005 to
19      current have reduced by roughly 25 percent, our
20      commercial by 5 percent, and our residential
21      roughly 6 percent.  And, also, some of these
22      graphs and the information is also in the
23      handouts that we provided.
24               In looking at our water sales trends,
25      this takes into account all three industrial,
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 1      commercial and industrial total.  But as you can
 2      see, since 2006 our water sales have slowed by
 3      roughly 18 percent in recent years.  Although
 4      our cash has been coming in much weaker,
 5      recently what have we been doing to help manage
 6      this reduction -- and, oh, before I get into
 7      that, just why specifically our sales are down.
 8               No. 1, as we all know, the economy in
 9      the last couple of years has been challenging to
10      say the least.  But we are also a weather-driven
11      business and the weather really in the last
12      couple of years has been relatively mild in the
13      summer and winter periods.  And also very wet
14      unusually so.
15               We have had a flat to inclining
16      population.  I think there is a sense because of
17      some of the growth that is occurring out
18      especially in the western region that we are
19      seeing a population growth going along with it,
20      but that is really not the case.
21               And then, lastly, conservation, which
22      is a good thing.  More and more people, more and
23      more companies are conserving energy and water.
24      And we are seeing that.  The new appliances, for
25      example, that you buy.  You know, water has been
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 1      a part of conservation efforts for a number of
 2      years because there is many areas of our
 3      country.  They're having water shortages so that
 4      has been happening as far as conservation in
 5      that area.  Your flush boxes, for example, in
 6      your homes now use less volume and so forth.  So
 7      conservation has also had an impact.
 8               So what have we done to control our
 9      reduce in cost?  Since -- from 2006 through
10      2010, we reduced our budget by $55 million.  We
11      eliminated staff positions for the past five
12      years.  And as a matter of fact, we have been
13      reducing staff positions since roughly 1996 and
14      slowly reducing positions over time.  We have
15      froze salaries.  All of the management
16      professional staff with the utility are all
17      frozen and we are currently working with our
18      bargaining units in working with them in looking
19      at -- also looking at some freezes there as
20      well.
21               Another thing that we did to help
22      control our costs was our coal purchases.  We
23      got -- late last fall in 2009, our cash position
24      got very weak.  One of the things that we were
25      able to successfully do was to renegotiate our
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 1      contact -- our coal contract at our Nearman
 2      power station.  Ordinarily, this is a take or
 3      pay contract but because they understood that we
 4      had a lot of coal in inventory because of demand
 5      being down, they did allow us to park the train
 6      for a month and that saved us roughly $4 million
 7      by being able to park the train.  And that was
 8      very important at that point in time to help us
 9      strengthen our cash position because we were
10      getting dangerously down below -- even below 23
11      days.  We also were able to park the train for a
12      period of roughly a month at our Quindaro plant
13      down in Fairfax also which helped save some
14      cash.
15               And like we always do when we don't
16      have enough money, we delay capital improvement
17      projects.  And that is a kind of where we have
18      been recently.  We just have not been spending
19      money and continually upgrading our aging
20      infrastructure because we just haven't had the
21      cash.
22               Graphically, it basically summarizes.
23      Again, we have reduced our budget since 2006 by
24      roughly 55 million.  Now our board approved in
25      our budget for 2010 678 staff positions but
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 1      currently we are operating at 594 positions
 2      because I have been holding up vacant positions
 3      and haven't been filling them.  Now, the
 4      challenge with that is our service quality
 5      starts to worsen as we have fewer and fewer
 6      people to respond, especially when we get into
 7      emergencies.  But we have had to do that to
 8      protect our cash position.
 9               We have been able to say that our rates
10      are very competitive.  Our electric rates are
11      lower than other surrounding utilities and well
12      below the national average.  And our water rates
13      are very competitive with surrounding utilities.
14               For example, looking at a typical
15      customer on the electric -- monthly electric
16      bill 920 kilowatt hours.  This is without the
17      PILOT fees.  $84.67 would be what our electric
18      charge would be.  And, again, if you compare
19      that to some of our neighbors like Kansas City
20      Power & Light, Independence, and so forth -- and
21      here is -- over here is the national average.
22      Now this national average number was a 2008
23      number so we know it has gone up since 2008.  We
24      don't have the latest data on that but we're
25      still well below what it was nationally in 2008.
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 1               On the water side, for 8 cubic feet we
 2      are roughly in the middle, at $36.35.
 3               I wanted to point out a little more
 4      carefully the electric utility rates and the
 5      rate comparisons, and also show as an industrial
 6      trend what has been happening.  And this has not
 7      just been happening here regionally, it has been
 8      happening nationally.  Electric rates have been
 9      skyrocketing.  A lot of it is being driven by
10      not only rising costs of doing business, a lot
11      of the commodities that we use, whether it be
12      coal, natural gas, oil or whether we -- you
13      know, copper has fluctuated in price.  A lot of
14      our transformers and that are all -- that use
15      copper.
16               But environmental mandates have been
17      also challenging all of us as an industry in
18      raising rates.  And if you notice, Kansas City
19      Power & Light, Kansas now, because they both
20      serve in Kansas and Missouri, we are looking at
21      Kansas City Power & Light 2006, they had an 8.95
22      percent and they have been steadily asking for
23      increases before the Kansas Corporation
24      Commission.  And they currently have an 11.5
25      percent before the commission now.  If they get
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 1      anywhere close to that 11.5, since 2006 they
 2      will have increased their fees by 48 -- roughly
 3      49 percent.
 4               If you look at BPU, the last rate
 5      increase we had was in 2006, 2.65.  And then if
 6      you add the one that we are recommending in
 7      2007, it would still be under 10 percent in
 8      total since 2005.  But this -- a lot of the
 9      utilities because of the -- especially when you
10      go to build new generation, like Iatan II, the
11      Kansas City Power & Light's building, whether
12      they are new gas plants, we all know that the
13      cost for these generating facilities are going
14      up tremendously.
15               And then all the environmental systems
16      that you have to put on these plants really
17      drive up the costs as well.  And there is more
18      and more mandates on the environmental side that
19      is requiring us to convert some of our older
20      plants and to add better controls to them.  So
21      this is really starting to drive the cost of
22      energy upwards.  And, you know, we are getting
23      into that as well.
24               The rate hearing process at this time,
25      I would turn it over to Lori Austin, manager of
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 1      finance, who will cover basically our rate
 2      hearing process.
 3                     MS. AUSTIN:  Thank you, Don.
 4               Just to talk a little bit about a rate
 5      hearing process.  We are a cost of service
 6      organization.  We have engaged the firm of Black
 7      & Veatch to perform a cost of service study in
 8      both our electric and water utility.  We asked
 9      to have them perform a five-year cost of service
10      study from 2010 through 2014.  Once that cost of
11      service study was performed, we began our rate
12      setting process.
13               We went before our board and asked for
14      a resolution to approve -- a resolution for a
15      rate hearing that was approved on February 1st.
16      That started the 90-day notice for public
17      review.  And in that public review we allow for
18      formal review of our rate process and our cost
19      of service and also any intervention.
20               It's two -- we provide two formal
21      public hearings that are conducted in the
22      morning and the evening after the 90-day period
23      has expired.  It is overseen by the
24      administrative judge, who we have here tonight.
25      The first hearing is tonight and the next
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 1      hearing will be tomorrow morning at 9:00 a.m.
 2               There will be a transcript of the
 3      hearing for both sessions and that is made
 4      available to the public and to the board of
 5      directors once complete.  At a later date we
 6      will ask for our board to vote on what the
 7      proposed rates that are -- that we are
 8      requesting.
 9               Our cost of service study, the focus of
10      our study is to match the cost of providing the
11      services to the individual customer classes so
12      that we can equitably recover those costs.  We
13      have three major classes:  Residential,
14      commercial, and industrial.
15               There is a three-step approach to the
16      cost of service.  We have a revenue requirement
17      for the overall utilities, both water and
18      electric, and that is how much money is needed
19      to meet our cost of service.
20               Then we perform a cost allocation from
21      whom should the money be collected.  And as I
22      referenced, the three larger groups, the
23      industrial, residential and commercial.
24               Then we have -- then the final step is
25      a rate design.  And it is how should those costs
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 1      -- how should those services be priced among
 2      those individual rate classes.
 3               At this time I would like to turn it
 4      over to Peggy Howe with Black & Veatch.
 5                     MS. HOWE:  Thank you.  Thank you,
 6      Lori.
 7               Black & Veatch was retained by BPU to
 8      provide an independent third-party opinion
 9      needed for the rate study and the cost of
10      service analysis.  And before I get into the
11      specific services we provide, I would like to
12      talk a little bit about my firm.
13               We are a global firm that provides
14      engineering consulting services worldwide.  As
15      indicated up here, we have over 9,000 employees
16      worldwide and over 100 offices.  We have been in
17      business for close to 100 years now.  And one of
18      the things that I would really like to highlight
19      is the fact that we have built our reputation on
20      integrity and competence.  And we are very proud
21      of that and stand behind that as we perform
22      services to the folks that retain us.  We are an
23      employee-owned corporation.  That is on a global
24      basis.
25               On a local basis or a regional basis,
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 1      we have over 40 offices in the United States, so
 2      we truly understand what is happening in the
 3      industries here that we serve.  We serve water,
 4      wastewater, gas, electric, telecommunications.
 5      We focus on utilities and we know the business
 6      inside and out, you might say.  We also are
 7      very, very local to BPU with offices -- a couple
 8      of offices here in the Kansas City area.
 9               Within Black & Veatch is a sub group or
10      a division that focuses specifically on
11      management consulting issues.  These are the
12      issues associated with finances, associated with
13      capital financing.  Not so much the hard design
14      services but the services that support being
15      able to operate and run the utility.
16               We do the entire what we call value
17      chain.  We help utilities with strategies.  We
18      help them figure out how to pay for items.  We
19      help them with the business processes to improve
20      their operations, and we also have a group that
21      helps them with their technology.  And these
22      folks just focus strictly on what we call
23      management consulting.  The folks that are going
24      to be talking with you today and tomorrow are
25      part of that group.
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 1               Specific experience in the water and
 2      energy business, I'll talk a little bit about
 3      that.  There are about 50 major metropolitan
 4      areas in the U.S. as far as water.  We have
 5      served over 28 of those 50 areas with all types
 6      of management consulting services.  Just a few
 7      of them would be -- in the region here would be
 8      St. Louis, Wichita, Cincinnati.  And then we
 9      threw Miami-Dade in because that's a new one for
10      us.  But, again, I want to point out they are
11      large metropolitan areas, they all face similar
12      challenges that your utility is facing.  We can
13      bring the knowledge from those communities to
14      help you perform better and operate better.
15               On the electric side, out of the
16      hundred largest public utilities we provide
17      service to 37 of them.  Again, we can take that
18      knowledge and that understanding and bring them
19      those best practices to help BPU make the right
20      decisions better and in the best interest of
21      their customers.
22               Specifically, the services we provided
23      we helped with the cost of service and rate
24      design.  And just to walk you through this, you
25      start at the bottom of this chart down here.
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 1      And just as you do on a personal level, you have
 2      got to know how much does it cost to operate,
 3      and where the revenue is coming from to get
 4      that.  And I always compare it to, you know,
 5      your personal checkbook.  Money comes in, money
 6      goes out.  You have got to have a good
 7      understanding of what the costs are on a regular
 8      basis and how you are going to fund them.  That
 9      is what we call revenue requirements.  And when
10      the money coming in is not enough to cover the
11      costs going out, something needs to be done.
12      And we are at that point now.
13               After that we then look at all the
14      different customers that you have and we say,
15      all right, who is causing these costs to be
16      incurred and let's equitably distribute the
17      costs to those customers and recover the revenue
18      from those customers.  And that is the purpose
19      behind doing a rate study and a cost of service
20      analysis.
21               So, in summary -- in summary, find out
22      how much money you need, find out who is causing
23      the cost to happen, and design rates that will
24      equitably recover those costs from the specific
25      customers.
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 1               Our project approach parallels that.
 2      We start off with financial planning, go to the
 3      cost of service analysis, and finish up with the
 4      rate design.  We use proven approaches that are
 5      supported by the industry.  They're consistent
 6      with AWWA, American Water Works Association, and
 7      WEF, Water Environment Federation.  They have
 8      guidelines out there on how to do this and how
 9      to equitably recover those costs so that it is
10      done consistently across the industry.  We also
11      look at having specific issues for your
12      community and make sure that the results are in
13      tune with the industry but not so inflexible
14      that they can't meet your specific needs.
15               So what were the goals of our study for
16      BPU?  Well, as mentioned earlier by Mr. Gray,
17      your operating reserves are getting very close
18      to a concerned position.  So the first thing we
19      did was we came in and we looked at your
20      financial targets for 2014.
21               Now when you go -- when you need to
22      build major capital, you go to the bond market.
23      What does the bond market look at?  Well, think
24      about it again on a personal level.  If you want
25      to buy a house, what does a bank look at when
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 1      they look at you?  Well, this is on a much
 2      larger and a commercial level but the same thing
 3      happens.  There are certain things that the
 4      market is looking for to understand and
 5      interpret you as a sound financial risk.  And
 6      one of those things is your reserves.  And
 7      they're looking for about 60 days minimum.  And
 8      right now you're sitting at 32 days of reserves.
 9      So, if you needed to go to the market to borrow
10      money to build capital, you would not be looked
11      at favorably with those types of capital
12      reserves.
13               The second thing we looked at was
14      improved cash flow and debt service coverage.
15      Again, debt service coverage is one of those
16      things that the market looks at to find out how
17      good a risk you are for lending money.  And,
18      quite honest, in the past 18 months, since
19      August of 2008, things have changed considerably
20      in the bond market.  Right now you are sitting
21      at a debt service coverage of 1.13.  Right now
22      1.50 is about the lowest most investors want to
23      see.  So, again, you need to do something if you
24      want to go to the bond market to get capital
25      money to build your capital projects.
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 1               Finally, after we help -- and those
 2      first two items are what was part of the revenue
 3      requirements.  Is we helped you position your
 4      utility for those two items to be met.  After
 5      that we came in and we wanted to adjust rates
 6      equitably.  And this gets into the cost of
 7      service where you allocate the costs
 8      appropriately to who's causing the costs.
 9               And then we also look at some
10      innovative rate options.  So that if there were
11      issues, we could be flexible enough to meet your
12      specific needs.
13               And those are the services that Black &
14      Veatch provided.
15               And with this, Lori will -- Lori Austin
16      will come back up and continue.
17                     MS. AUSTIN:  Thank you, Peggy.
18               Just to talk a little bit further about
19      why this is necessary.  Peggy talked -- touched
20      a little bit on it.  Over the last several years
21      we have had 20 to 45 days of cash on hand.  The
22      recommended level is 60 days of cash.  At
23      year-end 2009 we do have -- we did have 32 days
24      of cash on hand.
25               With the lack of cash, that doesn't
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 1      allows us to finance the capital projects or
 2      meet our reserve and our debt service
 3      requirements.
 4               We also need to maintain our strong
 5      credit ratings so that when we go to the bond
 6      market that we can receive favorable interest
 7      rates and purchase those bonds for less
 8      expensive costs.
 9               Postponing the capital improvements
10      will ultimately cause our service disruptions
11      and our increased costs even more.
12               We also have inflationary pressures
13      that many of the other industries are
14      experiencing where our service materials and
15      laborers have increased.
16               And as Don noted earlier, our rates
17      have been constant since 2007.  We had a small
18      increase in 2007 and we are below the national
19      average and also lower than most surrounding
20      utilities.
21               So what is being proposed?  To meet the
22      requirements, the study recommends revenues from
23      the electric base rates of a series of four
24      increases each year of 7 percent for 2010, 2011,
25      2012 and 13.  And water base rates 8 percent in
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 1      2010 and 2011.  And 7 1/2 percent in 2012 and
 2      2013.  Now, that is a total base rate increase
 3      of 7.2 percent in 2010 and '11 and 7.1 percent
 4      in 2012 and 13.
 5               We are also proposing an environmental
 6      surcharge, and that environmental surcharge is a
 7      rider that will allow us to capture costs of
 8      environmental mandates that are required of us
 9      of capital projects for our generation.
10               The additional modification would be to
11      our energy rate component.  We are looking to
12      change that from the current process of six
13      months winter and six months summer to a
14      quarterly adjustment, and it would be on an --
15      through a calendar year basis.
16               And then -- and then also we are
17      looking to redefine our summer and winter
18      periods.  Our current summer period is from May
19      through October, and then our winter period is
20      November through April.  We're looking to
21      redefine that to four months summer and eight
22      months winter.  So our summer will be May
23      through August and winter period would be
24      September through April.
25               This is a look at our operating cash
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 1      flow under the proposed electric rates.  The
 2      solid line is if we did nothing.  As you can
 3      tell as we get out to 2011, we are definitely
 4      below our ability to fund our capital needs.
 5      The dotted line represents with the proposed
 6      rates.  And with the proposed rates that will
 7      meet our annual revenue requirements and reach
 8      our debt service, the projected 1.6 times
 9      coverage, and also meet our 60-day operating
10      reserve by 2013.  Now that is building our cash
11      reserve up to the 60 days by 2013.  It is not
12      all in one year.
13               Under water rates, solid line
14      represents is if we did nothing, and the dotted
15      line is under the proposed rates.
16               Now, the water proposed rates will meet
17      its annual revenue requirements and they have
18      reached their debt coverage of -- 1.4 times debt
19      service coverage, and 44 days of operating
20      reserve by 2013 -- or 2014.
21               The overall electric rate by classes,
22      as I stated, the overall percentage is a 7
23      percent across the four-year period.  When you
24      break it down by class and recovering those
25      costs equitably both residential and the large
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 1      power service are above the overall average
 2      cost.  We have put into place that we would not
 3      recover more than 50 percent of the overall
 4      system average in any one class, and that is why
 5      residential and large power service are a little
 6      bit higher through the study period until 2013.
 7               In the water side, the class is by
 8      year.  It's an overall 8 percent in '10 and '11,
 9      and 7 1/2 percent in 2012 and '13.  The
10      residential small and medium customers would be
11      a little bit higher than system average.  And
12      then the industrial would phase in a little bit
13      higher than average in later years.
14               So what is being proposed with the
15      environmental surcharge?  This is a surcharge to
16      offset the new capital improvement requirements
17      resulting from environmental regulations.  We
18      currently have one project that's slated for an
19      environmental project.  It is the low NOx
20      burners and overfire air.  Darrell Dorsey will
21      be talking about that a little bit.  It is a $40
22      million project.
23               So, with that, the environmental
24      surcharge is proposed to be at 1 percent in
25      2010, and then an additional 1.6 percent in
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 1      2011.  This amounts to an average increase for a
 2      residential customer of approximately 40 cents
 3      per month in 2010 and $1.04 per month in 2011.
 4               For a typical residential electric
 5      bill, this is breaking it out by our summer and
 6      winter period.  This is based on 1,150 kilowatt
 7      hours in the summer months and 625 kilowatt
 8      hours in the winter months.  This does not
 9      include PILOT or taxes.  You can see the range
10      from the summer period 2009 to summer period
11      2010 we're just coming into.  It's a little bit
12      of an increase from '09.  And then from the
13      summer period 2011 is approximately 12 to 13
14      dollars overall.
15               From the winter period, as you can see
16      from '09 to the winter period, there is an
17      actual decrease.  And then it's about a $7
18      increase in the winter period in 2011.
19               On the water side looking at 5 Ccf, 7
20      Ccf and 10 Ccf, the overall increase for 5 Ccf
21      would be about $2.72 for the first year, 2.95
22      for the second year, 2.75 for the third, and
23      $2.90 for the fourth year.
24               With that, I will turn it over to
25      Blake.  Blake Elliott, director of plant.
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 1                     MR. ELLIOTT:  As Lori said, my
 2      name is Blake Elliott, the director of electric
 3      supply planning.  I can't claim all the
 4      planning.
 5               The energy rate component is the
 6      portion of your bill that is broken out
 7      separately that recovers the costs of fuel and
 8      purchase power that the utility has to buy.  And
 9      we -- that was initially put into service back
10      in 2002 which was our last formal cost of
11      service study.
12               We have done the calculation 18 times.
13      One of those times was the mid-period
14      adjustment.
15               And what we have seen is a lot of
16      volatility in the ERC.  A lot of volatility
17      comes from the volatility in the gas market.
18      The gas market, we have seen gas prices at $14
19      per MMBTU, and we have seen gas prices at $4 for
20      MMBTU.  So as that gas price swings, we see a
21      lot of volatility in that pricing and it causes
22      our ERC to move quite a bit.  So we would like
23      to reduce that volatility.  We have seen a range
24      in ERC from 1.25 through 4.25 cents per kilowatt
25      hour on a -- for the every kilowatt hour that
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 1      you use on your bill.
 2               And then some of that additional
 3      volatility is from the reconciliation adjustment
 4      or the true-up that is done at the end of the
 5      period.  We make forecasts and do the
 6      calculation on that, but then the following year
 7      when we know what the final costs were for that
 8      previous period we true those costs up and we
 9      roll that into the calculation also.
10               This is the graphical representation of
11      exactly what has happened in each summer and
12      winter period.  This is that mid-period
13      adjustment, the $4 -- or $4.25 per kilowatt
14      hour.  And that was just for two months, the
15      months of September and October in 2008.
16               The proposed changes, again, Lori
17      mentioned this, we want to reduce the period
18      from six months to three months.  And we want to
19      perform that reconciliation adjustment more
20      quickly.  Right now there's a year to year so
21      that summer is reconciled with summer.  We hold
22      on to that for quite a bit of time.  We think we
23      can reduce volatility by shortening that period
24      and doing the reconciliation more quickly.
25               We would like to broaden the definition
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 1      of the power supply costs.  We want to capture
 2      all of our power supply costs in the ERC and
 3      that's some new ones that may be coming up we'll
 4      talk about.
 5               Also, there is a voltage adjustment
 6      that's done in the ERC and we're proposing to
 7      move that out of ERC and move it over actually
 8      into the individual customer class bill
 9      depending upon that customer and what voltage
10      they take -- their meter is located at.
11               These are the changes in the power
12      supply costs.  We want to include all of the
13      demand charges for purchase power and
14      transmission.  In there right now some of the
15      demand charges are excluded from going into ERC.
16      We would like to get them all in there.  Because
17      the demand charges truly are you don't have
18      demand unless you need energy.  This truly is an
19      energy cost to us.
20               The SPP, which is the Southwestern
21      Power Pool is the regional transmission
22      organization we belong to.  There's a lot of
23      development in the SPP about future market
24      things that we'll have to operate in to stay
25      connected to the grid.  There will be some new
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 1      market requirements, consolidated balancing
 2      authority.  There is some new transmission costs
 3      to get extra high voltage transmission
 4      available, to get wind energy out of the
 5      Midwest.  You may have heard some of that in the
 6      paper.  That is a very big discussion point.
 7      And then ancillary services which is some pretty
 8      specific generation-type definitions.
 9               We would like to recover costs
10      associated with demand response programs that
11      would give the utility actual control over
12      customer load.  If we see the load is going to
13      go up so high on a day and we can do something
14      to control that load, that is -- and bring it
15      down, then we don't have to go out and buy
16      additional generation for that time period.  So
17      we would like to recover some of those costs for
18      that type of equipment and charges.
19               Also, some -- the renewable energy
20      credits that come with our alternative energy,
21      our renewable energy, when those are sold back
22      to the marketplace we want to give a portion of
23      that back to our customers in the form of a
24      credit.  In the reconciliation adjustment.
25               I think that is the end of mine and I'm
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 1      going to ask Darrel Dorsey, next presenter.
 2                     MR. DORSEY:  Good evening.
 3               I will start off with a little
 4      background on the electric production and supply
 5      division for those of you that may not be
 6      familiar with our organization.  We have got
 7      about 211 employees in this division, the bulk
 8      of which are at the power generating stations.
 9               The Nearman plant is the youngest
10      plant.  It is not really new anymore.  It is 29
11      years old, but it is a single coal-fired unit,
12      235 megawatts.  We also have one combustion
13      turbine.  Our newest combustion turbine, CT4, is
14      at that site as well.
15               Quindaro power station has two
16      coal-fired units.  It also has three combustion
17      turbines.
18               The old Kaw power station had three
19      coal-fired units that also fired natural gas.
20      The Kaw power station has been in long-term cold
21      storage since about 2004.  It's not operating at
22      this time and there's nothing within this plan
23      to operate that station.
24               There is a number of other departments
25      within the division.  Environmental services
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 1      provides monitoring and reporting for all of our
 2      regulatory requirements.  They also provide the
 3      same services to the rest of the utility in some
 4      other areas.
 5               Fuels, we have a lot of activity in the
 6      fuel procurement for both coal, natural gas, and
 7      oil.  All fuels we're using at the plants for
 8      the main units.
 9               Planning, which is Blake's department.
10               Energy control center, which is the
11      dispatching of the energy from the power plants,
12      but they also handle the shorter term wholesale
13      power market, both selling power on the market
14      and buying power from the market.
15               Then key accounts, which is a set-up to
16      address the unique concerns of our top 50 key
17      account customers.
18               First of all, in 2010, we have made a
19      lost of cuts to stay within the revenue that we
20      have right now.  Just in 2010 we made from the
21      operational maintenance budget alone about $4
22      million worth of cuts in deferrals, work that
23      we're pushing out to future years.
24               One big example is our Combustion
25      Turbine #1 and 3 overhauls.  These are the three
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 1      combustion turbines that I mentioned were at the
 2      Quindaro power station.  Unit 1 is the oldest.
 3      Unit 3 and 1 are both due for overhauls, where
 4      we basically open the machine, inspect and make
 5      repairs as necessary and reassemble it.  It's
 6      the kind of the equipment we don't know what we
 7      have wrong until we open it and inspect it.
 8      It's a big job.  I mean, we will spend over a
 9      million dollars on each one of those just on the
10      inspection, the open and close and inspect.  And
11      then the necessary repairs are determined as we
12      go.
13               We made a lot of other cuts as well.
14      We deferred some boiler feed pump overhauls,
15      structural repairs.  We made unilateral cuts
16      across a lot of maintenance accounts.  I mean,
17      most of the maintenance accounts, quite frankly.
18               Again, we deferred some of the demand
19      side management programs that we'd been looking
20      into that Blake mentioned.  Environmental data
21      acquisition systems.  We built in some
22      additional attrition on our labor.  As Don
23      mentioned, we're holding off on filling
24      positions to save some cash.  Delayed vehicle
25      procurements.  And that is just a sampling of


Metropolitan Court Reporters, Inc.    913-317-8800







Page 46


 1      some of the budget cuts that we've made not only
 2      at the power stations but to meet the O & M
 3      budget.
 4               Capital cuts in our capital dollars, we
 5      cut a good $9 million.  About $3 million worth
 6      of work that we would do at Nearman right now if
 7      we had the funding, and about 6 million at
 8      Quindaro.
 9               Again, just some examples.  Combustion
10      Turbine #5 will be the next combustion turbine
11      addition.  You may recall at one time we were
12      going to add another coal-fired plant.  We
13      haven't done so.  We don't believe we can do so
14      in the near-term future, so our next plan is to
15      install another combustion turbine.
16               Now, this is actually the Combustion
17      Turbine 4 that went into service in 2006.
18      Combustion Turbine 5 in this plan is planned to
19      be the same, basically a mirror image, a
20      duplicate of Combustion Turbine 4, would sit
21      right next to it out at the Nearman power plant.
22      That is in this five-year capital plan.
23               Some other projects that were pushed
24      out, mercury monitoring equipment, lightning
25      protection systems, roofing replacements.  We
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 1      have roofs that we're just repairing until we
 2      can take care of a larger replacement project.
 3               Levee improvements, both Nearman and
 4      Quindaro have levees to protect them from
 5      flooding.  If you recall the last big flood,
 6      Nearman, for example, was totally surrounded.
 7      100 percent surrounded by flood water.  It needs
 8      a lot of levee improvements to maintain its
 9      certification and that level of protection.
10               The Quindaro flood wall needs some
11      work.  We pushed both of those out to 2011 as
12      well.  We're comfortable in doing so at this
13      time predominantly because the Quindaro project,
14      the Corps of Engineers has just recently done
15      some more detailed analysis of the flood wall.
16      There is a possibility they will be reducing the
17      scope and stretching out the work.  So we were
18      quite comfortable with pushing that one out.
19               The Nearman project, we felt we had
20      time.  It's mainly a lot of rock riff raff that
21      has to be repaired and replaced, but the work
22      will have to be done.
23               Combustion Turbine #3 air duct.  These
24      combustion turbines have a lot of steel liners
25      inside the air ducts.  We're having problems
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 1      with it.  Needs to be replaced.
 2               Mill gears and liners, traveling
 3      screens for the intakes.  Again, these are --
 4      this is just a sampling of some of the projects
 5      we cut and deferred and work that we pushed out.
 6      We probably had at least 24 projects of this
 7      nature that were deferred to later years.
 8               As far as our future needs, we will
 9      need to complete a lot of this deferred work.
10      It's not like we can keep pushing it out
11      forever.  You know, where we've pushed work out
12      we were comfortable with for the time being but
13      we know we've got to do it starting in 2011 and
14      12 to get caught up.
15               Also in the five-year capital plan,
16      though, are the overhauls for all three of the
17      coal-fired units.  Just as I mentioned with
18      combustion turbines, we have to periodically
19      completely tear them down, inspect them and make
20      repairs as necessary.  All three coal-fired
21      units will experience that in this five-year
22      period.
23               Combustion Turbines #2 and 4 will also
24      undergo overhauls.  Lori mentioned the low NOx
25      burner work, that will be installed by 2012 at
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 1      the two plants.  We have to replace Nearman air
 2      heater baskets and install the new combustion
 3      turbine.  And, again, that is just a sampling of
 4      some of the major work that is in the five-year
 5      plan.
 6               What it equates to is the Nearman
 7      projects over the next five years require about
 8      $20 million.  The Quindaro projects about $35
 9      million.  The new CT 5 is currently running an
10      estimate of about $74.5 million.  And as Lori
11      mentioned earlier, the low NOx burner project is
12      about 40 million.  We actually have engineers
13      working right now on an update for that cost but
14      we feel it's going to be pretty close.
15               The bulk of this will be funded through
16      bond funding to get these capital needs.  So it
17      is not a matter of we have to raise this much
18      money in five years.  We only have to raise the
19      debt service requirement for those bonds for
20      that time period.
21               Oh, we mentioned the environmental
22      surcharge rider.  The first project is related
23      to the Kansas City ozone.  You have probably
24      seen the ozone alerts on the news on TV and on
25      some of the buses going around downtown.  They
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 1      finally have come out with the mandates that
 2      require us to install the low NOx burners and
 3      overfire air systems to help bring down the
 4      ozone in the Kansas City area.  Now, that's
 5      about a $40 million project.  That is what this
 6      initial environmental surcharge will recapture
 7      is the bond debt service to retire the bonds for
 8      that environmental project.
 9               But there is a wide range of additional
10      environmental concerns that we know are on the
11      horizon.  They haven't come to fruition yet.  We
12      can't say exactly when they will but we know
13      they're going to be costly.
14               Regional haze is like how well you can
15      see from one mountain range to the other.  You
16      know, a hundred years ago, it was crystal clear,
17      today it's a little hazy.  They want to clear
18      that up.  If regional haze kicks in for Nearman,
19      and we are hoping it won't do so for another
20      five years, but we estimated about $169 million
21      just to do scrubbers for that power station.  So
22      there is potentially some large dollars involved
23      in those projects.
24               Hazardous air pollutants.  Mercury.
25      They did have a mercury rule out.  It was
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 1      rescinded.  We know it's going to come back out
 2      again.  We may have to install some mercury
 3      controls.
 4               Particulate matter.  The National
 5      Ambient Air Quality Standard revisions, just
 6      pointing out, those are kind of a baseline that
 7      kind of sets the standard from which all these
 8      programs evolve.  And they continue to evolve
 9      and tighten up on the ambient air quality
10      standards.  These programs will come to
11      fruition.  There's been a lot of talk about
12      carbon lately.  I don't know where it is going
13      to go.  We just know that when it gets here it's
14      going to be expensive.  So there is a lot of
15      future concerns where this environmental
16      surcharge can come into play as well to retire,
17      again, the capital funds necessary to do these
18      major environmental projects.
19               One of the things that frequently gets
20      asked is what are we doing to mitigate some of
21      those environmental costs, you know, because we
22      have these coal-fired units and gas units.  We
23      have emissions.  We already have quite a bit of
24      alternative energy in our system.  Green power
25      as people like to call it.  We have 38 megawatts
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 1      coming in from the Southwest Power
 2      Administration, 5 megawatts from the Western
 3      Area Power Administration.  We have a 25
 4      megawatt take on the Smoky Hills Wind Farm,
 5      which is the one off of I-70 as you go out west
 6      of Salina.  And we just recently started pulling
 7      in 1.6 megawatts off of a new landfill gas
 8      project.  So we are in a pretty good position
 9      right now.
10               Now, I should mention the state of
11      Kansas does not -- nor the federal government
12      requires us to have a mandatory renewable energy
13      portfolio, but this is what we have on, I guess
14      you would say, a voluntary basis.  So that does
15      help us mitigate some of our emissions costs to
16      a degree.
17               Future energy supplies, we do continue
18      to work on future renewables.  That's something
19      that planning, Blake, works on quite extensively
20      looking at when the next opportunity is for
21      additional landfill gas, wind energy, hydro.
22      You know, whatever we can find we are willing to
23      take a look at.
24               Conventional purchase power agreements
25      where we sign up with another utility to buy
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 1      their power for a period of time.  If the right
 2      offer is made and it's cheaper than what we can
 3      do it ourselves, we will buy the power from the
 4      other utility.
 5               The Southwest Power Pool energy
 6      markets.  As Blake mentioned, those are evolving
 7      markets.  We are market participants.  Right now
 8      it's just a real-time -- right now they -- you
 9      know, today's a power-type market, but they are
10      evolving day-ahead markets, ancillary service
11      markets.  I don't know if they will manage to
12      pull together any capacity markets, but we will
13      continue to participate in those as well to
14      provide your energy.
15               Of course, demand side management as
16      Blake mentioned is a great endeavor.  It has got
17      a lot of potential for us to have control of
18      energy in the community to help out this overall
19      situation.  It has got some real value.
20               But in the short term, our next
21      addition is, as I mentioned earlier, natural gas
22      generation by adding a combustion turbine at the
23      Nearman power station.
24               So that is kind of an overview of what
25      is in the five-year capital plan and the cost of
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 1      service for the electric production and supply
 2      division.
 3               With that, I will turn it over to Bill
 4      Johnson.
 5                     MR. JOHNSON:  Thank you, Darrell.
 6               Again, my name is Bill Johnson.  I'm
 7      manager of electric operations and technology.
 8               And just like Darrell, we have got a
 9      sizable workforce.  We've got about 199
10      employees within that division.  What the
11      division is primarily responsible for is taking
12      the energy generated at our power plants and
13      transporting and delivering that energy to each
14      and every business and home in the Kansas City
15      community.
16               We have got -- some of the departments
17      that make up electric operations and technology
18      is our T & D section, we've got our metering
19      section.  Information technology.  We have got
20      our fleet or our transportation.  We provide a
21      lot of transportation support for the entire
22      organization.
23               What we have in our five-year forecast,
24      which is part of this cost of service, are
25      capital projects to go in and rebuild a lot of
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 1      over and underground distribution, and also do
 2      some upgrades on some of our transmission
 3      circuits.  Got about $56 million for
 4      distribution work alone, and I will get more --
 5      and give you more specific information about
 6      this.
 7               Transmission upgrades are about 33
 8      million.  Substation improvements and new
 9      additions were about $42 million.  And the
10      AMI/AMR project which is advanced metering, or
11      automated meter reading system, is about $13
12      million.  And a $16 million investment in our
13      existing radio system, two-way radio system,
14      which is a system that all of our field crews
15      use.  Electric, water, customer service field
16      crews.  But also it's kind of a joint use radio
17      system where we also share that radio system
18      with the Unified Government.  Police, fire,
19      emergency management also rides on that same
20      system.
21               The system is at a point where it is
22      starting to run out of warranty, where it is
23      starting to lose a lot of manufacturing and
24      support on that system.  And we are looking at a
25      number of avenues trying to create -- get some
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 1      additional financing, but it's simply past the
 2      point where we need to start looking at
 3      replacing it.
 4               This is a construction overview of what
 5      we are proposing to do with our T & D
 6      construction plant.  We want to build new 161
 7      substations and do some upgrades to our 15 kV
 8      distribution network.  The reason for that is
 9      there is an increase for energy that is
10      continuing to go up.
11               And, also, we have got a service
12      territory that is still expanding.  A lot of the
13      development that you see out west, a lot of that
14      development is going into places where we really
15      don't have adequate distribution circuits.  So
16      we're having to extend our distribution network
17      further and further out to meet that new growth.
18               And, also, homes are -- even though
19      they are more energy efficient, homes are
20      becoming more and more bigger.  Appliances are
21      using more energy.  While some of them are using
22      less, you know, the flat screen TVs and some of
23      the other things you're seeing are driving up
24      that demand for new energy.
25               The other thing we are wanting to do at
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 1      our substation, and this is a plan that we have
 2      started some time ago, is to continue converting
 3      a lot of our 69 line kV substations to 161.
 4      What I mean by that, if you took a look at our
 5      service territory, about -- we've got 29 major
 6      substations and about half of those substations
 7      are 161 kV or 161,000 volt substations.  The
 8      other half are 69,000 substations.
 9               We started converting those substations
10      over to 161 to increase reliability for all of
11      our customers and also to move our transmission
12      network to one voltage.  So in the long run that
13      will reduce cost and also eliminate some of the
14      problems we're having with some of the aging
15      infrastructure.  Our 69 kV system is our only
16      system.  As it stands now, the utility spends
17      more dollars than we would like because we are
18      having to maintain both systems at the same
19      time.  So we are trying to mitigate some of that
20      by moving it to one standardized or one voltage.
21               Same thing with our 15 kV distribution
22      system.  We have got two distribution voltages
23      in KCK.  As we build new substations and convert
24      those 69 kV stations to 161, that also gives us
25      an opportunity to get our distribution network
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 1      to one voltage, too, so we're not having to
 2      support two.  And then the other part of the
 3      project is just to do some upgrade to our
 4      southern 161 loop that will add some capacity.
 5               A little bit deeper detail on the
 6      substation transmission projects that are
 7      actually in the budget is our Wolcott substation
 8      is the first one I will talk about.  It is a new
 9      substation that is being built out in the
10      Wolcott community.  The purpose for this is to
11      create a new intertie with Kansas City Power &
12      Light.  Our intertie right now is at Maywood
13      substation at 94th and Parallel.  This one was
14      set further north and it will create a new
15      intertie.
16               It will also provide redundant service
17      to a substation that was -- that is already in
18      the Piper community.  If you go out 123rd
19      Street, there is a substation that we energized
20      about five years ago called Piper West.
21               We need to build a new Wolcott inner
22      sub -- and a transmission project to provide a
23      secondary feed to that substation so that we
24      will have a back-up feed in case we need -- we
25      lose the one transmission line that's feed it,
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 1      we will have a secondary line that's already
 2      there.  Or we can take it out for maintenance.
 3      We will also have that secondary line there.
 4               We are also proposing an east Fairfax
 5      substation.  This project is -- goes along with
 6      what I said earlier with converting the 69 kV
 7      substations to 161.  What we are proposing to do
 8      with Fairfax is to eliminate three existing 69
 9      kV substations and build one new one to replace
10      it.  It will also give us the ability to tackle
11      some of this aging infrastructure that's down
12      there.  And I will get a little bit deeper into
13      that in some slides that's coming up.  But it
14      will also give us a chance to expand and
15      increase our distribution reliability down there
16      and make Fairfax a place that we can market
17      better in the future but also provide and
18      support new growth to the existing customers
19      that are down there.  The customers want to
20      expand so we have to have distribution capacity
21      within our system to be able to support that.
22               The other main substation project is
23      Muncie substation.  Again, it is an existing
24      substation.  It's a 69 kV substation that we
25      would like to convert over to a 161.  It is one
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 1      of our oldest substations on the system.  In
 2      fact, the two oldest substations is -- one is at
 3      Fairfax and this is the other one.
 4               I will talk about some of the age and
 5      infrastructure down here later on and show you
 6      why this -- converting this substation is past
 7      the critical state is something that is in our
 8      plan and why we need to replace that.  The main
 9      thing that goes into that decision is that's one
10      of the substations that provide service to the
11      downtown community.  So that is what makes it
12      critical.  And like I said earlier, it's also
13      one of our older substations.
14               Here is a map of some of the projects
15      that I just talked about.  What I would like to
16      do is draw your attention to this line here
17      (indicating).  This is a transmission line out
18      west.  This is the 435 interchange.  This line
19      is owned by Kansas City Power & Light.
20               What is interesting about it is here is
21      our Maywood substation (indicating), here is the
22      Piper substation (indicating) I talked about
23      earlier.  There is -- this transmission line is
24      primarily responsible for feeding and providing
25      service to this entire area here (indicating).
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 1               And the interesting thing is we are
 2      providing service off a line that BPU don't even
 3      own.  We tapped into that line here to feed
 4      Piper here, so Piper and Maywood is already
 5      providing distribution service.  This is a
 6      transmission line project that is already on the
 7      way and we hope to complete it by the end of
 8      this year.
 9               The substation will probably be
10      energized next year and our plans following that
11      is to construct the new 161 line from Wolcott
12      back down to our Nearman power plant that
13      Darrell talked about earlier.  The reason for
14      that is BPU needs to have some ownership in --
15      of transmissions that feeds its community.  And
16      we just take it away from relying on another
17      utility to provide that type of service to
18      Kansas City.
19               We talked about Fairfax.  A lot of our
20      budget is going to be spent in this area just
21      building a new substation and replacing three.
22      And this is Muncie here.
23               Some of the transmission work I talked
24      about earlier is this other loop.  It's a
25      transmission line that is already there.  Our
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 1      plans are -- is to leave that -- the poles
 2      there.  Leave everything else there, just
 3      reconduct, put up a little bit bigger wire so we
 4      can have a little bit more capacity built within
 5      that circuit.
 6               I've talked about transmission
 7      projects, now I would like to shift to
 8      distribution.  Part of our strategy for wanting
 9      to upgrade some of our distribution is to mainly
10      focus on some of these 60 to 80-year-old
11      underground and overhead infrastructure that's
12      more in our central core for the downtown area,
13      in Fairfax, and in the Armourdale area more
14      specifically.
15               But years ago the design was to put in
16      a lot of lead and paper cable.  That requires
17      specialized-type work.  It's the whole
18      infrastructure.  Most engineering standards have
19      moved away from that type of construction, and
20      we've already started replacing a lot of it.
21      Our plan is to continue replacing that.  It will
22      provide a lot more efficiency, reliability to
23      our system.  While we are going through it, we
24      will have the ability to also take a look at a
25      lot of duct bank manholes that are that age,
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 1      too.  A lot of them are starting to deteriorate.
 2               We'll also be doing some overhead
 3      distribution upgrades in that area, too.  The
 4      primary reason is to again mitigate some of the
 5      aging infrastructures and also increase some of
 6      our load capacity.  A lot of the existing wire
 7      that is there now is really undersized based on
 8      what our today's standards are.  So going in and
 9      replacing some poles and putting up a little bit
10      larger wire will certainly help.  Not only
11      provide greater reliability but also add more
12      capacity.  And while we are in there, it would
13      be a good opportunity to take advantage of a lot
14      of vegetation management, trimming trees, and
15      doing some of the necessary work that would
16      eliminate some of the outages down the road.
17               The other thing I talk about with
18      Muncie is also, you know, picking up my focus on
19      how do we improve service to the downtown
20      community.  Muncie is one of two substations
21      that feed power to downtown.  There is some
22      dedicated feeders, meaning that there are
23      feeders that come downtown that really don't
24      have any or hardly -- or very few residential
25      customers attached to them.  Those are some of
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 1      the things that we are taking a look at first.
 2               What I want to pointed out on this map
 3      is where some of the distribution dollars are
 4      going to be spent.  Kind of got a color-coded
 5      chart here from 2010 to 2014 that just shows
 6      here is where we are spending dollars on the
 7      Fairfax project and some of the additional
 8      dollars that we are asking for under this rate
 9      increase will be spent in this area in 2010.  A
10      lot of this work out here is being done by a
11      previous bond request that we got last year.
12      But there is not enough dollars to really
13      complete some of the things that we are wanting
14      to do out there as well as down here, so that is
15      where the new dollars will come in to have a
16      bigger impact in these areas.
17               And then what we're doing is just kind
18      of follow this color code down and, you know, do
19      some rebuilding in this section in 2011, 2012,
20      and then work our way south.  With all this that
21      we have got in here, it's -- we'll make some
22      significant upgrades to some key areas but
23      certainly wouldn't be looking at rebuilding this
24      whole area here, just addressing some of the
25      more pressing needs.
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 1               Some of the spending by area.  I kind
 2      of split the -- our service territory along 635
 3      east and west and along I-70 north and south.
 4      And use it following that same -- that same
 5      quadrant.  The northeast is going to receive
 6      about $40 million worth of -- or that spending.
 7      Most of it would be in the Fairfax and the
 8      downtown area.  We will have some dollars in the
 9      residential area, mostly some of the overhead
10      rebuild.  This would be a lot of underground
11      that's downtown and some overhead in Fairfax.
12               The northwest, like I said earlier,
13      there is some financing already in place to take
14      care of some of those projects, but there's
15      going to be new service coming out of the
16      Wolcott substation.  We are already running new
17      feeders out of the Piper substation now.  And
18      what makes that -- what makes that important to
19      us is that this station that I talked about
20      earlier that is at 94th and Parallel, our plan
21      is to start shifting the residential customers
22      more and more away from that so -- so that that
23      substation can be better suited for a lot of the
24      entertainment and retail that is starting to
25      appear around the Village West area.  It will be
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 1      more and more a dedicated substation for growth
 2      in that area.
 3               The southeast is a lot of the
 4      transmission line upgrades and as well as the
 5      southwest.  It would just be reconducting some
 6      of those transmission lines that are already
 7      there.
 8               With this slide what I want to talk
 9      about is just some of the age of some of the
10      distribution here.  Why upgrading some of this
11      distribution is so important.  This section
12      here, which is east of 635, which I have already
13      talked about, it also has a lot of the lead and
14      paper cable and even some of the old overhead is
15      something that we want to upgrade.  Mainly
16      because a lot of this stuff is between 60 and 80
17      years old.  And if you get down into parts of
18      Fairfax and parts of Armourdale there may be
19      small sections that may even extend beyond that.
20               What we have done over the last 10
21      years is to go in with smaller projects and just
22      kind of make some upgrades, some -- you know,
23      smaller sections that we have rebuilt.  Like I
24      said earlier, we are not going to be able to
25      rebuild all of this but we can certainly go in
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 1      and continue to focus on some of the more
 2      critical areas.  Some of the areas where we have
 3      some of the oldest infrastructures still there
 4      and continue to make upgrades until we can start
 5      making this area, you know, more reliable and
 6      provide the type of quality service that we
 7      would all want to continue to provide.
 8               Here is a map that just kind of shows
 9      how we got to where we are at.  Prior to 1964,
10      BPU served this section right here that is in
11      the yellow (indicating).  Throughout --
12      throughout the years we have continued to buy
13      more and more service territory from Kansas City
14      Power & Light.
15               In 1968, we acquired this service
16      territory in blue (indicating).  And then in
17      '71, we expanded out here (indicating).  '72, we
18      purchased all of this (indicating).  '74, we
19      purchased this section (indicating).  And then,
20      finally, in '82 we came out in this section
21      (indicating).
22               Now what we have done is as we bought
23      more service territory, we went in and upgraded
24      some of the transmission -- the old transmission
25      service there.  We did go in and put in some new


Metropolitan Court Reporters, Inc.    913-317-8800







Page 68


 1      substations.  We didn't really do a lot of
 2      distribution upgrades.  We kind of left a lot of
 3      those circuits that we bought from Kansas City
 4      Power & Light in place.  But what it has done to
 5      us over the years, and because we haven't had
 6      the budget to completely do some of the things
 7      that we have tried to do in the past, you can
 8      see where our 69 substations began to age more
 9      and more.
10               Muncie substation, I talked about
11      earlier, is right here (indicating).  The
12      substation and the transformer that's there is
13      about 60 years old.  A new transformer has a
14      normal life expectancy of about 30 years.  So
15      this kind of shows you where we're at with the
16      age of these units.  74 percent of our
17      transformers are past 30 years old.  That is why
18      it's critical that BPU does not continue to push
19      this infrastructure further and further out into
20      the future because we're going to get to the
21      point where we can't support it.
22               This is another shot of all of our
23      transformers, all of our substation
24      transformers.  When you mix in the 161
25      transformers in our substations, these are our
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 1      newer units.  You can still see somewhere in the
 2      50 to 60 percent range.  You know, we still have
 3      a lot of transformers that are past 30 years
 4      old.
 5               In our conversion of 69 to 161
 6      conversion, a plan that we started is -- was
 7      creating this down here and is -- and we are
 8      removing this older section up here and this is
 9      what we are planning to do with this cost of
10      service study in our five-year forecast.  To do
11      that it is going to cost, you know, money.  You
12      know, just like everything else prices of
13      material, the prices of professional services
14      have gone up.
15               Don talked about some of the wire
16      transformers earlier in his introduction.  The
17      transformers that we're using is pretty standard
18      in the new substations that we are building now.
19      In 2005, that transformer was about $638,000.
20      In all of our substations, designs can put two
21      transformers in there so we have switching
22      capabilities within a substation.  We'll need to
23      take one transformer out for service and we've
24      got the other one there that's sized properly so
25      it can carry the load -- the majority of the
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 1      load of the substation.
 2               Since 2005, this transformer has gone
 3      from $638,000 to about 1.4 to 1.5 million
 4      dollars.  So, you know, as we go through and
 5      build new substations those projects are
 6      becoming more and more expensive to build.  So
 7      the distribution transformers, these are
 8      transformers that you see on the poles.  These
 9      are transformers you see right outside of a
10      business.  The lower voltage transformers.
11               There is 2007 prices -- price increases
12      since 2007 and these are transformers that we
13      commonly use every year for new construction,
14      storm restoration.  We go through probably 250
15      or so distribution transformers a year.
16               But the price increases range from
17      about 45 percent up to well over a hundred
18      percent in this short span, which is shorter
19      than what I talked about up here.  So this kind
20      of shows where the price of materials are going
21      up.
22               Here is just a few more pieces of
23      commonly used stock items.  Wooden poles, 35 and
24      45 foot poles that will increase 35 and 80
25      percent.  Wire for dis -- for, you know, the
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 1      rebuilding of the distribution circuits that I
 2      talked about overhead.  Underground wire you are
 3      looking at 200, 300, 363 percent price
 4      increases.  So these are serious increases in
 5      price that just gives you an idea of we need to
 6      finance these projects and these projects are
 7      becoming more and more expensive when we do
 8      build budgets to help support them.
 9               Darrell talked about earlier some of
10      the cuts that the production side has made, and,
11      you know, Don talked about some of the cuts
12      earlier, too, that the entire utility has made.
13      Just a snapshot of some of the things we have
14      done is reduce staffing.  We have certainly
15      delayed and deferred a lot of improvements over
16      the years that, you know, has been needed.  We
17      have pushed out a lot of upgrades in our
18      telecommunications, a lot of our IT systems.  We
19      made -- we made some investments in some areas
20      but some areas we really haven't touched in a
21      while and there are some things that we still
22      need to do there.
23               Vehicles and work equipment.  We
24      purchase all the work equipment and vehicles for
25      the utility and maintain them.  And it has been
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 1      about four years since we have bought any cars
 2      or work equipment other than maybe one or two.
 3      So we are starting to fall behind there and we
 4      are starting to see some of these units drive up
 5      our maintenance costs higher and higher.  And
 6      some of them are either -- even a piece of
 7      equipment that we have taken out of service so
 8      it is not available when we need it.  We are
 9      going to have to address this -- the situation,
10      especially when we are building some of these
11      other projects because these are the tools that
12      we use to not only maintain but also to build
13      the new projects that we are proposing.
14               Tree trimming has taken a big hit.  The
15      past budgets, we have had to cut our trimming
16      budget by about a fifth.  We also were driven by
17      inert to do a lot of tree trimming on our
18      transmission lines because we really didn't have
19      the budget to support that.  We just shifted
20      money from our distribution work over to our
21      transmission type of work.  The last two summers
22      have been, you know, cooler than normal.  We
23      have had storms that extend into the summertime.
24      So not maintaining those trees have created a
25      lot of outages and our community has suffered
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 1      through repeat outages.  We are hoping to build
 2      that back -- that tree trimming budget back up
 3      and get back on schedule.
 4               We have got about 34 locations which
 5      are substations and other facilities under
 6      electric operations.  And like Darrell talked
 7      about earlier, we have got roofing and HVAC
 8      systems, plumbing, things that we continue to
 9      push further and further out because we just
10      didn't have the dollars to help support it.
11               Parking surfaces, our grass cutting.
12      It is not just these locations but all of our
13      power plants, all of our water facilities, that
14      number goes quite a bit up when you look at all
15      the grass cutting.  Even the vacant lots that
16      BPU used to have equipment on them.  But, you
17      know, it's a vacant lot now and we still have to
18      maintain those properties.  And a few years ago
19      because of budget constraints we cut our grass
20      cutting budget by about 25 percent and we
21      haven't recovered from that yet.
22               While we were going through some of the
23      cuts, we have also made significant improvements
24      to our system.  SCADA, which is the supervisory
25      control system, that goes out and looks at all
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 1      of our substations, our energy control center,
 2      and can monitor all of our substations, the
 3      breakers, the transformers and control them.  We
 4      are starting to put in newer and better controls
 5      to make sure that the system control is what it
 6      needs to be not only today but into the future.
 7               We are also doing some major control
 8      work in our pump stations, too, to go along with
 9      that.
10               We purchased a geographic information
11      system which is basically a mapping system.  We
12      have taken a lot of paper maps and put them into
13      an asset database, and we are also extending
14      that out to our designers.  What that means is
15      we have a lot of -- a lot of our assets are on
16      desktops now.  We are taking old drawings out of
17      file cabinets, putting them into an electronic
18      database.  They are able to make better
19      decisions, know what is out in the system.  When
20      we make modifications we can make changes to our
21      mapping system, and then that information is
22      useful to feed into our new outage management
23      system.  That system went on line last year and
24      is a major upgrade than what we had in place
25      before.
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 1               What came with that is a new
 2      interactive voice response system.  So when you
 3      call into the system now there's a little bit
 4      different message.  What people don't see behind
 5      the scenes is we've cut our restoration efforts
 6      down significantly because the system takes the
 7      calls, routes them to and predicts where problem
 8      areas are and they show up on a map, this being
 9      created here and created within this product.
10      All of our dispatchers, our crews, know right
11      away where our outages are at so we can get our
12      crews out there a lot quicker.  Where, you know,
13      in the old days if we had 5,000 people out, then
14      there was 5,000 individual work tickets created.
15      And we had to just kind of sit down and group
16      tickets together and kind of figure out what is
17      going on.  The system does that automatically
18      for 5,000 outages.  For 5,000 customers out, may
19      only be 20 outages, 20 problems that create that
20      many outages.  We can go out now and work 20
21      problems and get people back on.
22               Last month we had a storm where we had
23      about 10,700 people out and it took us about a
24      day and a half to go through that restoration
25      process and get everybody back on.  I can't
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 1      remember any other time where we have made that
 2      much progress in that short period of time.
 3               We have got an asset management system
 4      for substation maintenance and pump station
 5      maintenance that we are continuing to improve.
 6      Our plan is to roll this into -- where we're
 7      pushing those work tickets out into the field.
 8      Some of our troubleshooters already have laptops
 9      so we are trying to create communications to
10      push those work orders out and further increase
11      efficiency.
12               We have invested into a PILOT AMI
13      system.  We have about 4,000 electric meters and
14      about 1500 water meters that are the automated
15      meter readers -- meters that are being read
16      remotely.  That project is a project that we
17      want to extend and expand.
18               We applied for a smart grid grant from
19      the DOE last year, just like almost every
20      utility in the country.  We were not successful
21      in getting the grant dollars but BPU has already
22      had this project in its strategy.  And what we
23      would like to do is build that system out in
24      three years for the electric side of this, about
25      a $13 million project.  What it will do for us
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 1      is create a lot of efficiency and reduce a lot
 2      of operating costs.
 3               Today we send a lot of vehicles back
 4      and forth to customers' houses for a number of
 5      reasons, to collect reads, to do -- collect
 6      rereads, and turn on and turn off for diversion.
 7      We can automate a lot of those work processes
 8      within this system.  We can also collect hourly
 9      reads.  What that will become is useful
10      information to all of our customers and also
11      enable our customers to be able to take that
12      information and make better energy -- better
13      choices with how they use energy.
14               And there are some of our industrial
15      customers that are already receiving hourly
16      reads and they are making good business
17      decisions based on having that data.  We can
18      build up a load profile and that is taking a
19      monthly or an hourly profile of what the
20      customer's usage patterns are, and, there again,
21      giving that back to the customer, whether it is
22      by website or whether it is through one of these
23      in-home displays or home area network systems.
24               Darrell talked about demand side
25      management.  Another thing that goes with that
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 1      is demand response.  The AMI system basically
 2      creates a communication system to and from the
 3      utility, to the customer's house and back.  One
 4      thing that a lot of utilities are doing is
 5      putting in programable thermostats.  But this
 6      will provide the communications network that
 7      will allow the utility to enter into contracts
 8      and to control these thermostats to help reduce
 9      peak loading especially in the summertime.
10               The thing that we have been watching
11      also is General Motors and several foreign
12      carmakers have electric vehicles that they're
13      proposing to roll out this year.  Our
14      distribution system is really not -- we don't
15      have enough controls.  We don't -- can't monitor
16      it.  There is some sizing limits into -- in some
17      of them.  So depending on where the charging
18      stations show up, building this network and also
19      doing some distribution upgrade is really going
20      to be required.  So that when these charging
21      stations start showing up all across our service
22      territory, we can start providing that type of
23      service and having systems that support, you
24      know, the new Chevy Volt that I believe is
25      scheduled to start this year.
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 1               This is our service centers.
 2      Maintenance -- our show-up area for most of our
 3      field crews to go out and -- these are the
 4      linemen, these are the other guys that go out
 5      and maintain our systems.  Some of the projects
 6      that we've pushed out or delayed are on some of
 7      the roofs and the HVACs are at this location.
 8      It's also at one of the 29 substations that are
 9      around.
10               We have had some of this roof replaced
11      through the main center.  Here is our inside
12      warehouse.  We have got sections of roof here,
13      we have got canopies that are rusted.  And we
14      have got water that is coming inside the
15      storeroom.  We have had to shift inventory
16      around just to keep it from getting damaged.
17      There is a project in our five-year forecast is
18      to complete this.  This has been -- the last
19      time we addressed it was about three years ago.
20      We was delaying the final replacement for the
21      last three years so we have elected to try to
22      address this.
23               And then, finally, my last slide is --
24      this is what you typically see every day, you
25      know, despite having -- not having enough cash
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 1      to address a lot of the -- and make a lot of the
 2      improvements that we want.  We still have people
 3      out providing services, working long hours doing
 4      the best we can to provide quality service to
 5      all of our customers.  These guys work through a
 6      lot of adverse weather conditions and they will
 7      continue to do that, but, you know, it is
 8      important that we start replacing and repairing
 9      more and more of this infrastructure and that
10      will only benefit the customers that we all
11      serve.
12               I would like to now introduce Jim Epp,
13      manager of water.
14                     MR. EPP:  Thank you, Bill, and
15      good evening.  My name is Jim Epp, I'm the
16      manager of water operations.
17               I want to start my presentation by
18      briefly touching on the past 10 years.  The
19      reason I want to do this is this is my
20      opportunity to say thank you to the rate payer,
21      to the community for the support you have shown
22      for our water system.  We couldn't have done it
23      without you.  We, the rate payer, the staff and
24      the board has supported and completed
25      significant improvements to the community water
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 1      supply and treatment transmission and storage
 2      systems.  These improvements will benefit our
 3      community for the next 50 years.
 4               This is where we were in 1993.
 5      Quindaro water treatment plant, it was anywhere
 6      from 50 to 80 years old.  It was very spread
 7      out.  It was expensive to operate.  Very
 8      expensive to maintain.  Labor intensive.  We had
 9      three operators per shift and it is in the
10      floodplain.  Right here it is protected by a
11      flood wall.  Still is protected by that same
12      flood wall.
13               In the early 1990s we started planning
14      for what to do with this treatment plant,
15      whether to stay there for the long run or to
16      build a new plant.
17               Then the flood in 1993 hit.  This is
18      that same 14-foot high flood wall.  At this
19      point it was within a couple feet of going over
20      the top of it.
21               This is the backside of that wall.  The
22      water level about right here (indicating).  And
23      the entire treatment plant area was literally a
24      war zone.  We survived the flood, we stayed on
25      line, and we suffered significant damage to our
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 1      filter building.  At this point in time through
 2      our rate payer support the decision was made to
 3      move to a different site and build a new
 4      treatment plant.
 5               And this is where we are today.  We are
 6      at our new Nearman water treatment plant.  It's
 7      above the 500-year floodplain on a bluff.
 8      Everything is housed in one building.  The
 9      laboratory, the filters, chemical feed
10      equipment, high service pump station, reservoir,
11      and then we have our basins out back.  This is a
12      highly efficient plant.  It can operate with one
13      person per shift on the second or third shifts.
14      And it is an award winning plant.  It was
15      awarded the -- from the American Water Works
16      Association and Environmental Protection Agency
17      the director's award for the partnership for
18      safe drinking water.
19               It features two horizontal collector
20      wells.  They are located on the banks of the
21      Missouri River.  I think this is one of our most
22      important community assets.  Each well can
23      produce 40 million gallons per day.  They are
24      the largest in the country.  They are the
25      largest because of the high productive aquifer
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 1      that lies below the Missouri River.
 2               This is a picture of that same
 3      collector well during a flood event.  This is
 4      another advantage of a collector well.  We have
 5      overhead power.  It can operate during a flood.
 6      It continues to draw water below the -- beneath
 7      the Missouri River during a drought condition.
 8      If there was a spill event on the river, it
 9      would probably flow right on by.  It also helps
10      us to protect against Missouri River
11      degradation.
12               This is our second collector well.  It
13      was completed about 2003.
14               And a little more explanation on how a
15      collector well works.  This is what you saw in
16      the picture.  This is what is below ground.  It
17      goes down 100 feet to almost bedrock.  This is
18      the aquifer and these radials go out into the
19      aquifer, collect the water into the main shaft,
20      and then it is pumped out through these pumps to
21      our water treatment plant.  And the Missouri
22      River is right here (indicating).  The water
23      flows down into the aquifer from the Missouri
24      River so it continues to be recharged.  Again,
25      this is one of the community's most important
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 1      assets.
 2               Also, in approximately 2003 -- no, 2006
 3      we completed the Robert L. Milan Pump station.
 4      It is a 30-million gallon per day station with a
 5      6-million gallon reservoir.  This helps us
 6      support growth to the west and provide storage
 7      for the entire system.
 8               This is 51st and Gibbs.  Recently
 9      completed 2-million gallon elevated tank.  Helps
10      stabilize the pressure in this system, reduce
11      main breaks and provide fire protection.
12               So where we are today.  Don has already
13      gone through this slide.  Our sales are down
14      approximately 18 percent from 2006.  Why are
15      sales down?  Economy, weather, flat to declining
16      population, and conservation.  Conservation has
17      been going on in the water industry for several
18      years now.
19               Where are we at with our BPU financial
20      policy?  Our goal is to have 1.6 times debt
21      service coverage, 60 days operating cash.  We
22      were placed on a credit watch by our credit
23      rating agencies.  If we don't shore up our
24      credit rating, this would lead into lower credit
25      ratings which means higher borrowing costs.
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 1               What have we done to cut our budget?
 2      We reduced operation and maintenance by 8
 3      percent.  We are holding 9 percent of our staff
 4      positions open.  Froze salaries and delayed
 5      capital improvement projects on aging
 6      infrastructure.
 7               Water division staffing.  Prior to
 8      opening the Nearman water treatment plant in
 9      2000, we had 118 authorized positions.  Today we
10      have 108, and currently we have 99 of them
11      filled.
12               Going forward.  We need to replace
13      aging infrastructure.  Our water system needs
14      are 60 million in capital improvements to
15      replace outdated control systems, replace aging
16      water distribution infrastructure, improve our
17      storage at the Nearman water treatment plant,
18      and implement automated meter reading which
19      Bill's already discussed.
20               Aging infrastructure.  We need to
21      increase our funding program to replace mains
22      that are 50 to 100 years old.  Maintain our
23      programs to replace old valves, hydrants and
24      service lines.  Replace meters and implement
25      automated meter reading.  Replace our outdated
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 1      control systems and our aging fleet.  We have
 2      delayed fleet replacement for four years now.
 3               This is what happens with aging water
 4      mains.  You have all probably seen one.  They
 5      are very expensive to repair.  We spend $500,000
 6      alone just in pavement repair for one of these
 7      main breaks and well over a million total a year
 8      just from repairing our main breaks.
 9               We average 600 per year.  80 percent of
10      our main leaks are on 4-inch and smaller mains
11      that are 50 to 100 years old.  We have 250 miles
12      of these mains.  Total cost to replace them
13      would be 66 million.  This is an expensive
14      endeavor.  We can't do it all at once.  We're
15      not proposing to spend all 66 million, but we
16      are proposing to start a 10-year program at 1.5
17      million per year to replace 35 miles of the most
18      deteriorated mains.  Currently we only budget
19      $400,000 per year.
20               This is what an old 2-inch main looks
21      like.  This is probably 50 years plus.  And it
22      is very deteriorated.  And these are the types
23      of mains that break and we are in need of
24      repairing.
25               A lot of these mains are east of 635.
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 1      This is 635 right here (indicating).  It is the
 2      older part of our system.  Here is the Kansas
 3      River.  A lot of these mains are located in the
 4      northeast and eastern parts of the county.
 5               Total cap improvements by area, we are
 6      proposing 60 million.  55 percent of that 60
 7      million are for systemwide improvements.
 8      Improvements that benefit everyone.  35 percent
 9      are for the eastern part of the county and 10
10      percent for the western.
11               Eastern water projects include Unified
12      Government street projects, mill and overlay.
13      When the city goes out and mill and overlay the
14      street, we try to get out ahead of them to
15      repair anything we need to repair.  So once it
16      is done we're not in there tearing up the street
17      when there is a main break.  So we do the best
18      job we can to coordinate with the city.
19               I mentioned our main leak replacement
20      program.  Distribution system improvements.
21      Service repair and replacement.  Fire hydrant
22      and valve replacement.  Total $21 million.
23               And, finally, the purpose for the water
24      rate increase.  Very similar to electric,
25      maintain our credit rating, to reduce costs in
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 1      borrowing for capital improvements, improve our
 2      debt service coverage to 1.4, and operating cash
 3      to 45 days.  And support capital improvements
 4      and replace our aging water distribution and
 5      control systems.
 6               And to conclude for the entire staff,
 7      reason for rate increase to improve our
 8      liquidity and debt coverage.  Support needed
 9      capital projects and upgrades to aging
10      infrastructure.  Our BPU rates have been
11      constant since 2007 and below the national
12      average and lower than most surrounding
13      utilities.
14               And now I would like to bring back
15      Mr. David Mehlhaff.
16                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Jim.
17               A couple of things.  First of all,
18      thank you for your patience.  It has been a long
19      night I know.  We have a lot to go through and
20      this is just part of the public hearing process.
21      We have a lot of details to go through, so thank
22      you for your patience.
23               What we want to do right now is we want
24      to be able to take your questions that you
25      filled out on the card.  After we do that, then
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 1      there will be time for public comments after
 2      that from those of you that have signed in on
 3      this sheet.  If you haven't signed in yet,
 4      please do so if you want to make some public
 5      comments.  The questions we have, we will answer
 6      those.
 7               I want to remind you the rate hearing
 8      will take place again tomorrow morning at 9:00
 9      a.m., same room, same place.  What we will do
10      also after that we will have a more formalized
11      detailed presentation by our partners of Black &
12      Veatch, and then we will go -- continue in some
13      of the technical portion of the rate hearing
14      process.
15               So we are going to take a very short,
16      and I mean short, because it is a long night,
17      five-minute break.  And I need the management
18      staff to stay up here because I have a lot of
19      questions I need to distribute to you that --
20      which ones are most appropriate to answer some
21      of these fine folks' questions that we have.  So
22      a short five-minute break and we will right back
23      here at 9:05.  Thank you.
24                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Go ahead.
25                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Judge.
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 1               My name is David Mehlhaff, public
 2      affairs office at BPU.  I'm going to try to
 3      answer quite a few of these questions.
 4      Conferred with the management team and want to
 5      thank all of those who have submitted your
 6      questions and then we will begin the -- we will
 7      take questions -- comments from the audience,
 8      those that filled out the card.
 9               "Why don't you raise the PILOT fee
10      instead of a rate increase?"
11               The PILOT fee, whatever happens with
12      that we have nothing to do with.  That is a
13      decision made by the Unified Government, by
14      their commissioners, and so that is a question
15      that only they can answer.  That is a decision
16      whether that goes up and down that is entirely
17      up to them.  The PILOT fee is just on a BPU
18      bill.  We collect it.  It is a pass-through and
19      that is up to the Unified Government.  Thank
20      you, though.
21               "How many lobbyists are currently
22      employed by BPU in Washington, D.C. and Topeka?"
23               We really only have one lobbyist and he
24      is kind of a part-time lobbyist and that is Joe
25      Dick.  Right there is Joe.  Raise your hand,
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 1      Joe.  He also does a lot of other things,
 2      community relations and dealing with the youth
 3      program and so forth.  Spends quite a bit of
 4      time in Topeka when the legislature is in
 5      session.  We do periodically when we need to
 6      will partner up with a lobbyist firm in
 7      Washington to try and go after some -- we try
 8      hard to go after some stimulus funds.  We were
 9      not successful in the first round.  We did get a
10      STAG Grant of $500,000 that went towards water
11      main replacement.  We are aggressively pursuing
12      other STAG grants right now at this time.
13               So, "When will BPU ask for another
14      increase in salaries?  Will that come out of
15      this increase?"
16               At this time all salaries are frozen
17      and will remain so until we feel this utility is
18      in a lot better position.  So right now there is
19      not even any discussion of that at this current
20      time.  That is not an option at this moment.
21               Joe, could you come answer this
22      question.  You had a question on lobbyist work
23      done out there in the western part of the state.
24      Identify yourself please and your title.
25                     MR. DICK:  Joe Dick, government
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 1      affairs officer, 540 Minnesota Avenue and
 2      Topeka, Kansas.
 3               The question is:  "In the past BPU
 4      lobbyists have rallied against the coal plant
 5      out west in the state.  Has this changed?"
 6               It never existed.  We were in a
 7      monetary position for three years on that
 8      particular coal-fired plant.  In fact, two years
 9      ago we were offered 25 megawatts of power.  We
10      were given the first right of refusal of 25
11      megawatts with that power plant if it became --
12      if it went into existence.  On that particular
13      issue it was vetoed by the governor.  We refused
14      the 25 megawatts only because there wasn't a
15      price, there wasn't a date, there wasn't a time,
16      there wasn't a place.  It was all preliminary
17      action taken by the Sunflower organization.
18               So that is it.
19                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Joe.
20               "Does the timing of the rate increase
21      have anything to do with the UG being broke?"
22               No, okay.  And I think you saw by our
23      financial situation why we are going after the
24      proposed rate increase right now.
25               We had a question here that Blake I
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 1      think is more of a technical question in nature.
 2      So identify yourself and repeat the question.
 3                     MR. ELLIOTT:  Again, Blake
 4      Elliott, electric supply planning, 540 Minnesota
 5      Avenue, Kansas City Board of Public Utilities.
 6               The question is:  If you raise rates,
 7      what will happen to the cost of the energy fee?
 8      And what is the cost of the energy fee?"
 9               Again, the energy rate component which
10      is what I perceive you're asking in this
11      question is totally independent of everything
12      that we're asking for rate increases today.  The
13      rate increases today will just affect base
14      rates.  The energy rate component is just to
15      recover costs when we expense fuel, when we buy
16      and burn coal, when we burn natural gas, when we
17      buy electricity from the wholesale market.  We
18      collect those costs on a monthly basis.  We
19      collect all those costs.  We collect how many
20      retail sales we made during that particular
21      month.  And there is a very detailed calculation
22      that happens in the forecasting and in the
23      reconciliation of that amount.  So this is --
24      that fee is totally separate from the rate
25      hearings that we are -- for the base rates that
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 1      we are talking about today.  Again, that is
 2      totally separate.
 3                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Blake.
 4               "Have you considered freezing raises?"
 5               Yes, raises are frozen.
 6               Furloughs.  At this time, no, we are
 7      down about as low as we can get from a staffing
 8      level.  We are down about 80 positions right now
 9      that have already been approved in the budget.
10      If we cut much -- anymore we will not be able to
11      service our community from an electric and water
12      standpoint.
13               "Have we considered changing health
14      care coverage for BPU employees?"
15               At this time we are in very sensitive
16      union talks, at the very front end of that, and
17      that will probably be part of that but it's too
18      early to tell.  Thank you.
19               "What will the rate increase go for?"
20               I think we shared that with you this
21      evening in very much detail.  And, also, it is
22      in those leave-behind pieces.  If you need more
23      of those to take to your friends and neighbors,
24      by all means take them with you.  And also the
25      frequently asked questions, if we need more, I
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 1      have plenty.
 2               I have a question, Darrell, on coal.
 3      Why don't you answer that and give your name and
 4      title again.
 5                     MR. DORSEY:  Sure.  Darrell
 6      Dorsey, manager of electric production and
 7      supply.
 8               Question was:  "How much are you paying
 9      for coal and how many day supply do you
10      currently have?"
11                The short answer would be most of our
12      coal falls delivered price around 25 to 30
13      dollars a ton.  The reason I say it's a short
14      answer is we have multiple contracts for the
15      different plants from different mines.  And
16      those contracts go over different time periods
17      so there's a wide range within that price range
18      that coal falls -- pricing falls into.
19               As far as our day supply, I don't have
20      that figure with me.  I think at Quindaro the
21      last report I saw we have around about a 30 to
22      40-day supply.  Quindaro, we are a little more
23      comfortable with a smaller supply.  For one
24      thing it is a smaller coal yard, we can't handle
25      as much coal, but it also can burn natural gas
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 1      so in a contingency situation we have back-up
 2      fuel.
 3               Nearman has probably 80 to 90 days of
 4      coal on the ground right now.  That is about --
 5      I want to say we have got about 250,000 tons
 6      give or take.  Again, I don't have the exact
 7      figures with me.  But Nearman does not have a
 8      back-up fuel.  It can only run on coal.  So we
 9      try to maintain the stronger coal pile.  We have
10      been burning down that coal pile over the last
11      few years.  We'll bring it down a little further
12      yet this year with our current plans.
13                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you,
14      Darrell.
15               "How many people in Kansas City,
16      Kansas, take or read the Kansas Star or
17      Wyandotte West?"
18               I really don't know.  But "Why don't
19      you mail this info," and I think what they maybe
20      mean as far as the rate hearing information in
21      the bills.  That is something we did not do.
22      Did not choose to do merely from an expense
23      standpoint, but let me tell you what we did do.
24               What we have to do legally is post the
25      meeting notice and the publication of record,
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 1      which in this area is the Echo.  We did that.
 2      We also purchased an ad space in the Kansas City
 3      Star.  We also sent out a news release that was
 4      carried by all four television stations in this
 5      market.  And also two radio stations in the
 6      market, I did interviews with them.  The Unified
 7      Government ran it on their website and several
 8      times on their electronic newsletter, reran it
 9      on our website.  The KC Kansan, Kansas City
10      Kansan, ran it on their website.
11               And so we did a lot more than what we
12      were required to do to get the word out as best
13      as we can and that is what we did there.  The
14      Kansas City, Kansan and the website, it is on
15      line.  All right.
16               Jim Epp, there was one here I think
17      that was multiple questions.  So why don't you
18      go through the questions and identify yourself,
19      please.
20                     MR. EPP:  Jim Epp, manager of
21      water operations.
22               Three questions, multi parts.  "Using
23      the average monthly water bill supplied by BPU
24      as a base, if BPU's rates are already 21 percent
25      higher than WaterOne's, why do we need even
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 1      larger increases over the next few years?"
 2               Our system is older than WaterOne's.
 3      Our infrastructure is 50 to 100 years old.  We
 4      have had no increase -- net increase in our
 5      population.  We have had to completely replace
 6      our water treatment facility, new plant, new
 7      supply, new transmission coming out of the
 8      plant.
 9               Again, I want to thank the rate payers
10      for the support.  We have something that we can
11      be very proud of and will last for 50 years into
12      the future.  But we have had to face the
13      replacement of aging infrastructure much sooner
14      than WaterOne has.
15               Plus WaterOne has experienced a net
16      increase in population.  They have more
17      customers to help pay for their infrastructure
18      needs and we are much older than they are.  So I
19      hope that is an adequate answer to that
20      question.
21               Two, "Are the higher rates to pay for
22      debt services related to new facilities needed
23      because of growth?"
24               Again, we have got no net increase in
25      our population.  We do have a shifting from east
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 1      to west.  Right now I feel like we are in very
 2      good shape with our infrastructure to support
 3      anything that is going to happen out west.  When
 4      a new development goes in out west, the
 5      developer pays for that main.  BPU does not pay
 6      for that, the developer pays for that.
 7               Also -- oh, excuse me.  As far as new
 8      facilities in the future, we have -- the
 9      majority of our infrastructure needs are for
10      replacement.  We do have one new 4-million
11      gallon reservoir we are requesting at the
12      Nearman water treatment plant.  And that is
13      because we are trying to get our total storage
14      up to standard with our treatment plant
15      capacity.  It is not because of any new growth.
16      We are not projecting any new growth in our --
17      as far as population, net population growth, in
18      our cost of service study.  Very little.  But it
19      is to bring our storage up to 10 percent total
20      of our treatment capacity.  This will allow us
21      to do some more demand side management with our
22      pumping, similar to what WaterOne does.  Also
23      provides storage for our cooling tower and
24      storage for black star condition if we should
25      ever experience that down at Nearman.
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 1               Third.  "Are the rates higher because
 2      growth isn't paying its fair share?  Is growth
 3      paying for growth?"
 4               Again, new developments, the mains are
 5      paid for by the developers.  We do have a system
 6      development fee.  It's not quite as high as
 7      WaterOne but it's fairly significant for new
 8      meters.
 9               Hopefully that answered your question.
10      Okay, thank you, sir.  Very good questions.
11                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Jim.
12               Couple more questions left here.  "How
13      much did the Black & Veatch study cost?  Who
14      paid for the cost?"
15               It came out of our operating budget.
16      We are required to do a cost of service study
17      every three years.  We have not done one since
18      2003.  What it did cost, I'll be honest, it cost
19      $270,000 over a two-year period.  That is what
20      it cost.
21               "Is it true that people in the service
22      department make $65,000 a year?"
23               Yes.  We have linemen who have
24      extremely dangerous jobs.  They are up there in
25      extreme conditions.  And engineers who have
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 1      years and years of experience, that is what they
 2      make.
 3               "How can the board make a decision when
 4      they do not attend the meetings?"
 5               The board will make the decision
 6      because they will be getting all the transcript,
 7      all the documents.  They are in the loop
 8      continually.  They get feedback.  They have gone
 9      to some of the community forums.  They get
10      feedback on their own in talking to people in
11      the community.  They are not allowed to speak
12      out on the issue.  They need to gather
13      information.  Once they gather information, then
14      they will make their decision on the rate issue.
15      But they are well informed.  This is an active
16      board and they are talking to people all the
17      time.  Staff, they have sat in, reviewed the
18      cost of service study.  So they are in the loop
19      and that is what we have had.
20               We have four of our board members here
21      tonight and I know we will have more tomorrow.
22      We had five tonight total and they will also be
23      getting this transcript and a lot of other
24      information.  They -- trust me, this board won't
25      make a decision until they're really well
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 1      informed because they ask a lot of great
 2      questions all the time.
 3               "How much will this windfall of the
 4      windfall will UG see from this rate increase?"
 5               I think probably somebody is referring
 6      to the PILOT.  And this is only an estimate.  In
 7      2010, it would be about $550,000 in electric,
 8      170,000 in water.  And that would be what we
 9      estimate at this time.
10                     UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  In addition to?
11                     UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  Yes.
12                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  That is with the
13      increase.
14               Thank you for everyone submitting
15      questions.  Appreciate it.  We did our best to
16      answer them as honestly as we can.  And I'm
17      always available if you have further questions.
18      Like Jim said at the end, contact me any time.
19      I will do my best to get you the answers or get
20      you to people who do.
21               You're Honor, this concludes our
22      portion.  I'll turn it over to you.
23                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you
24      very much.
25               Ladies and gentlemen, this portion of


Metropolitan Court Reporters, Inc.    913-317-8800







Page 103


 1      the hearing is for public comments or statements
 2      other than those that have submitted written
 3      questions.  The individuals who have signed up
 4      on the sign-up sheet will be called in the order
 5      that they have entered their names on the
 6      sign-up sheet.  I ask you as I call your name,
 7      please restate your name and address, and then
 8      you can make your statement or comment.  And go
 9      to the podium, please, so that everybody can
10      hear you.
11               The first individual on the sign-up
12      sheet is Bob Sixta.  Mr. Sixta, will you go to
13      the podium, please.  And tell us your full name
14      and address.
15                     MR. SIXTA:  My name is Robert Lee
16      Sixta.  That is S, as in Sam, I-X-T-A.  I live
17      at 405 North 17th Street in KCK.  My question
18      has already been submitted in a written one.  It
19      has already been answered.  Thank you.
20                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
21      sir.
22                     THE WITNESS:  The next individual
23      on the sign-up sheet is Donald Turner.  And,
24      Mr. Turner, would you go to the podium.  State
25      your -- restate your name and address, please.
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 1                     MR. TURNER:  Donald Turner, and I
 2      live at 4110 North 60th Street.  No. 1, I can't
 3      get a straight answer when I call down there.  I
 4      got two BPU bills because I have two light
 5      meters at my house.  One says that -- they're
 6      both the same size.  One answer got, oh, you're
 7      commercial.  I'm not commercial.
 8                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Tell you
 9      what, Mr. Turner, this is -- I don't think this
10      is the forum to address your billing issues that
11      you have.  I know they're very important to you,
12      but --
13                     MR. TURNER:  Yes, they are.
14                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  -- this
15      proceeding is -- concerns the proposed BPU rate
16      increase.  And I think that there are some
17      customer service individuals here that perhaps
18      could help you at the end of this hearing, and
19      that is Johnetta Hinson and Nan Wolfe.  Could
20      you stand up, please, Ms. Wolfe and Ms. Hinson.
21      And maybe you could talk -- Mr. Turner, maybe
22      you could talk to them when we are finished
23      here.
24                     MR. TURNER:  Okay.  I have got a
25      statement to make.
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 1                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.
 2                     MR. TURNER:  There -- don't
 3      forget, there are a lot of homes being repo'd or
 4      closed out that was customers.  They're not now.
 5      And a senior citizen here cannot afford anymore
 6      thing added on to them.  They have a hard time
 7      making the bill at this point what it is.  A gas
 8      serviceman was out to my house, one of my
 9      houses.  I told him to shut the gas off.  He
10      said, well, I got to be moving along.  I got
11      four houses here that I have got to shut off the
12      gas because they haven't paid their bill.  That
13      is just one time.
14               So you ought to stop to think about the
15      senior citizen.  It is hurting them.  I'm -- the
16      only thing that I can depend on is my monthly
17      retirement check and my wife's.  We didn't get
18      any COLA this year, Social Security or civil
19      service.  But you heist up -- the sales tax
20      increase was voted in the other day.  So I think
21      that that ought to be taken into consideration
22      for senior citizens.  There are several senior
23      citizens in here, and I have been a senior
24      citizen for several years.
25                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Not that
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 1      long.
 2                     MR. TURNER:  What was that
 3      comment?
 4                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  I said not
 5      that long, Mr. Turner.
 6                     MR. TURNER:  You probably
 7      wouldn't believe me.  I remember -- I remember
 8      the depression back in the 30s.  In fact, I got
 9      out and hoed the corn for a dollar a day.  I
10      very well remember that.  I worked horses and
11      mules, so you can draw from that.
12               But that is what I'm saying, it is
13      hurtful.  It is hurting us senior citizens by no
14      means.  That is the reason some of us are
15      already getting their gas cut off and I don't
16      know how many for power -- or electricity.
17               So, as I said, I got two meters at my
18      house that I would like to get a straight
19      accurate answer on it.  There.
20                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
21      Mr. Turner.
22                     MR. TURNER:  Okay.
23                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  The next
24      individual on the sign-up sheet is Robert
25      Timmons.  Mr. Timmons, would you come up,
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 1      please, to the podium and restate your name and
 2      address.
 3                     MR. TIMMONS:  I'm Robert Timmons.
 4      401 Pleasanton Road with Central Solutions in
 5      the Fairfax district.
 6               This rate increase is going to be very
 7      burdensome on our business.  We are a
 8      manufacturing facility.  We use lots of your
 9      electricity and lots of your water.  As far as
10      your aging infrastructure goes, poor management
11      shouldn't be put onto your customers.
12      Infrastructure in my building has to be planned
13      for and paid for.  I can't go for that 23 to a
14      35 percent increase on our product because we
15      need to replace a fire line or we need to
16      install mandatory backflow preventers on fire
17      lines.  I don't think that it is thought through
18      very well.  And I think if you're going to do a
19      23 to 35 percent increase, not including the
20      surcharges, I think it should have been spread
21      out over a longer period of time.  Four years is
22      just too quick for that big of an increase.
23               Thank you.
24                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
25      sir.
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 1               The next individual on the sign-up
 2      sheet is Michael Buhr, B-U-H-R.  Mr. Buhr.
 3                     MR. BAHR:  B-A-H-R, it's Bahr.
 4                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Bahr.
 5      Sorry Mr. Bahr.
 6                     MR. BAHR:  My name is Michael
 7      Bahr.  I live at 1416 Tauromee.  I've lived
 8      there for 35 years.
 9               I have a little bit to say about this
10      increase.  This isn't the right time for BPU to
11      raise any rates.  Information obtained from the
12      public library by calling the reference desk
13      about unemployment in Wyandotte County.  From
14      the United States Bureau of Statistics, the
15      unemployment rate in March 2010 in Wyandotte
16      County is 10.6 percent.  That means there is
17      over one out of ten out of work in Wyandotte
18      county.
19               City employees have to take one day off
20      each month.  Some state courts have had rooms,
21      courtrooms close one day a week for three weeks
22      in a row.  The growth of Kansas City, Kansas, at
23      the Legends has helped me until January of 2009.
24      I work construction.  I have been a
25      superintendent for one of the major construction
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 1      companies in the Kansas City area,
 2      Miller-Stauch.  Well, when the bottom fell out
 3      of the economy, that construction company lost
 4      all of its superintendents.  They took the
 5      people that were in the office and put them out
 6      in the field.  That put me out of a job.
 7               I've applied at Black & Veatch on a
 8      couple of jobs.  A lot of times you guys don't
 9      post where the jobs are located.  I've probably
10      applied three times.
11               Growth in Kansas City, Kansas, at the
12      Legends has helped me, like I said, until
13      January 2009.  And I was laid off because of
14      lack of work.  That was the first time in 37
15      years that I haven't worked in the summer going
16      into the fall in 37 years.  That is how bad this
17      economy has been.  Is right now.  And it is not
18      getting better.  People are saying it is getting
19      better.  Go look for a job in the construction
20      field.  It is not getting better.  People want
21      to pay you half of what you were making.
22               I have been off work for a year and two
23      months.  I've sent out over 200 resumes, cover
24      letters and detail project lists.  Growth in
25      Kansas City, has it helped at the Legends?  Has
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 1      it helped BPU any?  By the way you guys talk it
 2      hasn't helped anything.  I mean, that is what
 3      I'm getting from you.  But the growth isn't
 4      doing us any good out there.  Hasn't done any
 5      good as far as unemployment.
 6               Have you thought about reducing the pay
 7      for some of your people?  The government has
 8      reduced pay.  They took a day away a week or a
 9      month from them.  I know you said you held off
10      on hiring.  Who is going to do all this work you
11      are talking about?  Aren't you going to have to
12      hire somebody to do that?  Can you do it with
13      the people you have now?  I don't know.
14               To reduce some of your costs, you could
15      look around at this room.  Those doors right
16      over there.  Who needs 8 foot doors in a
17      conference room.  That takes four hinges to
18      hang.  Most doors are 7 foot.  It takes three
19      hinges to hang.  I know, I'm a carpenter.  I'm a
20      superintendent.
21               Same thing with this door, you're
22      talking about cost.  Look around you, you can
23      cut out cost if you want to.  You just have to
24      look.
25               That's all I have to say.
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 1                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
 2      Mr. Bahr.
 3                     MR. BAHR:  Thank you for your
 4      time.
 5                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  The next
 6      individual on the sign-up sheet is Norm Scott.
 7      And Mr. Scott, are you here?  Apparently not.
 8               There is a -- Mr. Yarnell, I'm going to
 9      come back to you since you're one of the
10      intervenors.
11               The next individual is Carol O'Neal.
12      Is Carol O'Neal here?
13               The last person on the sign-up sheet is
14      Marilyn While.
15                     MS. WHITE:  White.
16                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  White.  I'm
17      sorry, Ms. White.
18                     MS. WHITE:  Sorry.  My
19      handwriting has gotten kind of bad as I have
20      gotten older.
21                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  It is my
22      eyes.
23                     MS. WHITE:  My name is Marilyn
24      White and I live in your backyard, 614
25      Washington Boulevard.
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 1               I can look out, you know, of my porch
 2      and look out and see BPU from my front yard.
 3      And it is very distressing sometimes, you know,
 4      when I'm at home trying to relax and storms come
 5      or even the wind sometimes blows very hard and
 6      my electricity goes out.  I can hear the
 7      transformers blow.  Hasn't happened lately
 8      because the last person you sent obviously knew
 9      what he was doing because for at least I would
10      say four months or so I have had electricity no
11      matter what the weather did.  So I think that --
12      you know, I'd give you his name but I don't
13      think I will.  That you really should be happy
14      that you have such a good employee.
15               Also, I just want to say that, you
16      know, I'm a senior citizen.  I am on a fixed
17      income and I have been able to manage my utility
18      bills, you know, the ones that come.  But, you
19      know, the utility bills keep going up and up.
20      I'm -- part of my daily, monthly living is
21      supplemented by Social Security.  And as you
22      know, the good congressmen in Washington D.C.
23      did not give us a cost of living wage because
24      the cost of living didn't go up, it went down
25      for us, not for them.  And they make for a lot
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 1      more money than I do.
 2               I am very uptight about the fact that
 3      the Unified Government is tacking their bills
 4      onto the BPU bill, and, therefore, you are going
 5      to get a lot of hell that the BPU -- that the
 6      Unified Government should be getting.  But, you
 7      know, I guess you have -- don't have any control
 8      over that.  But I want you to know to let them
 9      know that Marilyn said she doesn't like it
10      because I think everybody ought to pay their own
11      way themselves and the public ought to know
12      exactly what the Unified Government is doing.
13               Also, I'm a little bit uptight, just
14      like the gentleman said, about all of this
15      so-called economic status stuff that is coming
16      to West Village, Village West.  I -- we just --
17      the Unified Government just gave them a tax
18      break.  Neil Harrison and Warren Buffet do not
19      need tax breaks.  They could buy themselves this
20      whole building many, many times over and
21      probably all of us here.
22               And I think it's a really -- and, you
23      know, I guess dam is not really a bad word.  I
24      think it is a dam shame that people like me who
25      are on the lower end of the economy who have
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 1      scrimped and saved all their lives to work and
 2      try to save money.  I save money.  I still save
 3      money to this day out of the wages that I get
 4      every month that I earned, by the way.  And I
 5      think I'm doing pretty good, but I really resent
 6      the fact that these -- the people are making hay
 7      off of my dough, the money that I earned when I
 8      could be using it for myself.  I really think
 9      that, you know, life is not fair.  I don't know
10      if it ever will be, but I think that the person
11      on the lower end of the economic scale is really
12      getting beat up more and more every day.  And,
13      you know, it can't keep happening, although I
14      think it will.
15               Thank you.
16                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
17      Mrs. White.
18               Ms. Sixta, I'm sorry, I overlooked your
19      name.  Please restate your name and address.
20                     MS. SIXTA:  Mary Sue Sixta.  405
21      North 17th Street.
22               My comments are that when the lady was
23      talking and the screen was up and they showed
24      some of the increases, I wanted to calculated
25      BPU water is going up 45 percent and the
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 1      electric bill is going up 36 percent over the
 2      next five years.  That is a tremendous increase.
 3      That is -- right now we are paying 145 dollars
 4      and some odd -- 149 dollars and some odd cents.
 5      We are probably going to be paying around 200
 6      within the next five years.
 7               My husband is about to retire.  He is
 8      the only one who is making the living for us
 9      right now.  We are going to barely be able to
10      make it.  And then if the other utilities like
11      AT&T and Kansas Gas Service go up, we are going
12      to be very hard put to make the bills.  We are
13      hard put to make them right now.  And personally
14      I'm worried.
15               Also, they're talking about controlling
16      the customer load.  Okay, I have allergies
17      during the summer and during the heat.  I need
18      to have air conditioning to help filter the air
19      when it gets real bad.
20               Plus I have sleep apnea.  I have to --
21      I have a CPAP machine I must use.  They tell me
22      I'm one of the worst cases they've ever seen.
23      My husband has sleep apnea.  We have to have
24      those machines and they are going to use power.
25      And they're going to tell us how much we can
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 1      use.  Does this mean that we have to either go
 2      without air conditioning or go without our CPAP
 3      machine in order to go to the power level they
 4      want?  Or are we going to have some place where
 5      we can call and say, hey, we need this certain
 6      amount of power, can we get it?  Or is it just
 7      going to be cut off because they think we are
 8      using too much?  I mean, for people that use an
 9      extra amount of power that don't really need it,
10      like at Christmastime with too many lights, I
11      understand.  But for medical reasons, this
12      scares me.  People may need it for medical
13      reasons.  But all you're talking about is
14      controlling the load.
15               And as far as all these expenses are
16      concerned for new telephone poles and stuff and
17      the services, I understand trimming the trees.
18      Grass cutting, put decorative rocks out and make
19      a design saying BPU in the front yard or the
20      office or something and cut down on maintenance
21      and how much it costs to cut the grass.  Do
22      little things like this and it would improve
23      entirely.
24               Also, I know this has been discussed in
25      the past, what about investing in a company that
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 1      has the rotaries that produce electrical power,
 2      possibly putting them on the houses.  Charging
 3      -- renting the equipment to the customer and
 4      then charging to maintain the equipment.
 5      California has a county that has done this.
 6      They got so spread out they couldn't get
 7      electricity to everybody.  So the houses out
 8      where they had trouble getting electricity to --
 9      the wires to them, they put an electrical system
10      on the house to generate the electricity by
11      themselves.  This is just an idea, but it might
12      cut costs to rent the equipment and maintain it.
13      You are saying you are having trouble getting
14      electricity to everyone.  This is something you
15      might want to consider.
16               Cable is doing real good for TV.  Maybe
17      BPU would do real good doing this at least out
18      in rural areas where you have to go so far out
19      to get the power out there.
20               Thank you.
21                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
22      Ms. Sixta.
23               Are there any board members present
24      that would like to comment or say anything?
25                     (No response.)


Metropolitan Court Reporters, Inc.    913-317-8800







Page 118


 1                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  As to the
 2      intervenors, Mr. Yarnell, would you -- do you
 3      have anything you would like to say?  If you
 4      would, please, go to the podium and state your
 5      full name and address.
 6                     MR. YARNELL:  My name is Rick
 7      Yarnell, 2424 Nebraska Court, Kansas City,
 8      Kansas.  I have filed written testimony and
 9      intervening with Kathy Peters and I expected
10      discussions with her tonight that I will
11      probably have modifications to the wording that
12      I have submitted tonight and I will have that
13      ready for tomorrow at the hearing at that point.
14                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.
15                     MR. YARNELL:  Thank you.
16                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other
17      intervenors that are present that would like to
18      make a statement?
19               Closing comments by the BPU.
20                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  I just want to
21      remind everyone tomorrow morning we'll pick up
22      again with the rate hearing.  Same presentation
23      you saw that was presented today, and will have
24      an extended Black & Veatch presentation, again,
25      to the technical portion here at nine o'clock.
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 1               I want to thank everyone for coming.
 2      Appreciate your time.  I know it's been a long
 3      night.  We thank you for your business.  Thank
 4      you.  God bless.
 5                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you
 6      very much.  We're adjourned.
 7               (Hearing commenced at 9:46 p.m.)
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 9      constitutes a true, correct, and complete


10      transcript of my said shorthand notes.
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 1      (Hearing commenced at 7:00 p.m.)
 2      (Exhibit BPU 1 was marked for
 3  identification.)
 4      THE HEARING OFFICER: Ladies and
 5  gentlemen, this is the May 2010 Board of Public
 6  Utilities rate hearing with regard to their
 7  request of rate increases.  My name is Phillip
 8  Carson and I'm the hearing officer presiding
 9  over these public hearings.
10      If any of the members of the public
11  wish to speak -- excuse me -- on the public
12  portion of this hearing, please if you haven't
13  already done so, please sign in on the sign-in
14  sheet with this lady right here.  Thank you.
15      Ms. Peters.
16      MS. PETERS: Mr. Carson, I'm
17  Kathy Peters, rate hearing for the BPU.
18      THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you.
19      Have any petitions for intervention
20  been received?
21      MS. PETERS: Yes.  As Randy
22  Otting will testify, we have received petitions
23  for intervention that were timely filed on the
24  behalf of the large customer group of BPU
25  currently consisting of General Motors, Griffin
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 1  Wheel, Kansas University Medical Center,
 2  Owens-Corning and WaterOne.  Also Suburban
 3  Water, Inc., doing business as Suburban Water
 4  company.  And also Rick Yarnell, an individual.
 5      THE HEARING OFFICER: Are
 6  there -- thank you, Ms. Peters.
 7      Are there any attorneys for the
 8  intervenors that are present?  If so, please
 9  enter your appearance.
10      No attorneys present on behalf of the
11  intervenors, okay.
12      Are there any intervenors that are
13  personally present on behalf of themselves or
14  their companies?  If so, please enter your
15  appearance.
16      MR. YARNELL: I am.
17      THE HEARING OFFICER: You are,
18  sir?
19      MR. YARNELL: My name is Rick
20  Yarnell.
21      THE HEARING OFFICER: Your
22  address, please.
23      MR. YARNELL: 2424 Nebraska
24  Court, Kansas City, Kansas.
25      THE HEARING OFFICER: Are you
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 1  represented by an attorney in this matter?
 2      MS. PETERS: I am not.
 3      THE HEARING OFFICER: Anyone
 4  else?
 5      MS. KRAUSE: I am Laurie Krause
 6  with WaterOne.
 7      THE HEARING OFFICER: And the
 8  address of WaterOne, please?
 9      MS. KRAUSE: Oh, that is really a
10  good question.
11      THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay.  I
12  know it is everywhere.  All right.
13      MS. KRAUSE: The admin
14  headquarters is -- I'm trying to remember.
15  10744 Lenexa.
16      THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you.
17      Any other intervenors that are present
18  that have not entered their appearance?  All
19  right.
20      Ms. Peters, I'm going to turn the
21  proceeding over to you at this point.
22      MS. PETERS: And I would like to
23  call on Mr. David Mehlhaff, BPU's public
24  information officer.
25      MR. MEHLHAFF: Thank you, Kathy.
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 1      I'm David Mehlhaff, public affairs
 2  officer for the Board of Public Utilities.
 3      We appreciate you taking your time to
 4  be here at this public hearing.  We thank you
 5  for being our customers and we do appreciate
 6  your business.
 7      We ask that you turn off your cell
 8  phones and pagers or turn them to vibrate at
 9  this time.  If you need to use the restroom, it
10  is right out in the hallway out here.  Right out
11  the door to your immediate right.  If you wish
12  to speak and make comments at this hearing, sign
13  your name and address on the sign-in sheet
14  that's just inside the door.  Also, if you would
15  like to ask a question after our presentations,
16  fill out a card with your question and place it
17  in the box in the hallway.  If you need some
18  cards, let me know and I will make sure to get
19  some to you or you can get them from Jenny over
20  here.  She has cards and pencils and fill those
21  out.
22      We are going to hear presentations from
23  a number of people.  I would like to introduce
24  those folks to you at this time.  First of all,
25  before I do that, we do have two of our board
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 1  members present.  We have three of them:  John
 2  Pettey, our vice-president; Mary Gonzales; and
 3  our president, Loretta Colombel.  Thank you for
 4  coming.  They are here to observe and to gather
 5  all the information they can through this
 6  process.
 7      Kathryn Peters, you just heard from,
 8  she is our attorney with Kutak Rock, LLP,
 9  representing BPU.  She has been with us through
10  our rate hearing process since 1980.  The
11  following staff members will be speaking this
12  evening:  Don Gray, our general manager; Lori
13  Austin, manager of accounting and finance and
14  our chief financial officer; Peggy Howe with
15  Black & Veatch, an international consultant,
16  management consultant, and engineering firm.
17  You will hear more about them later.
18      Blake Elliott, our director of electric
19  supply planning.  Darrell Dorsey, manager of
20  electric production and supply.  Bill Johnson,
21  manager of electric operations.  And, finally,
22  Jim Epp, manager of water operations an acting
23  chief administrative officer.
24      Also, I want to remind you that the
25  same rate hearing will take place tomorrow
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 1  morning, same room at 9:00 a.m.  After that, we
 2  will then have a detailed presentation by Black
 3  & Veatch.  You will hear more about them in a
 4  little bit.  They will be part of this
 5  presentation but a lengthier presentation on the
 6  cost of service study, and that will be
 7  tomorrow.  So we will have more information
 8  about that later.  Again, if you have questions
 9  let me know.
10      At this time, I would like to introduce
11  -- hand the mic back off to Kathryn Peters from
12  Kutak Rock.  Kathryn.
13      MS. PETERS: We also have some
14  folks from Black & Veatch present with us.  And
15  a few of them will speak tomorrow as
16  Mr. Mehlhaff mentioned.  Peggy Howe will also
17  speak tonight.  Peggy Howe with Black & Veatch,
18  Ed Overcast, Craig Brown and Anna White.
19      The BPU has set the public hearing for
20  the purpose of discussing BPU's revenue
21  requirements and the proposed changes to the BPU
22  rates to recover more revenues in order to meet
23  our cost requirements.  The format of the
24  hearing is that BPU began by having Black &
25  Veatch conduct cost of service studies in
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 1  electric and in water.  The BPU received the
 2  cost of service study reports from Black &
 3  Veatch and following that BPU published the
 4  90-day notice of public hearing that is required
 5  by the charter ordinance.
 6      The format of the hearing is that we
 7  will present to you by the BPU staff a number of
 8  the reasons for the public hearing request, why
 9  revenues are needed, what the proposed changes
10  in the rates are going to be, what things the
11  BPU has done to cut its costs before requesting
12  a rate increase, what the various capital needs
13  are of the electric and the water operations,
14  and several things about BPU's overall financial
15  condition that leads to this rate request.
16      There will be a PowerPoint presentation
17  by BPU and all of the things that the BPU is
18  saying here today are being taken down by a
19  court reporter.  So, when it comes your time to
20  speak, speak slowly and distinctly so the court
21  reporter can take down your words as will the
22  BPU staff.
23      The PowerPoint presentation, the
24  exhibits, all of the proceedings, the things
25  that our intervening customers have to say will
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 1  all be presented to the board and they will make
 2  a decision based on all of the evidence.  There
 3  will be no decision by the board until they have
 4  received all of the evidence.  And that will
 5  include things that you say in the public
 6  comment portion that will follow the question
 7  period which will follow the BPU's presentation.
 8      The BPU has two phases of the public
 9  hearing.  We have the public comment portion,
10  and as Mr. Mehlhaff indicated, we are making a
11  presentation tonight.  There will be a very
12  similar presentation tomorrow morning.  In
13  addition, tomorrow morning Black & Veatch will
14  give a lengthy explanation of the cost of
15  service report.
16      Following the public presentation,
17  there will be a technical portion.  We have
18  customers who have intervened in this
19  proceeding.  We will be continuing the technical
20  portion of the hearing to have further
21  discussions with our intervening customers.  We
22  expect that the initial rate recommendation will
23  be made to the board sometime toward the end of
24  May, early part of June.  We expect that final
25  recommendations will be made to the board toward
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 1  the end of this year.  And, again, nothing will
 2  happen until recommendations are made to the
 3  board and the board makes its final decision.
 4      Board members may be present in the
 5  audience to listen today.  If they are not here
 6  today, again, the court reporter will be taking
 7  down everything that everyone says, and all of
 8  this information will be provided to all of the
 9  board members before they make their decision.
10      Mr. Carson, I would like to ask you, if
11  you could, to have all of the BPU and the Black
12  & Veatch witnesses who are going to testify or
13  make presentations be sworn in.  And I would
14  repeat that is Mr. Blake Elliott, Darrell
15  Dorsey, Don Gray, Peggy Howe, Randy Otting, Lori
16  Austin, Bill Johnson, Jim Epp, Anna White, Craig
17  Brown, and Ed Overcast.
18      THE HEARING OFFICER: All right.
19  Thank you.
20      Those of you that were just named and
21  who are going to speak or make a presentation,
22  please raise your right hands.  Do you swear or
23  affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and
24  nothing but the truth?
25      (BPU and Black & Veatch
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 1  presenters answered affirmatively I do.)
 2      THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you.
 3      MS. PETERS: And I would like to
 4  ask -- I would like to ask Randy Otting to join
 5  me.
 6      MR. OTTING: Sure.
 7      MS. PETERS: Mr. Carson, at this
 8  time Randy Otting would like to give the
 9  evidence that notice of public hearing was given
10  in accordance with charter ordinance.
11      THE HEARING OFFICER: Go ahead,
12  sir.
13      MR. OTTING: Yes, we have filed
14  our February 1st, 2010 in the Kansas City Star.
15      MS. PETERS: And, Mr. Otting, I
16  am going to read you a few questions.  Please
17  state your name and your business address.
18      MR. OTTING: Randy Otting, 540
19  Minnesota Avenue, Kansas City, Kansas 66101.
20      MS. PETERS: What is your
21  occupation?
22      MR. OTTING: I'm the director of
23  accounting.
24      MS. PETERS: What are your
25  responsibilities relating to the current
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 1  electric and water rate hearing with regard to
 2  publication and notice of public hearing
 3  dissemination of information to the public?
 4      MR. OTTING: I was the primary
 5  contact person with the public with regard to
 6  information, and I was also responsible for
 7  making sure that the notice of hearing was
 8  published timely.
 9      MS. PETERS: Did the BPU board
10  direct staff to set a public hearing on the rate
11  proposal?
12      MR. OTTING: Yes.
13      MS. PETERS: Please list the
14  dates and places of publication of notice of
15  public hearing.
16      MR. OTTING: February 1st, 2010,
17  Kansas City Star.  February 4th, 2010, Wyandotte
18  West.  February 4th, 2010, Piper Press.
19  February 4th, 2010, the Wyandotte Echo.
20      MS. PETERS: Could you go ahead
21  and read the notices.
22      MR. OTTING: Sure.  The notice of
23  hearing and the affidavits are on file with the
24  BPU and available for review upon request.  The
25  affidavit of publication in the Kansas City Star
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 1  was on February 1st, 2010, which provided the
 2  90-day notice required by statute.  This
 3  document is presented and filed as Exhibit 1,
 4  BPU-1.
 5      MS. PETERS: And you have BPU-1
 6  there?
 7      MR. OTTING: Yes.
 8      MS. PETERS: Mr. Carson, I would
 9  like to have introduced at this time BPU Exhibit
10  1, affidavit of publication.
11      THE HEARING OFFICER: All right.
12  It is accepted and admitted into evidence and I
13  find that the 90-day notice requirement required
14  by the charter ordinance has been fulfilled.
15      MS. PETERS: Thank you, sir.
16      Mr. Otting, were any petitions for
17  intervention filed with you?
18      MR. OTTING: Yes.  We had three
19  on March 3rd, 2010.  Mr. Rick Yarnell, an
20  individual.  March 15th, 2010, Suburban Water, a
21  wholesale water customer.  March 30 -- I'm
22  sorry, March 17th, 2010, we had intervention
23  with the BPU large customer group which consists
24  of General Motors, Griffin Wheel, Kansas
25  University Medical Center, Owens-Corning and
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 1  WaterOne.
 2      MS. PETERS: Thank you,
 3  Mr. Otting.
 4      And, Mr. Carson, I note that all of the
 5  petitions for intervention were filed before
 6  March 19th which was the cut-off date for filing
 7  petitions of intervention.
 8      THE HEARING OFFICER: All right.
 9      MS. PETERS: And any other
10  exhibits and testimony of the BPU and Black &
11  Veatch we will introduce into evidence at the
12  conclusion of the public portion or the
13  technical portion, sir.
14      THE HEARING OFFICER: All right.
15      MS. PETERS: I would like to at
16  this time turn the floor over to BPU to make its
17  public presentation, and I will introduce Mr.
18  Don Gray, general manager of the Board of Public
19  Utilities.
20      MR. GRAY: Thank you, Kathy.
21      Good evening everyone.
22      First of all, I want to welcome all of
23  you that are here this evening.  We very much
24  appreciate you being a witness and being
25  involved in our rate hearing process.  I think
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 1  it is very important and I appreciate and
 2  respect very much that you are here.
 3      As you know, asking our customers,
 4  asking you to consider allowing us to raise
 5  rates is never easy.  In fact, I don't know if
 6  there is ever a good time to ask for a rate
 7  increase.  However, I just want to say that
 8  staff and I are committed to keeping our rates
 9  as low as possible.
10      And also with that, we are trying to do
11  a better job at informing our customers and
12  giving them information on how they can better
13  manage their energy and water.  And we have got
14  in all of the chairs information but included
15  with the information are these cards that give
16  useful tips on water and energy usage.  And,
17  also, on the bottom of the card is our website
18  location where you can get additional
19  information.  And, also, you can contact the BPU
20  office through David Mehlhaff, our public
21  affairs officer, who you met earlier who can
22  also get information for you.
23      As was stated earlier, this is going to
24  be a lengthy presentation.  We have a lot of
25  staff that will be involved in giving technical
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 1  portions of this rate hearing as to not only why
 2  we need the rate increases but what we plan to
 3  do with the additional resources.
 4      So, with that, I would like to start
 5  off by mentioning that I will give an overview
 6  and I will primarily talk about our planning
 7  process, historical trends, controlling cost,
 8  and our rate comparisons.  And then staff will
 9  follow with the remainder of the rate hearing
10  process, cost of service, proposed rates,
11  purpose of the rate increase, and the
12  conclusion.  And, also, with staff, as was
13  mentioned earlier, we have key technical support
14  from Black & Veatch engineering which is an
15  internationally known engineering company who
16  helped us with our cost of service and rate
17  design work.
18      In our planning process, the mission of
19  the utility is "To focus on the needs of our
20  customers, to improve the quality of life in our
21  community while promoting safe, reliable and
22  sustainable utilities."  We are driven by a --
23  primarily by our strategic plan and then within
24  that strategic plan we have our key 20-year
25  electric and water master plans which are the
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 1  primary planning tools that we use.
 2      This is where our challenges are
 3  looking at our historical trends.  Our cash on
 4  hand recently, what that has been showing.  Our
 5  electric sales as well as our water sales.
 6      Our cash on hand since 2004 has been
 7  dropping at a pretty rapid pace.  What this
 8  represents on the 2009, we show a little over 25
 9  million in cash.  That may seem like a lot but
10  it takes roughly 17 to 20 million a month to
11  operate the organization.  So, as you can see,
12  we would like to have ideally about 60 days in
13  reserves.  And we have been running anywhere
14  from 23 days to 40 days recently.  And that puts
15  us dangerously low as far as our liquidity
16  position is concerned.
17      Also, as far as our electric sales, the
18  trends, our industrial sales since 2005 to
19  current have reduced by roughly 25 percent, our
20  commercial by 5 percent, and our residential
21  roughly 6 percent.  And, also, some of these
22  graphs and the information is also in the
23  handouts that we provided.
24      In looking at our water sales trends,
25  this takes into account all three industrial,
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 1  commercial and industrial total.  But as you can
 2  see, since 2006 our water sales have slowed by
 3  roughly 18 percent in recent years.  Although
 4  our cash has been coming in much weaker,
 5  recently what have we been doing to help manage
 6  this reduction -- and, oh, before I get into
 7  that, just why specifically our sales are down.
 8      No. 1, as we all know, the economy in
 9  the last couple of years has been challenging to
10  say the least.  But we are also a weather-driven
11  business and the weather really in the last
12  couple of years has been relatively mild in the
13  summer and winter periods.  And also very wet
14  unusually so.
15      We have had a flat to inclining
16  population.  I think there is a sense because of
17  some of the growth that is occurring out
18  especially in the western region that we are
19  seeing a population growth going along with it,
20  but that is really not the case.
21      And then, lastly, conservation, which
22  is a good thing.  More and more people, more and
23  more companies are conserving energy and water.
24  And we are seeing that.  The new appliances, for
25  example, that you buy.  You know, water has been
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 1  a part of conservation efforts for a number of
 2  years because there is many areas of our
 3  country.  They're having water shortages so that
 4  has been happening as far as conservation in
 5  that area.  Your flush boxes, for example, in
 6  your homes now use less volume and so forth.  So
 7  conservation has also had an impact.
 8      So what have we done to control our
 9  reduce in cost?  Since -- from 2006 through
10  2010, we reduced our budget by $55 million.  We
11  eliminated staff positions for the past five
12  years.  And as a matter of fact, we have been
13  reducing staff positions since roughly 1996 and
14  slowly reducing positions over time.  We have
15  froze salaries.  All of the management
16  professional staff with the utility are all
17  frozen and we are currently working with our
18  bargaining units in working with them in looking
19  at -- also looking at some freezes there as
20  well.
21      Another thing that we did to help
22  control our costs was our coal purchases.  We
23  got -- late last fall in 2009, our cash position
24  got very weak.  One of the things that we were
25  able to successfully do was to renegotiate our
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 1  contact -- our coal contract at our Nearman
 2  power station.  Ordinarily, this is a take or
 3  pay contract but because they understood that we
 4  had a lot of coal in inventory because of demand
 5  being down, they did allow us to park the train
 6  for a month and that saved us roughly $4 million
 7  by being able to park the train.  And that was
 8  very important at that point in time to help us
 9  strengthen our cash position because we were
10  getting dangerously down below -- even below 23
11  days.  We also were able to park the train for a
12  period of roughly a month at our Quindaro plant
13  down in Fairfax also which helped save some
14  cash.
15      And like we always do when we don't
16  have enough money, we delay capital improvement
17  projects.  And that is a kind of where we have
18  been recently.  We just have not been spending
19  money and continually upgrading our aging
20  infrastructure because we just haven't had the
21  cash.
22      Graphically, it basically summarizes.
23  Again, we have reduced our budget since 2006 by
24  roughly 55 million.  Now our board approved in
25  our budget for 2010 678 staff positions but
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 1  currently we are operating at 594 positions
 2  because I have been holding up vacant positions
 3  and haven't been filling them.  Now, the
 4  challenge with that is our service quality
 5  starts to worsen as we have fewer and fewer
 6  people to respond, especially when we get into
 7  emergencies.  But we have had to do that to
 8  protect our cash position.
 9      We have been able to say that our rates
10  are very competitive.  Our electric rates are
11  lower than other surrounding utilities and well
12  below the national average.  And our water rates
13  are very competitive with surrounding utilities.
14      For example, looking at a typical
15  customer on the electric -- monthly electric
16  bill 920 kilowatt hours.  This is without the
17  PILOT fees.  $84.67 would be what our electric
18  charge would be.  And, again, if you compare
19  that to some of our neighbors like Kansas City
20  Power & Light, Independence, and so forth -- and
21  here is -- over here is the national average.
22  Now this national average number was a 2008
23  number so we know it has gone up since 2008.  We
24  don't have the latest data on that but we're
25  still well below what it was nationally in 2008.
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 1      On the water side, for 8 cubic feet we
 2  are roughly in the middle, at $36.35.
 3      I wanted to point out a little more
 4  carefully the electric utility rates and the
 5  rate comparisons, and also show as an industrial
 6  trend what has been happening.  And this has not
 7  just been happening here regionally, it has been
 8  happening nationally.  Electric rates have been
 9  skyrocketing.  A lot of it is being driven by
10  not only rising costs of doing business, a lot
11  of the commodities that we use, whether it be
12  coal, natural gas, oil or whether we -- you
13  know, copper has fluctuated in price.  A lot of
14  our transformers and that are all -- that use
15  copper.
16      But environmental mandates have been
17  also challenging all of us as an industry in
18  raising rates.  And if you notice, Kansas City
19  Power & Light, Kansas now, because they both
20  serve in Kansas and Missouri, we are looking at
21  Kansas City Power & Light 2006, they had an 8.95
22  percent and they have been steadily asking for
23  increases before the Kansas Corporation
24  Commission.  And they currently have an 11.5
25  percent before the commission now.  If they get
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 1  anywhere close to that 11.5, since 2006 they
 2  will have increased their fees by 48 -- roughly
 3  49 percent.
 4      If you look at BPU, the last rate
 5  increase we had was in 2006, 2.65.  And then if
 6  you add the one that we are recommending in
 7  2007, it would still be under 10 percent in
 8  total since 2005.  But this -- a lot of the
 9  utilities because of the -- especially when you
10  go to build new generation, like Iatan II, the
11  Kansas City Power & Light's building, whether
12  they are new gas plants, we all know that the
13  cost for these generating facilities are going
14  up tremendously.
15      And then all the environmental systems
16  that you have to put on these plants really
17  drive up the costs as well.  And there is more
18  and more mandates on the environmental side that
19  is requiring us to convert some of our older
20  plants and to add better controls to them.  So
21  this is really starting to drive the cost of
22  energy upwards.  And, you know, we are getting
23  into that as well.
24      The rate hearing process at this time,
25  I would turn it over to Lori Austin, manager of
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 1  finance, who will cover basically our rate
 2  hearing process.
 3      MS. AUSTIN: Thank you, Don.
 4      Just to talk a little bit about a rate
 5  hearing process.  We are a cost of service
 6  organization.  We have engaged the firm of Black
 7  & Veatch to perform a cost of service study in
 8  both our electric and water utility.  We asked
 9  to have them perform a five-year cost of service
10  study from 2010 through 2014.  Once that cost of
11  service study was performed, we began our rate
12  setting process.
13      We went before our board and asked for
14  a resolution to approve -- a resolution for a
15  rate hearing that was approved on February 1st.
16  That started the 90-day notice for public
17  review.  And in that public review we allow for
18  formal review of our rate process and our cost
19  of service and also any intervention.
20      It's two -- we provide two formal
21  public hearings that are conducted in the
22  morning and the evening after the 90-day period
23  has expired.  It is overseen by the
24  administrative judge, who we have here tonight.
25  The first hearing is tonight and the next


Page 26


 1  hearing will be tomorrow morning at 9:00 a.m.
 2      There will be a transcript of the
 3  hearing for both sessions and that is made
 4  available to the public and to the board of
 5  directors once complete.  At a later date we
 6  will ask for our board to vote on what the
 7  proposed rates that are -- that we are
 8  requesting.
 9      Our cost of service study, the focus of
10  our study is to match the cost of providing the
11  services to the individual customer classes so
12  that we can equitably recover those costs.  We
13  have three major classes:  Residential,
14  commercial, and industrial.
15      There is a three-step approach to the
16  cost of service.  We have a revenue requirement
17  for the overall utilities, both water and
18  electric, and that is how much money is needed
19  to meet our cost of service.
20      Then we perform a cost allocation from
21  whom should the money be collected.  And as I
22  referenced, the three larger groups, the
23  industrial, residential and commercial.
24      Then we have -- then the final step is
25  a rate design.  And it is how should those costs
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 1  -- how should those services be priced among
 2  those individual rate classes.
 3      At this time I would like to turn it
 4  over to Peggy Howe with Black & Veatch.
 5      MS. HOWE: Thank you.  Thank you,
 6  Lori.
 7      Black & Veatch was retained by BPU to
 8  provide an independent third-party opinion
 9  needed for the rate study and the cost of
10  service analysis.  And before I get into the
11  specific services we provide, I would like to
12  talk a little bit about my firm.
13      We are a global firm that provides
14  engineering consulting services worldwide.  As
15  indicated up here, we have over 9,000 employees
16  worldwide and over 100 offices.  We have been in
17  business for close to 100 years now.  And one of
18  the things that I would really like to highlight
19  is the fact that we have built our reputation on
20  integrity and competence.  And we are very proud
21  of that and stand behind that as we perform
22  services to the folks that retain us.  We are an
23  employee-owned corporation.  That is on a global
24  basis.
25      On a local basis or a regional basis,
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 1  we have over 40 offices in the United States, so
 2  we truly understand what is happening in the
 3  industries here that we serve.  We serve water,
 4  wastewater, gas, electric, telecommunications.
 5  We focus on utilities and we know the business
 6  inside and out, you might say.  We also are
 7  very, very local to BPU with offices -- a couple
 8  of offices here in the Kansas City area.
 9      Within Black & Veatch is a sub group or
10  a division that focuses specifically on
11  management consulting issues.  These are the
12  issues associated with finances, associated with
13  capital financing.  Not so much the hard design
14  services but the services that support being
15  able to operate and run the utility.
16      We do the entire what we call value
17  chain.  We help utilities with strategies.  We
18  help them figure out how to pay for items.  We
19  help them with the business processes to improve
20  their operations, and we also have a group that
21  helps them with their technology.  And these
22  folks just focus strictly on what we call
23  management consulting.  The folks that are going
24  to be talking with you today and tomorrow are
25  part of that group.
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 1      Specific experience in the water and
 2  energy business, I'll talk a little bit about
 3  that.  There are about 50 major metropolitan
 4  areas in the U.S. as far as water.  We have
 5  served over 28 of those 50 areas with all types
 6  of management consulting services.  Just a few
 7  of them would be -- in the region here would be
 8  St. Louis, Wichita, Cincinnati.  And then we
 9  threw Miami-Dade in because that's a new one for
10  us.  But, again, I want to point out they are
11  large metropolitan areas, they all face similar
12  challenges that your utility is facing.  We can
13  bring the knowledge from those communities to
14  help you perform better and operate better.
15      On the electric side, out of the
16  hundred largest public utilities we provide
17  service to 37 of them.  Again, we can take that
18  knowledge and that understanding and bring them
19  those best practices to help BPU make the right
20  decisions better and in the best interest of
21  their customers.
22      Specifically, the services we provided
23  we helped with the cost of service and rate
24  design.  And just to walk you through this, you
25  start at the bottom of this chart down here.
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 1  And just as you do on a personal level, you have
 2  got to know how much does it cost to operate,
 3  and where the revenue is coming from to get
 4  that.  And I always compare it to, you know,
 5  your personal checkbook.  Money comes in, money
 6  goes out.  You have got to have a good
 7  understanding of what the costs are on a regular
 8  basis and how you are going to fund them.  That
 9  is what we call revenue requirements.  And when
10  the money coming in is not enough to cover the
11  costs going out, something needs to be done.
12  And we are at that point now.
13      After that we then look at all the
14  different customers that you have and we say,
15  all right, who is causing these costs to be
16  incurred and let's equitably distribute the
17  costs to those customers and recover the revenue
18  from those customers.  And that is the purpose
19  behind doing a rate study and a cost of service
20  analysis.
21      So, in summary -- in summary, find out
22  how much money you need, find out who is causing
23  the cost to happen, and design rates that will
24  equitably recover those costs from the specific
25  customers.
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 1      Our project approach parallels that.
 2  We start off with financial planning, go to the
 3  cost of service analysis, and finish up with the
 4  rate design.  We use proven approaches that are
 5  supported by the industry.  They're consistent
 6  with AWWA, American Water Works Association, and
 7  WEF, Water Environment Federation.  They have
 8  guidelines out there on how to do this and how
 9  to equitably recover those costs so that it is
10  done consistently across the industry.  We also
11  look at having specific issues for your
12  community and make sure that the results are in
13  tune with the industry but not so inflexible
14  that they can't meet your specific needs.
15      So what were the goals of our study for
16  BPU?  Well, as mentioned earlier by Mr. Gray,
17  your operating reserves are getting very close
18  to a concerned position.  So the first thing we
19  did was we came in and we looked at your
20  financial targets for 2014.
21      Now when you go -- when you need to
22  build major capital, you go to the bond market.
23  What does the bond market look at?  Well, think
24  about it again on a personal level.  If you want
25  to buy a house, what does a bank look at when
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 1  they look at you?  Well, this is on a much
 2  larger and a commercial level but the same thing
 3  happens.  There are certain things that the
 4  market is looking for to understand and
 5  interpret you as a sound financial risk.  And
 6  one of those things is your reserves.  And
 7  they're looking for about 60 days minimum.  And
 8  right now you're sitting at 32 days of reserves.
 9  So, if you needed to go to the market to borrow
10  money to build capital, you would not be looked
11  at favorably with those types of capital
12  reserves.
13      The second thing we looked at was
14  improved cash flow and debt service coverage.
15  Again, debt service coverage is one of those
16  things that the market looks at to find out how
17  good a risk you are for lending money.  And,
18  quite honest, in the past 18 months, since
19  August of 2008, things have changed considerably
20  in the bond market.  Right now you are sitting
21  at a debt service coverage of 1.13.  Right now
22  1.50 is about the lowest most investors want to
23  see.  So, again, you need to do something if you
24  want to go to the bond market to get capital
25  money to build your capital projects.
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 1      Finally, after we help -- and those
 2  first two items are what was part of the revenue
 3  requirements.  Is we helped you position your
 4  utility for those two items to be met.  After
 5  that we came in and we wanted to adjust rates
 6  equitably.  And this gets into the cost of
 7  service where you allocate the costs
 8  appropriately to who's causing the costs.
 9      And then we also look at some
10  innovative rate options.  So that if there were
11  issues, we could be flexible enough to meet your
12  specific needs.
13      And those are the services that Black &
14  Veatch provided.
15      And with this, Lori will -- Lori Austin
16  will come back up and continue.
17      MS. AUSTIN: Thank you, Peggy.
18      Just to talk a little bit further about
19  why this is necessary.  Peggy talked -- touched
20  a little bit on it.  Over the last several years
21  we have had 20 to 45 days of cash on hand.  The
22  recommended level is 60 days of cash.  At
23  year-end 2009 we do have -- we did have 32 days
24  of cash on hand.
25      With the lack of cash, that doesn't
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 1  allows us to finance the capital projects or
 2  meet our reserve and our debt service
 3  requirements.
 4      We also need to maintain our strong
 5  credit ratings so that when we go to the bond
 6  market that we can receive favorable interest
 7  rates and purchase those bonds for less
 8  expensive costs.
 9      Postponing the capital improvements
10  will ultimately cause our service disruptions
11  and our increased costs even more.
12      We also have inflationary pressures
13  that many of the other industries are
14  experiencing where our service materials and
15  laborers have increased.
16      And as Don noted earlier, our rates
17  have been constant since 2007.  We had a small
18  increase in 2007 and we are below the national
19  average and also lower than most surrounding
20  utilities.
21      So what is being proposed?  To meet the
22  requirements, the study recommends revenues from
23  the electric base rates of a series of four
24  increases each year of 7 percent for 2010, 2011,
25  2012 and 13.  And water base rates 8 percent in
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 1  2010 and 2011.  And 7 1/2 percent in 2012 and
 2  2013.  Now, that is a total base rate increase
 3  of 7.2 percent in 2010 and '11 and 7.1 percent
 4  in 2012 and 13.
 5      We are also proposing an environmental
 6  surcharge, and that environmental surcharge is a
 7  rider that will allow us to capture costs of
 8  environmental mandates that are required of us
 9  of capital projects for our generation.
10      The additional modification would be to
11  our energy rate component.  We are looking to
12  change that from the current process of six
13  months winter and six months summer to a
14  quarterly adjustment, and it would be on an --
15  through a calendar year basis.
16      And then -- and then also we are
17  looking to redefine our summer and winter
18  periods.  Our current summer period is from May
19  through October, and then our winter period is
20  November through April.  We're looking to
21  redefine that to four months summer and eight
22  months winter.  So our summer will be May
23  through August and winter period would be
24  September through April.
25      This is a look at our operating cash


Page 36


 1  flow under the proposed electric rates.  The
 2  solid line is if we did nothing.  As you can
 3  tell as we get out to 2011, we are definitely
 4  below our ability to fund our capital needs.
 5  The dotted line represents with the proposed
 6  rates.  And with the proposed rates that will
 7  meet our annual revenue requirements and reach
 8  our debt service, the projected 1.6 times
 9  coverage, and also meet our 60-day operating
10  reserve by 2013.  Now that is building our cash
11  reserve up to the 60 days by 2013.  It is not
12  all in one year.
13      Under water rates, solid line
14  represents is if we did nothing, and the dotted
15  line is under the proposed rates.
16      Now, the water proposed rates will meet
17  its annual revenue requirements and they have
18  reached their debt coverage of -- 1.4 times debt
19  service coverage, and 44 days of operating
20  reserve by 2013 -- or 2014.
21      The overall electric rate by classes,
22  as I stated, the overall percentage is a 7
23  percent across the four-year period.  When you
24  break it down by class and recovering those
25  costs equitably both residential and the large
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 1  power service are above the overall average
 2  cost.  We have put into place that we would not
 3  recover more than 50 percent of the overall
 4  system average in any one class, and that is why
 5  residential and large power service are a little
 6  bit higher through the study period until 2013.
 7      In the water side, the class is by
 8  year.  It's an overall 8 percent in '10 and '11,
 9  and 7 1/2 percent in 2012 and '13.  The
10  residential small and medium customers would be
11  a little bit higher than system average.  And
12  then the industrial would phase in a little bit
13  higher than average in later years.
14      So what is being proposed with the
15  environmental surcharge?  This is a surcharge to
16  offset the new capital improvement requirements
17  resulting from environmental regulations.  We
18  currently have one project that's slated for an
19  environmental project.  It is the low NOx
20  burners and overfire air.  Darrell Dorsey will
21  be talking about that a little bit.  It is a $40
22  million project.
23      So, with that, the environmental
24  surcharge is proposed to be at 1 percent in
25  2010, and then an additional 1.6 percent in
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 1  2011.  This amounts to an average increase for a
 2  residential customer of approximately 40 cents
 3  per month in 2010 and $1.04 per month in 2011.
 4      For a typical residential electric
 5  bill, this is breaking it out by our summer and
 6  winter period.  This is based on 1,150 kilowatt
 7  hours in the summer months and 625 kilowatt
 8  hours in the winter months.  This does not
 9  include PILOT or taxes.  You can see the range
10  from the summer period 2009 to summer period
11  2010 we're just coming into.  It's a little bit
12  of an increase from '09.  And then from the
13  summer period 2011 is approximately 12 to 13
14  dollars overall.
15      From the winter period, as you can see
16  from '09 to the winter period, there is an
17  actual decrease.  And then it's about a $7
18  increase in the winter period in 2011.
19      On the water side looking at 5 Ccf, 7
20  Ccf and 10 Ccf, the overall increase for 5 Ccf
21  would be about $2.72 for the first year, 2.95
22  for the second year, 2.75 for the third, and
23  $2.90 for the fourth year.
24      With that, I will turn it over to
25  Blake.  Blake Elliott, director of plant.
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 1      MR. ELLIOTT: As Lori said, my
 2  name is Blake Elliott, the director of electric
 3  supply planning.  I can't claim all the
 4  planning.
 5      The energy rate component is the
 6  portion of your bill that is broken out
 7  separately that recovers the costs of fuel and
 8  purchase power that the utility has to buy.  And
 9  we -- that was initially put into service back
10  in 2002 which was our last formal cost of
11  service study.
12      We have done the calculation 18 times.
13  One of those times was the mid-period
14  adjustment.
15      And what we have seen is a lot of
16  volatility in the ERC.  A lot of volatility
17  comes from the volatility in the gas market.
18  The gas market, we have seen gas prices at $14
19  per MMBTU, and we have seen gas prices at $4 for
20  MMBTU.  So as that gas price swings, we see a
21  lot of volatility in that pricing and it causes
22  our ERC to move quite a bit.  So we would like
23  to reduce that volatility.  We have seen a range
24  in ERC from 1.25 through 4.25 cents per kilowatt
25  hour on a -- for the every kilowatt hour that
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 1  you use on your bill.
 2      And then some of that additional
 3  volatility is from the reconciliation adjustment
 4  or the true-up that is done at the end of the
 5  period.  We make forecasts and do the
 6  calculation on that, but then the following year
 7  when we know what the final costs were for that
 8  previous period we true those costs up and we
 9  roll that into the calculation also.
10      This is the graphical representation of
11  exactly what has happened in each summer and
12  winter period.  This is that mid-period
13  adjustment, the $4 -- or $4.25 per kilowatt
14  hour.  And that was just for two months, the
15  months of September and October in 2008.
16      The proposed changes, again, Lori
17  mentioned this, we want to reduce the period
18  from six months to three months.  And we want to
19  perform that reconciliation adjustment more
20  quickly.  Right now there's a year to year so
21  that summer is reconciled with summer.  We hold
22  on to that for quite a bit of time.  We think we
23  can reduce volatility by shortening that period
24  and doing the reconciliation more quickly.
25      We would like to broaden the definition
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 1  of the power supply costs.  We want to capture
 2  all of our power supply costs in the ERC and
 3  that's some new ones that may be coming up we'll
 4  talk about.
 5      Also, there is a voltage adjustment
 6  that's done in the ERC and we're proposing to
 7  move that out of ERC and move it over actually
 8  into the individual customer class bill
 9  depending upon that customer and what voltage
10  they take -- their meter is located at.
11      These are the changes in the power
12  supply costs.  We want to include all of the
13  demand charges for purchase power and
14  transmission.  In there right now some of the
15  demand charges are excluded from going into ERC.
16  We would like to get them all in there.  Because
17  the demand charges truly are you don't have
18  demand unless you need energy.  This truly is an
19  energy cost to us.
20      The SPP, which is the Southwestern
21  Power Pool is the regional transmission
22  organization we belong to.  There's a lot of
23  development in the SPP about future market
24  things that we'll have to operate in to stay
25  connected to the grid.  There will be some new
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 1  market requirements, consolidated balancing
 2  authority.  There is some new transmission costs
 3  to get extra high voltage transmission
 4  available, to get wind energy out of the
 5  Midwest.  You may have heard some of that in the
 6  paper.  That is a very big discussion point.
 7  And then ancillary services which is some pretty
 8  specific generation-type definitions.
 9      We would like to recover costs
10  associated with demand response programs that
11  would give the utility actual control over
12  customer load.  If we see the load is going to
13  go up so high on a day and we can do something
14  to control that load, that is -- and bring it
15  down, then we don't have to go out and buy
16  additional generation for that time period.  So
17  we would like to recover some of those costs for
18  that type of equipment and charges.
19      Also, some -- the renewable energy
20  credits that come with our alternative energy,
21  our renewable energy, when those are sold back
22  to the marketplace we want to give a portion of
23  that back to our customers in the form of a
24  credit.  In the reconciliation adjustment.
25      I think that is the end of mine and I'm
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 1  going to ask Darrel Dorsey, next presenter.
 2      MR. DORSEY: Good evening.
 3      I will start off with a little
 4  background on the electric production and supply
 5  division for those of you that may not be
 6  familiar with our organization.  We have got
 7  about 211 employees in this division, the bulk
 8  of which are at the power generating stations.
 9      The Nearman plant is the youngest
10  plant.  It is not really new anymore.  It is 29
11  years old, but it is a single coal-fired unit,
12  235 megawatts.  We also have one combustion
13  turbine.  Our newest combustion turbine, CT4, is
14  at that site as well.
15      Quindaro power station has two
16  coal-fired units.  It also has three combustion
17  turbines.
18      The old Kaw power station had three
19  coal-fired units that also fired natural gas.
20  The Kaw power station has been in long-term cold
21  storage since about 2004.  It's not operating at
22  this time and there's nothing within this plan
23  to operate that station.
24      There is a number of other departments
25  within the division.  Environmental services
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 1  provides monitoring and reporting for all of our
 2  regulatory requirements.  They also provide the
 3  same services to the rest of the utility in some
 4  other areas.
 5      Fuels, we have a lot of activity in the
 6  fuel procurement for both coal, natural gas, and
 7  oil.  All fuels we're using at the plants for
 8  the main units.
 9      Planning, which is Blake's department.
10      Energy control center, which is the
11  dispatching of the energy from the power plants,
12  but they also handle the shorter term wholesale
13  power market, both selling power on the market
14  and buying power from the market.
15      Then key accounts, which is a set-up to
16  address the unique concerns of our top 50 key
17  account customers.
18      First of all, in 2010, we have made a
19  lost of cuts to stay within the revenue that we
20  have right now.  Just in 2010 we made from the
21  operational maintenance budget alone about $4
22  million worth of cuts in deferrals, work that
23  we're pushing out to future years.
24      One big example is our Combustion
25  Turbine #1 and 3 overhauls.  These are the three
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 1  combustion turbines that I mentioned were at the
 2  Quindaro power station.  Unit 1 is the oldest.
 3  Unit 3 and 1 are both due for overhauls, where
 4  we basically open the machine, inspect and make
 5  repairs as necessary and reassemble it.  It's
 6  the kind of the equipment we don't know what we
 7  have wrong until we open it and inspect it.
 8  It's a big job.  I mean, we will spend over a
 9  million dollars on each one of those just on the
10  inspection, the open and close and inspect.  And
11  then the necessary repairs are determined as we
12  go.
13      We made a lot of other cuts as well.
14  We deferred some boiler feed pump overhauls,
15  structural repairs.  We made unilateral cuts
16  across a lot of maintenance accounts.  I mean,
17  most of the maintenance accounts, quite frankly.
18      Again, we deferred some of the demand
19  side management programs that we'd been looking
20  into that Blake mentioned.  Environmental data
21  acquisition systems.  We built in some
22  additional attrition on our labor.  As Don
23  mentioned, we're holding off on filling
24  positions to save some cash.  Delayed vehicle
25  procurements.  And that is just a sampling of
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 1  some of the budget cuts that we've made not only
 2  at the power stations but to meet the O & M
 3  budget.
 4      Capital cuts in our capital dollars, we
 5  cut a good $9 million.  About $3 million worth
 6  of work that we would do at Nearman right now if
 7  we had the funding, and about 6 million at
 8  Quindaro.
 9      Again, just some examples.  Combustion
10  Turbine #5 will be the next combustion turbine
11  addition.  You may recall at one time we were
12  going to add another coal-fired plant.  We
13  haven't done so.  We don't believe we can do so
14  in the near-term future, so our next plan is to
15  install another combustion turbine.
16      Now, this is actually the Combustion
17  Turbine 4 that went into service in 2006.
18  Combustion Turbine 5 in this plan is planned to
19  be the same, basically a mirror image, a
20  duplicate of Combustion Turbine 4, would sit
21  right next to it out at the Nearman power plant.
22  That is in this five-year capital plan.
23      Some other projects that were pushed
24  out, mercury monitoring equipment, lightning
25  protection systems, roofing replacements.  We
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 1  have roofs that we're just repairing until we
 2  can take care of a larger replacement project.
 3      Levee improvements, both Nearman and
 4  Quindaro have levees to protect them from
 5  flooding.  If you recall the last big flood,
 6  Nearman, for example, was totally surrounded.
 7  100 percent surrounded by flood water.  It needs
 8  a lot of levee improvements to maintain its
 9  certification and that level of protection.
10      The Quindaro flood wall needs some
11  work.  We pushed both of those out to 2011 as
12  well.  We're comfortable in doing so at this
13  time predominantly because the Quindaro project,
14  the Corps of Engineers has just recently done
15  some more detailed analysis of the flood wall.
16  There is a possibility they will be reducing the
17  scope and stretching out the work.  So we were
18  quite comfortable with pushing that one out.
19      The Nearman project, we felt we had
20  time.  It's mainly a lot of rock riff raff that
21  has to be repaired and replaced, but the work
22  will have to be done.
23      Combustion Turbine #3 air duct.  These
24  combustion turbines have a lot of steel liners
25  inside the air ducts.  We're having problems
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 1  with it.  Needs to be replaced.
 2      Mill gears and liners, traveling
 3  screens for the intakes.  Again, these are --
 4  this is just a sampling of some of the projects
 5  we cut and deferred and work that we pushed out.
 6  We probably had at least 24 projects of this
 7  nature that were deferred to later years.
 8      As far as our future needs, we will
 9  need to complete a lot of this deferred work.
10  It's not like we can keep pushing it out
11  forever.  You know, where we've pushed work out
12  we were comfortable with for the time being but
13  we know we've got to do it starting in 2011 and
14  12 to get caught up.
15      Also in the five-year capital plan,
16  though, are the overhauls for all three of the
17  coal-fired units.  Just as I mentioned with
18  combustion turbines, we have to periodically
19  completely tear them down, inspect them and make
20  repairs as necessary.  All three coal-fired
21  units will experience that in this five-year
22  period.
23      Combustion Turbines #2 and 4 will also
24  undergo overhauls.  Lori mentioned the low NOx
25  burner work, that will be installed by 2012 at
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 1  the two plants.  We have to replace Nearman air
 2  heater baskets and install the new combustion
 3  turbine.  And, again, that is just a sampling of
 4  some of the major work that is in the five-year
 5  plan.
 6      What it equates to is the Nearman
 7  projects over the next five years require about
 8  $20 million.  The Quindaro projects about $35
 9  million.  The new CT 5 is currently running an
10  estimate of about $74.5 million.  And as Lori
11  mentioned earlier, the low NOx burner project is
12  about 40 million.  We actually have engineers
13  working right now on an update for that cost but
14  we feel it's going to be pretty close.
15      The bulk of this will be funded through
16  bond funding to get these capital needs.  So it
17  is not a matter of we have to raise this much
18  money in five years.  We only have to raise the
19  debt service requirement for those bonds for
20  that time period.
21      Oh, we mentioned the environmental
22  surcharge rider.  The first project is related
23  to the Kansas City ozone.  You have probably
24  seen the ozone alerts on the news on TV and on
25  some of the buses going around downtown.  They
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 1  finally have come out with the mandates that
 2  require us to install the low NOx burners and
 3  overfire air systems to help bring down the
 4  ozone in the Kansas City area.  Now, that's
 5  about a $40 million project.  That is what this
 6  initial environmental surcharge will recapture
 7  is the bond debt service to retire the bonds for
 8  that environmental project.
 9      But there is a wide range of additional
10  environmental concerns that we know are on the
11  horizon.  They haven't come to fruition yet.  We
12  can't say exactly when they will but we know
13  they're going to be costly.
14      Regional haze is like how well you can
15  see from one mountain range to the other.  You
16  know, a hundred years ago, it was crystal clear,
17  today it's a little hazy.  They want to clear
18  that up.  If regional haze kicks in for Nearman,
19  and we are hoping it won't do so for another
20  five years, but we estimated about $169 million
21  just to do scrubbers for that power station.  So
22  there is potentially some large dollars involved
23  in those projects.
24      Hazardous air pollutants.  Mercury.
25  They did have a mercury rule out.  It was
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 1  rescinded.  We know it's going to come back out
 2  again.  We may have to install some mercury
 3  controls.
 4      Particulate matter.  The National
 5  Ambient Air Quality Standard revisions, just
 6  pointing out, those are kind of a baseline that
 7  kind of sets the standard from which all these
 8  programs evolve.  And they continue to evolve
 9  and tighten up on the ambient air quality
10  standards.  These programs will come to
11  fruition.  There's been a lot of talk about
12  carbon lately.  I don't know where it is going
13  to go.  We just know that when it gets here it's
14  going to be expensive.  So there is a lot of
15  future concerns where this environmental
16  surcharge can come into play as well to retire,
17  again, the capital funds necessary to do these
18  major environmental projects.
19      One of the things that frequently gets
20  asked is what are we doing to mitigate some of
21  those environmental costs, you know, because we
22  have these coal-fired units and gas units.  We
23  have emissions.  We already have quite a bit of
24  alternative energy in our system.  Green power
25  as people like to call it.  We have 38 megawatts
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 1  coming in from the Southwest Power
 2  Administration, 5 megawatts from the Western
 3  Area Power Administration.  We have a 25
 4  megawatt take on the Smoky Hills Wind Farm,
 5  which is the one off of I-70 as you go out west
 6  of Salina.  And we just recently started pulling
 7  in 1.6 megawatts off of a new landfill gas
 8  project.  So we are in a pretty good position
 9  right now.
10      Now, I should mention the state of
11  Kansas does not -- nor the federal government
12  requires us to have a mandatory renewable energy
13  portfolio, but this is what we have on, I guess
14  you would say, a voluntary basis.  So that does
15  help us mitigate some of our emissions costs to
16  a degree.
17      Future energy supplies, we do continue
18  to work on future renewables.  That's something
19  that planning, Blake, works on quite extensively
20  looking at when the next opportunity is for
21  additional landfill gas, wind energy, hydro.
22  You know, whatever we can find we are willing to
23  take a look at.
24      Conventional purchase power agreements
25  where we sign up with another utility to buy
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 1  their power for a period of time.  If the right
 2  offer is made and it's cheaper than what we can
 3  do it ourselves, we will buy the power from the
 4  other utility.
 5      The Southwest Power Pool energy
 6  markets.  As Blake mentioned, those are evolving
 7  markets.  We are market participants.  Right now
 8  it's just a real-time -- right now they -- you
 9  know, today's a power-type market, but they are
10  evolving day-ahead markets, ancillary service
11  markets.  I don't know if they will manage to
12  pull together any capacity markets, but we will
13  continue to participate in those as well to
14  provide your energy.
15      Of course, demand side management as
16  Blake mentioned is a great endeavor.  It has got
17  a lot of potential for us to have control of
18  energy in the community to help out this overall
19  situation.  It has got some real value.
20      But in the short term, our next
21  addition is, as I mentioned earlier, natural gas
22  generation by adding a combustion turbine at the
23  Nearman power station.
24      So that is kind of an overview of what
25  is in the five-year capital plan and the cost of
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 1  service for the electric production and supply
 2  division.
 3      With that, I will turn it over to Bill
 4  Johnson.
 5      MR. JOHNSON: Thank you, Darrell.
 6      Again, my name is Bill Johnson.  I'm
 7  manager of electric operations and technology.
 8      And just like Darrell, we have got a
 9  sizable workforce.  We've got about 199
10  employees within that division.  What the
11  division is primarily responsible for is taking
12  the energy generated at our power plants and
13  transporting and delivering that energy to each
14  and every business and home in the Kansas City
15  community.
16      We have got -- some of the departments
17  that make up electric operations and technology
18  is our T & D section, we've got our metering
19  section.  Information technology.  We have got
20  our fleet or our transportation.  We provide a
21  lot of transportation support for the entire
22  organization.
23      What we have in our five-year forecast,
24  which is part of this cost of service, are
25  capital projects to go in and rebuild a lot of
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 1  over and underground distribution, and also do
 2  some upgrades on some of our transmission
 3  circuits.  Got about $56 million for
 4  distribution work alone, and I will get more --
 5  and give you more specific information about
 6  this.
 7      Transmission upgrades are about 33
 8  million.  Substation improvements and new
 9  additions were about $42 million.  And the
10  AMI/AMR project which is advanced metering, or
11  automated meter reading system, is about $13
12  million.  And a $16 million investment in our
13  existing radio system, two-way radio system,
14  which is a system that all of our field crews
15  use.  Electric, water, customer service field
16  crews.  But also it's kind of a joint use radio
17  system where we also share that radio system
18  with the Unified Government.  Police, fire,
19  emergency management also rides on that same
20  system.
21      The system is at a point where it is
22  starting to run out of warranty, where it is
23  starting to lose a lot of manufacturing and
24  support on that system.  And we are looking at a
25  number of avenues trying to create -- get some
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 1  additional financing, but it's simply past the
 2  point where we need to start looking at
 3  replacing it.
 4      This is a construction overview of what
 5  we are proposing to do with our T & D
 6  construction plant.  We want to build new 161
 7  substations and do some upgrades to our 15 kV
 8  distribution network.  The reason for that is
 9  there is an increase for energy that is
10  continuing to go up.
11      And, also, we have got a service
12  territory that is still expanding.  A lot of the
13  development that you see out west, a lot of that
14  development is going into places where we really
15  don't have adequate distribution circuits.  So
16  we're having to extend our distribution network
17  further and further out to meet that new growth.
18      And, also, homes are -- even though
19  they are more energy efficient, homes are
20  becoming more and more bigger.  Appliances are
21  using more energy.  While some of them are using
22  less, you know, the flat screen TVs and some of
23  the other things you're seeing are driving up
24  that demand for new energy.
25      The other thing we are wanting to do at
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 1  our substation, and this is a plan that we have
 2  started some time ago, is to continue converting
 3  a lot of our 69 line kV substations to 161.
 4  What I mean by that, if you took a look at our
 5  service territory, about -- we've got 29 major
 6  substations and about half of those substations
 7  are 161 kV or 161,000 volt substations.  The
 8  other half are 69,000 substations.
 9      We started converting those substations
10  over to 161 to increase reliability for all of
11  our customers and also to move our transmission
12  network to one voltage.  So in the long run that
13  will reduce cost and also eliminate some of the
14  problems we're having with some of the aging
15  infrastructure.  Our 69 kV system is our only
16  system.  As it stands now, the utility spends
17  more dollars than we would like because we are
18  having to maintain both systems at the same
19  time.  So we are trying to mitigate some of that
20  by moving it to one standardized or one voltage.
21      Same thing with our 15 kV distribution
22  system.  We have got two distribution voltages
23  in KCK.  As we build new substations and convert
24  those 69 kV stations to 161, that also gives us
25  an opportunity to get our distribution network
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 1  to one voltage, too, so we're not having to
 2  support two.  And then the other part of the
 3  project is just to do some upgrade to our
 4  southern 161 loop that will add some capacity.
 5      A little bit deeper detail on the
 6  substation transmission projects that are
 7  actually in the budget is our Wolcott substation
 8  is the first one I will talk about.  It is a new
 9  substation that is being built out in the
10  Wolcott community.  The purpose for this is to
11  create a new intertie with Kansas City Power &
12  Light.  Our intertie right now is at Maywood
13  substation at 94th and Parallel.  This one was
14  set further north and it will create a new
15  intertie.
16      It will also provide redundant service
17  to a substation that was -- that is already in
18  the Piper community.  If you go out 123rd
19  Street, there is a substation that we energized
20  about five years ago called Piper West.
21      We need to build a new Wolcott inner
22  sub -- and a transmission project to provide a
23  secondary feed to that substation so that we
24  will have a back-up feed in case we need -- we
25  lose the one transmission line that's feed it,
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 1  we will have a secondary line that's already
 2  there.  Or we can take it out for maintenance.
 3  We will also have that secondary line there.
 4      We are also proposing an east Fairfax
 5  substation.  This project is -- goes along with
 6  what I said earlier with converting the 69 kV
 7  substations to 161.  What we are proposing to do
 8  with Fairfax is to eliminate three existing 69
 9  kV substations and build one new one to replace
10  it.  It will also give us the ability to tackle
11  some of this aging infrastructure that's down
12  there.  And I will get a little bit deeper into
13  that in some slides that's coming up.  But it
14  will also give us a chance to expand and
15  increase our distribution reliability down there
16  and make Fairfax a place that we can market
17  better in the future but also provide and
18  support new growth to the existing customers
19  that are down there.  The customers want to
20  expand so we have to have distribution capacity
21  within our system to be able to support that.
22      The other main substation project is
23  Muncie substation.  Again, it is an existing
24  substation.  It's a 69 kV substation that we
25  would like to convert over to a 161.  It is one
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 1  of our oldest substations on the system.  In
 2  fact, the two oldest substations is -- one is at
 3  Fairfax and this is the other one.
 4      I will talk about some of the age and
 5  infrastructure down here later on and show you
 6  why this -- converting this substation is past
 7  the critical state is something that is in our
 8  plan and why we need to replace that.  The main
 9  thing that goes into that decision is that's one
10  of the substations that provide service to the
11  downtown community.  So that is what makes it
12  critical.  And like I said earlier, it's also
13  one of our older substations.
14      Here is a map of some of the projects
15  that I just talked about.  What I would like to
16  do is draw your attention to this line here
17  (indicating).  This is a transmission line out
18  west.  This is the 435 interchange.  This line
19  is owned by Kansas City Power & Light.
20      What is interesting about it is here is
21  our Maywood substation (indicating), here is the
22  Piper substation (indicating) I talked about
23  earlier.  There is -- this transmission line is
24  primarily responsible for feeding and providing
25  service to this entire area here (indicating).
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 1      And the interesting thing is we are
 2  providing service off a line that BPU don't even
 3  own.  We tapped into that line here to feed
 4  Piper here, so Piper and Maywood is already
 5  providing distribution service.  This is a
 6  transmission line project that is already on the
 7  way and we hope to complete it by the end of
 8  this year.
 9      The substation will probably be
10  energized next year and our plans following that
11  is to construct the new 161 line from Wolcott
12  back down to our Nearman power plant that
13  Darrell talked about earlier.  The reason for
14  that is BPU needs to have some ownership in --
15  of transmissions that feeds its community.  And
16  we just take it away from relying on another
17  utility to provide that type of service to
18  Kansas City.
19      We talked about Fairfax.  A lot of our
20  budget is going to be spent in this area just
21  building a new substation and replacing three.
22  And this is Muncie here.
23      Some of the transmission work I talked
24  about earlier is this other loop.  It's a
25  transmission line that is already there.  Our
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 1  plans are -- is to leave that -- the poles
 2  there.  Leave everything else there, just
 3  reconduct, put up a little bit bigger wire so we
 4  can have a little bit more capacity built within
 5  that circuit.
 6      I've talked about transmission
 7  projects, now I would like to shift to
 8  distribution.  Part of our strategy for wanting
 9  to upgrade some of our distribution is to mainly
10  focus on some of these 60 to 80-year-old
11  underground and overhead infrastructure that's
12  more in our central core for the downtown area,
13  in Fairfax, and in the Armourdale area more
14  specifically.
15      But years ago the design was to put in
16  a lot of lead and paper cable.  That requires
17  specialized-type work.  It's the whole
18  infrastructure.  Most engineering standards have
19  moved away from that type of construction, and
20  we've already started replacing a lot of it.
21  Our plan is to continue replacing that.  It will
22  provide a lot more efficiency, reliability to
23  our system.  While we are going through it, we
24  will have the ability to also take a look at a
25  lot of duct bank manholes that are that age,
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 1  too.  A lot of them are starting to deteriorate.
 2      We'll also be doing some overhead
 3  distribution upgrades in that area, too.  The
 4  primary reason is to again mitigate some of the
 5  aging infrastructures and also increase some of
 6  our load capacity.  A lot of the existing wire
 7  that is there now is really undersized based on
 8  what our today's standards are.  So going in and
 9  replacing some poles and putting up a little bit
10  larger wire will certainly help.  Not only
11  provide greater reliability but also add more
12  capacity.  And while we are in there, it would
13  be a good opportunity to take advantage of a lot
14  of vegetation management, trimming trees, and
15  doing some of the necessary work that would
16  eliminate some of the outages down the road.
17      The other thing I talk about with
18  Muncie is also, you know, picking up my focus on
19  how do we improve service to the downtown
20  community.  Muncie is one of two substations
21  that feed power to downtown.  There is some
22  dedicated feeders, meaning that there are
23  feeders that come downtown that really don't
24  have any or hardly -- or very few residential
25  customers attached to them.  Those are some of
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 1  the things that we are taking a look at first.
 2      What I want to pointed out on this map
 3  is where some of the distribution dollars are
 4  going to be spent.  Kind of got a color-coded
 5  chart here from 2010 to 2014 that just shows
 6  here is where we are spending dollars on the
 7  Fairfax project and some of the additional
 8  dollars that we are asking for under this rate
 9  increase will be spent in this area in 2010.  A
10  lot of this work out here is being done by a
11  previous bond request that we got last year.
12  But there is not enough dollars to really
13  complete some of the things that we are wanting
14  to do out there as well as down here, so that is
15  where the new dollars will come in to have a
16  bigger impact in these areas.
17      And then what we're doing is just kind
18  of follow this color code down and, you know, do
19  some rebuilding in this section in 2011, 2012,
20  and then work our way south.  With all this that
21  we have got in here, it's -- we'll make some
22  significant upgrades to some key areas but
23  certainly wouldn't be looking at rebuilding this
24  whole area here, just addressing some of the
25  more pressing needs.
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 1      Some of the spending by area.  I kind
 2  of split the -- our service territory along 635
 3  east and west and along I-70 north and south.
 4  And use it following that same -- that same
 5  quadrant.  The northeast is going to receive
 6  about $40 million worth of -- or that spending.
 7  Most of it would be in the Fairfax and the
 8  downtown area.  We will have some dollars in the
 9  residential area, mostly some of the overhead
10  rebuild.  This would be a lot of underground
11  that's downtown and some overhead in Fairfax.
12      The northwest, like I said earlier,
13  there is some financing already in place to take
14  care of some of those projects, but there's
15  going to be new service coming out of the
16  Wolcott substation.  We are already running new
17  feeders out of the Piper substation now.  And
18  what makes that -- what makes that important to
19  us is that this station that I talked about
20  earlier that is at 94th and Parallel, our plan
21  is to start shifting the residential customers
22  more and more away from that so -- so that that
23  substation can be better suited for a lot of the
24  entertainment and retail that is starting to
25  appear around the Village West area.  It will be
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 1  more and more a dedicated substation for growth
 2  in that area.
 3      The southeast is a lot of the
 4  transmission line upgrades and as well as the
 5  southwest.  It would just be reconducting some
 6  of those transmission lines that are already
 7  there.
 8      With this slide what I want to talk
 9  about is just some of the age of some of the
10  distribution here.  Why upgrading some of this
11  distribution is so important.  This section
12  here, which is east of 635, which I have already
13  talked about, it also has a lot of the lead and
14  paper cable and even some of the old overhead is
15  something that we want to upgrade.  Mainly
16  because a lot of this stuff is between 60 and 80
17  years old.  And if you get down into parts of
18  Fairfax and parts of Armourdale there may be
19  small sections that may even extend beyond that.
20      What we have done over the last 10
21  years is to go in with smaller projects and just
22  kind of make some upgrades, some -- you know,
23  smaller sections that we have rebuilt.  Like I
24  said earlier, we are not going to be able to
25  rebuild all of this but we can certainly go in
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 1  and continue to focus on some of the more
 2  critical areas.  Some of the areas where we have
 3  some of the oldest infrastructures still there
 4  and continue to make upgrades until we can start
 5  making this area, you know, more reliable and
 6  provide the type of quality service that we
 7  would all want to continue to provide.
 8      Here is a map that just kind of shows
 9  how we got to where we are at.  Prior to 1964,
10  BPU served this section right here that is in
11  the yellow (indicating).  Throughout --
12  throughout the years we have continued to buy
13  more and more service territory from Kansas City
14  Power & Light.
15      In 1968, we acquired this service
16  territory in blue (indicating).  And then in
17  '71, we expanded out here (indicating).  '72, we
18  purchased all of this (indicating).  '74, we
19  purchased this section (indicating).  And then,
20  finally, in '82 we came out in this section
21  (indicating).
22      Now what we have done is as we bought
23  more service territory, we went in and upgraded
24  some of the transmission -- the old transmission
25  service there.  We did go in and put in some new
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 1  substations.  We didn't really do a lot of
 2  distribution upgrades.  We kind of left a lot of
 3  those circuits that we bought from Kansas City
 4  Power & Light in place.  But what it has done to
 5  us over the years, and because we haven't had
 6  the budget to completely do some of the things
 7  that we have tried to do in the past, you can
 8  see where our 69 substations began to age more
 9  and more.
10      Muncie substation, I talked about
11  earlier, is right here (indicating).  The
12  substation and the transformer that's there is
13  about 60 years old.  A new transformer has a
14  normal life expectancy of about 30 years.  So
15  this kind of shows you where we're at with the
16  age of these units.  74 percent of our
17  transformers are past 30 years old.  That is why
18  it's critical that BPU does not continue to push
19  this infrastructure further and further out into
20  the future because we're going to get to the
21  point where we can't support it.
22      This is another shot of all of our
23  transformers, all of our substation
24  transformers.  When you mix in the 161
25  transformers in our substations, these are our
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 1  newer units.  You can still see somewhere in the
 2  50 to 60 percent range.  You know, we still have
 3  a lot of transformers that are past 30 years
 4  old.
 5      In our conversion of 69 to 161
 6  conversion, a plan that we started is -- was
 7  creating this down here and is -- and we are
 8  removing this older section up here and this is
 9  what we are planning to do with this cost of
10  service study in our five-year forecast.  To do
11  that it is going to cost, you know, money.  You
12  know, just like everything else prices of
13  material, the prices of professional services
14  have gone up.
15      Don talked about some of the wire
16  transformers earlier in his introduction.  The
17  transformers that we're using is pretty standard
18  in the new substations that we are building now.
19  In 2005, that transformer was about $638,000.
20  In all of our substations, designs can put two
21  transformers in there so we have switching
22  capabilities within a substation.  We'll need to
23  take one transformer out for service and we've
24  got the other one there that's sized properly so
25  it can carry the load -- the majority of the
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 1  load of the substation.
 2      Since 2005, this transformer has gone
 3  from $638,000 to about 1.4 to 1.5 million
 4  dollars.  So, you know, as we go through and
 5  build new substations those projects are
 6  becoming more and more expensive to build.  So
 7  the distribution transformers, these are
 8  transformers that you see on the poles.  These
 9  are transformers you see right outside of a
10  business.  The lower voltage transformers.
11      There is 2007 prices -- price increases
12  since 2007 and these are transformers that we
13  commonly use every year for new construction,
14  storm restoration.  We go through probably 250
15  or so distribution transformers a year.
16      But the price increases range from
17  about 45 percent up to well over a hundred
18  percent in this short span, which is shorter
19  than what I talked about up here.  So this kind
20  of shows where the price of materials are going
21  up.
22      Here is just a few more pieces of
23  commonly used stock items.  Wooden poles, 35 and
24  45 foot poles that will increase 35 and 80
25  percent.  Wire for dis -- for, you know, the
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 1  rebuilding of the distribution circuits that I
 2  talked about overhead.  Underground wire you are
 3  looking at 200, 300, 363 percent price
 4  increases.  So these are serious increases in
 5  price that just gives you an idea of we need to
 6  finance these projects and these projects are
 7  becoming more and more expensive when we do
 8  build budgets to help support them.
 9      Darrell talked about earlier some of
10  the cuts that the production side has made, and,
11  you know, Don talked about some of the cuts
12  earlier, too, that the entire utility has made.
13  Just a snapshot of some of the things we have
14  done is reduce staffing.  We have certainly
15  delayed and deferred a lot of improvements over
16  the years that, you know, has been needed.  We
17  have pushed out a lot of upgrades in our
18  telecommunications, a lot of our IT systems.  We
19  made -- we made some investments in some areas
20  but some areas we really haven't touched in a
21  while and there are some things that we still
22  need to do there.
23      Vehicles and work equipment.  We
24  purchase all the work equipment and vehicles for
25  the utility and maintain them.  And it has been
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 1  about four years since we have bought any cars
 2  or work equipment other than maybe one or two.
 3  So we are starting to fall behind there and we
 4  are starting to see some of these units drive up
 5  our maintenance costs higher and higher.  And
 6  some of them are either -- even a piece of
 7  equipment that we have taken out of service so
 8  it is not available when we need it.  We are
 9  going to have to address this -- the situation,
10  especially when we are building some of these
11  other projects because these are the tools that
12  we use to not only maintain but also to build
13  the new projects that we are proposing.
14      Tree trimming has taken a big hit.  The
15  past budgets, we have had to cut our trimming
16  budget by about a fifth.  We also were driven by
17  inert to do a lot of tree trimming on our
18  transmission lines because we really didn't have
19  the budget to support that.  We just shifted
20  money from our distribution work over to our
21  transmission type of work.  The last two summers
22  have been, you know, cooler than normal.  We
23  have had storms that extend into the summertime.
24  So not maintaining those trees have created a
25  lot of outages and our community has suffered
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 1  through repeat outages.  We are hoping to build
 2  that back -- that tree trimming budget back up
 3  and get back on schedule.
 4      We have got about 34 locations which
 5  are substations and other facilities under
 6  electric operations.  And like Darrell talked
 7  about earlier, we have got roofing and HVAC
 8  systems, plumbing, things that we continue to
 9  push further and further out because we just
10  didn't have the dollars to help support it.
11      Parking surfaces, our grass cutting.
12  It is not just these locations but all of our
13  power plants, all of our water facilities, that
14  number goes quite a bit up when you look at all
15  the grass cutting.  Even the vacant lots that
16  BPU used to have equipment on them.  But, you
17  know, it's a vacant lot now and we still have to
18  maintain those properties.  And a few years ago
19  because of budget constraints we cut our grass
20  cutting budget by about 25 percent and we
21  haven't recovered from that yet.
22      While we were going through some of the
23  cuts, we have also made significant improvements
24  to our system.  SCADA, which is the supervisory
25  control system, that goes out and looks at all
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 1  of our substations, our energy control center,
 2  and can monitor all of our substations, the
 3  breakers, the transformers and control them.  We
 4  are starting to put in newer and better controls
 5  to make sure that the system control is what it
 6  needs to be not only today but into the future.
 7      We are also doing some major control
 8  work in our pump stations, too, to go along with
 9  that.
10      We purchased a geographic information
11  system which is basically a mapping system.  We
12  have taken a lot of paper maps and put them into
13  an asset database, and we are also extending
14  that out to our designers.  What that means is
15  we have a lot of -- a lot of our assets are on
16  desktops now.  We are taking old drawings out of
17  file cabinets, putting them into an electronic
18  database.  They are able to make better
19  decisions, know what is out in the system.  When
20  we make modifications we can make changes to our
21  mapping system, and then that information is
22  useful to feed into our new outage management
23  system.  That system went on line last year and
24  is a major upgrade than what we had in place
25  before.
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 1      What came with that is a new
 2  interactive voice response system.  So when you
 3  call into the system now there's a little bit
 4  different message.  What people don't see behind
 5  the scenes is we've cut our restoration efforts
 6  down significantly because the system takes the
 7  calls, routes them to and predicts where problem
 8  areas are and they show up on a map, this being
 9  created here and created within this product.
10  All of our dispatchers, our crews, know right
11  away where our outages are at so we can get our
12  crews out there a lot quicker.  Where, you know,
13  in the old days if we had 5,000 people out, then
14  there was 5,000 individual work tickets created.
15  And we had to just kind of sit down and group
16  tickets together and kind of figure out what is
17  going on.  The system does that automatically
18  for 5,000 outages.  For 5,000 customers out, may
19  only be 20 outages, 20 problems that create that
20  many outages.  We can go out now and work 20
21  problems and get people back on.
22      Last month we had a storm where we had
23  about 10,700 people out and it took us about a
24  day and a half to go through that restoration
25  process and get everybody back on.  I can't
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 1  remember any other time where we have made that
 2  much progress in that short period of time.
 3      We have got an asset management system
 4  for substation maintenance and pump station
 5  maintenance that we are continuing to improve.
 6  Our plan is to roll this into -- where we're
 7  pushing those work tickets out into the field.
 8  Some of our troubleshooters already have laptops
 9  so we are trying to create communications to
10  push those work orders out and further increase
11  efficiency.
12      We have invested into a PILOT AMI
13  system.  We have about 4,000 electric meters and
14  about 1500 water meters that are the automated
15  meter readers -- meters that are being read
16  remotely.  That project is a project that we
17  want to extend and expand.
18      We applied for a smart grid grant from
19  the DOE last year, just like almost every
20  utility in the country.  We were not successful
21  in getting the grant dollars but BPU has already
22  had this project in its strategy.  And what we
23  would like to do is build that system out in
24  three years for the electric side of this, about
25  a $13 million project.  What it will do for us
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 1  is create a lot of efficiency and reduce a lot
 2  of operating costs.
 3      Today we send a lot of vehicles back
 4  and forth to customers' houses for a number of
 5  reasons, to collect reads, to do -- collect
 6  rereads, and turn on and turn off for diversion.
 7  We can automate a lot of those work processes
 8  within this system.  We can also collect hourly
 9  reads.  What that will become is useful
10  information to all of our customers and also
11  enable our customers to be able to take that
12  information and make better energy -- better
13  choices with how they use energy.
14      And there are some of our industrial
15  customers that are already receiving hourly
16  reads and they are making good business
17  decisions based on having that data.  We can
18  build up a load profile and that is taking a
19  monthly or an hourly profile of what the
20  customer's usage patterns are, and, there again,
21  giving that back to the customer, whether it is
22  by website or whether it is through one of these
23  in-home displays or home area network systems.
24      Darrell talked about demand side
25  management.  Another thing that goes with that
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 1  is demand response.  The AMI system basically
 2  creates a communication system to and from the
 3  utility, to the customer's house and back.  One
 4  thing that a lot of utilities are doing is
 5  putting in programable thermostats.  But this
 6  will provide the communications network that
 7  will allow the utility to enter into contracts
 8  and to control these thermostats to help reduce
 9  peak loading especially in the summertime.
10      The thing that we have been watching
11  also is General Motors and several foreign
12  carmakers have electric vehicles that they're
13  proposing to roll out this year.  Our
14  distribution system is really not -- we don't
15  have enough controls.  We don't -- can't monitor
16  it.  There is some sizing limits into -- in some
17  of them.  So depending on where the charging
18  stations show up, building this network and also
19  doing some distribution upgrade is really going
20  to be required.  So that when these charging
21  stations start showing up all across our service
22  territory, we can start providing that type of
23  service and having systems that support, you
24  know, the new Chevy Volt that I believe is
25  scheduled to start this year.


Page 79


 1      This is our service centers.
 2  Maintenance -- our show-up area for most of our
 3  field crews to go out and -- these are the
 4  linemen, these are the other guys that go out
 5  and maintain our systems.  Some of the projects
 6  that we've pushed out or delayed are on some of
 7  the roofs and the HVACs are at this location.
 8  It's also at one of the 29 substations that are
 9  around.
10      We have had some of this roof replaced
11  through the main center.  Here is our inside
12  warehouse.  We have got sections of roof here,
13  we have got canopies that are rusted.  And we
14  have got water that is coming inside the
15  storeroom.  We have had to shift inventory
16  around just to keep it from getting damaged.
17  There is a project in our five-year forecast is
18  to complete this.  This has been -- the last
19  time we addressed it was about three years ago.
20  We was delaying the final replacement for the
21  last three years so we have elected to try to
22  address this.
23      And then, finally, my last slide is --
24  this is what you typically see every day, you
25  know, despite having -- not having enough cash
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 1  to address a lot of the -- and make a lot of the
 2  improvements that we want.  We still have people
 3  out providing services, working long hours doing
 4  the best we can to provide quality service to
 5  all of our customers.  These guys work through a
 6  lot of adverse weather conditions and they will
 7  continue to do that, but, you know, it is
 8  important that we start replacing and repairing
 9  more and more of this infrastructure and that
10  will only benefit the customers that we all
11  serve.
12      I would like to now introduce Jim Epp,
13  manager of water.
14      MR. EPP: Thank you, Bill, and
15  good evening.  My name is Jim Epp, I'm the
16  manager of water operations.
17      I want to start my presentation by
18  briefly touching on the past 10 years.  The
19  reason I want to do this is this is my
20  opportunity to say thank you to the rate payer,
21  to the community for the support you have shown
22  for our water system.  We couldn't have done it
23  without you.  We, the rate payer, the staff and
24  the board has supported and completed
25  significant improvements to the community water


Min-U-Script® Metropolitan Court Reporters, Inc.    913-317-8800
www. MetropolitanReporters.com


(20) Page 77 - Page 80







 


 
BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES HEARING May 3, 2010


Page 81


 1  supply and treatment transmission and storage
 2  systems.  These improvements will benefit our
 3  community for the next 50 years.
 4      This is where we were in 1993.
 5  Quindaro water treatment plant, it was anywhere
 6  from 50 to 80 years old.  It was very spread
 7  out.  It was expensive to operate.  Very
 8  expensive to maintain.  Labor intensive.  We had
 9  three operators per shift and it is in the
10  floodplain.  Right here it is protected by a
11  flood wall.  Still is protected by that same
12  flood wall.
13      In the early 1990s we started planning
14  for what to do with this treatment plant,
15  whether to stay there for the long run or to
16  build a new plant.
17      Then the flood in 1993 hit.  This is
18  that same 14-foot high flood wall.  At this
19  point it was within a couple feet of going over
20  the top of it.
21      This is the backside of that wall.  The
22  water level about right here (indicating).  And
23  the entire treatment plant area was literally a
24  war zone.  We survived the flood, we stayed on
25  line, and we suffered significant damage to our
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 1  filter building.  At this point in time through
 2  our rate payer support the decision was made to
 3  move to a different site and build a new
 4  treatment plant.
 5      And this is where we are today.  We are
 6  at our new Nearman water treatment plant.  It's
 7  above the 500-year floodplain on a bluff.
 8  Everything is housed in one building.  The
 9  laboratory, the filters, chemical feed
10  equipment, high service pump station, reservoir,
11  and then we have our basins out back.  This is a
12  highly efficient plant.  It can operate with one
13  person per shift on the second or third shifts.
14  And it is an award winning plant.  It was
15  awarded the -- from the American Water Works
16  Association and Environmental Protection Agency
17  the director's award for the partnership for
18  safe drinking water.
19      It features two horizontal collector
20  wells.  They are located on the banks of the
21  Missouri River.  I think this is one of our most
22  important community assets.  Each well can
23  produce 40 million gallons per day.  They are
24  the largest in the country.  They are the
25  largest because of the high productive aquifer
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 1  that lies below the Missouri River.
 2      This is a picture of that same
 3  collector well during a flood event.  This is
 4  another advantage of a collector well.  We have
 5  overhead power.  It can operate during a flood.
 6  It continues to draw water below the -- beneath
 7  the Missouri River during a drought condition.
 8  If there was a spill event on the river, it
 9  would probably flow right on by.  It also helps
10  us to protect against Missouri River
11  degradation.
12      This is our second collector well.  It
13  was completed about 2003.
14      And a little more explanation on how a
15  collector well works.  This is what you saw in
16  the picture.  This is what is below ground.  It
17  goes down 100 feet to almost bedrock.  This is
18  the aquifer and these radials go out into the
19  aquifer, collect the water into the main shaft,
20  and then it is pumped out through these pumps to
21  our water treatment plant.  And the Missouri
22  River is right here (indicating).  The water
23  flows down into the aquifer from the Missouri
24  River so it continues to be recharged.  Again,
25  this is one of the community's most important
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 1  assets.
 2      Also, in approximately 2003 -- no, 2006
 3  we completed the Robert L. Milan Pump station.
 4  It is a 30-million gallon per day station with a
 5  6-million gallon reservoir.  This helps us
 6  support growth to the west and provide storage
 7  for the entire system.
 8      This is 51st and Gibbs.  Recently
 9  completed 2-million gallon elevated tank.  Helps
10  stabilize the pressure in this system, reduce
11  main breaks and provide fire protection.
12      So where we are today.  Don has already
13  gone through this slide.  Our sales are down
14  approximately 18 percent from 2006.  Why are
15  sales down?  Economy, weather, flat to declining
16  population, and conservation.  Conservation has
17  been going on in the water industry for several
18  years now.
19      Where are we at with our BPU financial
20  policy?  Our goal is to have 1.6 times debt
21  service coverage, 60 days operating cash.  We
22  were placed on a credit watch by our credit
23  rating agencies.  If we don't shore up our
24  credit rating, this would lead into lower credit
25  ratings which means higher borrowing costs.
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 1      What have we done to cut our budget?
 2  We reduced operation and maintenance by 8
 3  percent.  We are holding 9 percent of our staff
 4  positions open.  Froze salaries and delayed
 5  capital improvement projects on aging
 6  infrastructure.
 7      Water division staffing.  Prior to
 8  opening the Nearman water treatment plant in
 9  2000, we had 118 authorized positions.  Today we
10  have 108, and currently we have 99 of them
11  filled.
12      Going forward.  We need to replace
13  aging infrastructure.  Our water system needs
14  are 60 million in capital improvements to
15  replace outdated control systems, replace aging
16  water distribution infrastructure, improve our
17  storage at the Nearman water treatment plant,
18  and implement automated meter reading which
19  Bill's already discussed.
20      Aging infrastructure.  We need to
21  increase our funding program to replace mains
22  that are 50 to 100 years old.  Maintain our
23  programs to replace old valves, hydrants and
24  service lines.  Replace meters and implement
25  automated meter reading.  Replace our outdated
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 1  control systems and our aging fleet.  We have
 2  delayed fleet replacement for four years now.
 3      This is what happens with aging water
 4  mains.  You have all probably seen one.  They
 5  are very expensive to repair.  We spend $500,000
 6  alone just in pavement repair for one of these
 7  main breaks and well over a million total a year
 8  just from repairing our main breaks.
 9      We average 600 per year.  80 percent of
10  our main leaks are on 4-inch and smaller mains
11  that are 50 to 100 years old.  We have 250 miles
12  of these mains.  Total cost to replace them
13  would be 66 million.  This is an expensive
14  endeavor.  We can't do it all at once.  We're
15  not proposing to spend all 66 million, but we
16  are proposing to start a 10-year program at 1.5
17  million per year to replace 35 miles of the most
18  deteriorated mains.  Currently we only budget
19  $400,000 per year.
20      This is what an old 2-inch main looks
21  like.  This is probably 50 years plus.  And it
22  is very deteriorated.  And these are the types
23  of mains that break and we are in need of
24  repairing.
25      A lot of these mains are east of 635.
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 1  This is 635 right here (indicating).  It is the
 2  older part of our system.  Here is the Kansas
 3  River.  A lot of these mains are located in the
 4  northeast and eastern parts of the county.
 5      Total cap improvements by area, we are
 6  proposing 60 million.  55 percent of that 60
 7  million are for systemwide improvements.
 8  Improvements that benefit everyone.  35 percent
 9  are for the eastern part of the county and 10
10  percent for the western.
11      Eastern water projects include Unified
12  Government street projects, mill and overlay.
13  When the city goes out and mill and overlay the
14  street, we try to get out ahead of them to
15  repair anything we need to repair.  So once it
16  is done we're not in there tearing up the street
17  when there is a main break.  So we do the best
18  job we can to coordinate with the city.
19      I mentioned our main leak replacement
20  program.  Distribution system improvements.
21  Service repair and replacement.  Fire hydrant
22  and valve replacement.  Total $21 million.
23      And, finally, the purpose for the water
24  rate increase.  Very similar to electric,
25  maintain our credit rating, to reduce costs in
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 1  borrowing for capital improvements, improve our
 2  debt service coverage to 1.4, and operating cash
 3  to 45 days.  And support capital improvements
 4  and replace our aging water distribution and
 5  control systems.
 6      And to conclude for the entire staff,
 7  reason for rate increase to improve our
 8  liquidity and debt coverage.  Support needed
 9  capital projects and upgrades to aging
10  infrastructure.  Our BPU rates have been
11  constant since 2007 and below the national
12  average and lower than most surrounding
13  utilities.
14      And now I would like to bring back
15  Mr. David Mehlhaff.
16      MR. MEHLHAFF: Thank you, Jim.
17      A couple of things.  First of all,
18  thank you for your patience.  It has been a long
19  night I know.  We have a lot to go through and
20  this is just part of the public hearing process.
21  We have a lot of details to go through, so thank
22  you for your patience.
23      What we want to do right now is we want
24  to be able to take your questions that you
25  filled out on the card.  After we do that, then
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 1  there will be time for public comments after
 2  that from those of you that have signed in on
 3  this sheet.  If you haven't signed in yet,
 4  please do so if you want to make some public
 5  comments.  The questions we have, we will answer
 6  those.
 7      I want to remind you the rate hearing
 8  will take place again tomorrow morning at 9:00
 9  a.m., same room, same place.  What we will do
10  also after that we will have a more formalized
11  detailed presentation by our partners of Black &
12  Veatch, and then we will go -- continue in some
13  of the technical portion of the rate hearing
14  process.
15      So we are going to take a very short,
16  and I mean short, because it is a long night,
17  five-minute break.  And I need the management
18  staff to stay up here because I have a lot of
19  questions I need to distribute to you that --
20  which ones are most appropriate to answer some
21  of these fine folks' questions that we have.  So
22  a short five-minute break and we will right back
23  here at 9:05.  Thank you.
24      THE HEARING OFFICER: Go ahead.
25      MR. MEHLHAFF: Thank you, Judge.
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 1      My name is David Mehlhaff, public
 2  affairs office at BPU.  I'm going to try to
 3  answer quite a few of these questions.
 4  Conferred with the management team and want to
 5  thank all of those who have submitted your
 6  questions and then we will begin the -- we will
 7  take questions -- comments from the audience,
 8  those that filled out the card.
 9      "Why don't you raise the PILOT fee
10  instead of a rate increase?"
11      The PILOT fee, whatever happens with
12  that we have nothing to do with.  That is a
13  decision made by the Unified Government, by
14  their commissioners, and so that is a question
15  that only they can answer.  That is a decision
16  whether that goes up and down that is entirely
17  up to them.  The PILOT fee is just on a BPU
18  bill.  We collect it.  It is a pass-through and
19  that is up to the Unified Government.  Thank
20  you, though.
21      "How many lobbyists are currently
22  employed by BPU in Washington, D.C. and Topeka?"
23      We really only have one lobbyist and he
24  is kind of a part-time lobbyist and that is Joe
25  Dick.  Right there is Joe.  Raise your hand,
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 1  Joe.  He also does a lot of other things,
 2  community relations and dealing with the youth
 3  program and so forth.  Spends quite a bit of
 4  time in Topeka when the legislature is in
 5  session.  We do periodically when we need to
 6  will partner up with a lobbyist firm in
 7  Washington to try and go after some -- we try
 8  hard to go after some stimulus funds.  We were
 9  not successful in the first round.  We did get a
10  STAG Grant of $500,000 that went towards water
11  main replacement.  We are aggressively pursuing
12  other STAG grants right now at this time.
13      So, "When will BPU ask for another
14  increase in salaries?  Will that come out of
15  this increase?"
16      At this time all salaries are frozen
17  and will remain so until we feel this utility is
18  in a lot better position.  So right now there is
19  not even any discussion of that at this current
20  time.  That is not an option at this moment.
21      Joe, could you come answer this
22  question.  You had a question on lobbyist work
23  done out there in the western part of the state.
24  Identify yourself please and your title.
25      MR. DICK: Joe Dick, government
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 1  affairs officer, 540 Minnesota Avenue and
 2  Topeka, Kansas.
 3      The question is:  "In the past BPU
 4  lobbyists have rallied against the coal plant
 5  out west in the state.  Has this changed?"
 6      It never existed.  We were in a
 7  monetary position for three years on that
 8  particular coal-fired plant.  In fact, two years
 9  ago we were offered 25 megawatts of power.  We
10  were given the first right of refusal of 25
11  megawatts with that power plant if it became --
12  if it went into existence.  On that particular
13  issue it was vetoed by the governor.  We refused
14  the 25 megawatts only because there wasn't a
15  price, there wasn't a date, there wasn't a time,
16  there wasn't a place.  It was all preliminary
17  action taken by the Sunflower organization.
18      So that is it.
19      MR. MEHLHAFF: Thank you, Joe.
20      "Does the timing of the rate increase
21  have anything to do with the UG being broke?"
22      No, okay.  And I think you saw by our
23  financial situation why we are going after the
24  proposed rate increase right now.
25      We had a question here that Blake I
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 1  think is more of a technical question in nature.
 2  So identify yourself and repeat the question.
 3      MR. ELLIOTT: Again, Blake
 4  Elliott, electric supply planning, 540 Minnesota
 5  Avenue, Kansas City Board of Public Utilities.
 6      The question is:  If you raise rates,
 7  what will happen to the cost of the energy fee?
 8  And what is the cost of the energy fee?"
 9      Again, the energy rate component which
10  is what I perceive you're asking in this
11  question is totally independent of everything
12  that we're asking for rate increases today.  The
13  rate increases today will just affect base
14  rates.  The energy rate component is just to
15  recover costs when we expense fuel, when we buy
16  and burn coal, when we burn natural gas, when we
17  buy electricity from the wholesale market.  We
18  collect those costs on a monthly basis.  We
19  collect all those costs.  We collect how many
20  retail sales we made during that particular
21  month.  And there is a very detailed calculation
22  that happens in the forecasting and in the
23  reconciliation of that amount.  So this is --
24  that fee is totally separate from the rate
25  hearings that we are -- for the base rates that
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 1  we are talking about today.  Again, that is
 2  totally separate.
 3      MR. MEHLHAFF: Thank you, Blake.
 4      "Have you considered freezing raises?"
 5      Yes, raises are frozen.
 6      Furloughs.  At this time, no, we are
 7  down about as low as we can get from a staffing
 8  level.  We are down about 80 positions right now
 9  that have already been approved in the budget.
10  If we cut much -- anymore we will not be able to
11  service our community from an electric and water
12  standpoint.
13      "Have we considered changing health
14  care coverage for BPU employees?"
15      At this time we are in very sensitive
16  union talks, at the very front end of that, and
17  that will probably be part of that but it's too
18  early to tell.  Thank you.
19      "What will the rate increase go for?"
20      I think we shared that with you this
21  evening in very much detail.  And, also, it is
22  in those leave-behind pieces.  If you need more
23  of those to take to your friends and neighbors,
24  by all means take them with you.  And also the
25  frequently asked questions, if we need more, I
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 1  have plenty.
 2      I have a question, Darrell, on coal.
 3  Why don't you answer that and give your name and
 4  title again.
 5      MR. DORSEY: Sure.  Darrell
 6  Dorsey, manager of electric production and
 7  supply.
 8      Question was:  "How much are you paying
 9  for coal and how many day supply do you
10  currently have?"
11      The short answer would be most of our
12  coal falls delivered price around 25 to 30
13  dollars a ton.  The reason I say it's a short
14  answer is we have multiple contracts for the
15  different plants from different mines.  And
16  those contracts go over different time periods
17  so there's a wide range within that price range
18  that coal falls -- pricing falls into.
19      As far as our day supply, I don't have
20  that figure with me.  I think at Quindaro the
21  last report I saw we have around about a 30 to
22  40-day supply.  Quindaro, we are a little more
23  comfortable with a smaller supply.  For one
24  thing it is a smaller coal yard, we can't handle
25  as much coal, but it also can burn natural gas
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 1  so in a contingency situation we have back-up
 2  fuel.
 3      Nearman has probably 80 to 90 days of
 4  coal on the ground right now.  That is about --
 5  I want to say we have got about 250,000 tons
 6  give or take.  Again, I don't have the exact
 7  figures with me.  But Nearman does not have a
 8  back-up fuel.  It can only run on coal.  So we
 9  try to maintain the stronger coal pile.  We have
10  been burning down that coal pile over the last
11  few years.  We'll bring it down a little further
12  yet this year with our current plans.
13      MR. MEHLHAFF: Thank you,
14  Darrell.
15      "How many people in Kansas City,
16  Kansas, take or read the Kansas Star or
17  Wyandotte West?"
18      I really don't know.  But "Why don't
19  you mail this info," and I think what they maybe
20  mean as far as the rate hearing information in
21  the bills.  That is something we did not do.
22  Did not choose to do merely from an expense
23  standpoint, but let me tell you what we did do.
24      What we have to do legally is post the
25  meeting notice and the publication of record,
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 1  which in this area is the Echo.  We did that.
 2  We also purchased an ad space in the Kansas City
 3  Star.  We also sent out a news release that was
 4  carried by all four television stations in this
 5  market.  And also two radio stations in the
 6  market, I did interviews with them.  The Unified
 7  Government ran it on their website and several
 8  times on their electronic newsletter, reran it
 9  on our website.  The KC Kansan, Kansas City
10  Kansan, ran it on their website.
11      And so we did a lot more than what we
12  were required to do to get the word out as best
13  as we can and that is what we did there.  The
14  Kansas City, Kansan and the website, it is on
15  line.  All right.
16      Jim Epp, there was one here I think
17  that was multiple questions.  So why don't you
18  go through the questions and identify yourself,
19  please.
20      MR. EPP: Jim Epp, manager of
21  water operations.
22      Three questions, multi parts.  "Using
23  the average monthly water bill supplied by BPU
24  as a base, if BPU's rates are already 21 percent
25  higher than WaterOne's, why do we need even
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 1  larger increases over the next few years?"
 2      Our system is older than WaterOne's.
 3  Our infrastructure is 50 to 100 years old.  We
 4  have had no increase -- net increase in our
 5  population.  We have had to completely replace
 6  our water treatment facility, new plant, new
 7  supply, new transmission coming out of the
 8  plant.
 9      Again, I want to thank the rate payers
10  for the support.  We have something that we can
11  be very proud of and will last for 50 years into
12  the future.  But we have had to face the
13  replacement of aging infrastructure much sooner
14  than WaterOne has.
15      Plus WaterOne has experienced a net
16  increase in population.  They have more
17  customers to help pay for their infrastructure
18  needs and we are much older than they are.  So I
19  hope that is an adequate answer to that
20  question.
21      Two, "Are the higher rates to pay for
22  debt services related to new facilities needed
23  because of growth?"
24      Again, we have got no net increase in
25  our population.  We do have a shifting from east
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 1  to west.  Right now I feel like we are in very
 2  good shape with our infrastructure to support
 3  anything that is going to happen out west.  When
 4  a new development goes in out west, the
 5  developer pays for that main.  BPU does not pay
 6  for that, the developer pays for that.
 7      Also -- oh, excuse me.  As far as new
 8  facilities in the future, we have -- the
 9  majority of our infrastructure needs are for
10  replacement.  We do have one new 4-million
11  gallon reservoir we are requesting at the
12  Nearman water treatment plant.  And that is
13  because we are trying to get our total storage
14  up to standard with our treatment plant
15  capacity.  It is not because of any new growth.
16  We are not projecting any new growth in our --
17  as far as population, net population growth, in
18  our cost of service study.  Very little.  But it
19  is to bring our storage up to 10 percent total
20  of our treatment capacity.  This will allow us
21  to do some more demand side management with our
22  pumping, similar to what WaterOne does.  Also
23  provides storage for our cooling tower and
24  storage for black star condition if we should
25  ever experience that down at Nearman.
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 1      Third.  "Are the rates higher because
 2  growth isn't paying its fair share?  Is growth
 3  paying for growth?"
 4      Again, new developments, the mains are
 5  paid for by the developers.  We do have a system
 6  development fee.  It's not quite as high as
 7  WaterOne but it's fairly significant for new
 8  meters.
 9      Hopefully that answered your question.
10  Okay, thank you, sir.  Very good questions.
11      MR. MEHLHAFF: Thank you, Jim.
12      Couple more questions left here.  "How
13  much did the Black & Veatch study cost?  Who
14  paid for the cost?"
15      It came out of our operating budget.
16  We are required to do a cost of service study
17  every three years.  We have not done one since
18  2003.  What it did cost, I'll be honest, it cost
19  $270,000 over a two-year period.  That is what
20  it cost.
21      "Is it true that people in the service
22  department make $65,000 a year?"
23      Yes.  We have linemen who have
24  extremely dangerous jobs.  They are up there in
25  extreme conditions.  And engineers who have
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 1  years and years of experience, that is what they
 2  make.
 3      "How can the board make a decision when
 4  they do not attend the meetings?"
 5      The board will make the decision
 6  because they will be getting all the transcript,
 7  all the documents.  They are in the loop
 8  continually.  They get feedback.  They have gone
 9  to some of the community forums.  They get
10  feedback on their own in talking to people in
11  the community.  They are not allowed to speak
12  out on the issue.  They need to gather
13  information.  Once they gather information, then
14  they will make their decision on the rate issue.
15  But they are well informed.  This is an active
16  board and they are talking to people all the
17  time.  Staff, they have sat in, reviewed the
18  cost of service study.  So they are in the loop
19  and that is what we have had.
20      We have four of our board members here
21  tonight and I know we will have more tomorrow.
22  We had five tonight total and they will also be
23  getting this transcript and a lot of other
24  information.  They -- trust me, this board won't
25  make a decision until they're really well


Page 102


 1  informed because they ask a lot of great
 2  questions all the time.
 3      "How much will this windfall of the
 4  windfall will UG see from this rate increase?"
 5      I think probably somebody is referring
 6  to the PILOT.  And this is only an estimate.  In
 7  2010, it would be about $550,000 in electric,
 8  170,000 in water.  And that would be what we
 9  estimate at this time.
10      UNKNOWN SPEAKER: In addition to?
11      UNKNOWN SPEAKER: Yes.
12      MR. MEHLHAFF: That is with the
13  increase.
14      Thank you for everyone submitting
15  questions.  Appreciate it.  We did our best to
16  answer them as honestly as we can.  And I'm
17  always available if you have further questions.
18  Like Jim said at the end, contact me any time.
19  I will do my best to get you the answers or get
20  you to people who do.
21      You're Honor, this concludes our
22  portion.  I'll turn it over to you.
23      THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you
24  very much.
25      Ladies and gentlemen, this portion of
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 1  the hearing is for public comments or statements
 2  other than those that have submitted written
 3  questions.  The individuals who have signed up
 4  on the sign-up sheet will be called in the order
 5  that they have entered their names on the
 6  sign-up sheet.  I ask you as I call your name,
 7  please restate your name and address, and then
 8  you can make your statement or comment.  And go
 9  to the podium, please, so that everybody can
10  hear you.
11      The first individual on the sign-up
12  sheet is Bob Sixta.  Mr. Sixta, will you go to
13  the podium, please.  And tell us your full name
14  and address.
15      MR. SIXTA: My name is Robert Lee
16  Sixta.  That is S, as in Sam, I-X-T-A.  I live
17  at 405 North 17th Street in KCK.  My question
18  has already been submitted in a written one.  It
19  has already been answered.  Thank you.
20      THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you,
21  sir.
22      THE WITNESS: The next individual
23  on the sign-up sheet is Donald Turner.  And,
24  Mr. Turner, would you go to the podium.  State
25  your -- restate your name and address, please.
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 1      MR. TURNER: Donald Turner, and I
 2  live at 4110 North 60th Street.  No. 1, I can't
 3  get a straight answer when I call down there.  I
 4  got two BPU bills because I have two light
 5  meters at my house.  One says that -- they're
 6  both the same size.  One answer got, oh, you're
 7  commercial.  I'm not commercial.
 8      THE HEARING OFFICER: Tell you
 9  what, Mr. Turner, this is -- I don't think this
10  is the forum to address your billing issues that
11  you have.  I know they're very important to you,
12  but --
13      MR. TURNER: Yes, they are.
14      THE HEARING OFFICER: -- this
15  proceeding is -- concerns the proposed BPU rate
16  increase.  And I think that there are some
17  customer service individuals here that perhaps
18  could help you at the end of this hearing, and
19  that is Johnetta Hinson and Nan Wolfe.  Could
20  you stand up, please, Ms. Wolfe and Ms. Hinson.
21  And maybe you could talk -- Mr. Turner, maybe
22  you could talk to them when we are finished
23  here.
24      MR. TURNER: Okay.  I have got a
25  statement to make.
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 1      THE HEARING OFFICER: All right.
 2      MR. TURNER: There -- don't
 3  forget, there are a lot of homes being repo'd or
 4  closed out that was customers.  They're not now.
 5  And a senior citizen here cannot afford anymore
 6  thing added on to them.  They have a hard time
 7  making the bill at this point what it is.  A gas
 8  serviceman was out to my house, one of my
 9  houses.  I told him to shut the gas off.  He
10  said, well, I got to be moving along.  I got
11  four houses here that I have got to shut off the
12  gas because they haven't paid their bill.  That
13  is just one time.
14      So you ought to stop to think about the
15  senior citizen.  It is hurting them.  I'm -- the
16  only thing that I can depend on is my monthly
17  retirement check and my wife's.  We didn't get
18  any COLA this year, Social Security or civil
19  service.  But you heist up -- the sales tax
20  increase was voted in the other day.  So I think
21  that that ought to be taken into consideration
22  for senior citizens.  There are several senior
23  citizens in here, and I have been a senior
24  citizen for several years.
25      THE HEARING OFFICER: Not that
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 1  long.
 2      MR. TURNER: What was that
 3  comment?
 4      THE HEARING OFFICER: I said not
 5  that long, Mr. Turner.
 6      MR. TURNER: You probably
 7  wouldn't believe me.  I remember -- I remember
 8  the depression back in the 30s.  In fact, I got
 9  out and hoed the corn for a dollar a day.  I
10  very well remember that.  I worked horses and
11  mules, so you can draw from that.
12      But that is what I'm saying, it is
13  hurtful.  It is hurting us senior citizens by no
14  means.  That is the reason some of us are
15  already getting their gas cut off and I don't
16  know how many for power -- or electricity.
17      So, as I said, I got two meters at my
18  house that I would like to get a straight
19  accurate answer on it.  There.
20      THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you,
21  Mr. Turner.
22      MR. TURNER: Okay.
23      THE HEARING OFFICER: The next
24  individual on the sign-up sheet is Robert
25  Timmons.  Mr. Timmons, would you come up,
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 1  please, to the podium and restate your name and
 2  address.
 3      MR. TIMMONS: I'm Robert Timmons.
 4  401 Pleasanton Road with Central Solutions in
 5  the Fairfax district.
 6      This rate increase is going to be very
 7  burdensome on our business.  We are a
 8  manufacturing facility.  We use lots of your
 9  electricity and lots of your water.  As far as
10  your aging infrastructure goes, poor management
11  shouldn't be put onto your customers.
12  Infrastructure in my building has to be planned
13  for and paid for.  I can't go for that 23 to a
14  35 percent increase on our product because we
15  need to replace a fire line or we need to
16  install mandatory backflow preventers on fire
17  lines.  I don't think that it is thought through
18  very well.  And I think if you're going to do a
19  23 to 35 percent increase, not including the
20  surcharges, I think it should have been spread
21  out over a longer period of time.  Four years is
22  just too quick for that big of an increase.
23      Thank you.
24      THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you,
25  sir.
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 1      The next individual on the sign-up
 2  sheet is Michael Buhr, B-U-H-R.  Mr. Buhr.
 3      MR. BAHR: B-A-H-R, it's Bahr.
 4      THE HEARING OFFICER: Bahr.
 5  Sorry Mr. Bahr.
 6      MR. BAHR: My name is Michael
 7  Bahr.  I live at 1416 Tauromee.  I've lived
 8  there for 35 years.
 9      I have a little bit to say about this
10  increase.  This isn't the right time for BPU to
11  raise any rates.  Information obtained from the
12  public library by calling the reference desk
13  about unemployment in Wyandotte County.  From
14  the United States Bureau of Statistics, the
15  unemployment rate in March 2010 in Wyandotte
16  County is 10.6 percent.  That means there is
17  over one out of ten out of work in Wyandotte
18  county.
19      City employees have to take one day off
20  each month.  Some state courts have had rooms,
21  courtrooms close one day a week for three weeks
22  in a row.  The growth of Kansas City, Kansas, at
23  the Legends has helped me until January of 2009.
24  I work construction.  I have been a
25  superintendent for one of the major construction


Min-U-Script® Metropolitan Court Reporters, Inc.    913-317-8800
www. MetropolitanReporters.com


(27) Page 105 - Page 108







 


 
BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES HEARING May 3, 2010


Page 109


 1  companies in the Kansas City area,
 2  Miller-Stauch.  Well, when the bottom fell out
 3  of the economy, that construction company lost
 4  all of its superintendents.  They took the
 5  people that were in the office and put them out
 6  in the field.  That put me out of a job.
 7      I've applied at Black & Veatch on a
 8  couple of jobs.  A lot of times you guys don't
 9  post where the jobs are located.  I've probably
10  applied three times.
11      Growth in Kansas City, Kansas, at the
12  Legends has helped me, like I said, until
13  January 2009.  And I was laid off because of
14  lack of work.  That was the first time in 37
15  years that I haven't worked in the summer going
16  into the fall in 37 years.  That is how bad this
17  economy has been.  Is right now.  And it is not
18  getting better.  People are saying it is getting
19  better.  Go look for a job in the construction
20  field.  It is not getting better.  People want
21  to pay you half of what you were making.
22      I have been off work for a year and two
23  months.  I've sent out over 200 resumes, cover
24  letters and detail project lists.  Growth in
25  Kansas City, has it helped at the Legends?  Has
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 1  it helped BPU any?  By the way you guys talk it
 2  hasn't helped anything.  I mean, that is what
 3  I'm getting from you.  But the growth isn't
 4  doing us any good out there.  Hasn't done any
 5  good as far as unemployment.
 6      Have you thought about reducing the pay
 7  for some of your people?  The government has
 8  reduced pay.  They took a day away a week or a
 9  month from them.  I know you said you held off
10  on hiring.  Who is going to do all this work you
11  are talking about?  Aren't you going to have to
12  hire somebody to do that?  Can you do it with
13  the people you have now?  I don't know.
14      To reduce some of your costs, you could
15  look around at this room.  Those doors right
16  over there.  Who needs 8 foot doors in a
17  conference room.  That takes four hinges to
18  hang.  Most doors are 7 foot.  It takes three
19  hinges to hang.  I know, I'm a carpenter.  I'm a
20  superintendent.
21      Same thing with this door, you're
22  talking about cost.  Look around you, you can
23  cut out cost if you want to.  You just have to
24  look.
25      That's all I have to say.
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 1      THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you,
 2  Mr. Bahr.
 3      MR. BAHR: Thank you for your
 4  time.
 5      THE HEARING OFFICER: The next
 6  individual on the sign-up sheet is Norm Scott.
 7  And Mr. Scott, are you here?  Apparently not.
 8      There is a -- Mr. Yarnell, I'm going to
 9  come back to you since you're one of the
10  intervenors.
11      The next individual is Carol O'Neal.
12  Is Carol O'Neal here?
13      The last person on the sign-up sheet is
14  Marilyn While.
15      MS. WHITE: White.
16      THE HEARING OFFICER: White.  I'm
17  sorry, Ms. White.
18      MS. WHITE: Sorry.  My
19  handwriting has gotten kind of bad as I have
20  gotten older.
21      THE HEARING OFFICER: It is my
22  eyes.
23      MS. WHITE: My name is Marilyn
24  White and I live in your backyard, 614
25  Washington Boulevard.
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 1      I can look out, you know, of my porch
 2  and look out and see BPU from my front yard.
 3  And it is very distressing sometimes, you know,
 4  when I'm at home trying to relax and storms come
 5  or even the wind sometimes blows very hard and
 6  my electricity goes out.  I can hear the
 7  transformers blow.  Hasn't happened lately
 8  because the last person you sent obviously knew
 9  what he was doing because for at least I would
10  say four months or so I have had electricity no
11  matter what the weather did.  So I think that --
12  you know, I'd give you his name but I don't
13  think I will.  That you really should be happy
14  that you have such a good employee.
15      Also, I just want to say that, you
16  know, I'm a senior citizen.  I am on a fixed
17  income and I have been able to manage my utility
18  bills, you know, the ones that come.  But, you
19  know, the utility bills keep going up and up.
20  I'm -- part of my daily, monthly living is
21  supplemented by Social Security.  And as you
22  know, the good congressmen in Washington D.C.
23  did not give us a cost of living wage because
24  the cost of living didn't go up, it went down
25  for us, not for them.  And they make for a lot
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 1  more money than I do.
 2      I am very uptight about the fact that
 3  the Unified Government is tacking their bills
 4  onto the BPU bill, and, therefore, you are going
 5  to get a lot of hell that the BPU -- that the
 6  Unified Government should be getting.  But, you
 7  know, I guess you have -- don't have any control
 8  over that.  But I want you to know to let them
 9  know that Marilyn said she doesn't like it
10  because I think everybody ought to pay their own
11  way themselves and the public ought to know
12  exactly what the Unified Government is doing.
13      Also, I'm a little bit uptight, just
14  like the gentleman said, about all of this
15  so-called economic status stuff that is coming
16  to West Village, Village West.  I -- we just --
17  the Unified Government just gave them a tax
18  break.  Neil Harrison and Warren Buffet do not
19  need tax breaks.  They could buy themselves this
20  whole building many, many times over and
21  probably all of us here.
22      And I think it's a really -- and, you
23  know, I guess dam is not really a bad word.  I
24  think it is a dam shame that people like me who
25  are on the lower end of the economy who have
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 1  scrimped and saved all their lives to work and
 2  try to save money.  I save money.  I still save
 3  money to this day out of the wages that I get
 4  every month that I earned, by the way.  And I
 5  think I'm doing pretty good, but I really resent
 6  the fact that these -- the people are making hay
 7  off of my dough, the money that I earned when I
 8  could be using it for myself.  I really think
 9  that, you know, life is not fair.  I don't know
10  if it ever will be, but I think that the person
11  on the lower end of the economic scale is really
12  getting beat up more and more every day.  And,
13  you know, it can't keep happening, although I
14  think it will.
15      Thank you.
16      THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you,
17  Mrs. White.
18      Ms. Sixta, I'm sorry, I overlooked your
19  name.  Please restate your name and address.
20      MS. SIXTA: Mary Sue Sixta.  405
21  North 17th Street.
22      My comments are that when the lady was
23  talking and the screen was up and they showed
24  some of the increases, I wanted to calculated
25  BPU water is going up 45 percent and the
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 1  electric bill is going up 36 percent over the
 2  next five years.  That is a tremendous increase.
 3  That is -- right now we are paying 145 dollars
 4  and some odd -- 149 dollars and some odd cents.
 5  We are probably going to be paying around 200
 6  within the next five years.
 7      My husband is about to retire.  He is
 8  the only one who is making the living for us
 9  right now.  We are going to barely be able to
10  make it.  And then if the other utilities like
11  AT&T and Kansas Gas Service go up, we are going
12  to be very hard put to make the bills.  We are
13  hard put to make them right now.  And personally
14  I'm worried.
15      Also, they're talking about controlling
16  the customer load.  Okay, I have allergies
17  during the summer and during the heat.  I need
18  to have air conditioning to help filter the air
19  when it gets real bad.
20      Plus I have sleep apnea.  I have to --
21  I have a CPAP machine I must use.  They tell me
22  I'm one of the worst cases they've ever seen.
23  My husband has sleep apnea.  We have to have
24  those machines and they are going to use power.
25  And they're going to tell us how much we can
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 1  use.  Does this mean that we have to either go
 2  without air conditioning or go without our CPAP
 3  machine in order to go to the power level they
 4  want?  Or are we going to have some place where
 5  we can call and say, hey, we need this certain
 6  amount of power, can we get it?  Or is it just
 7  going to be cut off because they think we are
 8  using too much?  I mean, for people that use an
 9  extra amount of power that don't really need it,
10  like at Christmastime with too many lights, I
11  understand.  But for medical reasons, this
12  scares me.  People may need it for medical
13  reasons.  But all you're talking about is
14  controlling the load.
15      And as far as all these expenses are
16  concerned for new telephone poles and stuff and
17  the services, I understand trimming the trees.
18  Grass cutting, put decorative rocks out and make
19  a design saying BPU in the front yard or the
20  office or something and cut down on maintenance
21  and how much it costs to cut the grass.  Do
22  little things like this and it would improve
23  entirely.
24      Also, I know this has been discussed in
25  the past, what about investing in a company that
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 1  has the rotaries that produce electrical power,
 2  possibly putting them on the houses.  Charging
 3  -- renting the equipment to the customer and
 4  then charging to maintain the equipment.
 5  California has a county that has done this.
 6  They got so spread out they couldn't get
 7  electricity to everybody.  So the houses out
 8  where they had trouble getting electricity to --
 9  the wires to them, they put an electrical system
10  on the house to generate the electricity by
11  themselves.  This is just an idea, but it might
12  cut costs to rent the equipment and maintain it.
13  You are saying you are having trouble getting
14  electricity to everyone.  This is something you
15  might want to consider.
16      Cable is doing real good for TV.  Maybe
17  BPU would do real good doing this at least out
18  in rural areas where you have to go so far out
19  to get the power out there.
20      Thank you.
21      THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you,
22  Ms. Sixta.
23      Are there any board members present
24  that would like to comment or say anything?
25      (No response.)


Page 118


 1      THE HEARING OFFICER: As to the
 2  intervenors, Mr. Yarnell, would you -- do you
 3  have anything you would like to say?  If you
 4  would, please, go to the podium and state your
 5  full name and address.
 6      MR. YARNELL: My name is Rick
 7  Yarnell, 2424 Nebraska Court, Kansas City,
 8  Kansas.  I have filed written testimony and
 9  intervening with Kathy Peters and I expected
10  discussions with her tonight that I will
11  probably have modifications to the wording that
12  I have submitted tonight and I will have that
13  ready for tomorrow at the hearing at that point.
14      THE HEARING OFFICER: All right.
15      MR. YARNELL: Thank you.
16      THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other
17  intervenors that are present that would like to
18  make a statement?
19      Closing comments by the BPU.
20      MR. MEHLHAFF: I just want to
21  remind everyone tomorrow morning we'll pick up
22  again with the rate hearing.  Same presentation
23  you saw that was presented today, and will have
24  an extended Black & Veatch presentation, again,
25  to the technical portion here at nine o'clock.
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 1      I want to thank everyone for coming.
 2  Appreciate your time.  I know it's been a long
 3  night.  We thank you for your business.  Thank
 4  you.  God bless.
 5      THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you
 6  very much.  We're adjourned.
 7      (Hearing commenced at 9:46 p.m.)
 8  
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 1            (Hearing commenced at 7:00 p.m.)
  


 2            (Exhibit BPU 1 was marked for
  


 3   identification.)
  


 4                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ladies and
  


 5   gentlemen, this is the May 2010 Board of Public
  


 6   Utilities rate hearing with regard to their
  


 7   request of rate increases.  My name is Phillip
  


 8   Carson and I'm the hearing officer presiding
  


 9   over these public hearings.
  


10            If any of the members of the public
  


11   wish to speak -- excuse me -- on the public
  


12   portion of this hearing, please if you haven't
  


13   already done so, please sign in on the sign-in
  


14   sheet with this lady right here.  Thank you.
  


15            Ms. Peters.
  


16                  MS. PETERS:  Mr. Carson, I'm
  


17   Kathy Peters, rate hearing for the BPU.
  


18                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.
  


19            Have any petitions for intervention
  


20   been received?
  


21                  MS. PETERS:  Yes.  As Randy
  


22   Otting will testify, we have received petitions
  


23   for intervention that were timely filed on the
  


24   behalf of the large customer group of BPU
  


25   currently consisting of General Motors, Griffin
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 1   Wheel, Kansas University Medical Center,
  


 2   Owens-Corning and WaterOne.  Also Suburban
  


 3   Water, Inc., doing business as Suburban Water
  


 4   company.  And also Rick Yarnell, an individual.
  


 5                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Are
  


 6   there -- thank you, Ms. Peters.
  


 7            Are there any attorneys for the
  


 8   intervenors that are present?  If so, please
  


 9   enter your appearance.
  


10            No attorneys present on behalf of the
  


11   intervenors, okay.
  


12            Are there any intervenors that are
  


13   personally present on behalf of themselves or
  


14   their companies?  If so, please enter your
  


15   appearance.
  


16                  MR. YARNELL:  I am.
  


17                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  You are,
  


18   sir?
  


19                  MR. YARNELL:  My name is Rick
  


20   Yarnell.
  


21                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Your
  


22   address, please.
  


23                  MR. YARNELL:  2424 Nebraska
  


24   Court, Kansas City, Kansas.
  


25                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Are you
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 1   represented by an attorney in this matter?
  


 2                  MS. PETERS:  I am not.
  


 3                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anyone
  


 4   else?
  


 5                  MS. KRAUSE:  I am Laurie Krause
  


 6   with WaterOne.
  


 7                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  And the
  


 8   address of WaterOne, please?
  


 9                  MS. KRAUSE:  Oh, that is really a
  


10   good question.
  


11                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  I
  


12   know it is everywhere.  All right.
  


13                  MS. KRAUSE:  The admin
  


14   headquarters is -- I'm trying to remember.
  


15   10744 Lenexa.
  


16                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.
  


17            Any other intervenors that are present
  


18   that have not entered their appearance?  All
  


19   right.
  


20            Ms. Peters, I'm going to turn the
  


21   proceeding over to you at this point.
  


22                  MS. PETERS:  And I would like to
  


23   call on Mr. David Mehlhaff, BPU's public
  


24   information officer.
  


25                  MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Kathy.
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 1            I'm David Mehlhaff, public affairs
  


 2   officer for the Board of Public Utilities.
  


 3            We appreciate you taking your time to
  


 4   be here at this public hearing.  We thank you
  


 5   for being our customers and we do appreciate
  


 6   your business.
  


 7            We ask that you turn off your cell
  


 8   phones and pagers or turn them to vibrate at
  


 9   this time.  If you need to use the restroom, it
  


10   is right out in the hallway out here.  Right out
  


11   the door to your immediate right.  If you wish
  


12   to speak and make comments at this hearing, sign
  


13   your name and address on the sign-in sheet
  


14   that's just inside the door.  Also, if you would
  


15   like to ask a question after our presentations,
  


16   fill out a card with your question and place it
  


17   in the box in the hallway.  If you need some
  


18   cards, let me know and I will make sure to get
  


19   some to you or you can get them from Jenny over
  


20   here.  She has cards and pencils and fill those
  


21   out.
  


22            We are going to hear presentations from
  


23   a number of people.  I would like to introduce
  


24   those folks to you at this time.  First of all,
  


25   before I do that, we do have two of our board
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 1   members present.  We have three of them:  John
  


 2   Pettey, our vice-president; Mary Gonzales; and
  


 3   our president, Loretta Colombel.  Thank you for
  


 4   coming.  They are here to observe and to gather
  


 5   all the information they can through this
  


 6   process.
  


 7            Kathryn Peters, you just heard from,
  


 8   she is our attorney with Kutak Rock, LLP,
  


 9   representing BPU.  She has been with us through
  


10   our rate hearing process since 1980.  The
  


11   following staff members will be speaking this
  


12   evening:  Don Gray, our general manager; Lori
  


13   Austin, manager of accounting and finance and
  


14   our chief financial officer; Peggy Howe with
  


15   Black & Veatch, an international consultant,
  


16   management consultant, and engineering firm.
  


17   You will hear more about them later.
  


18            Blake Elliott, our director of electric
  


19   supply planning.  Darrell Dorsey, manager of
  


20   electric production and supply.  Bill Johnson,
  


21   manager of electric operations.  And, finally,
  


22   Jim Epp, manager of water operations an acting
  


23   chief administrative officer.
  


24            Also, I want to remind you that the
  


25   same rate hearing will take place tomorrow
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 1   morning, same room at 9:00 a.m.  After that, we
  


 2   will then have a detailed presentation by Black
  


 3   & Veatch.  You will hear more about them in a
  


 4   little bit.  They will be part of this
  


 5   presentation but a lengthier presentation on the
  


 6   cost of service study, and that will be
  


 7   tomorrow.  So we will have more information
  


 8   about that later.  Again, if you have questions
  


 9   let me know.
  


10            At this time, I would like to introduce
  


11   -- hand the mic back off to Kathryn Peters from
  


12   Kutak Rock.  Kathryn.
  


13                  MS. PETERS:  We also have some
  


14   folks from Black & Veatch present with us.  And
  


15   a few of them will speak tomorrow as
  


16   Mr. Mehlhaff mentioned.  Peggy Howe will also
  


17   speak tonight.  Peggy Howe with Black & Veatch,
  


18   Ed Overcast, Craig Brown and Anna White.
  


19            The BPU has set the public hearing for
  


20   the purpose of discussing BPU's revenue
  


21   requirements and the proposed changes to the BPU
  


22   rates to recover more revenues in order to meet
  


23   our cost requirements.  The format of the
  


24   hearing is that BPU began by having Black &
  


25   Veatch conduct cost of service studies in
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 1   electric and in water.  The BPU received the
  


 2   cost of service study reports from Black &
  


 3   Veatch and following that BPU published the
  


 4   90-day notice of public hearing that is required
  


 5   by the charter ordinance.
  


 6            The format of the hearing is that we
  


 7   will present to you by the BPU staff a number of
  


 8   the reasons for the public hearing request, why
  


 9   revenues are needed, what the proposed changes
  


10   in the rates are going to be, what things the
  


11   BPU has done to cut its costs before requesting
  


12   a rate increase, what the various capital needs
  


13   are of the electric and the water operations,
  


14   and several things about BPU's overall financial
  


15   condition that leads to this rate request.
  


16            There will be a PowerPoint presentation
  


17   by BPU and all of the things that the BPU is
  


18   saying here today are being taken down by a
  


19   court reporter.  So, when it comes your time to
  


20   speak, speak slowly and distinctly so the court
  


21   reporter can take down your words as will the
  


22   BPU staff.
  


23            The PowerPoint presentation, the
  


24   exhibits, all of the proceedings, the things
  


25   that our intervening customers have to say will
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 1   all be presented to the board and they will make
  


 2   a decision based on all of the evidence.  There
  


 3   will be no decision by the board until they have
  


 4   received all of the evidence.  And that will
  


 5   include things that you say in the public
  


 6   comment portion that will follow the question
  


 7   period which will follow the BPU's presentation.
  


 8            The BPU has two phases of the public
  


 9   hearing.  We have the public comment portion,
  


10   and as Mr. Mehlhaff indicated, we are making a
  


11   presentation tonight.  There will be a very
  


12   similar presentation tomorrow morning.  In
  


13   addition, tomorrow morning Black & Veatch will
  


14   give a lengthy explanation of the cost of
  


15   service report.
  


16            Following the public presentation,
  


17   there will be a technical portion.  We have
  


18   customers who have intervened in this
  


19   proceeding.  We will be continuing the technical
  


20   portion of the hearing to have further
  


21   discussions with our intervening customers.  We
  


22   expect that the initial rate recommendation will
  


23   be made to the board sometime toward the end of
  


24   May, early part of June.  We expect that final
  


25   recommendations will be made to the board toward
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 1   the end of this year.  And, again, nothing will
  


 2   happen until recommendations are made to the
  


 3   board and the board makes its final decision.
  


 4            Board members may be present in the
  


 5   audience to listen today.  If they are not here
  


 6   today, again, the court reporter will be taking
  


 7   down everything that everyone says, and all of
  


 8   this information will be provided to all of the
  


 9   board members before they make their decision.
  


10            Mr. Carson, I would like to ask you, if
  


11   you could, to have all of the BPU and the Black
  


12   & Veatch witnesses who are going to testify or
  


13   make presentations be sworn in.  And I would
  


14   repeat that is Mr. Blake Elliott, Darrell
  


15   Dorsey, Don Gray, Peggy Howe, Randy Otting, Lori
  


16   Austin, Bill Johnson, Jim Epp, Anna White, Craig
  


17   Brown, and Ed Overcast.
  


18                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.
  


19   Thank you.
  


20            Those of you that were just named and
  


21   who are going to speak or make a presentation,
  


22   please raise your right hands.  Do you swear or
  


23   affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and
  


24   nothing but the truth?
  


25                  (BPU and Black & Veatch
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 1   presenters answered affirmatively I do.)
  


 2                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.
  


 3                  MS. PETERS:  And I would like to
  


 4   ask -- I would like to ask Randy Otting to join
  


 5   me.
  


 6                  MR. OTTING:  Sure.
  


 7                  MS. PETERS:  Mr. Carson, at this
  


 8   time Randy Otting would like to give the
  


 9   evidence that notice of public hearing was given
  


10   in accordance with charter ordinance.
  


11                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Go ahead,
  


12   sir.
  


13                  MR. OTTING:  Yes, we have filed
  


14   our February 1st, 2010 in the Kansas City Star.
  


15                  MS. PETERS:  And, Mr. Otting, I
  


16   am going to read you a few questions.  Please
  


17   state your name and your business address.
  


18                  MR. OTTING:  Randy Otting, 540
  


19   Minnesota Avenue, Kansas City, Kansas 66101.
  


20                  MS. PETERS:  What is your
  


21   occupation?
  


22                  MR. OTTING:  I'm the director of
  


23   accounting.
  


24                  MS. PETERS:  What are your
  


25   responsibilities relating to the current
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 1   electric and water rate hearing with regard to
  


 2   publication and notice of public hearing
  


 3   dissemination of information to the public?
  


 4                  MR. OTTING:  I was the primary
  


 5   contact person with the public with regard to
  


 6   information, and I was also responsible for
  


 7   making sure that the notice of hearing was
  


 8   published timely.
  


 9                  MS. PETERS:  Did the BPU board
  


10   direct staff to set a public hearing on the rate
  


11   proposal?
  


12                  MR. OTTING:  Yes.
  


13                  MS. PETERS:  Please list the
  


14   dates and places of publication of notice of
  


15   public hearing.
  


16                  MR. OTTING:  February 1st, 2010,
  


17   Kansas City Star.  February 4th, 2010, Wyandotte
  


18   West.  February 4th, 2010, Piper Press.
  


19   February 4th, 2010, the Wyandotte Echo.
  


20                  MS. PETERS:  Could you go ahead
  


21   and read the notices.
  


22                  MR. OTTING:  Sure.  The notice of
  


23   hearing and the affidavits are on file with the
  


24   BPU and available for review upon request.  The
  


25   affidavit of publication in the Kansas City Star
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 1   was on February 1st, 2010, which provided the
  


 2   90-day notice required by statute.  This
  


 3   document is presented and filed as Exhibit 1,
  


 4   BPU-1.
  


 5                  MS. PETERS:  And you have BPU-1
  


 6   there?
  


 7                  MR. OTTING:  Yes.
  


 8                  MS. PETERS:  Mr. Carson, I would
  


 9   like to have introduced at this time BPU Exhibit
  


10   1, affidavit of publication.
  


11                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.
  


12   It is accepted and admitted into evidence and I
  


13   find that the 90-day notice requirement required
  


14   by the charter ordinance has been fulfilled.
  


15                  MS. PETERS:  Thank you, sir.
  


16            Mr. Otting, were any petitions for
  


17   intervention filed with you?
  


18                  MR. OTTING:  Yes.  We had three
  


19   on March 3rd, 2010.  Mr. Rick Yarnell, an
  


20   individual.  March 15th, 2010, Suburban Water, a
  


21   wholesale water customer.  March 30 -- I'm
  


22   sorry, March 17th, 2010, we had intervention
  


23   with the BPU large customer group which consists
  


24   of General Motors, Griffin Wheel, Kansas
  


25   University Medical Center, Owens-Corning and
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 1   WaterOne.
  


 2                  MS. PETERS:  Thank you,
  


 3   Mr. Otting.
  


 4            And, Mr. Carson, I note that all of the
  


 5   petitions for intervention were filed before
  


 6   March 19th which was the cut-off date for filing
  


 7   petitions of intervention.
  


 8                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.
  


 9                  MS. PETERS:  And any other
  


10   exhibits and testimony of the BPU and Black &
  


11   Veatch we will introduce into evidence at the
  


12   conclusion of the public portion or the
  


13   technical portion, sir.
  


14                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.
  


15                  MS. PETERS:  I would like to at
  


16   this time turn the floor over to BPU to make its
  


17   public presentation, and I will introduce Mr.
  


18   Don Gray, general manager of the Board of Public
  


19   Utilities.
  


20                  MR. GRAY:  Thank you, Kathy.
  


21            Good evening everyone.
  


22            First of all, I want to welcome all of
  


23   you that are here this evening.  We very much
  


24   appreciate you being a witness and being
  


25   involved in our rate hearing process.  I think
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 1   it is very important and I appreciate and
  


 2   respect very much that you are here.
  


 3            As you know, asking our customers,
  


 4   asking you to consider allowing us to raise
  


 5   rates is never easy.  In fact, I don't know if
  


 6   there is ever a good time to ask for a rate
  


 7   increase.  However, I just want to say that
  


 8   staff and I are committed to keeping our rates
  


 9   as low as possible.
  


10            And also with that, we are trying to do
  


11   a better job at informing our customers and
  


12   giving them information on how they can better
  


13   manage their energy and water.  And we have got
  


14   in all of the chairs information but included
  


15   with the information are these cards that give
  


16   useful tips on water and energy usage.  And,
  


17   also, on the bottom of the card is our website
  


18   location where you can get additional
  


19   information.  And, also, you can contact the BPU
  


20   office through David Mehlhaff, our public
  


21   affairs officer, who you met earlier who can
  


22   also get information for you.
  


23            As was stated earlier, this is going to
  


24   be a lengthy presentation.  We have a lot of
  


25   staff that will be involved in giving technical
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 1   portions of this rate hearing as to not only why
  


 2   we need the rate increases but what we plan to
  


 3   do with the additional resources.
  


 4            So, with that, I would like to start
  


 5   off by mentioning that I will give an overview
  


 6   and I will primarily talk about our planning
  


 7   process, historical trends, controlling cost,
  


 8   and our rate comparisons.  And then staff will
  


 9   follow with the remainder of the rate hearing
  


10   process, cost of service, proposed rates,
  


11   purpose of the rate increase, and the
  


12   conclusion.  And, also, with staff, as was
  


13   mentioned earlier, we have key technical support
  


14   from Black & Veatch engineering which is an
  


15   internationally known engineering company who
  


16   helped us with our cost of service and rate
  


17   design work.
  


18            In our planning process, the mission of
  


19   the utility is "To focus on the needs of our
  


20   customers, to improve the quality of life in our
  


21   community while promoting safe, reliable and
  


22   sustainable utilities."  We are driven by a --
  


23   primarily by our strategic plan and then within
  


24   that strategic plan we have our key 20-year
  


25   electric and water master plans which are the
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 1   primary planning tools that we use.
  


 2            This is where our challenges are
  


 3   looking at our historical trends.  Our cash on
  


 4   hand recently, what that has been showing.  Our
  


 5   electric sales as well as our water sales.
  


 6            Our cash on hand since 2004 has been
  


 7   dropping at a pretty rapid pace.  What this
  


 8   represents on the 2009, we show a little over 25
  


 9   million in cash.  That may seem like a lot but
  


10   it takes roughly 17 to 20 million a month to
  


11   operate the organization.  So, as you can see,
  


12   we would like to have ideally about 60 days in
  


13   reserves.  And we have been running anywhere
  


14   from 23 days to 40 days recently.  And that puts
  


15   us dangerously low as far as our liquidity
  


16   position is concerned.
  


17            Also, as far as our electric sales, the
  


18   trends, our industrial sales since 2005 to
  


19   current have reduced by roughly 25 percent, our
  


20   commercial by 5 percent, and our residential
  


21   roughly 6 percent.  And, also, some of these
  


22   graphs and the information is also in the
  


23   handouts that we provided.
  


24            In looking at our water sales trends,
  


25   this takes into account all three industrial,
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 1   commercial and industrial total.  But as you can
  


 2   see, since 2006 our water sales have slowed by
  


 3   roughly 18 percent in recent years.  Although
  


 4   our cash has been coming in much weaker,
  


 5   recently what have we been doing to help manage
  


 6   this reduction -- and, oh, before I get into
  


 7   that, just why specifically our sales are down.
  


 8            No. 1, as we all know, the economy in
  


 9   the last couple of years has been challenging to
  


10   say the least.  But we are also a weather-driven
  


11   business and the weather really in the last
  


12   couple of years has been relatively mild in the
  


13   summer and winter periods.  And also very wet
  


14   unusually so.
  


15            We have had a flat to inclining
  


16   population.  I think there is a sense because of
  


17   some of the growth that is occurring out
  


18   especially in the western region that we are
  


19   seeing a population growth going along with it,
  


20   but that is really not the case.
  


21            And then, lastly, conservation, which
  


22   is a good thing.  More and more people, more and
  


23   more companies are conserving energy and water.
  


24   And we are seeing that.  The new appliances, for
  


25   example, that you buy.  You know, water has been
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 1   a part of conservation efforts for a number of
  


 2   years because there is many areas of our
  


 3   country.  They're having water shortages so that
  


 4   has been happening as far as conservation in
  


 5   that area.  Your flush boxes, for example, in
  


 6   your homes now use less volume and so forth.  So
  


 7   conservation has also had an impact.
  


 8            So what have we done to control our
  


 9   reduce in cost?  Since -- from 2006 through
  


10   2010, we reduced our budget by $55 million.  We
  


11   eliminated staff positions for the past five
  


12   years.  And as a matter of fact, we have been
  


13   reducing staff positions since roughly 1996 and
  


14   slowly reducing positions over time.  We have
  


15   froze salaries.  All of the management
  


16   professional staff with the utility are all
  


17   frozen and we are currently working with our
  


18   bargaining units in working with them in looking
  


19   at -- also looking at some freezes there as
  


20   well.
  


21            Another thing that we did to help
  


22   control our costs was our coal purchases.  We
  


23   got -- late last fall in 2009, our cash position
  


24   got very weak.  One of the things that we were
  


25   able to successfully do was to renegotiate our
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 1   contact -- our coal contract at our Nearman
  


 2   power station.  Ordinarily, this is a take or
  


 3   pay contract but because they understood that we
  


 4   had a lot of coal in inventory because of demand
  


 5   being down, they did allow us to park the train
  


 6   for a month and that saved us roughly $4 million
  


 7   by being able to park the train.  And that was
  


 8   very important at that point in time to help us
  


 9   strengthen our cash position because we were
  


10   getting dangerously down below -- even below 23
  


11   days.  We also were able to park the train for a
  


12   period of roughly a month at our Quindaro plant
  


13   down in Fairfax also which helped save some
  


14   cash.
  


15            And like we always do when we don't
  


16   have enough money, we delay capital improvement
  


17   projects.  And that is a kind of where we have
  


18   been recently.  We just have not been spending
  


19   money and continually upgrading our aging
  


20   infrastructure because we just haven't had the
  


21   cash.
  


22            Graphically, it basically summarizes.
  


23   Again, we have reduced our budget since 2006 by
  


24   roughly 55 million.  Now our board approved in
  


25   our budget for 2010 678 staff positions but
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 1   currently we are operating at 594 positions
  


 2   because I have been holding up vacant positions
  


 3   and haven't been filling them.  Now, the
  


 4   challenge with that is our service quality
  


 5   starts to worsen as we have fewer and fewer
  


 6   people to respond, especially when we get into
  


 7   emergencies.  But we have had to do that to
  


 8   protect our cash position.
  


 9            We have been able to say that our rates
  


10   are very competitive.  Our electric rates are
  


11   lower than other surrounding utilities and well
  


12   below the national average.  And our water rates
  


13   are very competitive with surrounding utilities.
  


14            For example, looking at a typical
  


15   customer on the electric -- monthly electric
  


16   bill 920 kilowatt hours.  This is without the
  


17   PILOT fees.  $84.67 would be what our electric
  


18   charge would be.  And, again, if you compare
  


19   that to some of our neighbors like Kansas City
  


20   Power & Light, Independence, and so forth -- and
  


21   here is -- over here is the national average.
  


22   Now this national average number was a 2008
  


23   number so we know it has gone up since 2008.  We
  


24   don't have the latest data on that but we're
  


25   still well below what it was nationally in 2008.
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 1            On the water side, for 8 cubic feet we
  


 2   are roughly in the middle, at $36.35.
  


 3            I wanted to point out a little more
  


 4   carefully the electric utility rates and the
  


 5   rate comparisons, and also show as an industrial
  


 6   trend what has been happening.  And this has not
  


 7   just been happening here regionally, it has been
  


 8   happening nationally.  Electric rates have been
  


 9   skyrocketing.  A lot of it is being driven by
  


10   not only rising costs of doing business, a lot
  


11   of the commodities that we use, whether it be
  


12   coal, natural gas, oil or whether we -- you
  


13   know, copper has fluctuated in price.  A lot of
  


14   our transformers and that are all -- that use
  


15   copper.
  


16            But environmental mandates have been
  


17   also challenging all of us as an industry in
  


18   raising rates.  And if you notice, Kansas City
  


19   Power & Light, Kansas now, because they both
  


20   serve in Kansas and Missouri, we are looking at
  


21   Kansas City Power & Light 2006, they had an 8.95
  


22   percent and they have been steadily asking for
  


23   increases before the Kansas Corporation
  


24   Commission.  And they currently have an 11.5
  


25   percent before the commission now.  If they get
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 1   anywhere close to that 11.5, since 2006 they
  


 2   will have increased their fees by 48 -- roughly
  


 3   49 percent.
  


 4            If you look at BPU, the last rate
  


 5   increase we had was in 2006, 2.65.  And then if
  


 6   you add the one that we are recommending in
  


 7   2007, it would still be under 10 percent in
  


 8   total since 2005.  But this -- a lot of the
  


 9   utilities because of the -- especially when you
  


10   go to build new generation, like Iatan II, the
  


11   Kansas City Power & Light's building, whether
  


12   they are new gas plants, we all know that the
  


13   cost for these generating facilities are going
  


14   up tremendously.
  


15            And then all the environmental systems
  


16   that you have to put on these plants really
  


17   drive up the costs as well.  And there is more
  


18   and more mandates on the environmental side that
  


19   is requiring us to convert some of our older
  


20   plants and to add better controls to them.  So
  


21   this is really starting to drive the cost of
  


22   energy upwards.  And, you know, we are getting
  


23   into that as well.
  


24            The rate hearing process at this time,
  


25   I would turn it over to Lori Austin, manager of
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 1   finance, who will cover basically our rate
  


 2   hearing process.
  


 3                  MS. AUSTIN:  Thank you, Don.
  


 4            Just to talk a little bit about a rate
  


 5   hearing process.  We are a cost of service
  


 6   organization.  We have engaged the firm of Black
  


 7   & Veatch to perform a cost of service study in
  


 8   both our electric and water utility.  We asked
  


 9   to have them perform a five-year cost of service
  


10   study from 2010 through 2014.  Once that cost of
  


11   service study was performed, we began our rate
  


12   setting process.
  


13            We went before our board and asked for
  


14   a resolution to approve -- a resolution for a
  


15   rate hearing that was approved on February 1st.
  


16   That started the 90-day notice for public
  


17   review.  And in that public review we allow for
  


18   formal review of our rate process and our cost
  


19   of service and also any intervention.
  


20            It's two -- we provide two formal
  


21   public hearings that are conducted in the
  


22   morning and the evening after the 90-day period
  


23   has expired.  It is overseen by the
  


24   administrative judge, who we have here tonight.
  


25   The first hearing is tonight and the next
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 1   hearing will be tomorrow morning at 9:00 a.m.
  


 2            There will be a transcript of the
  


 3   hearing for both sessions and that is made
  


 4   available to the public and to the board of
  


 5   directors once complete.  At a later date we
  


 6   will ask for our board to vote on what the
  


 7   proposed rates that are -- that we are
  


 8   requesting.
  


 9            Our cost of service study, the focus of
  


10   our study is to match the cost of providing the
  


11   services to the individual customer classes so
  


12   that we can equitably recover those costs.  We
  


13   have three major classes:  Residential,
  


14   commercial, and industrial.
  


15            There is a three-step approach to the
  


16   cost of service.  We have a revenue requirement
  


17   for the overall utilities, both water and
  


18   electric, and that is how much money is needed
  


19   to meet our cost of service.
  


20            Then we perform a cost allocation from
  


21   whom should the money be collected.  And as I
  


22   referenced, the three larger groups, the
  


23   industrial, residential and commercial.
  


24            Then we have -- then the final step is
  


25   a rate design.  And it is how should those costs
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 1   -- how should those services be priced among
  


 2   those individual rate classes.
  


 3            At this time I would like to turn it
  


 4   over to Peggy Howe with Black & Veatch.
  


 5                  MS. HOWE:  Thank you.  Thank you,
  


 6   Lori.
  


 7            Black & Veatch was retained by BPU to
  


 8   provide an independent third-party opinion
  


 9   needed for the rate study and the cost of
  


10   service analysis.  And before I get into the
  


11   specific services we provide, I would like to
  


12   talk a little bit about my firm.
  


13            We are a global firm that provides
  


14   engineering consulting services worldwide.  As
  


15   indicated up here, we have over 9,000 employees
  


16   worldwide and over 100 offices.  We have been in
  


17   business for close to 100 years now.  And one of
  


18   the things that I would really like to highlight
  


19   is the fact that we have built our reputation on
  


20   integrity and competence.  And we are very proud
  


21   of that and stand behind that as we perform
  


22   services to the folks that retain us.  We are an
  


23   employee-owned corporation.  That is on a global
  


24   basis.
  


25            On a local basis or a regional basis,
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 1   we have over 40 offices in the United States, so
  


 2   we truly understand what is happening in the
  


 3   industries here that we serve.  We serve water,
  


 4   wastewater, gas, electric, telecommunications.
  


 5   We focus on utilities and we know the business
  


 6   inside and out, you might say.  We also are
  


 7   very, very local to BPU with offices -- a couple
  


 8   of offices here in the Kansas City area.
  


 9            Within Black & Veatch is a sub group or
  


10   a division that focuses specifically on
  


11   management consulting issues.  These are the
  


12   issues associated with finances, associated with
  


13   capital financing.  Not so much the hard design
  


14   services but the services that support being
  


15   able to operate and run the utility.
  


16            We do the entire what we call value
  


17   chain.  We help utilities with strategies.  We
  


18   help them figure out how to pay for items.  We
  


19   help them with the business processes to improve
  


20   their operations, and we also have a group that
  


21   helps them with their technology.  And these
  


22   folks just focus strictly on what we call
  


23   management consulting.  The folks that are going
  


24   to be talking with you today and tomorrow are
  


25   part of that group.
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 1            Specific experience in the water and
  


 2   energy business, I'll talk a little bit about
  


 3   that.  There are about 50 major metropolitan
  


 4   areas in the U.S. as far as water.  We have
  


 5   served over 28 of those 50 areas with all types
  


 6   of management consulting services.  Just a few
  


 7   of them would be -- in the region here would be
  


 8   St. Louis, Wichita, Cincinnati.  And then we
  


 9   threw Miami-Dade in because that's a new one for
  


10   us.  But, again, I want to point out they are
  


11   large metropolitan areas, they all face similar
  


12   challenges that your utility is facing.  We can
  


13   bring the knowledge from those communities to
  


14   help you perform better and operate better.
  


15            On the electric side, out of the
  


16   hundred largest public utilities we provide
  


17   service to 37 of them.  Again, we can take that
  


18   knowledge and that understanding and bring them
  


19   those best practices to help BPU make the right
  


20   decisions better and in the best interest of
  


21   their customers.
  


22            Specifically, the services we provided
  


23   we helped with the cost of service and rate
  


24   design.  And just to walk you through this, you
  


25   start at the bottom of this chart down here.
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 1   And just as you do on a personal level, you have
  


 2   got to know how much does it cost to operate,
  


 3   and where the revenue is coming from to get
  


 4   that.  And I always compare it to, you know,
  


 5   your personal checkbook.  Money comes in, money
  


 6   goes out.  You have got to have a good
  


 7   understanding of what the costs are on a regular
  


 8   basis and how you are going to fund them.  That
  


 9   is what we call revenue requirements.  And when
  


10   the money coming in is not enough to cover the
  


11   costs going out, something needs to be done.
  


12   And we are at that point now.
  


13            After that we then look at all the
  


14   different customers that you have and we say,
  


15   all right, who is causing these costs to be
  


16   incurred and let's equitably distribute the
  


17   costs to those customers and recover the revenue
  


18   from those customers.  And that is the purpose
  


19   behind doing a rate study and a cost of service
  


20   analysis.
  


21            So, in summary -- in summary, find out
  


22   how much money you need, find out who is causing
  


23   the cost to happen, and design rates that will
  


24   equitably recover those costs from the specific
  


25   customers.
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 1            Our project approach parallels that.
  


 2   We start off with financial planning, go to the
  


 3   cost of service analysis, and finish up with the
  


 4   rate design.  We use proven approaches that are
  


 5   supported by the industry.  They're consistent
  


 6   with AWWA, American Water Works Association, and
  


 7   WEF, Water Environment Federation.  They have
  


 8   guidelines out there on how to do this and how
  


 9   to equitably recover those costs so that it is
  


10   done consistently across the industry.  We also
  


11   look at having specific issues for your
  


12   community and make sure that the results are in
  


13   tune with the industry but not so inflexible
  


14   that they can't meet your specific needs.
  


15            So what were the goals of our study for
  


16   BPU?  Well, as mentioned earlier by Mr. Gray,
  


17   your operating reserves are getting very close
  


18   to a concerned position.  So the first thing we
  


19   did was we came in and we looked at your
  


20   financial targets for 2014.
  


21            Now when you go -- when you need to
  


22   build major capital, you go to the bond market.
  


23   What does the bond market look at?  Well, think
  


24   about it again on a personal level.  If you want
  


25   to buy a house, what does a bank look at when
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 1   they look at you?  Well, this is on a much
  


 2   larger and a commercial level but the same thing
  


 3   happens.  There are certain things that the
  


 4   market is looking for to understand and
  


 5   interpret you as a sound financial risk.  And
  


 6   one of those things is your reserves.  And
  


 7   they're looking for about 60 days minimum.  And
  


 8   right now you're sitting at 32 days of reserves.
  


 9   So, if you needed to go to the market to borrow
  


10   money to build capital, you would not be looked
  


11   at favorably with those types of capital
  


12   reserves.
  


13            The second thing we looked at was
  


14   improved cash flow and debt service coverage.
  


15   Again, debt service coverage is one of those
  


16   things that the market looks at to find out how
  


17   good a risk you are for lending money.  And,
  


18   quite honest, in the past 18 months, since
  


19   August of 2008, things have changed considerably
  


20   in the bond market.  Right now you are sitting
  


21   at a debt service coverage of 1.13.  Right now
  


22   1.50 is about the lowest most investors want to
  


23   see.  So, again, you need to do something if you
  


24   want to go to the bond market to get capital
  


25   money to build your capital projects.
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 1            Finally, after we help -- and those
  


 2   first two items are what was part of the revenue
  


 3   requirements.  Is we helped you position your
  


 4   utility for those two items to be met.  After
  


 5   that we came in and we wanted to adjust rates
  


 6   equitably.  And this gets into the cost of
  


 7   service where you allocate the costs
  


 8   appropriately to who's causing the costs.
  


 9            And then we also look at some
  


10   innovative rate options.  So that if there were
  


11   issues, we could be flexible enough to meet your
  


12   specific needs.
  


13            And those are the services that Black &
  


14   Veatch provided.
  


15            And with this, Lori will -- Lori Austin
  


16   will come back up and continue.
  


17                  MS. AUSTIN:  Thank you, Peggy.
  


18            Just to talk a little bit further about
  


19   why this is necessary.  Peggy talked -- touched
  


20   a little bit on it.  Over the last several years
  


21   we have had 20 to 45 days of cash on hand.  The
  


22   recommended level is 60 days of cash.  At
  


23   year-end 2009 we do have -- we did have 32 days
  


24   of cash on hand.
  


25            With the lack of cash, that doesn't
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 1   allows us to finance the capital projects or
  


 2   meet our reserve and our debt service
  


 3   requirements.
  


 4            We also need to maintain our strong
  


 5   credit ratings so that when we go to the bond
  


 6   market that we can receive favorable interest
  


 7   rates and purchase those bonds for less
  


 8   expensive costs.
  


 9            Postponing the capital improvements
  


10   will ultimately cause our service disruptions
  


11   and our increased costs even more.
  


12            We also have inflationary pressures
  


13   that many of the other industries are
  


14   experiencing where our service materials and
  


15   laborers have increased.
  


16            And as Don noted earlier, our rates
  


17   have been constant since 2007.  We had a small
  


18   increase in 2007 and we are below the national
  


19   average and also lower than most surrounding
  


20   utilities.
  


21            So what is being proposed?  To meet the
  


22   requirements, the study recommends revenues from
  


23   the electric base rates of a series of four
  


24   increases each year of 7 percent for 2010, 2011,
  


25   2012 and 13.  And water base rates 8 percent in
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 1   2010 and 2011.  And 7 1/2 percent in 2012 and
  


 2   2013.  Now, that is a total base rate increase
  


 3   of 7.2 percent in 2010 and '11 and 7.1 percent
  


 4   in 2012 and 13.
  


 5            We are also proposing an environmental
  


 6   surcharge, and that environmental surcharge is a
  


 7   rider that will allow us to capture costs of
  


 8   environmental mandates that are required of us
  


 9   of capital projects for our generation.
  


10            The additional modification would be to
  


11   our energy rate component.  We are looking to
  


12   change that from the current process of six
  


13   months winter and six months summer to a
  


14   quarterly adjustment, and it would be on an --
  


15   through a calendar year basis.
  


16            And then -- and then also we are
  


17   looking to redefine our summer and winter
  


18   periods.  Our current summer period is from May
  


19   through October, and then our winter period is
  


20   November through April.  We're looking to
  


21   redefine that to four months summer and eight
  


22   months winter.  So our summer will be May
  


23   through August and winter period would be
  


24   September through April.
  


25            This is a look at our operating cash
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 1   flow under the proposed electric rates.  The
  


 2   solid line is if we did nothing.  As you can
  


 3   tell as we get out to 2011, we are definitely
  


 4   below our ability to fund our capital needs.
  


 5   The dotted line represents with the proposed
  


 6   rates.  And with the proposed rates that will
  


 7   meet our annual revenue requirements and reach
  


 8   our debt service, the projected 1.6 times
  


 9   coverage, and also meet our 60-day operating
  


10   reserve by 2013.  Now that is building our cash
  


11   reserve up to the 60 days by 2013.  It is not
  


12   all in one year.
  


13            Under water rates, solid line
  


14   represents is if we did nothing, and the dotted
  


15   line is under the proposed rates.
  


16            Now, the water proposed rates will meet
  


17   its annual revenue requirements and they have
  


18   reached their debt coverage of -- 1.4 times debt
  


19   service coverage, and 44 days of operating
  


20   reserve by 2013 -- or 2014.
  


21            The overall electric rate by classes,
  


22   as I stated, the overall percentage is a 7
  


23   percent across the four-year period.  When you
  


24   break it down by class and recovering those
  


25   costs equitably both residential and the large
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 1   power service are above the overall average
  


 2   cost.  We have put into place that we would not
  


 3   recover more than 50 percent of the overall
  


 4   system average in any one class, and that is why
  


 5   residential and large power service are a little
  


 6   bit higher through the study period until 2013.
  


 7            In the water side, the class is by
  


 8   year.  It's an overall 8 percent in '10 and '11,
  


 9   and 7 1/2 percent in 2012 and '13.  The
  


10   residential small and medium customers would be
  


11   a little bit higher than system average.  And
  


12   then the industrial would phase in a little bit
  


13   higher than average in later years.
  


14            So what is being proposed with the
  


15   environmental surcharge?  This is a surcharge to
  


16   offset the new capital improvement requirements
  


17   resulting from environmental regulations.  We
  


18   currently have one project that's slated for an
  


19   environmental project.  It is the low NOx
  


20   burners and overfire air.  Darrell Dorsey will
  


21   be talking about that a little bit.  It is a $40
  


22   million project.
  


23            So, with that, the environmental
  


24   surcharge is proposed to be at 1 percent in
  


25   2010, and then an additional 1.6 percent in
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 1   2011.  This amounts to an average increase for a
  


 2   residential customer of approximately 40 cents
  


 3   per month in 2010 and $1.04 per month in 2011.
  


 4            For a typical residential electric
  


 5   bill, this is breaking it out by our summer and
  


 6   winter period.  This is based on 1,150 kilowatt
  


 7   hours in the summer months and 625 kilowatt
  


 8   hours in the winter months.  This does not
  


 9   include PILOT or taxes.  You can see the range
  


10   from the summer period 2009 to summer period
  


11   2010 we're just coming into.  It's a little bit
  


12   of an increase from '09.  And then from the
  


13   summer period 2011 is approximately 12 to 13
  


14   dollars overall.
  


15            From the winter period, as you can see
  


16   from '09 to the winter period, there is an
  


17   actual decrease.  And then it's about a $7
  


18   increase in the winter period in 2011.
  


19            On the water side looking at 5 Ccf, 7
  


20   Ccf and 10 Ccf, the overall increase for 5 Ccf
  


21   would be about $2.72 for the first year, 2.95
  


22   for the second year, 2.75 for the third, and
  


23   $2.90 for the fourth year.
  


24            With that, I will turn it over to
  


25   Blake.  Blake Elliott, director of plant.
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 1                  MR. ELLIOTT:  As Lori said, my
  


 2   name is Blake Elliott, the director of electric
  


 3   supply planning.  I can't claim all the
  


 4   planning.
  


 5            The energy rate component is the
  


 6   portion of your bill that is broken out
  


 7   separately that recovers the costs of fuel and
  


 8   purchase power that the utility has to buy.  And
  


 9   we -- that was initially put into service back
  


10   in 2002 which was our last formal cost of
  


11   service study.
  


12            We have done the calculation 18 times.
  


13   One of those times was the mid-period
  


14   adjustment.
  


15            And what we have seen is a lot of
  


16   volatility in the ERC.  A lot of volatility
  


17   comes from the volatility in the gas market.
  


18   The gas market, we have seen gas prices at $14
  


19   per MMBTU, and we have seen gas prices at $4 for
  


20   MMBTU.  So as that gas price swings, we see a
  


21   lot of volatility in that pricing and it causes
  


22   our ERC to move quite a bit.  So we would like
  


23   to reduce that volatility.  We have seen a range
  


24   in ERC from 1.25 through 4.25 cents per kilowatt
  


25   hour on a -- for the every kilowatt hour that
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 1   you use on your bill.
  


 2            And then some of that additional
  


 3   volatility is from the reconciliation adjustment
  


 4   or the true-up that is done at the end of the
  


 5   period.  We make forecasts and do the
  


 6   calculation on that, but then the following year
  


 7   when we know what the final costs were for that
  


 8   previous period we true those costs up and we
  


 9   roll that into the calculation also.
  


10            This is the graphical representation of
  


11   exactly what has happened in each summer and
  


12   winter period.  This is that mid-period
  


13   adjustment, the $4 -- or $4.25 per kilowatt
  


14   hour.  And that was just for two months, the
  


15   months of September and October in 2008.
  


16            The proposed changes, again, Lori
  


17   mentioned this, we want to reduce the period
  


18   from six months to three months.  And we want to
  


19   perform that reconciliation adjustment more
  


20   quickly.  Right now there's a year to year so
  


21   that summer is reconciled with summer.  We hold
  


22   on to that for quite a bit of time.  We think we
  


23   can reduce volatility by shortening that period
  


24   and doing the reconciliation more quickly.
  


25            We would like to broaden the definition
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 1   of the power supply costs.  We want to capture
  


 2   all of our power supply costs in the ERC and
  


 3   that's some new ones that may be coming up we'll
  


 4   talk about.
  


 5            Also, there is a voltage adjustment
  


 6   that's done in the ERC and we're proposing to
  


 7   move that out of ERC and move it over actually
  


 8   into the individual customer class bill
  


 9   depending upon that customer and what voltage
  


10   they take -- their meter is located at.
  


11            These are the changes in the power
  


12   supply costs.  We want to include all of the
  


13   demand charges for purchase power and
  


14   transmission.  In there right now some of the
  


15   demand charges are excluded from going into ERC.
  


16   We would like to get them all in there.  Because
  


17   the demand charges truly are you don't have
  


18   demand unless you need energy.  This truly is an
  


19   energy cost to us.
  


20            The SPP, which is the Southwestern
  


21   Power Pool is the regional transmission
  


22   organization we belong to.  There's a lot of
  


23   development in the SPP about future market
  


24   things that we'll have to operate in to stay
  


25   connected to the grid.  There will be some new
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 1   market requirements, consolidated balancing
  


 2   authority.  There is some new transmission costs
  


 3   to get extra high voltage transmission
  


 4   available, to get wind energy out of the
  


 5   Midwest.  You may have heard some of that in the
  


 6   paper.  That is a very big discussion point.
  


 7   And then ancillary services which is some pretty
  


 8   specific generation-type definitions.
  


 9            We would like to recover costs
  


10   associated with demand response programs that
  


11   would give the utility actual control over
  


12   customer load.  If we see the load is going to
  


13   go up so high on a day and we can do something
  


14   to control that load, that is -- and bring it
  


15   down, then we don't have to go out and buy
  


16   additional generation for that time period.  So
  


17   we would like to recover some of those costs for
  


18   that type of equipment and charges.
  


19            Also, some -- the renewable energy
  


20   credits that come with our alternative energy,
  


21   our renewable energy, when those are sold back
  


22   to the marketplace we want to give a portion of
  


23   that back to our customers in the form of a
  


24   credit.  In the reconciliation adjustment.
  


25            I think that is the end of mine and I'm
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 1   going to ask Darrel Dorsey, next presenter.
  


 2                  MR. DORSEY:  Good evening.
  


 3            I will start off with a little
  


 4   background on the electric production and supply
  


 5   division for those of you that may not be
  


 6   familiar with our organization.  We have got
  


 7   about 211 employees in this division, the bulk
  


 8   of which are at the power generating stations.
  


 9            The Nearman plant is the youngest
  


10   plant.  It is not really new anymore.  It is 29
  


11   years old, but it is a single coal-fired unit,
  


12   235 megawatts.  We also have one combustion
  


13   turbine.  Our newest combustion turbine, CT4, is
  


14   at that site as well.
  


15            Quindaro power station has two
  


16   coal-fired units.  It also has three combustion
  


17   turbines.
  


18            The old Kaw power station had three
  


19   coal-fired units that also fired natural gas.
  


20   The Kaw power station has been in long-term cold
  


21   storage since about 2004.  It's not operating at
  


22   this time and there's nothing within this plan
  


23   to operate that station.
  


24            There is a number of other departments
  


25   within the division.  Environmental services
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 1   provides monitoring and reporting for all of our
  


 2   regulatory requirements.  They also provide the
  


 3   same services to the rest of the utility in some
  


 4   other areas.
  


 5            Fuels, we have a lot of activity in the
  


 6   fuel procurement for both coal, natural gas, and
  


 7   oil.  All fuels we're using at the plants for
  


 8   the main units.
  


 9            Planning, which is Blake's department.
  


10            Energy control center, which is the
  


11   dispatching of the energy from the power plants,
  


12   but they also handle the shorter term wholesale
  


13   power market, both selling power on the market
  


14   and buying power from the market.
  


15            Then key accounts, which is a set-up to
  


16   address the unique concerns of our top 50 key
  


17   account customers.
  


18            First of all, in 2010, we have made a
  


19   lost of cuts to stay within the revenue that we
  


20   have right now.  Just in 2010 we made from the
  


21   operational maintenance budget alone about $4
  


22   million worth of cuts in deferrals, work that
  


23   we're pushing out to future years.
  


24            One big example is our Combustion
  


25   Turbine #1 and 3 overhauls.  These are the three
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 1   combustion turbines that I mentioned were at the
  


 2   Quindaro power station.  Unit 1 is the oldest.
  


 3   Unit 3 and 1 are both due for overhauls, where
  


 4   we basically open the machine, inspect and make
  


 5   repairs as necessary and reassemble it.  It's
  


 6   the kind of the equipment we don't know what we
  


 7   have wrong until we open it and inspect it.
  


 8   It's a big job.  I mean, we will spend over a
  


 9   million dollars on each one of those just on the
  


10   inspection, the open and close and inspect.  And
  


11   then the necessary repairs are determined as we
  


12   go.
  


13            We made a lot of other cuts as well.
  


14   We deferred some boiler feed pump overhauls,
  


15   structural repairs.  We made unilateral cuts
  


16   across a lot of maintenance accounts.  I mean,
  


17   most of the maintenance accounts, quite frankly.
  


18            Again, we deferred some of the demand
  


19   side management programs that we'd been looking
  


20   into that Blake mentioned.  Environmental data
  


21   acquisition systems.  We built in some
  


22   additional attrition on our labor.  As Don
  


23   mentioned, we're holding off on filling
  


24   positions to save some cash.  Delayed vehicle
  


25   procurements.  And that is just a sampling of
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 1   some of the budget cuts that we've made not only
  


 2   at the power stations but to meet the O & M
  


 3   budget.
  


 4            Capital cuts in our capital dollars, we
  


 5   cut a good $9 million.  About $3 million worth
  


 6   of work that we would do at Nearman right now if
  


 7   we had the funding, and about 6 million at
  


 8   Quindaro.
  


 9            Again, just some examples.  Combustion
  


10   Turbine #5 will be the next combustion turbine
  


11   addition.  You may recall at one time we were
  


12   going to add another coal-fired plant.  We
  


13   haven't done so.  We don't believe we can do so
  


14   in the near-term future, so our next plan is to
  


15   install another combustion turbine.
  


16            Now, this is actually the Combustion
  


17   Turbine 4 that went into service in 2006.
  


18   Combustion Turbine 5 in this plan is planned to
  


19   be the same, basically a mirror image, a
  


20   duplicate of Combustion Turbine 4, would sit
  


21   right next to it out at the Nearman power plant.
  


22   That is in this five-year capital plan.
  


23            Some other projects that were pushed
  


24   out, mercury monitoring equipment, lightning
  


25   protection systems, roofing replacements.  We
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 1   have roofs that we're just repairing until we
  


 2   can take care of a larger replacement project.
  


 3            Levee improvements, both Nearman and
  


 4   Quindaro have levees to protect them from
  


 5   flooding.  If you recall the last big flood,
  


 6   Nearman, for example, was totally surrounded.
  


 7   100 percent surrounded by flood water.  It needs
  


 8   a lot of levee improvements to maintain its
  


 9   certification and that level of protection.
  


10            The Quindaro flood wall needs some
  


11   work.  We pushed both of those out to 2011 as
  


12   well.  We're comfortable in doing so at this
  


13   time predominantly because the Quindaro project,
  


14   the Corps of Engineers has just recently done
  


15   some more detailed analysis of the flood wall.
  


16   There is a possibility they will be reducing the
  


17   scope and stretching out the work.  So we were
  


18   quite comfortable with pushing that one out.
  


19            The Nearman project, we felt we had
  


20   time.  It's mainly a lot of rock riff raff that
  


21   has to be repaired and replaced, but the work
  


22   will have to be done.
  


23            Combustion Turbine #3 air duct.  These
  


24   combustion turbines have a lot of steel liners
  


25   inside the air ducts.  We're having problems
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 1   with it.  Needs to be replaced.
  


 2            Mill gears and liners, traveling
  


 3   screens for the intakes.  Again, these are --
  


 4   this is just a sampling of some of the projects
  


 5   we cut and deferred and work that we pushed out.
  


 6   We probably had at least 24 projects of this
  


 7   nature that were deferred to later years.
  


 8            As far as our future needs, we will
  


 9   need to complete a lot of this deferred work.
  


10   It's not like we can keep pushing it out
  


11   forever.  You know, where we've pushed work out
  


12   we were comfortable with for the time being but
  


13   we know we've got to do it starting in 2011 and
  


14   12 to get caught up.
  


15            Also in the five-year capital plan,
  


16   though, are the overhauls for all three of the
  


17   coal-fired units.  Just as I mentioned with
  


18   combustion turbines, we have to periodically
  


19   completely tear them down, inspect them and make
  


20   repairs as necessary.  All three coal-fired
  


21   units will experience that in this five-year
  


22   period.
  


23            Combustion Turbines #2 and 4 will also
  


24   undergo overhauls.  Lori mentioned the low NOx
  


25   burner work, that will be installed by 2012 at
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 1   the two plants.  We have to replace Nearman air
  


 2   heater baskets and install the new combustion
  


 3   turbine.  And, again, that is just a sampling of
  


 4   some of the major work that is in the five-year
  


 5   plan.
  


 6            What it equates to is the Nearman
  


 7   projects over the next five years require about
  


 8   $20 million.  The Quindaro projects about $35
  


 9   million.  The new CT 5 is currently running an
  


10   estimate of about $74.5 million.  And as Lori
  


11   mentioned earlier, the low NOx burner project is
  


12   about 40 million.  We actually have engineers
  


13   working right now on an update for that cost but
  


14   we feel it's going to be pretty close.
  


15            The bulk of this will be funded through
  


16   bond funding to get these capital needs.  So it
  


17   is not a matter of we have to raise this much
  


18   money in five years.  We only have to raise the
  


19   debt service requirement for those bonds for
  


20   that time period.
  


21            Oh, we mentioned the environmental
  


22   surcharge rider.  The first project is related
  


23   to the Kansas City ozone.  You have probably
  


24   seen the ozone alerts on the news on TV and on
  


25   some of the buses going around downtown.  They
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 1   finally have come out with the mandates that
  


 2   require us to install the low NOx burners and
  


 3   overfire air systems to help bring down the
  


 4   ozone in the Kansas City area.  Now, that's
  


 5   about a $40 million project.  That is what this
  


 6   initial environmental surcharge will recapture
  


 7   is the bond debt service to retire the bonds for
  


 8   that environmental project.
  


 9            But there is a wide range of additional
  


10   environmental concerns that we know are on the
  


11   horizon.  They haven't come to fruition yet.  We
  


12   can't say exactly when they will but we know
  


13   they're going to be costly.
  


14            Regional haze is like how well you can
  


15   see from one mountain range to the other.  You
  


16   know, a hundred years ago, it was crystal clear,
  


17   today it's a little hazy.  They want to clear
  


18   that up.  If regional haze kicks in for Nearman,
  


19   and we are hoping it won't do so for another
  


20   five years, but we estimated about $169 million
  


21   just to do scrubbers for that power station.  So
  


22   there is potentially some large dollars involved
  


23   in those projects.
  


24            Hazardous air pollutants.  Mercury.
  


25   They did have a mercury rule out.  It was
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 1   rescinded.  We know it's going to come back out
  


 2   again.  We may have to install some mercury
  


 3   controls.
  


 4            Particulate matter.  The National
  


 5   Ambient Air Quality Standard revisions, just
  


 6   pointing out, those are kind of a baseline that
  


 7   kind of sets the standard from which all these
  


 8   programs evolve.  And they continue to evolve
  


 9   and tighten up on the ambient air quality
  


10   standards.  These programs will come to
  


11   fruition.  There's been a lot of talk about
  


12   carbon lately.  I don't know where it is going
  


13   to go.  We just know that when it gets here it's
  


14   going to be expensive.  So there is a lot of
  


15   future concerns where this environmental
  


16   surcharge can come into play as well to retire,
  


17   again, the capital funds necessary to do these
  


18   major environmental projects.
  


19            One of the things that frequently gets
  


20   asked is what are we doing to mitigate some of
  


21   those environmental costs, you know, because we
  


22   have these coal-fired units and gas units.  We
  


23   have emissions.  We already have quite a bit of
  


24   alternative energy in our system.  Green power
  


25   as people like to call it.  We have 38 megawatts
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 1   coming in from the Southwest Power
  


 2   Administration, 5 megawatts from the Western
  


 3   Area Power Administration.  We have a 25
  


 4   megawatt take on the Smoky Hills Wind Farm,
  


 5   which is the one off of I-70 as you go out west
  


 6   of Salina.  And we just recently started pulling
  


 7   in 1.6 megawatts off of a new landfill gas
  


 8   project.  So we are in a pretty good position
  


 9   right now.
  


10            Now, I should mention the state of
  


11   Kansas does not -- nor the federal government
  


12   requires us to have a mandatory renewable energy
  


13   portfolio, but this is what we have on, I guess
  


14   you would say, a voluntary basis.  So that does
  


15   help us mitigate some of our emissions costs to
  


16   a degree.
  


17            Future energy supplies, we do continue
  


18   to work on future renewables.  That's something
  


19   that planning, Blake, works on quite extensively
  


20   looking at when the next opportunity is for
  


21   additional landfill gas, wind energy, hydro.
  


22   You know, whatever we can find we are willing to
  


23   take a look at.
  


24            Conventional purchase power agreements
  


25   where we sign up with another utility to buy
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 1   their power for a period of time.  If the right
  


 2   offer is made and it's cheaper than what we can
  


 3   do it ourselves, we will buy the power from the
  


 4   other utility.
  


 5            The Southwest Power Pool energy
  


 6   markets.  As Blake mentioned, those are evolving
  


 7   markets.  We are market participants.  Right now
  


 8   it's just a real-time -- right now they -- you
  


 9   know, today's a power-type market, but they are
  


10   evolving day-ahead markets, ancillary service
  


11   markets.  I don't know if they will manage to
  


12   pull together any capacity markets, but we will
  


13   continue to participate in those as well to
  


14   provide your energy.
  


15            Of course, demand side management as
  


16   Blake mentioned is a great endeavor.  It has got
  


17   a lot of potential for us to have control of
  


18   energy in the community to help out this overall
  


19   situation.  It has got some real value.
  


20            But in the short term, our next
  


21   addition is, as I mentioned earlier, natural gas
  


22   generation by adding a combustion turbine at the
  


23   Nearman power station.
  


24            So that is kind of an overview of what
  


25   is in the five-year capital plan and the cost of
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 1   service for the electric production and supply
  


 2   division.
  


 3            With that, I will turn it over to Bill
  


 4   Johnson.
  


 5                  MR. JOHNSON:  Thank you, Darrell.
  


 6            Again, my name is Bill Johnson.  I'm
  


 7   manager of electric operations and technology.
  


 8            And just like Darrell, we have got a
  


 9   sizable workforce.  We've got about 199
  


10   employees within that division.  What the
  


11   division is primarily responsible for is taking
  


12   the energy generated at our power plants and
  


13   transporting and delivering that energy to each
  


14   and every business and home in the Kansas City
  


15   community.
  


16            We have got -- some of the departments
  


17   that make up electric operations and technology
  


18   is our T & D section, we've got our metering
  


19   section.  Information technology.  We have got
  


20   our fleet or our transportation.  We provide a
  


21   lot of transportation support for the entire
  


22   organization.
  


23            What we have in our five-year forecast,
  


24   which is part of this cost of service, are
  


25   capital projects to go in and rebuild a lot of
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 1   over and underground distribution, and also do
  


 2   some upgrades on some of our transmission
  


 3   circuits.  Got about $56 million for
  


 4   distribution work alone, and I will get more --
  


 5   and give you more specific information about
  


 6   this.
  


 7            Transmission upgrades are about 33
  


 8   million.  Substation improvements and new
  


 9   additions were about $42 million.  And the
  


10   AMI/AMR project which is advanced metering, or
  


11   automated meter reading system, is about $13
  


12   million.  And a $16 million investment in our
  


13   existing radio system, two-way radio system,
  


14   which is a system that all of our field crews
  


15   use.  Electric, water, customer service field
  


16   crews.  But also it's kind of a joint use radio
  


17   system where we also share that radio system
  


18   with the Unified Government.  Police, fire,
  


19   emergency management also rides on that same
  


20   system.
  


21            The system is at a point where it is
  


22   starting to run out of warranty, where it is
  


23   starting to lose a lot of manufacturing and
  


24   support on that system.  And we are looking at a
  


25   number of avenues trying to create -- get some
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 1   additional financing, but it's simply past the
  


 2   point where we need to start looking at
  


 3   replacing it.
  


 4            This is a construction overview of what
  


 5   we are proposing to do with our T & D
  


 6   construction plant.  We want to build new 161
  


 7   substations and do some upgrades to our 15 kV
  


 8   distribution network.  The reason for that is
  


 9   there is an increase for energy that is
  


10   continuing to go up.
  


11            And, also, we have got a service
  


12   territory that is still expanding.  A lot of the
  


13   development that you see out west, a lot of that
  


14   development is going into places where we really
  


15   don't have adequate distribution circuits.  So
  


16   we're having to extend our distribution network
  


17   further and further out to meet that new growth.
  


18            And, also, homes are -- even though
  


19   they are more energy efficient, homes are
  


20   becoming more and more bigger.  Appliances are
  


21   using more energy.  While some of them are using
  


22   less, you know, the flat screen TVs and some of
  


23   the other things you're seeing are driving up
  


24   that demand for new energy.
  


25            The other thing we are wanting to do at
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 1   our substation, and this is a plan that we have
  


 2   started some time ago, is to continue converting
  


 3   a lot of our 69 line kV substations to 161.
  


 4   What I mean by that, if you took a look at our
  


 5   service territory, about -- we've got 29 major
  


 6   substations and about half of those substations
  


 7   are 161 kV or 161,000 volt substations.  The
  


 8   other half are 69,000 substations.
  


 9            We started converting those substations
  


10   over to 161 to increase reliability for all of
  


11   our customers and also to move our transmission
  


12   network to one voltage.  So in the long run that
  


13   will reduce cost and also eliminate some of the
  


14   problems we're having with some of the aging
  


15   infrastructure.  Our 69 kV system is our only
  


16   system.  As it stands now, the utility spends
  


17   more dollars than we would like because we are
  


18   having to maintain both systems at the same
  


19   time.  So we are trying to mitigate some of that
  


20   by moving it to one standardized or one voltage.
  


21            Same thing with our 15 kV distribution
  


22   system.  We have got two distribution voltages
  


23   in KCK.  As we build new substations and convert
  


24   those 69 kV stations to 161, that also gives us
  


25   an opportunity to get our distribution network
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 1   to one voltage, too, so we're not having to
  


 2   support two.  And then the other part of the
  


 3   project is just to do some upgrade to our
  


 4   southern 161 loop that will add some capacity.
  


 5            A little bit deeper detail on the
  


 6   substation transmission projects that are
  


 7   actually in the budget is our Wolcott substation
  


 8   is the first one I will talk about.  It is a new
  


 9   substation that is being built out in the
  


10   Wolcott community.  The purpose for this is to
  


11   create a new intertie with Kansas City Power &
  


12   Light.  Our intertie right now is at Maywood
  


13   substation at 94th and Parallel.  This one was
  


14   set further north and it will create a new
  


15   intertie.
  


16            It will also provide redundant service
  


17   to a substation that was -- that is already in
  


18   the Piper community.  If you go out 123rd
  


19   Street, there is a substation that we energized
  


20   about five years ago called Piper West.
  


21            We need to build a new Wolcott inner
  


22   sub -- and a transmission project to provide a
  


23   secondary feed to that substation so that we
  


24   will have a back-up feed in case we need -- we
  


25   lose the one transmission line that's feed it,
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 1   we will have a secondary line that's already
  


 2   there.  Or we can take it out for maintenance.
  


 3   We will also have that secondary line there.
  


 4            We are also proposing an east Fairfax
  


 5   substation.  This project is -- goes along with
  


 6   what I said earlier with converting the 69 kV
  


 7   substations to 161.  What we are proposing to do
  


 8   with Fairfax is to eliminate three existing 69
  


 9   kV substations and build one new one to replace
  


10   it.  It will also give us the ability to tackle
  


11   some of this aging infrastructure that's down
  


12   there.  And I will get a little bit deeper into
  


13   that in some slides that's coming up.  But it
  


14   will also give us a chance to expand and
  


15   increase our distribution reliability down there
  


16   and make Fairfax a place that we can market
  


17   better in the future but also provide and
  


18   support new growth to the existing customers
  


19   that are down there.  The customers want to
  


20   expand so we have to have distribution capacity
  


21   within our system to be able to support that.
  


22            The other main substation project is
  


23   Muncie substation.  Again, it is an existing
  


24   substation.  It's a 69 kV substation that we
  


25   would like to convert over to a 161.  It is one
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 1   of our oldest substations on the system.  In
  


 2   fact, the two oldest substations is -- one is at
  


 3   Fairfax and this is the other one.
  


 4            I will talk about some of the age and
  


 5   infrastructure down here later on and show you
  


 6   why this -- converting this substation is past
  


 7   the critical state is something that is in our
  


 8   plan and why we need to replace that.  The main
  


 9   thing that goes into that decision is that's one
  


10   of the substations that provide service to the
  


11   downtown community.  So that is what makes it
  


12   critical.  And like I said earlier, it's also
  


13   one of our older substations.
  


14            Here is a map of some of the projects
  


15   that I just talked about.  What I would like to
  


16   do is draw your attention to this line here
  


17   (indicating).  This is a transmission line out
  


18   west.  This is the 435 interchange.  This line
  


19   is owned by Kansas City Power & Light.
  


20            What is interesting about it is here is
  


21   our Maywood substation (indicating), here is the
  


22   Piper substation (indicating) I talked about
  


23   earlier.  There is -- this transmission line is
  


24   primarily responsible for feeding and providing
  


25   service to this entire area here (indicating).
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 1            And the interesting thing is we are
  


 2   providing service off a line that BPU don't even
  


 3   own.  We tapped into that line here to feed
  


 4   Piper here, so Piper and Maywood is already
  


 5   providing distribution service.  This is a
  


 6   transmission line project that is already on the
  


 7   way and we hope to complete it by the end of
  


 8   this year.
  


 9            The substation will probably be
  


10   energized next year and our plans following that
  


11   is to construct the new 161 line from Wolcott
  


12   back down to our Nearman power plant that
  


13   Darrell talked about earlier.  The reason for
  


14   that is BPU needs to have some ownership in --
  


15   of transmissions that feeds its community.  And
  


16   we just take it away from relying on another
  


17   utility to provide that type of service to
  


18   Kansas City.
  


19            We talked about Fairfax.  A lot of our
  


20   budget is going to be spent in this area just
  


21   building a new substation and replacing three.
  


22   And this is Muncie here.
  


23            Some of the transmission work I talked
  


24   about earlier is this other loop.  It's a
  


25   transmission line that is already there.  Our
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 1   plans are -- is to leave that -- the poles
  


 2   there.  Leave everything else there, just
  


 3   reconduct, put up a little bit bigger wire so we
  


 4   can have a little bit more capacity built within
  


 5   that circuit.
  


 6            I've talked about transmission
  


 7   projects, now I would like to shift to
  


 8   distribution.  Part of our strategy for wanting
  


 9   to upgrade some of our distribution is to mainly
  


10   focus on some of these 60 to 80-year-old
  


11   underground and overhead infrastructure that's
  


12   more in our central core for the downtown area,
  


13   in Fairfax, and in the Armourdale area more
  


14   specifically.
  


15            But years ago the design was to put in
  


16   a lot of lead and paper cable.  That requires
  


17   specialized-type work.  It's the whole
  


18   infrastructure.  Most engineering standards have
  


19   moved away from that type of construction, and
  


20   we've already started replacing a lot of it.
  


21   Our plan is to continue replacing that.  It will
  


22   provide a lot more efficiency, reliability to
  


23   our system.  While we are going through it, we
  


24   will have the ability to also take a look at a
  


25   lot of duct bank manholes that are that age,
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 1   too.  A lot of them are starting to deteriorate.
  


 2            We'll also be doing some overhead
  


 3   distribution upgrades in that area, too.  The
  


 4   primary reason is to again mitigate some of the
  


 5   aging infrastructures and also increase some of
  


 6   our load capacity.  A lot of the existing wire
  


 7   that is there now is really undersized based on
  


 8   what our today's standards are.  So going in and
  


 9   replacing some poles and putting up a little bit
  


10   larger wire will certainly help.  Not only
  


11   provide greater reliability but also add more
  


12   capacity.  And while we are in there, it would
  


13   be a good opportunity to take advantage of a lot
  


14   of vegetation management, trimming trees, and
  


15   doing some of the necessary work that would
  


16   eliminate some of the outages down the road.
  


17            The other thing I talk about with
  


18   Muncie is also, you know, picking up my focus on
  


19   how do we improve service to the downtown
  


20   community.  Muncie is one of two substations
  


21   that feed power to downtown.  There is some
  


22   dedicated feeders, meaning that there are
  


23   feeders that come downtown that really don't
  


24   have any or hardly -- or very few residential
  


25   customers attached to them.  Those are some of
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 1   the things that we are taking a look at first.
  


 2            What I want to pointed out on this map
  


 3   is where some of the distribution dollars are
  


 4   going to be spent.  Kind of got a color-coded
  


 5   chart here from 2010 to 2014 that just shows
  


 6   here is where we are spending dollars on the
  


 7   Fairfax project and some of the additional
  


 8   dollars that we are asking for under this rate
  


 9   increase will be spent in this area in 2010.  A
  


10   lot of this work out here is being done by a
  


11   previous bond request that we got last year.
  


12   But there is not enough dollars to really
  


13   complete some of the things that we are wanting
  


14   to do out there as well as down here, so that is
  


15   where the new dollars will come in to have a
  


16   bigger impact in these areas.
  


17            And then what we're doing is just kind
  


18   of follow this color code down and, you know, do
  


19   some rebuilding in this section in 2011, 2012,
  


20   and then work our way south.  With all this that
  


21   we have got in here, it's -- we'll make some
  


22   significant upgrades to some key areas but
  


23   certainly wouldn't be looking at rebuilding this
  


24   whole area here, just addressing some of the
  


25   more pressing needs.
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 1            Some of the spending by area.  I kind
  


 2   of split the -- our service territory along 635
  


 3   east and west and along I-70 north and south.
  


 4   And use it following that same -- that same
  


 5   quadrant.  The northeast is going to receive
  


 6   about $40 million worth of -- or that spending.
  


 7   Most of it would be in the Fairfax and the
  


 8   downtown area.  We will have some dollars in the
  


 9   residential area, mostly some of the overhead
  


10   rebuild.  This would be a lot of underground
  


11   that's downtown and some overhead in Fairfax.
  


12            The northwest, like I said earlier,
  


13   there is some financing already in place to take
  


14   care of some of those projects, but there's
  


15   going to be new service coming out of the
  


16   Wolcott substation.  We are already running new
  


17   feeders out of the Piper substation now.  And
  


18   what makes that -- what makes that important to
  


19   us is that this station that I talked about
  


20   earlier that is at 94th and Parallel, our plan
  


21   is to start shifting the residential customers
  


22   more and more away from that so -- so that that
  


23   substation can be better suited for a lot of the
  


24   entertainment and retail that is starting to
  


25   appear around the Village West area.  It will be
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 1   more and more a dedicated substation for growth
  


 2   in that area.
  


 3            The southeast is a lot of the
  


 4   transmission line upgrades and as well as the
  


 5   southwest.  It would just be reconducting some
  


 6   of those transmission lines that are already
  


 7   there.
  


 8            With this slide what I want to talk
  


 9   about is just some of the age of some of the
  


10   distribution here.  Why upgrading some of this
  


11   distribution is so important.  This section
  


12   here, which is east of 635, which I have already
  


13   talked about, it also has a lot of the lead and
  


14   paper cable and even some of the old overhead is
  


15   something that we want to upgrade.  Mainly
  


16   because a lot of this stuff is between 60 and 80
  


17   years old.  And if you get down into parts of
  


18   Fairfax and parts of Armourdale there may be
  


19   small sections that may even extend beyond that.
  


20            What we have done over the last 10
  


21   years is to go in with smaller projects and just
  


22   kind of make some upgrades, some -- you know,
  


23   smaller sections that we have rebuilt.  Like I
  


24   said earlier, we are not going to be able to
  


25   rebuild all of this but we can certainly go in







67


  
 1   and continue to focus on some of the more
  


 2   critical areas.  Some of the areas where we have
  


 3   some of the oldest infrastructures still there
  


 4   and continue to make upgrades until we can start
  


 5   making this area, you know, more reliable and
  


 6   provide the type of quality service that we
  


 7   would all want to continue to provide.
  


 8            Here is a map that just kind of shows
  


 9   how we got to where we are at.  Prior to 1964,
  


10   BPU served this section right here that is in
  


11   the yellow (indicating).  Throughout --
  


12   throughout the years we have continued to buy
  


13   more and more service territory from Kansas City
  


14   Power & Light.
  


15            In 1968, we acquired this service
  


16   territory in blue (indicating).  And then in
  


17   '71, we expanded out here (indicating).  '72, we
  


18   purchased all of this (indicating).  '74, we
  


19   purchased this section (indicating).  And then,
  


20   finally, in '82 we came out in this section
  


21   (indicating).
  


22            Now what we have done is as we bought
  


23   more service territory, we went in and upgraded
  


24   some of the transmission -- the old transmission
  


25   service there.  We did go in and put in some new
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 1   substations.  We didn't really do a lot of
  


 2   distribution upgrades.  We kind of left a lot of
  


 3   those circuits that we bought from Kansas City
  


 4   Power & Light in place.  But what it has done to
  


 5   us over the years, and because we haven't had
  


 6   the budget to completely do some of the things
  


 7   that we have tried to do in the past, you can
  


 8   see where our 69 substations began to age more
  


 9   and more.
  


10            Muncie substation, I talked about
  


11   earlier, is right here (indicating).  The
  


12   substation and the transformer that's there is
  


13   about 60 years old.  A new transformer has a
  


14   normal life expectancy of about 30 years.  So
  


15   this kind of shows you where we're at with the
  


16   age of these units.  74 percent of our
  


17   transformers are past 30 years old.  That is why
  


18   it's critical that BPU does not continue to push
  


19   this infrastructure further and further out into
  


20   the future because we're going to get to the
  


21   point where we can't support it.
  


22            This is another shot of all of our
  


23   transformers, all of our substation
  


24   transformers.  When you mix in the 161
  


25   transformers in our substations, these are our
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 1   newer units.  You can still see somewhere in the
  


 2   50 to 60 percent range.  You know, we still have
  


 3   a lot of transformers that are past 30 years
  


 4   old.
  


 5            In our conversion of 69 to 161
  


 6   conversion, a plan that we started is -- was
  


 7   creating this down here and is -- and we are
  


 8   removing this older section up here and this is
  


 9   what we are planning to do with this cost of
  


10   service study in our five-year forecast.  To do
  


11   that it is going to cost, you know, money.  You
  


12   know, just like everything else prices of
  


13   material, the prices of professional services
  


14   have gone up.
  


15            Don talked about some of the wire
  


16   transformers earlier in his introduction.  The
  


17   transformers that we're using is pretty standard
  


18   in the new substations that we are building now.
  


19   In 2005, that transformer was about $638,000.
  


20   In all of our substations, designs can put two
  


21   transformers in there so we have switching
  


22   capabilities within a substation.  We'll need to
  


23   take one transformer out for service and we've
  


24   got the other one there that's sized properly so
  


25   it can carry the load -- the majority of the
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 1   load of the substation.
  


 2            Since 2005, this transformer has gone
  


 3   from $638,000 to about 1.4 to 1.5 million
  


 4   dollars.  So, you know, as we go through and
  


 5   build new substations those projects are
  


 6   becoming more and more expensive to build.  So
  


 7   the distribution transformers, these are
  


 8   transformers that you see on the poles.  These
  


 9   are transformers you see right outside of a
  


10   business.  The lower voltage transformers.
  


11            There is 2007 prices -- price increases
  


12   since 2007 and these are transformers that we
  


13   commonly use every year for new construction,
  


14   storm restoration.  We go through probably 250
  


15   or so distribution transformers a year.
  


16            But the price increases range from
  


17   about 45 percent up to well over a hundred
  


18   percent in this short span, which is shorter
  


19   than what I talked about up here.  So this kind
  


20   of shows where the price of materials are going
  


21   up.
  


22            Here is just a few more pieces of
  


23   commonly used stock items.  Wooden poles, 35 and
  


24   45 foot poles that will increase 35 and 80
  


25   percent.  Wire for dis -- for, you know, the
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 1   rebuilding of the distribution circuits that I
  


 2   talked about overhead.  Underground wire you are
  


 3   looking at 200, 300, 363 percent price
  


 4   increases.  So these are serious increases in
  


 5   price that just gives you an idea of we need to
  


 6   finance these projects and these projects are
  


 7   becoming more and more expensive when we do
  


 8   build budgets to help support them.
  


 9            Darrell talked about earlier some of
  


10   the cuts that the production side has made, and,
  


11   you know, Don talked about some of the cuts
  


12   earlier, too, that the entire utility has made.
  


13   Just a snapshot of some of the things we have
  


14   done is reduce staffing.  We have certainly
  


15   delayed and deferred a lot of improvements over
  


16   the years that, you know, has been needed.  We
  


17   have pushed out a lot of upgrades in our
  


18   telecommunications, a lot of our IT systems.  We
  


19   made -- we made some investments in some areas
  


20   but some areas we really haven't touched in a
  


21   while and there are some things that we still
  


22   need to do there.
  


23            Vehicles and work equipment.  We
  


24   purchase all the work equipment and vehicles for
  


25   the utility and maintain them.  And it has been
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 1   about four years since we have bought any cars
  


 2   or work equipment other than maybe one or two.
  


 3   So we are starting to fall behind there and we
  


 4   are starting to see some of these units drive up
  


 5   our maintenance costs higher and higher.  And
  


 6   some of them are either -- even a piece of
  


 7   equipment that we have taken out of service so
  


 8   it is not available when we need it.  We are
  


 9   going to have to address this -- the situation,
  


10   especially when we are building some of these
  


11   other projects because these are the tools that
  


12   we use to not only maintain but also to build
  


13   the new projects that we are proposing.
  


14            Tree trimming has taken a big hit.  The
  


15   past budgets, we have had to cut our trimming
  


16   budget by about a fifth.  We also were driven by
  


17   inert to do a lot of tree trimming on our
  


18   transmission lines because we really didn't have
  


19   the budget to support that.  We just shifted
  


20   money from our distribution work over to our
  


21   transmission type of work.  The last two summers
  


22   have been, you know, cooler than normal.  We
  


23   have had storms that extend into the summertime.
  


24   So not maintaining those trees have created a
  


25   lot of outages and our community has suffered
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 1   through repeat outages.  We are hoping to build
  


 2   that back -- that tree trimming budget back up
  


 3   and get back on schedule.
  


 4            We have got about 34 locations which
  


 5   are substations and other facilities under
  


 6   electric operations.  And like Darrell talked
  


 7   about earlier, we have got roofing and HVAC
  


 8   systems, plumbing, things that we continue to
  


 9   push further and further out because we just
  


10   didn't have the dollars to help support it.
  


11            Parking surfaces, our grass cutting.
  


12   It is not just these locations but all of our
  


13   power plants, all of our water facilities, that
  


14   number goes quite a bit up when you look at all
  


15   the grass cutting.  Even the vacant lots that
  


16   BPU used to have equipment on them.  But, you
  


17   know, it's a vacant lot now and we still have to
  


18   maintain those properties.  And a few years ago
  


19   because of budget constraints we cut our grass
  


20   cutting budget by about 25 percent and we
  


21   haven't recovered from that yet.
  


22            While we were going through some of the
  


23   cuts, we have also made significant improvements
  


24   to our system.  SCADA, which is the supervisory
  


25   control system, that goes out and looks at all
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 1   of our substations, our energy control center,
  


 2   and can monitor all of our substations, the
  


 3   breakers, the transformers and control them.  We
  


 4   are starting to put in newer and better controls
  


 5   to make sure that the system control is what it
  


 6   needs to be not only today but into the future.
  


 7            We are also doing some major control
  


 8   work in our pump stations, too, to go along with
  


 9   that.
  


10            We purchased a geographic information
  


11   system which is basically a mapping system.  We
  


12   have taken a lot of paper maps and put them into
  


13   an asset database, and we are also extending
  


14   that out to our designers.  What that means is
  


15   we have a lot of -- a lot of our assets are on
  


16   desktops now.  We are taking old drawings out of
  


17   file cabinets, putting them into an electronic
  


18   database.  They are able to make better
  


19   decisions, know what is out in the system.  When
  


20   we make modifications we can make changes to our
  


21   mapping system, and then that information is
  


22   useful to feed into our new outage management
  


23   system.  That system went on line last year and
  


24   is a major upgrade than what we had in place
  


25   before.
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 1            What came with that is a new
  


 2   interactive voice response system.  So when you
  


 3   call into the system now there's a little bit
  


 4   different message.  What people don't see behind
  


 5   the scenes is we've cut our restoration efforts
  


 6   down significantly because the system takes the
  


 7   calls, routes them to and predicts where problem
  


 8   areas are and they show up on a map, this being
  


 9   created here and created within this product.
  


10   All of our dispatchers, our crews, know right
  


11   away where our outages are at so we can get our
  


12   crews out there a lot quicker.  Where, you know,
  


13   in the old days if we had 5,000 people out, then
  


14   there was 5,000 individual work tickets created.
  


15   And we had to just kind of sit down and group
  


16   tickets together and kind of figure out what is
  


17   going on.  The system does that automatically
  


18   for 5,000 outages.  For 5,000 customers out, may
  


19   only be 20 outages, 20 problems that create that
  


20   many outages.  We can go out now and work 20
  


21   problems and get people back on.
  


22            Last month we had a storm where we had
  


23   about 10,700 people out and it took us about a
  


24   day and a half to go through that restoration
  


25   process and get everybody back on.  I can't
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 1   remember any other time where we have made that
  


 2   much progress in that short period of time.
  


 3            We have got an asset management system
  


 4   for substation maintenance and pump station
  


 5   maintenance that we are continuing to improve.
  


 6   Our plan is to roll this into -- where we're
  


 7   pushing those work tickets out into the field.
  


 8   Some of our troubleshooters already have laptops
  


 9   so we are trying to create communications to
  


10   push those work orders out and further increase
  


11   efficiency.
  


12            We have invested into a PILOT AMI
  


13   system.  We have about 4,000 electric meters and
  


14   about 1500 water meters that are the automated
  


15   meter readers -- meters that are being read
  


16   remotely.  That project is a project that we
  


17   want to extend and expand.
  


18            We applied for a smart grid grant from
  


19   the DOE last year, just like almost every
  


20   utility in the country.  We were not successful
  


21   in getting the grant dollars but BPU has already
  


22   had this project in its strategy.  And what we
  


23   would like to do is build that system out in
  


24   three years for the electric side of this, about
  


25   a $13 million project.  What it will do for us
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 1   is create a lot of efficiency and reduce a lot
  


 2   of operating costs.
  


 3            Today we send a lot of vehicles back
  


 4   and forth to customers' houses for a number of
  


 5   reasons, to collect reads, to do -- collect
  


 6   rereads, and turn on and turn off for diversion.
  


 7   We can automate a lot of those work processes
  


 8   within this system.  We can also collect hourly
  


 9   reads.  What that will become is useful
  


10   information to all of our customers and also
  


11   enable our customers to be able to take that
  


12   information and make better energy -- better
  


13   choices with how they use energy.
  


14            And there are some of our industrial
  


15   customers that are already receiving hourly
  


16   reads and they are making good business
  


17   decisions based on having that data.  We can
  


18   build up a load profile and that is taking a
  


19   monthly or an hourly profile of what the
  


20   customer's usage patterns are, and, there again,
  


21   giving that back to the customer, whether it is
  


22   by website or whether it is through one of these
  


23   in-home displays or home area network systems.
  


24            Darrell talked about demand side
  


25   management.  Another thing that goes with that







78


  
 1   is demand response.  The AMI system basically
  


 2   creates a communication system to and from the
  


 3   utility, to the customer's house and back.  One
  


 4   thing that a lot of utilities are doing is
  


 5   putting in programable thermostats.  But this
  


 6   will provide the communications network that
  


 7   will allow the utility to enter into contracts
  


 8   and to control these thermostats to help reduce
  


 9   peak loading especially in the summertime.
  


10            The thing that we have been watching
  


11   also is General Motors and several foreign
  


12   carmakers have electric vehicles that they're
  


13   proposing to roll out this year.  Our
  


14   distribution system is really not -- we don't
  


15   have enough controls.  We don't -- can't monitor
  


16   it.  There is some sizing limits into -- in some
  


17   of them.  So depending on where the charging
  


18   stations show up, building this network and also
  


19   doing some distribution upgrade is really going
  


20   to be required.  So that when these charging
  


21   stations start showing up all across our service
  


22   territory, we can start providing that type of
  


23   service and having systems that support, you
  


24   know, the new Chevy Volt that I believe is
  


25   scheduled to start this year.
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 1            This is our service centers.
  


 2   Maintenance -- our show-up area for most of our
  


 3   field crews to go out and -- these are the
  


 4   linemen, these are the other guys that go out
  


 5   and maintain our systems.  Some of the projects
  


 6   that we've pushed out or delayed are on some of
  


 7   the roofs and the HVACs are at this location.
  


 8   It's also at one of the 29 substations that are
  


 9   around.
  


10            We have had some of this roof replaced
  


11   through the main center.  Here is our inside
  


12   warehouse.  We have got sections of roof here,
  


13   we have got canopies that are rusted.  And we
  


14   have got water that is coming inside the
  


15   storeroom.  We have had to shift inventory
  


16   around just to keep it from getting damaged.
  


17   There is a project in our five-year forecast is
  


18   to complete this.  This has been -- the last
  


19   time we addressed it was about three years ago.
  


20   We was delaying the final replacement for the
  


21   last three years so we have elected to try to
  


22   address this.
  


23            And then, finally, my last slide is --
  


24   this is what you typically see every day, you
  


25   know, despite having -- not having enough cash
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 1   to address a lot of the -- and make a lot of the
  


 2   improvements that we want.  We still have people
  


 3   out providing services, working long hours doing
  


 4   the best we can to provide quality service to
  


 5   all of our customers.  These guys work through a
  


 6   lot of adverse weather conditions and they will
  


 7   continue to do that, but, you know, it is
  


 8   important that we start replacing and repairing
  


 9   more and more of this infrastructure and that
  


10   will only benefit the customers that we all
  


11   serve.
  


12            I would like to now introduce Jim Epp,
  


13   manager of water.
  


14                  MR. EPP:  Thank you, Bill, and
  


15   good evening.  My name is Jim Epp, I'm the
  


16   manager of water operations.
  


17            I want to start my presentation by
  


18   briefly touching on the past 10 years.  The
  


19   reason I want to do this is this is my
  


20   opportunity to say thank you to the rate payer,
  


21   to the community for the support you have shown
  


22   for our water system.  We couldn't have done it
  


23   without you.  We, the rate payer, the staff and
  


24   the board has supported and completed
  


25   significant improvements to the community water
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 1   supply and treatment transmission and storage
  


 2   systems.  These improvements will benefit our
  


 3   community for the next 50 years.
  


 4            This is where we were in 1993.
  


 5   Quindaro water treatment plant, it was anywhere
  


 6   from 50 to 80 years old.  It was very spread
  


 7   out.  It was expensive to operate.  Very
  


 8   expensive to maintain.  Labor intensive.  We had
  


 9   three operators per shift and it is in the
  


10   floodplain.  Right here it is protected by a
  


11   flood wall.  Still is protected by that same
  


12   flood wall.
  


13            In the early 1990s we started planning
  


14   for what to do with this treatment plant,
  


15   whether to stay there for the long run or to
  


16   build a new plant.
  


17            Then the flood in 1993 hit.  This is
  


18   that same 14-foot high flood wall.  At this
  


19   point it was within a couple feet of going over
  


20   the top of it.
  


21            This is the backside of that wall.  The
  


22   water level about right here (indicating).  And
  


23   the entire treatment plant area was literally a
  


24   war zone.  We survived the flood, we stayed on
  


25   line, and we suffered significant damage to our
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 1   filter building.  At this point in time through
  


 2   our rate payer support the decision was made to
  


 3   move to a different site and build a new
  


 4   treatment plant.
  


 5            And this is where we are today.  We are
  


 6   at our new Nearman water treatment plant.  It's
  


 7   above the 500-year floodplain on a bluff.
  


 8   Everything is housed in one building.  The
  


 9   laboratory, the filters, chemical feed
  


10   equipment, high service pump station, reservoir,
  


11   and then we have our basins out back.  This is a
  


12   highly efficient plant.  It can operate with one
  


13   person per shift on the second or third shifts.
  


14   And it is an award winning plant.  It was
  


15   awarded the -- from the American Water Works
  


16   Association and Environmental Protection Agency
  


17   the director's award for the partnership for
  


18   safe drinking water.
  


19            It features two horizontal collector
  


20   wells.  They are located on the banks of the
  


21   Missouri River.  I think this is one of our most
  


22   important community assets.  Each well can
  


23   produce 40 million gallons per day.  They are
  


24   the largest in the country.  They are the
  


25   largest because of the high productive aquifer
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 1   that lies below the Missouri River.
  


 2            This is a picture of that same
  


 3   collector well during a flood event.  This is
  


 4   another advantage of a collector well.  We have
  


 5   overhead power.  It can operate during a flood.
  


 6   It continues to draw water below the -- beneath
  


 7   the Missouri River during a drought condition.
  


 8   If there was a spill event on the river, it
  


 9   would probably flow right on by.  It also helps
  


10   us to protect against Missouri River
  


11   degradation.
  


12            This is our second collector well.  It
  


13   was completed about 2003.
  


14            And a little more explanation on how a
  


15   collector well works.  This is what you saw in
  


16   the picture.  This is what is below ground.  It
  


17   goes down 100 feet to almost bedrock.  This is
  


18   the aquifer and these radials go out into the
  


19   aquifer, collect the water into the main shaft,
  


20   and then it is pumped out through these pumps to
  


21   our water treatment plant.  And the Missouri
  


22   River is right here (indicating).  The water
  


23   flows down into the aquifer from the Missouri
  


24   River so it continues to be recharged.  Again,
  


25   this is one of the community's most important
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 1   assets.
  


 2            Also, in approximately 2003 -- no, 2006
  


 3   we completed the Robert L. Milan Pump station.
  


 4   It is a 30-million gallon per day station with a
  


 5   6-million gallon reservoir.  This helps us
  


 6   support growth to the west and provide storage
  


 7   for the entire system.
  


 8            This is 51st and Gibbs.  Recently
  


 9   completed 2-million gallon elevated tank.  Helps
  


10   stabilize the pressure in this system, reduce
  


11   main breaks and provide fire protection.
  


12            So where we are today.  Don has already
  


13   gone through this slide.  Our sales are down
  


14   approximately 18 percent from 2006.  Why are
  


15   sales down?  Economy, weather, flat to declining
  


16   population, and conservation.  Conservation has
  


17   been going on in the water industry for several
  


18   years now.
  


19            Where are we at with our BPU financial
  


20   policy?  Our goal is to have 1.6 times debt
  


21   service coverage, 60 days operating cash.  We
  


22   were placed on a credit watch by our credit
  


23   rating agencies.  If we don't shore up our
  


24   credit rating, this would lead into lower credit
  


25   ratings which means higher borrowing costs.







85


  
 1            What have we done to cut our budget?
  


 2   We reduced operation and maintenance by 8
  


 3   percent.  We are holding 9 percent of our staff
  


 4   positions open.  Froze salaries and delayed
  


 5   capital improvement projects on aging
  


 6   infrastructure.
  


 7            Water division staffing.  Prior to
  


 8   opening the Nearman water treatment plant in
  


 9   2000, we had 118 authorized positions.  Today we
  


10   have 108, and currently we have 99 of them
  


11   filled.
  


12            Going forward.  We need to replace
  


13   aging infrastructure.  Our water system needs
  


14   are 60 million in capital improvements to
  


15   replace outdated control systems, replace aging
  


16   water distribution infrastructure, improve our
  


17   storage at the Nearman water treatment plant,
  


18   and implement automated meter reading which
  


19   Bill's already discussed.
  


20            Aging infrastructure.  We need to
  


21   increase our funding program to replace mains
  


22   that are 50 to 100 years old.  Maintain our
  


23   programs to replace old valves, hydrants and
  


24   service lines.  Replace meters and implement
  


25   automated meter reading.  Replace our outdated







86


  
 1   control systems and our aging fleet.  We have
  


 2   delayed fleet replacement for four years now.
  


 3            This is what happens with aging water
  


 4   mains.  You have all probably seen one.  They
  


 5   are very expensive to repair.  We spend $500,000
  


 6   alone just in pavement repair for one of these
  


 7   main breaks and well over a million total a year
  


 8   just from repairing our main breaks.
  


 9            We average 600 per year.  80 percent of
  


10   our main leaks are on 4-inch and smaller mains
  


11   that are 50 to 100 years old.  We have 250 miles
  


12   of these mains.  Total cost to replace them
  


13   would be 66 million.  This is an expensive
  


14   endeavor.  We can't do it all at once.  We're
  


15   not proposing to spend all 66 million, but we
  


16   are proposing to start a 10-year program at 1.5
  


17   million per year to replace 35 miles of the most
  


18   deteriorated mains.  Currently we only budget
  


19   $400,000 per year.
  


20            This is what an old 2-inch main looks
  


21   like.  This is probably 50 years plus.  And it
  


22   is very deteriorated.  And these are the types
  


23   of mains that break and we are in need of
  


24   repairing.
  


25            A lot of these mains are east of 635.







87


  
 1   This is 635 right here (indicating).  It is the
  


 2   older part of our system.  Here is the Kansas
  


 3   River.  A lot of these mains are located in the
  


 4   northeast and eastern parts of the county.
  


 5            Total cap improvements by area, we are
  


 6   proposing 60 million.  55 percent of that 60
  


 7   million are for systemwide improvements.
  


 8   Improvements that benefit everyone.  35 percent
  


 9   are for the eastern part of the county and 10
  


10   percent for the western.
  


11            Eastern water projects include Unified
  


12   Government street projects, mill and overlay.
  


13   When the city goes out and mill and overlay the
  


14   street, we try to get out ahead of them to
  


15   repair anything we need to repair.  So once it
  


16   is done we're not in there tearing up the street
  


17   when there is a main break.  So we do the best
  


18   job we can to coordinate with the city.
  


19            I mentioned our main leak replacement
  


20   program.  Distribution system improvements.
  


21   Service repair and replacement.  Fire hydrant
  


22   and valve replacement.  Total $21 million.
  


23            And, finally, the purpose for the water
  


24   rate increase.  Very similar to electric,
  


25   maintain our credit rating, to reduce costs in
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 1   borrowing for capital improvements, improve our
  


 2   debt service coverage to 1.4, and operating cash
  


 3   to 45 days.  And support capital improvements
  


 4   and replace our aging water distribution and
  


 5   control systems.
  


 6            And to conclude for the entire staff,
  


 7   reason for rate increase to improve our
  


 8   liquidity and debt coverage.  Support needed
  


 9   capital projects and upgrades to aging
  


10   infrastructure.  Our BPU rates have been
  


11   constant since 2007 and below the national
  


12   average and lower than most surrounding
  


13   utilities.
  


14            And now I would like to bring back
  


15   Mr. David Mehlhaff.
  


16                  MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Jim.
  


17            A couple of things.  First of all,
  


18   thank you for your patience.  It has been a long
  


19   night I know.  We have a lot to go through and
  


20   this is just part of the public hearing process.
  


21   We have a lot of details to go through, so thank
  


22   you for your patience.
  


23            What we want to do right now is we want
  


24   to be able to take your questions that you
  


25   filled out on the card.  After we do that, then
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 1   there will be time for public comments after
  


 2   that from those of you that have signed in on
  


 3   this sheet.  If you haven't signed in yet,
  


 4   please do so if you want to make some public
  


 5   comments.  The questions we have, we will answer
  


 6   those.
  


 7            I want to remind you the rate hearing
  


 8   will take place again tomorrow morning at 9:00
  


 9   a.m., same room, same place.  What we will do
  


10   also after that we will have a more formalized
  


11   detailed presentation by our partners of Black &
  


12   Veatch, and then we will go -- continue in some
  


13   of the technical portion of the rate hearing
  


14   process.
  


15            So we are going to take a very short,
  


16   and I mean short, because it is a long night,
  


17   five-minute break.  And I need the management
  


18   staff to stay up here because I have a lot of
  


19   questions I need to distribute to you that --
  


20   which ones are most appropriate to answer some
  


21   of these fine folks' questions that we have.  So
  


22   a short five-minute break and we will right back
  


23   here at 9:05.  Thank you.
  


24                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Go ahead.
  


25                  MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Judge.
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 1            My name is David Mehlhaff, public
  


 2   affairs office at BPU.  I'm going to try to
  


 3   answer quite a few of these questions.
  


 4   Conferred with the management team and want to
  


 5   thank all of those who have submitted your
  


 6   questions and then we will begin the -- we will
  


 7   take questions -- comments from the audience,
  


 8   those that filled out the card.
  


 9            "Why don't you raise the PILOT fee
  


10   instead of a rate increase?"
  


11            The PILOT fee, whatever happens with
  


12   that we have nothing to do with.  That is a
  


13   decision made by the Unified Government, by
  


14   their commissioners, and so that is a question
  


15   that only they can answer.  That is a decision
  


16   whether that goes up and down that is entirely
  


17   up to them.  The PILOT fee is just on a BPU
  


18   bill.  We collect it.  It is a pass-through and
  


19   that is up to the Unified Government.  Thank
  


20   you, though.
  


21            "How many lobbyists are currently
  


22   employed by BPU in Washington, D.C. and Topeka?"
  


23            We really only have one lobbyist and he
  


24   is kind of a part-time lobbyist and that is Joe
  


25   Dick.  Right there is Joe.  Raise your hand,
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 1   Joe.  He also does a lot of other things,
  


 2   community relations and dealing with the youth
  


 3   program and so forth.  Spends quite a bit of
  


 4   time in Topeka when the legislature is in
  


 5   session.  We do periodically when we need to
  


 6   will partner up with a lobbyist firm in
  


 7   Washington to try and go after some -- we try
  


 8   hard to go after some stimulus funds.  We were
  


 9   not successful in the first round.  We did get a
  


10   STAG Grant of $500,000 that went towards water
  


11   main replacement.  We are aggressively pursuing
  


12   other STAG grants right now at this time.
  


13            So, "When will BPU ask for another
  


14   increase in salaries?  Will that come out of
  


15   this increase?"
  


16            At this time all salaries are frozen
  


17   and will remain so until we feel this utility is
  


18   in a lot better position.  So right now there is
  


19   not even any discussion of that at this current
  


20   time.  That is not an option at this moment.
  


21            Joe, could you come answer this
  


22   question.  You had a question on lobbyist work
  


23   done out there in the western part of the state.
  


24   Identify yourself please and your title.
  


25                  MR. DICK:  Joe Dick, government







92


  
 1   affairs officer, 540 Minnesota Avenue and
  


 2   Topeka, Kansas.
  


 3            The question is:  "In the past BPU
  


 4   lobbyists have rallied against the coal plant
  


 5   out west in the state.  Has this changed?"
  


 6            It never existed.  We were in a
  


 7   monetary position for three years on that
  


 8   particular coal-fired plant.  In fact, two years
  


 9   ago we were offered 25 megawatts of power.  We
  


10   were given the first right of refusal of 25
  


11   megawatts with that power plant if it became --
  


12   if it went into existence.  On that particular
  


13   issue it was vetoed by the governor.  We refused
  


14   the 25 megawatts only because there wasn't a
  


15   price, there wasn't a date, there wasn't a time,
  


16   there wasn't a place.  It was all preliminary
  


17   action taken by the Sunflower organization.
  


18            So that is it.
  


19                  MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Joe.
  


20            "Does the timing of the rate increase
  


21   have anything to do with the UG being broke?"
  


22            No, okay.  And I think you saw by our
  


23   financial situation why we are going after the
  


24   proposed rate increase right now.
  


25            We had a question here that Blake I
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 1   think is more of a technical question in nature.
  


 2   So identify yourself and repeat the question.
  


 3                  MR. ELLIOTT:  Again, Blake
  


 4   Elliott, electric supply planning, 540 Minnesota
  


 5   Avenue, Kansas City Board of Public Utilities.
  


 6            The question is:  If you raise rates,
  


 7   what will happen to the cost of the energy fee?
  


 8   And what is the cost of the energy fee?"
  


 9            Again, the energy rate component which
  


10   is what I perceive you're asking in this
  


11   question is totally independent of everything
  


12   that we're asking for rate increases today.  The
  


13   rate increases today will just affect base
  


14   rates.  The energy rate component is just to
  


15   recover costs when we expense fuel, when we buy
  


16   and burn coal, when we burn natural gas, when we
  


17   buy electricity from the wholesale market.  We
  


18   collect those costs on a monthly basis.  We
  


19   collect all those costs.  We collect how many
  


20   retail sales we made during that particular
  


21   month.  And there is a very detailed calculation
  


22   that happens in the forecasting and in the
  


23   reconciliation of that amount.  So this is --
  


24   that fee is totally separate from the rate
  


25   hearings that we are -- for the base rates that
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 1   we are talking about today.  Again, that is
  


 2   totally separate.
  


 3                  MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Blake.
  


 4            "Have you considered freezing raises?"
  


 5            Yes, raises are frozen.
  


 6            Furloughs.  At this time, no, we are
  


 7   down about as low as we can get from a staffing
  


 8   level.  We are down about 80 positions right now
  


 9   that have already been approved in the budget.
  


10   If we cut much -- anymore we will not be able to
  


11   service our community from an electric and water
  


12   standpoint.
  


13            "Have we considered changing health
  


14   care coverage for BPU employees?"
  


15            At this time we are in very sensitive
  


16   union talks, at the very front end of that, and
  


17   that will probably be part of that but it's too
  


18   early to tell.  Thank you.
  


19            "What will the rate increase go for?"
  


20            I think we shared that with you this
  


21   evening in very much detail.  And, also, it is
  


22   in those leave-behind pieces.  If you need more
  


23   of those to take to your friends and neighbors,
  


24   by all means take them with you.  And also the
  


25   frequently asked questions, if we need more, I
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 1   have plenty.
  


 2            I have a question, Darrell, on coal.
  


 3   Why don't you answer that and give your name and
  


 4   title again.
  


 5                  MR. DORSEY:  Sure.  Darrell
  


 6   Dorsey, manager of electric production and
  


 7   supply.
  


 8            Question was:  "How much are you paying
  


 9   for coal and how many day supply do you
  


10   currently have?"
  


11             The short answer would be most of our
  


12   coal falls delivered price around 25 to 30
  


13   dollars a ton.  The reason I say it's a short
  


14   answer is we have multiple contracts for the
  


15   different plants from different mines.  And
  


16   those contracts go over different time periods
  


17   so there's a wide range within that price range
  


18   that coal falls -- pricing falls into.
  


19            As far as our day supply, I don't have
  


20   that figure with me.  I think at Quindaro the
  


21   last report I saw we have around about a 30 to
  


22   40-day supply.  Quindaro, we are a little more
  


23   comfortable with a smaller supply.  For one
  


24   thing it is a smaller coal yard, we can't handle
  


25   as much coal, but it also can burn natural gas
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 1   so in a contingency situation we have back-up
  


 2   fuel.
  


 3            Nearman has probably 80 to 90 days of
  


 4   coal on the ground right now.  That is about --
  


 5   I want to say we have got about 250,000 tons
  


 6   give or take.  Again, I don't have the exact
  


 7   figures with me.  But Nearman does not have a
  


 8   back-up fuel.  It can only run on coal.  So we
  


 9   try to maintain the stronger coal pile.  We have
  


10   been burning down that coal pile over the last
  


11   few years.  We'll bring it down a little further
  


12   yet this year with our current plans.
  


13                  MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you,
  


14   Darrell.
  


15            "How many people in Kansas City,
  


16   Kansas, take or read the Kansas Star or
  


17   Wyandotte West?"
  


18            I really don't know.  But "Why don't
  


19   you mail this info," and I think what they maybe
  


20   mean as far as the rate hearing information in
  


21   the bills.  That is something we did not do.
  


22   Did not choose to do merely from an expense
  


23   standpoint, but let me tell you what we did do.
  


24            What we have to do legally is post the
  


25   meeting notice and the publication of record,
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 1   which in this area is the Echo.  We did that.
  


 2   We also purchased an ad space in the Kansas City
  


 3   Star.  We also sent out a news release that was
  


 4   carried by all four television stations in this
  


 5   market.  And also two radio stations in the
  


 6   market, I did interviews with them.  The Unified
  


 7   Government ran it on their website and several
  


 8   times on their electronic newsletter, reran it
  


 9   on our website.  The KC Kansan, Kansas City
  


10   Kansan, ran it on their website.
  


11            And so we did a lot more than what we
  


12   were required to do to get the word out as best
  


13   as we can and that is what we did there.  The
  


14   Kansas City, Kansan and the website, it is on
  


15   line.  All right.
  


16            Jim Epp, there was one here I think
  


17   that was multiple questions.  So why don't you
  


18   go through the questions and identify yourself,
  


19   please.
  


20                  MR. EPP:  Jim Epp, manager of
  


21   water operations.
  


22            Three questions, multi parts.  "Using
  


23   the average monthly water bill supplied by BPU
  


24   as a base, if BPU's rates are already 21 percent
  


25   higher than WaterOne's, why do we need even
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 1   larger increases over the next few years?"
  


 2            Our system is older than WaterOne's.
  


 3   Our infrastructure is 50 to 100 years old.  We
  


 4   have had no increase -- net increase in our
  


 5   population.  We have had to completely replace
  


 6   our water treatment facility, new plant, new
  


 7   supply, new transmission coming out of the
  


 8   plant.
  


 9            Again, I want to thank the rate payers
  


10   for the support.  We have something that we can
  


11   be very proud of and will last for 50 years into
  


12   the future.  But we have had to face the
  


13   replacement of aging infrastructure much sooner
  


14   than WaterOne has.
  


15            Plus WaterOne has experienced a net
  


16   increase in population.  They have more
  


17   customers to help pay for their infrastructure
  


18   needs and we are much older than they are.  So I
  


19   hope that is an adequate answer to that
  


20   question.
  


21            Two, "Are the higher rates to pay for
  


22   debt services related to new facilities needed
  


23   because of growth?"
  


24            Again, we have got no net increase in
  


25   our population.  We do have a shifting from east
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 1   to west.  Right now I feel like we are in very
  


 2   good shape with our infrastructure to support
  


 3   anything that is going to happen out west.  When
  


 4   a new development goes in out west, the
  


 5   developer pays for that main.  BPU does not pay
  


 6   for that, the developer pays for that.
  


 7            Also -- oh, excuse me.  As far as new
  


 8   facilities in the future, we have -- the
  


 9   majority of our infrastructure needs are for
  


10   replacement.  We do have one new 4-million
  


11   gallon reservoir we are requesting at the
  


12   Nearman water treatment plant.  And that is
  


13   because we are trying to get our total storage
  


14   up to standard with our treatment plant
  


15   capacity.  It is not because of any new growth.
  


16   We are not projecting any new growth in our --
  


17   as far as population, net population growth, in
  


18   our cost of service study.  Very little.  But it
  


19   is to bring our storage up to 10 percent total
  


20   of our treatment capacity.  This will allow us
  


21   to do some more demand side management with our
  


22   pumping, similar to what WaterOne does.  Also
  


23   provides storage for our cooling tower and
  


24   storage for black star condition if we should
  


25   ever experience that down at Nearman.
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 1            Third.  "Are the rates higher because
  


 2   growth isn't paying its fair share?  Is growth
  


 3   paying for growth?"
  


 4            Again, new developments, the mains are
  


 5   paid for by the developers.  We do have a system
  


 6   development fee.  It's not quite as high as
  


 7   WaterOne but it's fairly significant for new
  


 8   meters.
  


 9            Hopefully that answered your question.
  


10   Okay, thank you, sir.  Very good questions.
  


11                  MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Jim.
  


12            Couple more questions left here.  "How
  


13   much did the Black & Veatch study cost?  Who
  


14   paid for the cost?"
  


15            It came out of our operating budget.
  


16   We are required to do a cost of service study
  


17   every three years.  We have not done one since
  


18   2003.  What it did cost, I'll be honest, it cost
  


19   $270,000 over a two-year period.  That is what
  


20   it cost.
  


21            "Is it true that people in the service
  


22   department make $65,000 a year?"
  


23            Yes.  We have linemen who have
  


24   extremely dangerous jobs.  They are up there in
  


25   extreme conditions.  And engineers who have
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 1   years and years of experience, that is what they
  


 2   make.
  


 3            "How can the board make a decision when
  


 4   they do not attend the meetings?"
  


 5            The board will make the decision
  


 6   because they will be getting all the transcript,
  


 7   all the documents.  They are in the loop
  


 8   continually.  They get feedback.  They have gone
  


 9   to some of the community forums.  They get
  


10   feedback on their own in talking to people in
  


11   the community.  They are not allowed to speak
  


12   out on the issue.  They need to gather
  


13   information.  Once they gather information, then
  


14   they will make their decision on the rate issue.
  


15   But they are well informed.  This is an active
  


16   board and they are talking to people all the
  


17   time.  Staff, they have sat in, reviewed the
  


18   cost of service study.  So they are in the loop
  


19   and that is what we have had.
  


20            We have four of our board members here
  


21   tonight and I know we will have more tomorrow.
  


22   We had five tonight total and they will also be
  


23   getting this transcript and a lot of other
  


24   information.  They -- trust me, this board won't
  


25   make a decision until they're really well
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 1   informed because they ask a lot of great
  


 2   questions all the time.
  


 3            "How much will this windfall of the
  


 4   windfall will UG see from this rate increase?"
  


 5            I think probably somebody is referring
  


 6   to the PILOT.  And this is only an estimate.  In
  


 7   2010, it would be about $550,000 in electric,
  


 8   170,000 in water.  And that would be what we
  


 9   estimate at this time.
  


10                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  In addition to?
  


11                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  Yes.
  


12                  MR. MEHLHAFF:  That is with the
  


13   increase.
  


14            Thank you for everyone submitting
  


15   questions.  Appreciate it.  We did our best to
  


16   answer them as honestly as we can.  And I'm
  


17   always available if you have further questions.
  


18   Like Jim said at the end, contact me any time.
  


19   I will do my best to get you the answers or get
  


20   you to people who do.
  


21            You're Honor, this concludes our
  


22   portion.  I'll turn it over to you.
  


23                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you
  


24   very much.
  


25            Ladies and gentlemen, this portion of
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 1   the hearing is for public comments or statements
  


 2   other than those that have submitted written
  


 3   questions.  The individuals who have signed up
  


 4   on the sign-up sheet will be called in the order
  


 5   that they have entered their names on the
  


 6   sign-up sheet.  I ask you as I call your name,
  


 7   please restate your name and address, and then
  


 8   you can make your statement or comment.  And go
  


 9   to the podium, please, so that everybody can
  


10   hear you.
  


11            The first individual on the sign-up
  


12   sheet is Bob Sixta.  Mr. Sixta, will you go to
  


13   the podium, please.  And tell us your full name
  


14   and address.
  


15                  MR. SIXTA:  My name is Robert Lee
  


16   Sixta.  That is S, as in Sam, I-X-T-A.  I live
  


17   at 405 North 17th Street in KCK.  My question
  


18   has already been submitted in a written one.  It
  


19   has already been answered.  Thank you.
  


20                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
  


21   sir.
  


22                  THE WITNESS:  The next individual
  


23   on the sign-up sheet is Donald Turner.  And,
  


24   Mr. Turner, would you go to the podium.  State
  


25   your -- restate your name and address, please.
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 1                  MR. TURNER:  Donald Turner, and I
  


 2   live at 4110 North 60th Street.  No. 1, I can't
  


 3   get a straight answer when I call down there.  I
  


 4   got two BPU bills because I have two light
  


 5   meters at my house.  One says that -- they're
  


 6   both the same size.  One answer got, oh, you're
  


 7   commercial.  I'm not commercial.
  


 8                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Tell you
  


 9   what, Mr. Turner, this is -- I don't think this
  


10   is the forum to address your billing issues that
  


11   you have.  I know they're very important to you,
  


12   but --
  


13                  MR. TURNER:  Yes, they are.
  


14                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  -- this
  


15   proceeding is -- concerns the proposed BPU rate
  


16   increase.  And I think that there are some
  


17   customer service individuals here that perhaps
  


18   could help you at the end of this hearing, and
  


19   that is Johnetta Hinson and Nan Wolfe.  Could
  


20   you stand up, please, Ms. Wolfe and Ms. Hinson.
  


21   And maybe you could talk -- Mr. Turner, maybe
  


22   you could talk to them when we are finished
  


23   here.
  


24                  MR. TURNER:  Okay.  I have got a
  


25   statement to make.
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 1                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.
  


 2                  MR. TURNER:  There -- don't
  


 3   forget, there are a lot of homes being repo'd or
  


 4   closed out that was customers.  They're not now.
  


 5   And a senior citizen here cannot afford anymore
  


 6   thing added on to them.  They have a hard time
  


 7   making the bill at this point what it is.  A gas
  


 8   serviceman was out to my house, one of my
  


 9   houses.  I told him to shut the gas off.  He
  


10   said, well, I got to be moving along.  I got
  


11   four houses here that I have got to shut off the
  


12   gas because they haven't paid their bill.  That
  


13   is just one time.
  


14            So you ought to stop to think about the
  


15   senior citizen.  It is hurting them.  I'm -- the
  


16   only thing that I can depend on is my monthly
  


17   retirement check and my wife's.  We didn't get
  


18   any COLA this year, Social Security or civil
  


19   service.  But you heist up -- the sales tax
  


20   increase was voted in the other day.  So I think
  


21   that that ought to be taken into consideration
  


22   for senior citizens.  There are several senior
  


23   citizens in here, and I have been a senior
  


24   citizen for several years.
  


25                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Not that
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 1   long.
  


 2                  MR. TURNER:  What was that
  


 3   comment?
  


 4                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  I said not
  


 5   that long, Mr. Turner.
  


 6                  MR. TURNER:  You probably
  


 7   wouldn't believe me.  I remember -- I remember
  


 8   the depression back in the 30s.  In fact, I got
  


 9   out and hoed the corn for a dollar a day.  I
  


10   very well remember that.  I worked horses and
  


11   mules, so you can draw from that.
  


12            But that is what I'm saying, it is
  


13   hurtful.  It is hurting us senior citizens by no
  


14   means.  That is the reason some of us are
  


15   already getting their gas cut off and I don't
  


16   know how many for power -- or electricity.
  


17            So, as I said, I got two meters at my
  


18   house that I would like to get a straight
  


19   accurate answer on it.  There.
  


20                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
  


21   Mr. Turner.
  


22                  MR. TURNER:  Okay.
  


23                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  The next
  


24   individual on the sign-up sheet is Robert
  


25   Timmons.  Mr. Timmons, would you come up,
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 1   please, to the podium and restate your name and
  


 2   address.
  


 3                  MR. TIMMONS:  I'm Robert Timmons.
  


 4   401 Pleasanton Road with Central Solutions in
  


 5   the Fairfax district.
  


 6            This rate increase is going to be very
  


 7   burdensome on our business.  We are a
  


 8   manufacturing facility.  We use lots of your
  


 9   electricity and lots of your water.  As far as
  


10   your aging infrastructure goes, poor management
  


11   shouldn't be put onto your customers.
  


12   Infrastructure in my building has to be planned
  


13   for and paid for.  I can't go for that 23 to a
  


14   35 percent increase on our product because we
  


15   need to replace a fire line or we need to
  


16   install mandatory backflow preventers on fire
  


17   lines.  I don't think that it is thought through
  


18   very well.  And I think if you're going to do a
  


19   23 to 35 percent increase, not including the
  


20   surcharges, I think it should have been spread
  


21   out over a longer period of time.  Four years is
  


22   just too quick for that big of an increase.
  


23            Thank you.
  


24                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
  


25   sir.
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 1            The next individual on the sign-up
  


 2   sheet is Michael Buhr, B-U-H-R.  Mr. Buhr.
  


 3                  MR. BAHR:  B-A-H-R, it's Bahr.
  


 4                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Bahr.
  


 5   Sorry Mr. Bahr.
  


 6                  MR. BAHR:  My name is Michael
  


 7   Bahr.  I live at 1416 Tauromee.  I've lived
  


 8   there for 35 years.
  


 9            I have a little bit to say about this
  


10   increase.  This isn't the right time for BPU to
  


11   raise any rates.  Information obtained from the
  


12   public library by calling the reference desk
  


13   about unemployment in Wyandotte County.  From
  


14   the United States Bureau of Statistics, the
  


15   unemployment rate in March 2010 in Wyandotte
  


16   County is 10.6 percent.  That means there is
  


17   over one out of ten out of work in Wyandotte
  


18   county.
  


19            City employees have to take one day off
  


20   each month.  Some state courts have had rooms,
  


21   courtrooms close one day a week for three weeks
  


22   in a row.  The growth of Kansas City, Kansas, at
  


23   the Legends has helped me until January of 2009.
  


24   I work construction.  I have been a
  


25   superintendent for one of the major construction
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 1   companies in the Kansas City area,
  


 2   Miller-Stauch.  Well, when the bottom fell out
  


 3   of the economy, that construction company lost
  


 4   all of its superintendents.  They took the
  


 5   people that were in the office and put them out
  


 6   in the field.  That put me out of a job.
  


 7            I've applied at Black & Veatch on a
  


 8   couple of jobs.  A lot of times you guys don't
  


 9   post where the jobs are located.  I've probably
  


10   applied three times.
  


11            Growth in Kansas City, Kansas, at the
  


12   Legends has helped me, like I said, until
  


13   January 2009.  And I was laid off because of
  


14   lack of work.  That was the first time in 37
  


15   years that I haven't worked in the summer going
  


16   into the fall in 37 years.  That is how bad this
  


17   economy has been.  Is right now.  And it is not
  


18   getting better.  People are saying it is getting
  


19   better.  Go look for a job in the construction
  


20   field.  It is not getting better.  People want
  


21   to pay you half of what you were making.
  


22            I have been off work for a year and two
  


23   months.  I've sent out over 200 resumes, cover
  


24   letters and detail project lists.  Growth in
  


25   Kansas City, has it helped at the Legends?  Has
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 1   it helped BPU any?  By the way you guys talk it
  


 2   hasn't helped anything.  I mean, that is what
  


 3   I'm getting from you.  But the growth isn't
  


 4   doing us any good out there.  Hasn't done any
  


 5   good as far as unemployment.
  


 6            Have you thought about reducing the pay
  


 7   for some of your people?  The government has
  


 8   reduced pay.  They took a day away a week or a
  


 9   month from them.  I know you said you held off
  


10   on hiring.  Who is going to do all this work you
  


11   are talking about?  Aren't you going to have to
  


12   hire somebody to do that?  Can you do it with
  


13   the people you have now?  I don't know.
  


14            To reduce some of your costs, you could
  


15   look around at this room.  Those doors right
  


16   over there.  Who needs 8 foot doors in a
  


17   conference room.  That takes four hinges to
  


18   hang.  Most doors are 7 foot.  It takes three
  


19   hinges to hang.  I know, I'm a carpenter.  I'm a
  


20   superintendent.
  


21            Same thing with this door, you're
  


22   talking about cost.  Look around you, you can
  


23   cut out cost if you want to.  You just have to
  


24   look.
  


25            That's all I have to say.
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 1                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
  


 2   Mr. Bahr.
  


 3                  MR. BAHR:  Thank you for your
  


 4   time.
  


 5                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  The next
  


 6   individual on the sign-up sheet is Norm Scott.
  


 7   And Mr. Scott, are you here?  Apparently not.
  


 8            There is a -- Mr. Yarnell, I'm going to
  


 9   come back to you since you're one of the
  


10   intervenors.
  


11            The next individual is Carol O'Neal.
  


12   Is Carol O'Neal here?
  


13            The last person on the sign-up sheet is
  


14   Marilyn While.
  


15                  MS. WHITE:  White.
  


16                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  White.  I'm
  


17   sorry, Ms. White.
  


18                  MS. WHITE:  Sorry.  My
  


19   handwriting has gotten kind of bad as I have
  


20   gotten older.
  


21                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  It is my
  


22   eyes.
  


23                  MS. WHITE:  My name is Marilyn
  


24   White and I live in your backyard, 614
  


25   Washington Boulevard.
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 1            I can look out, you know, of my porch
  


 2   and look out and see BPU from my front yard.
  


 3   And it is very distressing sometimes, you know,
  


 4   when I'm at home trying to relax and storms come
  


 5   or even the wind sometimes blows very hard and
  


 6   my electricity goes out.  I can hear the
  


 7   transformers blow.  Hasn't happened lately
  


 8   because the last person you sent obviously knew
  


 9   what he was doing because for at least I would
  


10   say four months or so I have had electricity no
  


11   matter what the weather did.  So I think that --
  


12   you know, I'd give you his name but I don't
  


13   think I will.  That you really should be happy
  


14   that you have such a good employee.
  


15            Also, I just want to say that, you
  


16   know, I'm a senior citizen.  I am on a fixed
  


17   income and I have been able to manage my utility
  


18   bills, you know, the ones that come.  But, you
  


19   know, the utility bills keep going up and up.
  


20   I'm -- part of my daily, monthly living is
  


21   supplemented by Social Security.  And as you
  


22   know, the good congressmen in Washington D.C.
  


23   did not give us a cost of living wage because
  


24   the cost of living didn't go up, it went down
  


25   for us, not for them.  And they make for a lot
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 1   more money than I do.
  


 2            I am very uptight about the fact that
  


 3   the Unified Government is tacking their bills
  


 4   onto the BPU bill, and, therefore, you are going
  


 5   to get a lot of hell that the BPU -- that the
  


 6   Unified Government should be getting.  But, you
  


 7   know, I guess you have -- don't have any control
  


 8   over that.  But I want you to know to let them
  


 9   know that Marilyn said she doesn't like it
  


10   because I think everybody ought to pay their own
  


11   way themselves and the public ought to know
  


12   exactly what the Unified Government is doing.
  


13            Also, I'm a little bit uptight, just
  


14   like the gentleman said, about all of this
  


15   so-called economic status stuff that is coming
  


16   to West Village, Village West.  I -- we just --
  


17   the Unified Government just gave them a tax
  


18   break.  Neil Harrison and Warren Buffet do not
  


19   need tax breaks.  They could buy themselves this
  


20   whole building many, many times over and
  


21   probably all of us here.
  


22            And I think it's a really -- and, you
  


23   know, I guess dam is not really a bad word.  I
  


24   think it is a dam shame that people like me who
  


25   are on the lower end of the economy who have
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 1   scrimped and saved all their lives to work and
  


 2   try to save money.  I save money.  I still save
  


 3   money to this day out of the wages that I get
  


 4   every month that I earned, by the way.  And I
  


 5   think I'm doing pretty good, but I really resent
  


 6   the fact that these -- the people are making hay
  


 7   off of my dough, the money that I earned when I
  


 8   could be using it for myself.  I really think
  


 9   that, you know, life is not fair.  I don't know
  


10   if it ever will be, but I think that the person
  


11   on the lower end of the economic scale is really
  


12   getting beat up more and more every day.  And,
  


13   you know, it can't keep happening, although I
  


14   think it will.
  


15            Thank you.
  


16                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
  


17   Mrs. White.
  


18            Ms. Sixta, I'm sorry, I overlooked your
  


19   name.  Please restate your name and address.
  


20                  MS. SIXTA:  Mary Sue Sixta.  405
  


21   North 17th Street.
  


22            My comments are that when the lady was
  


23   talking and the screen was up and they showed
  


24   some of the increases, I wanted to calculated
  


25   BPU water is going up 45 percent and the
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 1   electric bill is going up 36 percent over the
  


 2   next five years.  That is a tremendous increase.
  


 3   That is -- right now we are paying 145 dollars
  


 4   and some odd -- 149 dollars and some odd cents.
  


 5   We are probably going to be paying around 200
  


 6   within the next five years.
  


 7            My husband is about to retire.  He is
  


 8   the only one who is making the living for us
  


 9   right now.  We are going to barely be able to
  


10   make it.  And then if the other utilities like
  


11   AT&T and Kansas Gas Service go up, we are going
  


12   to be very hard put to make the bills.  We are
  


13   hard put to make them right now.  And personally
  


14   I'm worried.
  


15            Also, they're talking about controlling
  


16   the customer load.  Okay, I have allergies
  


17   during the summer and during the heat.  I need
  


18   to have air conditioning to help filter the air
  


19   when it gets real bad.
  


20            Plus I have sleep apnea.  I have to --
  


21   I have a CPAP machine I must use.  They tell me
  


22   I'm one of the worst cases they've ever seen.
  


23   My husband has sleep apnea.  We have to have
  


24   those machines and they are going to use power.
  


25   And they're going to tell us how much we can
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 1   use.  Does this mean that we have to either go
  


 2   without air conditioning or go without our CPAP
  


 3   machine in order to go to the power level they
  


 4   want?  Or are we going to have some place where
  


 5   we can call and say, hey, we need this certain
  


 6   amount of power, can we get it?  Or is it just
  


 7   going to be cut off because they think we are
  


 8   using too much?  I mean, for people that use an
  


 9   extra amount of power that don't really need it,
  


10   like at Christmastime with too many lights, I
  


11   understand.  But for medical reasons, this
  


12   scares me.  People may need it for medical
  


13   reasons.  But all you're talking about is
  


14   controlling the load.
  


15            And as far as all these expenses are
  


16   concerned for new telephone poles and stuff and
  


17   the services, I understand trimming the trees.
  


18   Grass cutting, put decorative rocks out and make
  


19   a design saying BPU in the front yard or the
  


20   office or something and cut down on maintenance
  


21   and how much it costs to cut the grass.  Do
  


22   little things like this and it would improve
  


23   entirely.
  


24            Also, I know this has been discussed in
  


25   the past, what about investing in a company that
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 1   has the rotaries that produce electrical power,
  


 2   possibly putting them on the houses.  Charging
  


 3   -- renting the equipment to the customer and
  


 4   then charging to maintain the equipment.
  


 5   California has a county that has done this.
  


 6   They got so spread out they couldn't get
  


 7   electricity to everybody.  So the houses out
  


 8   where they had trouble getting electricity to --
  


 9   the wires to them, they put an electrical system
  


10   on the house to generate the electricity by
  


11   themselves.  This is just an idea, but it might
  


12   cut costs to rent the equipment and maintain it.
  


13   You are saying you are having trouble getting
  


14   electricity to everyone.  This is something you
  


15   might want to consider.
  


16            Cable is doing real good for TV.  Maybe
  


17   BPU would do real good doing this at least out
  


18   in rural areas where you have to go so far out
  


19   to get the power out there.
  


20            Thank you.
  


21                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
  


22   Ms. Sixta.
  


23            Are there any board members present
  


24   that would like to comment or say anything?
  


25                  (No response.)







118


  
 1                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  As to the
  


 2   intervenors, Mr. Yarnell, would you -- do you
  


 3   have anything you would like to say?  If you
  


 4   would, please, go to the podium and state your
  


 5   full name and address.
  


 6                  MR. YARNELL:  My name is Rick
  


 7   Yarnell, 2424 Nebraska Court, Kansas City,
  


 8   Kansas.  I have filed written testimony and
  


 9   intervening with Kathy Peters and I expected
  


10   discussions with her tonight that I will
  


11   probably have modifications to the wording that
  


12   I have submitted tonight and I will have that
  


13   ready for tomorrow at the hearing at that point.
  


14                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.
  


15                  MR. YARNELL:  Thank you.
  


16                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other
  


17   intervenors that are present that would like to
  


18   make a statement?
  


19            Closing comments by the BPU.
  


20                  MR. MEHLHAFF:  I just want to
  


21   remind everyone tomorrow morning we'll pick up
  


22   again with the rate hearing.  Same presentation
  


23   you saw that was presented today, and will have
  


24   an extended Black & Veatch presentation, again,
  


25   to the technical portion here at nine o'clock.
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 1            I want to thank everyone for coming.
  


 2   Appreciate your time.  I know it's been a long
  


 3   night.  We thank you for your business.  Thank
  


 4   you.  God bless.
  


 5                  THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you
  


 6   very much.  We're adjourned.
  


 7            (Hearing commenced at 9:46 p.m.)
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           1               (Hearing commenced at 7:00 p.m.)



           2               (Exhibit BPU 1 was marked for



           3      identification.)



           4                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Ladies and



           5      gentlemen, this is the May 2010 Board of Public



           6      Utilities rate hearing with regard to their



           7      request of rate increases.  My name is Phillip



           8      Carson and I'm the hearing officer presiding



           9      over these public hearings.



          10               If any of the members of the public



          11      wish to speak -- excuse me -- on the public



          12      portion of this hearing, please if you haven't



          13      already done so, please sign in on the sign-in



          14      sheet with this lady right here.  Thank you.



          15               Ms. Peters.



          16                     MS. PETERS:  Mr. Carson, I'm



          17      Kathy Peters, rate hearing for the BPU.



          18                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.



          19               Have any petitions for intervention



          20      been received?



          21                     MS. PETERS:  Yes.  As Randy



          22      Otting will testify, we have received petitions



          23      for intervention that were timely filed on the



          24      behalf of the large customer group of BPU



          25      currently consisting of General Motors, Griffin

�

                                                                 4







           1      Wheel, Kansas University Medical Center,



           2      Owens-Corning and WaterOne.  Also Suburban



           3      Water, Inc., doing business as Suburban Water



           4      company.  And also Rick Yarnell, an individual.



           5                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Are



           6      there -- thank you, Ms. Peters.



           7               Are there any attorneys for the



           8      intervenors that are present?  If so, please



           9      enter your appearance.



          10               No attorneys present on behalf of the



          11      intervenors, okay.



          12               Are there any intervenors that are



          13      personally present on behalf of themselves or



          14      their companies?  If so, please enter your



          15      appearance.



          16                     MR. YARNELL:  I am.



          17                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  You are,



          18      sir?



          19                     MR. YARNELL:  My name is Rick



          20      Yarnell.



          21                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Your



          22      address, please.



          23                     MR. YARNELL:  2424 Nebraska



          24      Court, Kansas City, Kansas.



          25                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Are you

�

                                                                 5







           1      represented by an attorney in this matter?



           2                     MS. PETERS:  I am not.



           3                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anyone



           4      else?



           5                     MS. KRAUSE:  I am Laurie Krause



           6      with WaterOne.



           7                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  And the



           8      address of WaterOne, please?



           9                     MS. KRAUSE:  Oh, that is really a



          10      good question.



          11                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  I



          12      know it is everywhere.  All right.



          13                     MS. KRAUSE:  The admin



          14      headquarters is -- I'm trying to remember.



          15      10744 Lenexa.



          16                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.



          17               Any other intervenors that are present



          18      that have not entered their appearance?  All



          19      right.



          20               Ms. Peters, I'm going to turn the



          21      proceeding over to you at this point.



          22                     MS. PETERS:  And I would like to



          23      call on Mr. David Mehlhaff, BPU's public



          24      information officer.



          25                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Kathy.
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           1               I'm David Mehlhaff, public affairs



           2      officer for the Board of Public Utilities.



           3               We appreciate you taking your time to



           4      be here at this public hearing.  We thank you



           5      for being our customers and we do appreciate



           6      your business.



           7               We ask that you turn off your cell



           8      phones and pagers or turn them to vibrate at



           9      this time.  If you need to use the restroom, it



          10      is right out in the hallway out here.  Right out



          11      the door to your immediate right.  If you wish



          12      to speak and make comments at this hearing, sign



          13      your name and address on the sign-in sheet



          14      that's just inside the door.  Also, if you would



          15      like to ask a question after our presentations,



          16      fill out a card with your question and place it



          17      in the box in the hallway.  If you need some



          18      cards, let me know and I will make sure to get



          19      some to you or you can get them from Jenny over



          20      here.  She has cards and pencils and fill those



          21      out.



          22               We are going to hear presentations from



          23      a number of people.  I would like to introduce



          24      those folks to you at this time.  First of all,



          25      before I do that, we do have two of our board
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           1      members present.  We have three of them:  John



           2      Pettey, our vice-president; Mary Gonzales; and



           3      our president, Loretta Colombel.  Thank you for



           4      coming.  They are here to observe and to gather



           5      all the information they can through this



           6      process.



           7               Kathryn Peters, you just heard from,



           8      she is our attorney with Kutak Rock, LLP,



           9      representing BPU.  She has been with us through



          10      our rate hearing process since 1980.  The



          11      following staff members will be speaking this



          12      evening:  Don Gray, our general manager; Lori



          13      Austin, manager of accounting and finance and



          14      our chief financial officer; Peggy Howe with



          15      Black & Veatch, an international consultant,



          16      management consultant, and engineering firm.



          17      You will hear more about them later.



          18               Blake Elliott, our director of electric



          19      supply planning.  Darrell Dorsey, manager of



          20      electric production and supply.  Bill Johnson,



          21      manager of electric operations.  And, finally,



          22      Jim Epp, manager of water operations an acting



          23      chief administrative officer.



          24               Also, I want to remind you that the



          25      same rate hearing will take place tomorrow
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           1      morning, same room at 9:00 a.m.  After that, we



           2      will then have a detailed presentation by Black



           3      & Veatch.  You will hear more about them in a



           4      little bit.  They will be part of this



           5      presentation but a lengthier presentation on the



           6      cost of service study, and that will be



           7      tomorrow.  So we will have more information



           8      about that later.  Again, if you have questions



           9      let me know.



          10               At this time, I would like to introduce



          11      -- hand the mic back off to Kathryn Peters from



          12      Kutak Rock.  Kathryn.



          13                     MS. PETERS:  We also have some



          14      folks from Black & Veatch present with us.  And



          15      a few of them will speak tomorrow as



          16      Mr. Mehlhaff mentioned.  Peggy Howe will also



          17      speak tonight.  Peggy Howe with Black & Veatch,



          18      Ed Overcast, Craig Brown and Anna White.



          19               The BPU has set the public hearing for



          20      the purpose of discussing BPU's revenue



          21      requirements and the proposed changes to the BPU



          22      rates to recover more revenues in order to meet



          23      our cost requirements.  The format of the



          24      hearing is that BPU began by having Black &



          25      Veatch conduct cost of service studies in
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           1      electric and in water.  The BPU received the



           2      cost of service study reports from Black &



           3      Veatch and following that BPU published the



           4      90-day notice of public hearing that is required



           5      by the charter ordinance.



           6               The format of the hearing is that we



           7      will present to you by the BPU staff a number of



           8      the reasons for the public hearing request, why



           9      revenues are needed, what the proposed changes



          10      in the rates are going to be, what things the



          11      BPU has done to cut its costs before requesting



          12      a rate increase, what the various capital needs



          13      are of the electric and the water operations,



          14      and several things about BPU's overall financial



          15      condition that leads to this rate request.



          16               There will be a PowerPoint presentation



          17      by BPU and all of the things that the BPU is



          18      saying here today are being taken down by a



          19      court reporter.  So, when it comes your time to



          20      speak, speak slowly and distinctly so the court



          21      reporter can take down your words as will the



          22      BPU staff.



          23               The PowerPoint presentation, the



          24      exhibits, all of the proceedings, the things



          25      that our intervening customers have to say will
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           1      all be presented to the board and they will make



           2      a decision based on all of the evidence.  There



           3      will be no decision by the board until they have



           4      received all of the evidence.  And that will



           5      include things that you say in the public



           6      comment portion that will follow the question



           7      period which will follow the BPU's presentation.



           8               The BPU has two phases of the public



           9      hearing.  We have the public comment portion,



          10      and as Mr. Mehlhaff indicated, we are making a



          11      presentation tonight.  There will be a very



          12      similar presentation tomorrow morning.  In



          13      addition, tomorrow morning Black & Veatch will



          14      give a lengthy explanation of the cost of



          15      service report.



          16               Following the public presentation,



          17      there will be a technical portion.  We have



          18      customers who have intervened in this



          19      proceeding.  We will be continuing the technical



          20      portion of the hearing to have further



          21      discussions with our intervening customers.  We



          22      expect that the initial rate recommendation will



          23      be made to the board sometime toward the end of



          24      May, early part of June.  We expect that final



          25      recommendations will be made to the board toward
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           1      the end of this year.  And, again, nothing will



           2      happen until recommendations are made to the



           3      board and the board makes its final decision.



           4               Board members may be present in the



           5      audience to listen today.  If they are not here



           6      today, again, the court reporter will be taking



           7      down everything that everyone says, and all of



           8      this information will be provided to all of the



           9      board members before they make their decision.



          10               Mr. Carson, I would like to ask you, if



          11      you could, to have all of the BPU and the Black



          12      & Veatch witnesses who are going to testify or



          13      make presentations be sworn in.  And I would



          14      repeat that is Mr. Blake Elliott, Darrell



          15      Dorsey, Don Gray, Peggy Howe, Randy Otting, Lori



          16      Austin, Bill Johnson, Jim Epp, Anna White, Craig



          17      Brown, and Ed Overcast.



          18                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.



          19      Thank you.



          20               Those of you that were just named and



          21      who are going to speak or make a presentation,



          22      please raise your right hands.  Do you swear or



          23      affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and



          24      nothing but the truth?



          25                     (BPU and Black & Veatch

�

                                                                 12







           1      presenters answered affirmatively I do.)



           2                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.



           3                     MS. PETERS:  And I would like to



           4      ask -- I would like to ask Randy Otting to join



           5      me.



           6                     MR. OTTING:  Sure.



           7                     MS. PETERS:  Mr. Carson, at this



           8      time Randy Otting would like to give the



           9      evidence that notice of public hearing was given



          10      in accordance with charter ordinance.



          11                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Go ahead,



          12      sir.



          13                     MR. OTTING:  Yes, we have filed



          14      our February 1st, 2010 in the Kansas City Star.



          15                     MS. PETERS:  And, Mr. Otting, I



          16      am going to read you a few questions.  Please



          17      state your name and your business address.



          18                     MR. OTTING:  Randy Otting, 540



          19      Minnesota Avenue, Kansas City, Kansas 66101.



          20                     MS. PETERS:  What is your



          21      occupation?



          22                     MR. OTTING:  I'm the director of



          23      accounting.



          24                     MS. PETERS:  What are your



          25      responsibilities relating to the current
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           1      electric and water rate hearing with regard to



           2      publication and notice of public hearing



           3      dissemination of information to the public?



           4                     MR. OTTING:  I was the primary



           5      contact person with the public with regard to



           6      information, and I was also responsible for



           7      making sure that the notice of hearing was



           8      published timely.



           9                     MS. PETERS:  Did the BPU board



          10      direct staff to set a public hearing on the rate



          11      proposal?



          12                     MR. OTTING:  Yes.



          13                     MS. PETERS:  Please list the



          14      dates and places of publication of notice of



          15      public hearing.



          16                     MR. OTTING:  February 1st, 2010,



          17      Kansas City Star.  February 4th, 2010, Wyandotte



          18      West.  February 4th, 2010, Piper Press.



          19      February 4th, 2010, the Wyandotte Echo.



          20                     MS. PETERS:  Could you go ahead



          21      and read the notices.



          22                     MR. OTTING:  Sure.  The notice of



          23      hearing and the affidavits are on file with the



          24      BPU and available for review upon request.  The



          25      affidavit of publication in the Kansas City Star
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           1      was on February 1st, 2010, which provided the



           2      90-day notice required by statute.  This



           3      document is presented and filed as Exhibit 1,



           4      BPU-1.



           5                     MS. PETERS:  And you have BPU-1



           6      there?



           7                     MR. OTTING:  Yes.



           8                     MS. PETERS:  Mr. Carson, I would



           9      like to have introduced at this time BPU Exhibit



          10      1, affidavit of publication.



          11                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.



          12      It is accepted and admitted into evidence and I



          13      find that the 90-day notice requirement required



          14      by the charter ordinance has been fulfilled.



          15                     MS. PETERS:  Thank you, sir.



          16               Mr. Otting, were any petitions for



          17      intervention filed with you?



          18                     MR. OTTING:  Yes.  We had three



          19      on March 3rd, 2010.  Mr. Rick Yarnell, an



          20      individual.  March 15th, 2010, Suburban Water, a



          21      wholesale water customer.  March 30 -- I'm



          22      sorry, March 17th, 2010, we had intervention



          23      with the BPU large customer group which consists



          24      of General Motors, Griffin Wheel, Kansas



          25      University Medical Center, Owens-Corning and
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           1      WaterOne.



           2                     MS. PETERS:  Thank you,



           3      Mr. Otting.



           4               And, Mr. Carson, I note that all of the



           5      petitions for intervention were filed before



           6      March 19th which was the cut-off date for filing



           7      petitions of intervention.



           8                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.



           9                     MS. PETERS:  And any other



          10      exhibits and testimony of the BPU and Black &



          11      Veatch we will introduce into evidence at the



          12      conclusion of the public portion or the



          13      technical portion, sir.



          14                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.



          15                     MS. PETERS:  I would like to at



          16      this time turn the floor over to BPU to make its



          17      public presentation, and I will introduce Mr.



          18      Don Gray, general manager of the Board of Public



          19      Utilities.



          20                     MR. GRAY:  Thank you, Kathy.



          21               Good evening everyone.



          22               First of all, I want to welcome all of



          23      you that are here this evening.  We very much



          24      appreciate you being a witness and being



          25      involved in our rate hearing process.  I think
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           1      it is very important and I appreciate and



           2      respect very much that you are here.



           3               As you know, asking our customers,



           4      asking you to consider allowing us to raise



           5      rates is never easy.  In fact, I don't know if



           6      there is ever a good time to ask for a rate



           7      increase.  However, I just want to say that



           8      staff and I are committed to keeping our rates



           9      as low as possible.



          10               And also with that, we are trying to do



          11      a better job at informing our customers and



          12      giving them information on how they can better



          13      manage their energy and water.  And we have got



          14      in all of the chairs information but included



          15      with the information are these cards that give



          16      useful tips on water and energy usage.  And,



          17      also, on the bottom of the card is our website



          18      location where you can get additional



          19      information.  And, also, you can contact the BPU



          20      office through David Mehlhaff, our public



          21      affairs officer, who you met earlier who can



          22      also get information for you.



          23               As was stated earlier, this is going to



          24      be a lengthy presentation.  We have a lot of



          25      staff that will be involved in giving technical
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           1      portions of this rate hearing as to not only why



           2      we need the rate increases but what we plan to



           3      do with the additional resources.



           4               So, with that, I would like to start



           5      off by mentioning that I will give an overview



           6      and I will primarily talk about our planning



           7      process, historical trends, controlling cost,



           8      and our rate comparisons.  And then staff will



           9      follow with the remainder of the rate hearing



          10      process, cost of service, proposed rates,



          11      purpose of the rate increase, and the



          12      conclusion.  And, also, with staff, as was



          13      mentioned earlier, we have key technical support



          14      from Black & Veatch engineering which is an



          15      internationally known engineering company who



          16      helped us with our cost of service and rate



          17      design work.



          18               In our planning process, the mission of



          19      the utility is "To focus on the needs of our



          20      customers, to improve the quality of life in our



          21      community while promoting safe, reliable and



          22      sustainable utilities."  We are driven by a --



          23      primarily by our strategic plan and then within



          24      that strategic plan we have our key 20-year



          25      electric and water master plans which are the
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           1      primary planning tools that we use.



           2               This is where our challenges are



           3      looking at our historical trends.  Our cash on



           4      hand recently, what that has been showing.  Our



           5      electric sales as well as our water sales.



           6               Our cash on hand since 2004 has been



           7      dropping at a pretty rapid pace.  What this



           8      represents on the 2009, we show a little over 25



           9      million in cash.  That may seem like a lot but



          10      it takes roughly 17 to 20 million a month to



          11      operate the organization.  So, as you can see,



          12      we would like to have ideally about 60 days in



          13      reserves.  And we have been running anywhere



          14      from 23 days to 40 days recently.  And that puts



          15      us dangerously low as far as our liquidity



          16      position is concerned.



          17               Also, as far as our electric sales, the



          18      trends, our industrial sales since 2005 to



          19      current have reduced by roughly 25 percent, our



          20      commercial by 5 percent, and our residential



          21      roughly 6 percent.  And, also, some of these



          22      graphs and the information is also in the



          23      handouts that we provided.



          24               In looking at our water sales trends,



          25      this takes into account all three industrial,
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           1      commercial and industrial total.  But as you can



           2      see, since 2006 our water sales have slowed by



           3      roughly 18 percent in recent years.  Although



           4      our cash has been coming in much weaker,



           5      recently what have we been doing to help manage



           6      this reduction -- and, oh, before I get into



           7      that, just why specifically our sales are down.



           8               No. 1, as we all know, the economy in



           9      the last couple of years has been challenging to



          10      say the least.  But we are also a weather-driven



          11      business and the weather really in the last



          12      couple of years has been relatively mild in the



          13      summer and winter periods.  And also very wet



          14      unusually so.



          15               We have had a flat to inclining



          16      population.  I think there is a sense because of



          17      some of the growth that is occurring out



          18      especially in the western region that we are



          19      seeing a population growth going along with it,



          20      but that is really not the case.



          21               And then, lastly, conservation, which



          22      is a good thing.  More and more people, more and



          23      more companies are conserving energy and water.



          24      And we are seeing that.  The new appliances, for



          25      example, that you buy.  You know, water has been
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           1      a part of conservation efforts for a number of



           2      years because there is many areas of our



           3      country.  They're having water shortages so that



           4      has been happening as far as conservation in



           5      that area.  Your flush boxes, for example, in



           6      your homes now use less volume and so forth.  So



           7      conservation has also had an impact.



           8               So what have we done to control our



           9      reduce in cost?  Since -- from 2006 through



          10      2010, we reduced our budget by $55 million.  We



          11      eliminated staff positions for the past five



          12      years.  And as a matter of fact, we have been



          13      reducing staff positions since roughly 1996 and



          14      slowly reducing positions over time.  We have



          15      froze salaries.  All of the management



          16      professional staff with the utility are all



          17      frozen and we are currently working with our



          18      bargaining units in working with them in looking



          19      at -- also looking at some freezes there as



          20      well.



          21               Another thing that we did to help



          22      control our costs was our coal purchases.  We



          23      got -- late last fall in 2009, our cash position



          24      got very weak.  One of the things that we were



          25      able to successfully do was to renegotiate our
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           1      contact -- our coal contract at our Nearman



           2      power station.  Ordinarily, this is a take or



           3      pay contract but because they understood that we



           4      had a lot of coal in inventory because of demand



           5      being down, they did allow us to park the train



           6      for a month and that saved us roughly $4 million



           7      by being able to park the train.  And that was



           8      very important at that point in time to help us



           9      strengthen our cash position because we were



          10      getting dangerously down below -- even below 23



          11      days.  We also were able to park the train for a



          12      period of roughly a month at our Quindaro plant



          13      down in Fairfax also which helped save some



          14      cash.



          15               And like we always do when we don't



          16      have enough money, we delay capital improvement



          17      projects.  And that is a kind of where we have



          18      been recently.  We just have not been spending



          19      money and continually upgrading our aging



          20      infrastructure because we just haven't had the



          21      cash.



          22               Graphically, it basically summarizes.



          23      Again, we have reduced our budget since 2006 by



          24      roughly 55 million.  Now our board approved in



          25      our budget for 2010 678 staff positions but
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           1      currently we are operating at 594 positions



           2      because I have been holding up vacant positions



           3      and haven't been filling them.  Now, the



           4      challenge with that is our service quality



           5      starts to worsen as we have fewer and fewer



           6      people to respond, especially when we get into



           7      emergencies.  But we have had to do that to



           8      protect our cash position.



           9               We have been able to say that our rates



          10      are very competitive.  Our electric rates are



          11      lower than other surrounding utilities and well



          12      below the national average.  And our water rates



          13      are very competitive with surrounding utilities.



          14               For example, looking at a typical



          15      customer on the electric -- monthly electric



          16      bill 920 kilowatt hours.  This is without the



          17      PILOT fees.  $84.67 would be what our electric



          18      charge would be.  And, again, if you compare



          19      that to some of our neighbors like Kansas City



          20      Power & Light, Independence, and so forth -- and



          21      here is -- over here is the national average.



          22      Now this national average number was a 2008



          23      number so we know it has gone up since 2008.  We



          24      don't have the latest data on that but we're



          25      still well below what it was nationally in 2008.
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           1               On the water side, for 8 cubic feet we



           2      are roughly in the middle, at $36.35.



           3               I wanted to point out a little more



           4      carefully the electric utility rates and the



           5      rate comparisons, and also show as an industrial



           6      trend what has been happening.  And this has not



           7      just been happening here regionally, it has been



           8      happening nationally.  Electric rates have been



           9      skyrocketing.  A lot of it is being driven by



          10      not only rising costs of doing business, a lot



          11      of the commodities that we use, whether it be



          12      coal, natural gas, oil or whether we -- you



          13      know, copper has fluctuated in price.  A lot of



          14      our transformers and that are all -- that use



          15      copper.



          16               But environmental mandates have been



          17      also challenging all of us as an industry in



          18      raising rates.  And if you notice, Kansas City



          19      Power & Light, Kansas now, because they both



          20      serve in Kansas and Missouri, we are looking at



          21      Kansas City Power & Light 2006, they had an 8.95



          22      percent and they have been steadily asking for



          23      increases before the Kansas Corporation



          24      Commission.  And they currently have an 11.5



          25      percent before the commission now.  If they get
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           1      anywhere close to that 11.5, since 2006 they



           2      will have increased their fees by 48 -- roughly



           3      49 percent.



           4               If you look at BPU, the last rate



           5      increase we had was in 2006, 2.65.  And then if



           6      you add the one that we are recommending in



           7      2007, it would still be under 10 percent in



           8      total since 2005.  But this -- a lot of the



           9      utilities because of the -- especially when you



          10      go to build new generation, like Iatan II, the



          11      Kansas City Power & Light's building, whether



          12      they are new gas plants, we all know that the



          13      cost for these generating facilities are going



          14      up tremendously.



          15               And then all the environmental systems



          16      that you have to put on these plants really



          17      drive up the costs as well.  And there is more



          18      and more mandates on the environmental side that



          19      is requiring us to convert some of our older



          20      plants and to add better controls to them.  So



          21      this is really starting to drive the cost of



          22      energy upwards.  And, you know, we are getting



          23      into that as well.



          24               The rate hearing process at this time,



          25      I would turn it over to Lori Austin, manager of
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           1      finance, who will cover basically our rate



           2      hearing process.



           3                     MS. AUSTIN:  Thank you, Don.



           4               Just to talk a little bit about a rate



           5      hearing process.  We are a cost of service



           6      organization.  We have engaged the firm of Black



           7      & Veatch to perform a cost of service study in



           8      both our electric and water utility.  We asked



           9      to have them perform a five-year cost of service



          10      study from 2010 through 2014.  Once that cost of



          11      service study was performed, we began our rate



          12      setting process.



          13               We went before our board and asked for



          14      a resolution to approve -- a resolution for a



          15      rate hearing that was approved on February 1st.



          16      That started the 90-day notice for public



          17      review.  And in that public review we allow for



          18      formal review of our rate process and our cost



          19      of service and also any intervention.



          20               It's two -- we provide two formal



          21      public hearings that are conducted in the



          22      morning and the evening after the 90-day period



          23      has expired.  It is overseen by the



          24      administrative judge, who we have here tonight.



          25      The first hearing is tonight and the next
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           1      hearing will be tomorrow morning at 9:00 a.m.



           2               There will be a transcript of the



           3      hearing for both sessions and that is made



           4      available to the public and to the board of



           5      directors once complete.  At a later date we



           6      will ask for our board to vote on what the



           7      proposed rates that are -- that we are



           8      requesting.



           9               Our cost of service study, the focus of



          10      our study is to match the cost of providing the



          11      services to the individual customer classes so



          12      that we can equitably recover those costs.  We



          13      have three major classes:  Residential,



          14      commercial, and industrial.



          15               There is a three-step approach to the



          16      cost of service.  We have a revenue requirement



          17      for the overall utilities, both water and



          18      electric, and that is how much money is needed



          19      to meet our cost of service.



          20               Then we perform a cost allocation from



          21      whom should the money be collected.  And as I



          22      referenced, the three larger groups, the



          23      industrial, residential and commercial.



          24               Then we have -- then the final step is



          25      a rate design.  And it is how should those costs
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           1      -- how should those services be priced among



           2      those individual rate classes.



           3               At this time I would like to turn it



           4      over to Peggy Howe with Black & Veatch.



           5                     MS. HOWE:  Thank you.  Thank you,



           6      Lori.



           7               Black & Veatch was retained by BPU to



           8      provide an independent third-party opinion



           9      needed for the rate study and the cost of



          10      service analysis.  And before I get into the



          11      specific services we provide, I would like to



          12      talk a little bit about my firm.



          13               We are a global firm that provides



          14      engineering consulting services worldwide.  As



          15      indicated up here, we have over 9,000 employees



          16      worldwide and over 100 offices.  We have been in



          17      business for close to 100 years now.  And one of



          18      the things that I would really like to highlight



          19      is the fact that we have built our reputation on



          20      integrity and competence.  And we are very proud



          21      of that and stand behind that as we perform



          22      services to the folks that retain us.  We are an



          23      employee-owned corporation.  That is on a global



          24      basis.



          25               On a local basis or a regional basis,
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           1      we have over 40 offices in the United States, so



           2      we truly understand what is happening in the



           3      industries here that we serve.  We serve water,



           4      wastewater, gas, electric, telecommunications.



           5      We focus on utilities and we know the business



           6      inside and out, you might say.  We also are



           7      very, very local to BPU with offices -- a couple



           8      of offices here in the Kansas City area.



           9               Within Black & Veatch is a sub group or



          10      a division that focuses specifically on



          11      management consulting issues.  These are the



          12      issues associated with finances, associated with



          13      capital financing.  Not so much the hard design



          14      services but the services that support being



          15      able to operate and run the utility.



          16               We do the entire what we call value



          17      chain.  We help utilities with strategies.  We



          18      help them figure out how to pay for items.  We



          19      help them with the business processes to improve



          20      their operations, and we also have a group that



          21      helps them with their technology.  And these



          22      folks just focus strictly on what we call



          23      management consulting.  The folks that are going



          24      to be talking with you today and tomorrow are



          25      part of that group.
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           1               Specific experience in the water and



           2      energy business, I'll talk a little bit about



           3      that.  There are about 50 major metropolitan



           4      areas in the U.S. as far as water.  We have



           5      served over 28 of those 50 areas with all types



           6      of management consulting services.  Just a few



           7      of them would be -- in the region here would be



           8      St. Louis, Wichita, Cincinnati.  And then we



           9      threw Miami-Dade in because that's a new one for



          10      us.  But, again, I want to point out they are



          11      large metropolitan areas, they all face similar



          12      challenges that your utility is facing.  We can



          13      bring the knowledge from those communities to



          14      help you perform better and operate better.



          15               On the electric side, out of the



          16      hundred largest public utilities we provide



          17      service to 37 of them.  Again, we can take that



          18      knowledge and that understanding and bring them



          19      those best practices to help BPU make the right



          20      decisions better and in the best interest of



          21      their customers.



          22               Specifically, the services we provided



          23      we helped with the cost of service and rate



          24      design.  And just to walk you through this, you



          25      start at the bottom of this chart down here.
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           1      And just as you do on a personal level, you have



           2      got to know how much does it cost to operate,



           3      and where the revenue is coming from to get



           4      that.  And I always compare it to, you know,



           5      your personal checkbook.  Money comes in, money



           6      goes out.  You have got to have a good



           7      understanding of what the costs are on a regular



           8      basis and how you are going to fund them.  That



           9      is what we call revenue requirements.  And when



          10      the money coming in is not enough to cover the



          11      costs going out, something needs to be done.



          12      And we are at that point now.



          13               After that we then look at all the



          14      different customers that you have and we say,



          15      all right, who is causing these costs to be



          16      incurred and let's equitably distribute the



          17      costs to those customers and recover the revenue



          18      from those customers.  And that is the purpose



          19      behind doing a rate study and a cost of service



          20      analysis.



          21               So, in summary -- in summary, find out



          22      how much money you need, find out who is causing



          23      the cost to happen, and design rates that will



          24      equitably recover those costs from the specific



          25      customers.
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           1               Our project approach parallels that.



           2      We start off with financial planning, go to the



           3      cost of service analysis, and finish up with the



           4      rate design.  We use proven approaches that are



           5      supported by the industry.  They're consistent



           6      with AWWA, American Water Works Association, and



           7      WEF, Water Environment Federation.  They have



           8      guidelines out there on how to do this and how



           9      to equitably recover those costs so that it is



          10      done consistently across the industry.  We also



          11      look at having specific issues for your



          12      community and make sure that the results are in



          13      tune with the industry but not so inflexible



          14      that they can't meet your specific needs.



          15               So what were the goals of our study for



          16      BPU?  Well, as mentioned earlier by Mr. Gray,



          17      your operating reserves are getting very close



          18      to a concerned position.  So the first thing we



          19      did was we came in and we looked at your



          20      financial targets for 2014.



          21               Now when you go -- when you need to



          22      build major capital, you go to the bond market.



          23      What does the bond market look at?  Well, think



          24      about it again on a personal level.  If you want



          25      to buy a house, what does a bank look at when
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           1      they look at you?  Well, this is on a much



           2      larger and a commercial level but the same thing



           3      happens.  There are certain things that the



           4      market is looking for to understand and



           5      interpret you as a sound financial risk.  And



           6      one of those things is your reserves.  And



           7      they're looking for about 60 days minimum.  And



           8      right now you're sitting at 32 days of reserves.



           9      So, if you needed to go to the market to borrow



          10      money to build capital, you would not be looked



          11      at favorably with those types of capital



          12      reserves.



          13               The second thing we looked at was



          14      improved cash flow and debt service coverage.



          15      Again, debt service coverage is one of those



          16      things that the market looks at to find out how



          17      good a risk you are for lending money.  And,



          18      quite honest, in the past 18 months, since



          19      August of 2008, things have changed considerably



          20      in the bond market.  Right now you are sitting



          21      at a debt service coverage of 1.13.  Right now



          22      1.50 is about the lowest most investors want to



          23      see.  So, again, you need to do something if you



          24      want to go to the bond market to get capital



          25      money to build your capital projects.
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           1               Finally, after we help -- and those



           2      first two items are what was part of the revenue



           3      requirements.  Is we helped you position your



           4      utility for those two items to be met.  After



           5      that we came in and we wanted to adjust rates



           6      equitably.  And this gets into the cost of



           7      service where you allocate the costs



           8      appropriately to who's causing the costs.



           9               And then we also look at some



          10      innovative rate options.  So that if there were



          11      issues, we could be flexible enough to meet your



          12      specific needs.



          13               And those are the services that Black &



          14      Veatch provided.



          15               And with this, Lori will -- Lori Austin



          16      will come back up and continue.



          17                     MS. AUSTIN:  Thank you, Peggy.



          18               Just to talk a little bit further about



          19      why this is necessary.  Peggy talked -- touched



          20      a little bit on it.  Over the last several years



          21      we have had 20 to 45 days of cash on hand.  The



          22      recommended level is 60 days of cash.  At



          23      year-end 2009 we do have -- we did have 32 days



          24      of cash on hand.



          25               With the lack of cash, that doesn't
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           1      allows us to finance the capital projects or



           2      meet our reserve and our debt service



           3      requirements.



           4               We also need to maintain our strong



           5      credit ratings so that when we go to the bond



           6      market that we can receive favorable interest



           7      rates and purchase those bonds for less



           8      expensive costs.



           9               Postponing the capital improvements



          10      will ultimately cause our service disruptions



          11      and our increased costs even more.



          12               We also have inflationary pressures



          13      that many of the other industries are



          14      experiencing where our service materials and



          15      laborers have increased.



          16               And as Don noted earlier, our rates



          17      have been constant since 2007.  We had a small



          18      increase in 2007 and we are below the national



          19      average and also lower than most surrounding



          20      utilities.



          21               So what is being proposed?  To meet the



          22      requirements, the study recommends revenues from



          23      the electric base rates of a series of four



          24      increases each year of 7 percent for 2010, 2011,



          25      2012 and 13.  And water base rates 8 percent in
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           1      2010 and 2011.  And 7 1/2 percent in 2012 and



           2      2013.  Now, that is a total base rate increase



           3      of 7.2 percent in 2010 and '11 and 7.1 percent



           4      in 2012 and 13.



           5               We are also proposing an environmental



           6      surcharge, and that environmental surcharge is a



           7      rider that will allow us to capture costs of



           8      environmental mandates that are required of us



           9      of capital projects for our generation.



          10               The additional modification would be to



          11      our energy rate component.  We are looking to



          12      change that from the current process of six



          13      months winter and six months summer to a



          14      quarterly adjustment, and it would be on an --



          15      through a calendar year basis.



          16               And then -- and then also we are



          17      looking to redefine our summer and winter



          18      periods.  Our current summer period is from May



          19      through October, and then our winter period is



          20      November through April.  We're looking to



          21      redefine that to four months summer and eight



          22      months winter.  So our summer will be May



          23      through August and winter period would be



          24      September through April.



          25               This is a look at our operating cash
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           1      flow under the proposed electric rates.  The



           2      solid line is if we did nothing.  As you can



           3      tell as we get out to 2011, we are definitely



           4      below our ability to fund our capital needs.



           5      The dotted line represents with the proposed



           6      rates.  And with the proposed rates that will



           7      meet our annual revenue requirements and reach



           8      our debt service, the projected 1.6 times



           9      coverage, and also meet our 60-day operating



          10      reserve by 2013.  Now that is building our cash



          11      reserve up to the 60 days by 2013.  It is not



          12      all in one year.



          13               Under water rates, solid line



          14      represents is if we did nothing, and the dotted



          15      line is under the proposed rates.



          16               Now, the water proposed rates will meet



          17      its annual revenue requirements and they have



          18      reached their debt coverage of -- 1.4 times debt



          19      service coverage, and 44 days of operating



          20      reserve by 2013 -- or 2014.



          21               The overall electric rate by classes,



          22      as I stated, the overall percentage is a 7



          23      percent across the four-year period.  When you



          24      break it down by class and recovering those



          25      costs equitably both residential and the large
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           1      power service are above the overall average



           2      cost.  We have put into place that we would not



           3      recover more than 50 percent of the overall



           4      system average in any one class, and that is why



           5      residential and large power service are a little



           6      bit higher through the study period until 2013.



           7               In the water side, the class is by



           8      year.  It's an overall 8 percent in '10 and '11,



           9      and 7 1/2 percent in 2012 and '13.  The



          10      residential small and medium customers would be



          11      a little bit higher than system average.  And



          12      then the industrial would phase in a little bit



          13      higher than average in later years.



          14               So what is being proposed with the



          15      environmental surcharge?  This is a surcharge to



          16      offset the new capital improvement requirements



          17      resulting from environmental regulations.  We



          18      currently have one project that's slated for an



          19      environmental project.  It is the low NOx



          20      burners and overfire air.  Darrell Dorsey will



          21      be talking about that a little bit.  It is a $40



          22      million project.



          23               So, with that, the environmental



          24      surcharge is proposed to be at 1 percent in



          25      2010, and then an additional 1.6 percent in
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           1      2011.  This amounts to an average increase for a



           2      residential customer of approximately 40 cents



           3      per month in 2010 and $1.04 per month in 2011.



           4               For a typical residential electric



           5      bill, this is breaking it out by our summer and



           6      winter period.  This is based on 1,150 kilowatt



           7      hours in the summer months and 625 kilowatt



           8      hours in the winter months.  This does not



           9      include PILOT or taxes.  You can see the range



          10      from the summer period 2009 to summer period



          11      2010 we're just coming into.  It's a little bit



          12      of an increase from '09.  And then from the



          13      summer period 2011 is approximately 12 to 13



          14      dollars overall.



          15               From the winter period, as you can see



          16      from '09 to the winter period, there is an



          17      actual decrease.  And then it's about a $7



          18      increase in the winter period in 2011.



          19               On the water side looking at 5 Ccf, 7



          20      Ccf and 10 Ccf, the overall increase for 5 Ccf



          21      would be about $2.72 for the first year, 2.95



          22      for the second year, 2.75 for the third, and



          23      $2.90 for the fourth year.



          24               With that, I will turn it over to



          25      Blake.  Blake Elliott, director of plant.
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           1                     MR. ELLIOTT:  As Lori said, my



           2      name is Blake Elliott, the director of electric



           3      supply planning.  I can't claim all the



           4      planning.



           5               The energy rate component is the



           6      portion of your bill that is broken out



           7      separately that recovers the costs of fuel and



           8      purchase power that the utility has to buy.  And



           9      we -- that was initially put into service back



          10      in 2002 which was our last formal cost of



          11      service study.



          12               We have done the calculation 18 times.



          13      One of those times was the mid-period



          14      adjustment.



          15               And what we have seen is a lot of



          16      volatility in the ERC.  A lot of volatility



          17      comes from the volatility in the gas market.



          18      The gas market, we have seen gas prices at $14



          19      per MMBTU, and we have seen gas prices at $4 for



          20      MMBTU.  So as that gas price swings, we see a



          21      lot of volatility in that pricing and it causes



          22      our ERC to move quite a bit.  So we would like



          23      to reduce that volatility.  We have seen a range



          24      in ERC from 1.25 through 4.25 cents per kilowatt



          25      hour on a -- for the every kilowatt hour that
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           1      you use on your bill.



           2               And then some of that additional



           3      volatility is from the reconciliation adjustment



           4      or the true-up that is done at the end of the



           5      period.  We make forecasts and do the



           6      calculation on that, but then the following year



           7      when we know what the final costs were for that



           8      previous period we true those costs up and we



           9      roll that into the calculation also.



          10               This is the graphical representation of



          11      exactly what has happened in each summer and



          12      winter period.  This is that mid-period



          13      adjustment, the $4 -- or $4.25 per kilowatt



          14      hour.  And that was just for two months, the



          15      months of September and October in 2008.



          16               The proposed changes, again, Lori



          17      mentioned this, we want to reduce the period



          18      from six months to three months.  And we want to



          19      perform that reconciliation adjustment more



          20      quickly.  Right now there's a year to year so



          21      that summer is reconciled with summer.  We hold



          22      on to that for quite a bit of time.  We think we



          23      can reduce volatility by shortening that period



          24      and doing the reconciliation more quickly.



          25               We would like to broaden the definition
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           1      of the power supply costs.  We want to capture



           2      all of our power supply costs in the ERC and



           3      that's some new ones that may be coming up we'll



           4      talk about.



           5               Also, there is a voltage adjustment



           6      that's done in the ERC and we're proposing to



           7      move that out of ERC and move it over actually



           8      into the individual customer class bill



           9      depending upon that customer and what voltage



          10      they take -- their meter is located at.



          11               These are the changes in the power



          12      supply costs.  We want to include all of the



          13      demand charges for purchase power and



          14      transmission.  In there right now some of the



          15      demand charges are excluded from going into ERC.



          16      We would like to get them all in there.  Because



          17      the demand charges truly are you don't have



          18      demand unless you need energy.  This truly is an



          19      energy cost to us.



          20               The SPP, which is the Southwestern



          21      Power Pool is the regional transmission



          22      organization we belong to.  There's a lot of



          23      development in the SPP about future market



          24      things that we'll have to operate in to stay



          25      connected to the grid.  There will be some new
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           1      market requirements, consolidated balancing



           2      authority.  There is some new transmission costs



           3      to get extra high voltage transmission



           4      available, to get wind energy out of the



           5      Midwest.  You may have heard some of that in the



           6      paper.  That is a very big discussion point.



           7      And then ancillary services which is some pretty



           8      specific generation-type definitions.



           9               We would like to recover costs



          10      associated with demand response programs that



          11      would give the utility actual control over



          12      customer load.  If we see the load is going to



          13      go up so high on a day and we can do something



          14      to control that load, that is -- and bring it



          15      down, then we don't have to go out and buy



          16      additional generation for that time period.  So



          17      we would like to recover some of those costs for



          18      that type of equipment and charges.



          19               Also, some -- the renewable energy



          20      credits that come with our alternative energy,



          21      our renewable energy, when those are sold back



          22      to the marketplace we want to give a portion of



          23      that back to our customers in the form of a



          24      credit.  In the reconciliation adjustment.



          25               I think that is the end of mine and I'm
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           1      going to ask Darrel Dorsey, next presenter.



           2                     MR. DORSEY:  Good evening.



           3               I will start off with a little



           4      background on the electric production and supply



           5      division for those of you that may not be



           6      familiar with our organization.  We have got



           7      about 211 employees in this division, the bulk



           8      of which are at the power generating stations.



           9               The Nearman plant is the youngest



          10      plant.  It is not really new anymore.  It is 29



          11      years old, but it is a single coal-fired unit,



          12      235 megawatts.  We also have one combustion



          13      turbine.  Our newest combustion turbine, CT4, is



          14      at that site as well.



          15               Quindaro power station has two



          16      coal-fired units.  It also has three combustion



          17      turbines.



          18               The old Kaw power station had three



          19      coal-fired units that also fired natural gas.



          20      The Kaw power station has been in long-term cold



          21      storage since about 2004.  It's not operating at



          22      this time and there's nothing within this plan



          23      to operate that station.



          24               There is a number of other departments



          25      within the division.  Environmental services
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           1      provides monitoring and reporting for all of our



           2      regulatory requirements.  They also provide the



           3      same services to the rest of the utility in some



           4      other areas.



           5               Fuels, we have a lot of activity in the



           6      fuel procurement for both coal, natural gas, and



           7      oil.  All fuels we're using at the plants for



           8      the main units.



           9               Planning, which is Blake's department.



          10               Energy control center, which is the



          11      dispatching of the energy from the power plants,



          12      but they also handle the shorter term wholesale



          13      power market, both selling power on the market



          14      and buying power from the market.



          15               Then key accounts, which is a set-up to



          16      address the unique concerns of our top 50 key



          17      account customers.



          18               First of all, in 2010, we have made a



          19      lost of cuts to stay within the revenue that we



          20      have right now.  Just in 2010 we made from the



          21      operational maintenance budget alone about $4



          22      million worth of cuts in deferrals, work that



          23      we're pushing out to future years.



          24               One big example is our Combustion



          25      Turbine #1 and 3 overhauls.  These are the three
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           1      combustion turbines that I mentioned were at the



           2      Quindaro power station.  Unit 1 is the oldest.



           3      Unit 3 and 1 are both due for overhauls, where



           4      we basically open the machine, inspect and make



           5      repairs as necessary and reassemble it.  It's



           6      the kind of the equipment we don't know what we



           7      have wrong until we open it and inspect it.



           8      It's a big job.  I mean, we will spend over a



           9      million dollars on each one of those just on the



          10      inspection, the open and close and inspect.  And



          11      then the necessary repairs are determined as we



          12      go.



          13               We made a lot of other cuts as well.



          14      We deferred some boiler feed pump overhauls,



          15      structural repairs.  We made unilateral cuts



          16      across a lot of maintenance accounts.  I mean,



          17      most of the maintenance accounts, quite frankly.



          18               Again, we deferred some of the demand



          19      side management programs that we'd been looking



          20      into that Blake mentioned.  Environmental data



          21      acquisition systems.  We built in some



          22      additional attrition on our labor.  As Don



          23      mentioned, we're holding off on filling



          24      positions to save some cash.  Delayed vehicle



          25      procurements.  And that is just a sampling of
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           1      some of the budget cuts that we've made not only



           2      at the power stations but to meet the O & M



           3      budget.



           4               Capital cuts in our capital dollars, we



           5      cut a good $9 million.  About $3 million worth



           6      of work that we would do at Nearman right now if



           7      we had the funding, and about 6 million at



           8      Quindaro.



           9               Again, just some examples.  Combustion



          10      Turbine #5 will be the next combustion turbine



          11      addition.  You may recall at one time we were



          12      going to add another coal-fired plant.  We



          13      haven't done so.  We don't believe we can do so



          14      in the near-term future, so our next plan is to



          15      install another combustion turbine.



          16               Now, this is actually the Combustion



          17      Turbine 4 that went into service in 2006.



          18      Combustion Turbine 5 in this plan is planned to



          19      be the same, basically a mirror image, a



          20      duplicate of Combustion Turbine 4, would sit



          21      right next to it out at the Nearman power plant.



          22      That is in this five-year capital plan.



          23               Some other projects that were pushed



          24      out, mercury monitoring equipment, lightning



          25      protection systems, roofing replacements.  We
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           1      have roofs that we're just repairing until we



           2      can take care of a larger replacement project.



           3               Levee improvements, both Nearman and



           4      Quindaro have levees to protect them from



           5      flooding.  If you recall the last big flood,



           6      Nearman, for example, was totally surrounded.



           7      100 percent surrounded by flood water.  It needs



           8      a lot of levee improvements to maintain its



           9      certification and that level of protection.



          10               The Quindaro flood wall needs some



          11      work.  We pushed both of those out to 2011 as



          12      well.  We're comfortable in doing so at this



          13      time predominantly because the Quindaro project,



          14      the Corps of Engineers has just recently done



          15      some more detailed analysis of the flood wall.



          16      There is a possibility they will be reducing the



          17      scope and stretching out the work.  So we were



          18      quite comfortable with pushing that one out.



          19               The Nearman project, we felt we had



          20      time.  It's mainly a lot of rock riff raff that



          21      has to be repaired and replaced, but the work



          22      will have to be done.



          23               Combustion Turbine #3 air duct.  These



          24      combustion turbines have a lot of steel liners



          25      inside the air ducts.  We're having problems
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           1      with it.  Needs to be replaced.



           2               Mill gears and liners, traveling



           3      screens for the intakes.  Again, these are --



           4      this is just a sampling of some of the projects



           5      we cut and deferred and work that we pushed out.



           6      We probably had at least 24 projects of this



           7      nature that were deferred to later years.



           8               As far as our future needs, we will



           9      need to complete a lot of this deferred work.



          10      It's not like we can keep pushing it out



          11      forever.  You know, where we've pushed work out



          12      we were comfortable with for the time being but



          13      we know we've got to do it starting in 2011 and



          14      12 to get caught up.



          15               Also in the five-year capital plan,



          16      though, are the overhauls for all three of the



          17      coal-fired units.  Just as I mentioned with



          18      combustion turbines, we have to periodically



          19      completely tear them down, inspect them and make



          20      repairs as necessary.  All three coal-fired



          21      units will experience that in this five-year



          22      period.



          23               Combustion Turbines #2 and 4 will also



          24      undergo overhauls.  Lori mentioned the low NOx



          25      burner work, that will be installed by 2012 at
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           1      the two plants.  We have to replace Nearman air



           2      heater baskets and install the new combustion



           3      turbine.  And, again, that is just a sampling of



           4      some of the major work that is in the five-year



           5      plan.



           6               What it equates to is the Nearman



           7      projects over the next five years require about



           8      $20 million.  The Quindaro projects about $35



           9      million.  The new CT 5 is currently running an



          10      estimate of about $74.5 million.  And as Lori



          11      mentioned earlier, the low NOx burner project is



          12      about 40 million.  We actually have engineers



          13      working right now on an update for that cost but



          14      we feel it's going to be pretty close.



          15               The bulk of this will be funded through



          16      bond funding to get these capital needs.  So it



          17      is not a matter of we have to raise this much



          18      money in five years.  We only have to raise the



          19      debt service requirement for those bonds for



          20      that time period.



          21               Oh, we mentioned the environmental



          22      surcharge rider.  The first project is related



          23      to the Kansas City ozone.  You have probably



          24      seen the ozone alerts on the news on TV and on



          25      some of the buses going around downtown.  They
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           1      finally have come out with the mandates that



           2      require us to install the low NOx burners and



           3      overfire air systems to help bring down the



           4      ozone in the Kansas City area.  Now, that's



           5      about a $40 million project.  That is what this



           6      initial environmental surcharge will recapture



           7      is the bond debt service to retire the bonds for



           8      that environmental project.



           9               But there is a wide range of additional



          10      environmental concerns that we know are on the



          11      horizon.  They haven't come to fruition yet.  We



          12      can't say exactly when they will but we know



          13      they're going to be costly.



          14               Regional haze is like how well you can



          15      see from one mountain range to the other.  You



          16      know, a hundred years ago, it was crystal clear,



          17      today it's a little hazy.  They want to clear



          18      that up.  If regional haze kicks in for Nearman,



          19      and we are hoping it won't do so for another



          20      five years, but we estimated about $169 million



          21      just to do scrubbers for that power station.  So



          22      there is potentially some large dollars involved



          23      in those projects.



          24               Hazardous air pollutants.  Mercury.



          25      They did have a mercury rule out.  It was
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           1      rescinded.  We know it's going to come back out



           2      again.  We may have to install some mercury



           3      controls.



           4               Particulate matter.  The National



           5      Ambient Air Quality Standard revisions, just



           6      pointing out, those are kind of a baseline that



           7      kind of sets the standard from which all these



           8      programs evolve.  And they continue to evolve



           9      and tighten up on the ambient air quality



          10      standards.  These programs will come to



          11      fruition.  There's been a lot of talk about



          12      carbon lately.  I don't know where it is going



          13      to go.  We just know that when it gets here it's



          14      going to be expensive.  So there is a lot of



          15      future concerns where this environmental



          16      surcharge can come into play as well to retire,



          17      again, the capital funds necessary to do these



          18      major environmental projects.



          19               One of the things that frequently gets



          20      asked is what are we doing to mitigate some of



          21      those environmental costs, you know, because we



          22      have these coal-fired units and gas units.  We



          23      have emissions.  We already have quite a bit of



          24      alternative energy in our system.  Green power



          25      as people like to call it.  We have 38 megawatts
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           1      coming in from the Southwest Power



           2      Administration, 5 megawatts from the Western



           3      Area Power Administration.  We have a 25



           4      megawatt take on the Smoky Hills Wind Farm,



           5      which is the one off of I-70 as you go out west



           6      of Salina.  And we just recently started pulling



           7      in 1.6 megawatts off of a new landfill gas



           8      project.  So we are in a pretty good position



           9      right now.



          10               Now, I should mention the state of



          11      Kansas does not -- nor the federal government



          12      requires us to have a mandatory renewable energy



          13      portfolio, but this is what we have on, I guess



          14      you would say, a voluntary basis.  So that does



          15      help us mitigate some of our emissions costs to



          16      a degree.



          17               Future energy supplies, we do continue



          18      to work on future renewables.  That's something



          19      that planning, Blake, works on quite extensively



          20      looking at when the next opportunity is for



          21      additional landfill gas, wind energy, hydro.



          22      You know, whatever we can find we are willing to



          23      take a look at.



          24               Conventional purchase power agreements



          25      where we sign up with another utility to buy
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           1      their power for a period of time.  If the right



           2      offer is made and it's cheaper than what we can



           3      do it ourselves, we will buy the power from the



           4      other utility.



           5               The Southwest Power Pool energy



           6      markets.  As Blake mentioned, those are evolving



           7      markets.  We are market participants.  Right now



           8      it's just a real-time -- right now they -- you



           9      know, today's a power-type market, but they are



          10      evolving day-ahead markets, ancillary service



          11      markets.  I don't know if they will manage to



          12      pull together any capacity markets, but we will



          13      continue to participate in those as well to



          14      provide your energy.



          15               Of course, demand side management as



          16      Blake mentioned is a great endeavor.  It has got



          17      a lot of potential for us to have control of



          18      energy in the community to help out this overall



          19      situation.  It has got some real value.



          20               But in the short term, our next



          21      addition is, as I mentioned earlier, natural gas



          22      generation by adding a combustion turbine at the



          23      Nearman power station.



          24               So that is kind of an overview of what



          25      is in the five-year capital plan and the cost of
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           1      service for the electric production and supply



           2      division.



           3               With that, I will turn it over to Bill



           4      Johnson.



           5                     MR. JOHNSON:  Thank you, Darrell.



           6               Again, my name is Bill Johnson.  I'm



           7      manager of electric operations and technology.



           8               And just like Darrell, we have got a



           9      sizable workforce.  We've got about 199



          10      employees within that division.  What the



          11      division is primarily responsible for is taking



          12      the energy generated at our power plants and



          13      transporting and delivering that energy to each



          14      and every business and home in the Kansas City



          15      community.



          16               We have got -- some of the departments



          17      that make up electric operations and technology



          18      is our T & D section, we've got our metering



          19      section.  Information technology.  We have got



          20      our fleet or our transportation.  We provide a



          21      lot of transportation support for the entire



          22      organization.



          23               What we have in our five-year forecast,



          24      which is part of this cost of service, are



          25      capital projects to go in and rebuild a lot of
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           1      over and underground distribution, and also do



           2      some upgrades on some of our transmission



           3      circuits.  Got about $56 million for



           4      distribution work alone, and I will get more --



           5      and give you more specific information about



           6      this.



           7               Transmission upgrades are about 33



           8      million.  Substation improvements and new



           9      additions were about $42 million.  And the



          10      AMI/AMR project which is advanced metering, or



          11      automated meter reading system, is about $13



          12      million.  And a $16 million investment in our



          13      existing radio system, two-way radio system,



          14      which is a system that all of our field crews



          15      use.  Electric, water, customer service field



          16      crews.  But also it's kind of a joint use radio



          17      system where we also share that radio system



          18      with the Unified Government.  Police, fire,



          19      emergency management also rides on that same



          20      system.



          21               The system is at a point where it is



          22      starting to run out of warranty, where it is



          23      starting to lose a lot of manufacturing and



          24      support on that system.  And we are looking at a



          25      number of avenues trying to create -- get some
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           1      additional financing, but it's simply past the



           2      point where we need to start looking at



           3      replacing it.



           4               This is a construction overview of what



           5      we are proposing to do with our T & D



           6      construction plant.  We want to build new 161



           7      substations and do some upgrades to our 15 kV



           8      distribution network.  The reason for that is



           9      there is an increase for energy that is



          10      continuing to go up.



          11               And, also, we have got a service



          12      territory that is still expanding.  A lot of the



          13      development that you see out west, a lot of that



          14      development is going into places where we really



          15      don't have adequate distribution circuits.  So



          16      we're having to extend our distribution network



          17      further and further out to meet that new growth.



          18               And, also, homes are -- even though



          19      they are more energy efficient, homes are



          20      becoming more and more bigger.  Appliances are



          21      using more energy.  While some of them are using



          22      less, you know, the flat screen TVs and some of



          23      the other things you're seeing are driving up



          24      that demand for new energy.



          25               The other thing we are wanting to do at
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           1      our substation, and this is a plan that we have



           2      started some time ago, is to continue converting



           3      a lot of our 69 line kV substations to 161.



           4      What I mean by that, if you took a look at our



           5      service territory, about -- we've got 29 major



           6      substations and about half of those substations



           7      are 161 kV or 161,000 volt substations.  The



           8      other half are 69,000 substations.



           9               We started converting those substations



          10      over to 161 to increase reliability for all of



          11      our customers and also to move our transmission



          12      network to one voltage.  So in the long run that



          13      will reduce cost and also eliminate some of the



          14      problems we're having with some of the aging



          15      infrastructure.  Our 69 kV system is our only



          16      system.  As it stands now, the utility spends



          17      more dollars than we would like because we are



          18      having to maintain both systems at the same



          19      time.  So we are trying to mitigate some of that



          20      by moving it to one standardized or one voltage.



          21               Same thing with our 15 kV distribution



          22      system.  We have got two distribution voltages



          23      in KCK.  As we build new substations and convert



          24      those 69 kV stations to 161, that also gives us



          25      an opportunity to get our distribution network
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           1      to one voltage, too, so we're not having to



           2      support two.  And then the other part of the



           3      project is just to do some upgrade to our



           4      southern 161 loop that will add some capacity.



           5               A little bit deeper detail on the



           6      substation transmission projects that are



           7      actually in the budget is our Wolcott substation



           8      is the first one I will talk about.  It is a new



           9      substation that is being built out in the



          10      Wolcott community.  The purpose for this is to



          11      create a new intertie with Kansas City Power &



          12      Light.  Our intertie right now is at Maywood



          13      substation at 94th and Parallel.  This one was



          14      set further north and it will create a new



          15      intertie.



          16               It will also provide redundant service



          17      to a substation that was -- that is already in



          18      the Piper community.  If you go out 123rd



          19      Street, there is a substation that we energized



          20      about five years ago called Piper West.



          21               We need to build a new Wolcott inner



          22      sub -- and a transmission project to provide a



          23      secondary feed to that substation so that we



          24      will have a back-up feed in case we need -- we



          25      lose the one transmission line that's feed it,
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           1      we will have a secondary line that's already



           2      there.  Or we can take it out for maintenance.



           3      We will also have that secondary line there.



           4               We are also proposing an east Fairfax



           5      substation.  This project is -- goes along with



           6      what I said earlier with converting the 69 kV



           7      substations to 161.  What we are proposing to do



           8      with Fairfax is to eliminate three existing 69



           9      kV substations and build one new one to replace



          10      it.  It will also give us the ability to tackle



          11      some of this aging infrastructure that's down



          12      there.  And I will get a little bit deeper into



          13      that in some slides that's coming up.  But it



          14      will also give us a chance to expand and



          15      increase our distribution reliability down there



          16      and make Fairfax a place that we can market



          17      better in the future but also provide and



          18      support new growth to the existing customers



          19      that are down there.  The customers want to



          20      expand so we have to have distribution capacity



          21      within our system to be able to support that.



          22               The other main substation project is



          23      Muncie substation.  Again, it is an existing



          24      substation.  It's a 69 kV substation that we



          25      would like to convert over to a 161.  It is one
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           1      of our oldest substations on the system.  In



           2      fact, the two oldest substations is -- one is at



           3      Fairfax and this is the other one.



           4               I will talk about some of the age and



           5      infrastructure down here later on and show you



           6      why this -- converting this substation is past



           7      the critical state is something that is in our



           8      plan and why we need to replace that.  The main



           9      thing that goes into that decision is that's one



          10      of the substations that provide service to the



          11      downtown community.  So that is what makes it



          12      critical.  And like I said earlier, it's also



          13      one of our older substations.



          14               Here is a map of some of the projects



          15      that I just talked about.  What I would like to



          16      do is draw your attention to this line here



          17      (indicating).  This is a transmission line out



          18      west.  This is the 435 interchange.  This line



          19      is owned by Kansas City Power & Light.



          20               What is interesting about it is here is



          21      our Maywood substation (indicating), here is the



          22      Piper substation (indicating) I talked about



          23      earlier.  There is -- this transmission line is



          24      primarily responsible for feeding and providing



          25      service to this entire area here (indicating).
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           1               And the interesting thing is we are



           2      providing service off a line that BPU don't even



           3      own.  We tapped into that line here to feed



           4      Piper here, so Piper and Maywood is already



           5      providing distribution service.  This is a



           6      transmission line project that is already on the



           7      way and we hope to complete it by the end of



           8      this year.



           9               The substation will probably be



          10      energized next year and our plans following that



          11      is to construct the new 161 line from Wolcott



          12      back down to our Nearman power plant that



          13      Darrell talked about earlier.  The reason for



          14      that is BPU needs to have some ownership in --



          15      of transmissions that feeds its community.  And



          16      we just take it away from relying on another



          17      utility to provide that type of service to



          18      Kansas City.



          19               We talked about Fairfax.  A lot of our



          20      budget is going to be spent in this area just



          21      building a new substation and replacing three.



          22      And this is Muncie here.



          23               Some of the transmission work I talked



          24      about earlier is this other loop.  It's a



          25      transmission line that is already there.  Our
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           1      plans are -- is to leave that -- the poles



           2      there.  Leave everything else there, just



           3      reconduct, put up a little bit bigger wire so we



           4      can have a little bit more capacity built within



           5      that circuit.



           6               I've talked about transmission



           7      projects, now I would like to shift to



           8      distribution.  Part of our strategy for wanting



           9      to upgrade some of our distribution is to mainly



          10      focus on some of these 60 to 80-year-old



          11      underground and overhead infrastructure that's



          12      more in our central core for the downtown area,



          13      in Fairfax, and in the Armourdale area more



          14      specifically.



          15               But years ago the design was to put in



          16      a lot of lead and paper cable.  That requires



          17      specialized-type work.  It's the whole



          18      infrastructure.  Most engineering standards have



          19      moved away from that type of construction, and



          20      we've already started replacing a lot of it.



          21      Our plan is to continue replacing that.  It will



          22      provide a lot more efficiency, reliability to



          23      our system.  While we are going through it, we



          24      will have the ability to also take a look at a



          25      lot of duct bank manholes that are that age,
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           1      too.  A lot of them are starting to deteriorate.



           2               We'll also be doing some overhead



           3      distribution upgrades in that area, too.  The



           4      primary reason is to again mitigate some of the



           5      aging infrastructures and also increase some of



           6      our load capacity.  A lot of the existing wire



           7      that is there now is really undersized based on



           8      what our today's standards are.  So going in and



           9      replacing some poles and putting up a little bit



          10      larger wire will certainly help.  Not only



          11      provide greater reliability but also add more



          12      capacity.  And while we are in there, it would



          13      be a good opportunity to take advantage of a lot



          14      of vegetation management, trimming trees, and



          15      doing some of the necessary work that would



          16      eliminate some of the outages down the road.



          17               The other thing I talk about with



          18      Muncie is also, you know, picking up my focus on



          19      how do we improve service to the downtown



          20      community.  Muncie is one of two substations



          21      that feed power to downtown.  There is some



          22      dedicated feeders, meaning that there are



          23      feeders that come downtown that really don't



          24      have any or hardly -- or very few residential



          25      customers attached to them.  Those are some of
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           1      the things that we are taking a look at first.



           2               What I want to pointed out on this map



           3      is where some of the distribution dollars are



           4      going to be spent.  Kind of got a color-coded



           5      chart here from 2010 to 2014 that just shows



           6      here is where we are spending dollars on the



           7      Fairfax project and some of the additional



           8      dollars that we are asking for under this rate



           9      increase will be spent in this area in 2010.  A



          10      lot of this work out here is being done by a



          11      previous bond request that we got last year.



          12      But there is not enough dollars to really



          13      complete some of the things that we are wanting



          14      to do out there as well as down here, so that is



          15      where the new dollars will come in to have a



          16      bigger impact in these areas.



          17               And then what we're doing is just kind



          18      of follow this color code down and, you know, do



          19      some rebuilding in this section in 2011, 2012,



          20      and then work our way south.  With all this that



          21      we have got in here, it's -- we'll make some



          22      significant upgrades to some key areas but



          23      certainly wouldn't be looking at rebuilding this



          24      whole area here, just addressing some of the



          25      more pressing needs.
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           1               Some of the spending by area.  I kind



           2      of split the -- our service territory along 635



           3      east and west and along I-70 north and south.



           4      And use it following that same -- that same



           5      quadrant.  The northeast is going to receive



           6      about $40 million worth of -- or that spending.



           7      Most of it would be in the Fairfax and the



           8      downtown area.  We will have some dollars in the



           9      residential area, mostly some of the overhead



          10      rebuild.  This would be a lot of underground



          11      that's downtown and some overhead in Fairfax.



          12               The northwest, like I said earlier,



          13      there is some financing already in place to take



          14      care of some of those projects, but there's



          15      going to be new service coming out of the



          16      Wolcott substation.  We are already running new



          17      feeders out of the Piper substation now.  And



          18      what makes that -- what makes that important to



          19      us is that this station that I talked about



          20      earlier that is at 94th and Parallel, our plan



          21      is to start shifting the residential customers



          22      more and more away from that so -- so that that



          23      substation can be better suited for a lot of the



          24      entertainment and retail that is starting to



          25      appear around the Village West area.  It will be
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           1      more and more a dedicated substation for growth



           2      in that area.



           3               The southeast is a lot of the



           4      transmission line upgrades and as well as the



           5      southwest.  It would just be reconducting some



           6      of those transmission lines that are already



           7      there.



           8               With this slide what I want to talk



           9      about is just some of the age of some of the



          10      distribution here.  Why upgrading some of this



          11      distribution is so important.  This section



          12      here, which is east of 635, which I have already



          13      talked about, it also has a lot of the lead and



          14      paper cable and even some of the old overhead is



          15      something that we want to upgrade.  Mainly



          16      because a lot of this stuff is between 60 and 80



          17      years old.  And if you get down into parts of



          18      Fairfax and parts of Armourdale there may be



          19      small sections that may even extend beyond that.



          20               What we have done over the last 10



          21      years is to go in with smaller projects and just



          22      kind of make some upgrades, some -- you know,



          23      smaller sections that we have rebuilt.  Like I



          24      said earlier, we are not going to be able to



          25      rebuild all of this but we can certainly go in
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           1      and continue to focus on some of the more



           2      critical areas.  Some of the areas where we have



           3      some of the oldest infrastructures still there



           4      and continue to make upgrades until we can start



           5      making this area, you know, more reliable and



           6      provide the type of quality service that we



           7      would all want to continue to provide.



           8               Here is a map that just kind of shows



           9      how we got to where we are at.  Prior to 1964,



          10      BPU served this section right here that is in



          11      the yellow (indicating).  Throughout --



          12      throughout the years we have continued to buy



          13      more and more service territory from Kansas City



          14      Power & Light.



          15               In 1968, we acquired this service



          16      territory in blue (indicating).  And then in



          17      '71, we expanded out here (indicating).  '72, we



          18      purchased all of this (indicating).  '74, we



          19      purchased this section (indicating).  And then,



          20      finally, in '82 we came out in this section



          21      (indicating).



          22               Now what we have done is as we bought



          23      more service territory, we went in and upgraded



          24      some of the transmission -- the old transmission



          25      service there.  We did go in and put in some new
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           1      substations.  We didn't really do a lot of



           2      distribution upgrades.  We kind of left a lot of



           3      those circuits that we bought from Kansas City



           4      Power & Light in place.  But what it has done to



           5      us over the years, and because we haven't had



           6      the budget to completely do some of the things



           7      that we have tried to do in the past, you can



           8      see where our 69 substations began to age more



           9      and more.



          10               Muncie substation, I talked about



          11      earlier, is right here (indicating).  The



          12      substation and the transformer that's there is



          13      about 60 years old.  A new transformer has a



          14      normal life expectancy of about 30 years.  So



          15      this kind of shows you where we're at with the



          16      age of these units.  74 percent of our



          17      transformers are past 30 years old.  That is why



          18      it's critical that BPU does not continue to push



          19      this infrastructure further and further out into



          20      the future because we're going to get to the



          21      point where we can't support it.



          22               This is another shot of all of our



          23      transformers, all of our substation



          24      transformers.  When you mix in the 161



          25      transformers in our substations, these are our
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           1      newer units.  You can still see somewhere in the



           2      50 to 60 percent range.  You know, we still have



           3      a lot of transformers that are past 30 years



           4      old.



           5               In our conversion of 69 to 161



           6      conversion, a plan that we started is -- was



           7      creating this down here and is -- and we are



           8      removing this older section up here and this is



           9      what we are planning to do with this cost of



          10      service study in our five-year forecast.  To do



          11      that it is going to cost, you know, money.  You



          12      know, just like everything else prices of



          13      material, the prices of professional services



          14      have gone up.



          15               Don talked about some of the wire



          16      transformers earlier in his introduction.  The



          17      transformers that we're using is pretty standard



          18      in the new substations that we are building now.



          19      In 2005, that transformer was about $638,000.



          20      In all of our substations, designs can put two



          21      transformers in there so we have switching



          22      capabilities within a substation.  We'll need to



          23      take one transformer out for service and we've



          24      got the other one there that's sized properly so



          25      it can carry the load -- the majority of the
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           1      load of the substation.



           2               Since 2005, this transformer has gone



           3      from $638,000 to about 1.4 to 1.5 million



           4      dollars.  So, you know, as we go through and



           5      build new substations those projects are



           6      becoming more and more expensive to build.  So



           7      the distribution transformers, these are



           8      transformers that you see on the poles.  These



           9      are transformers you see right outside of a



          10      business.  The lower voltage transformers.



          11               There is 2007 prices -- price increases



          12      since 2007 and these are transformers that we



          13      commonly use every year for new construction,



          14      storm restoration.  We go through probably 250



          15      or so distribution transformers a year.



          16               But the price increases range from



          17      about 45 percent up to well over a hundred



          18      percent in this short span, which is shorter



          19      than what I talked about up here.  So this kind



          20      of shows where the price of materials are going



          21      up.



          22               Here is just a few more pieces of



          23      commonly used stock items.  Wooden poles, 35 and



          24      45 foot poles that will increase 35 and 80



          25      percent.  Wire for dis -- for, you know, the
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           1      rebuilding of the distribution circuits that I



           2      talked about overhead.  Underground wire you are



           3      looking at 200, 300, 363 percent price



           4      increases.  So these are serious increases in



           5      price that just gives you an idea of we need to



           6      finance these projects and these projects are



           7      becoming more and more expensive when we do



           8      build budgets to help support them.



           9               Darrell talked about earlier some of



          10      the cuts that the production side has made, and,



          11      you know, Don talked about some of the cuts



          12      earlier, too, that the entire utility has made.



          13      Just a snapshot of some of the things we have



          14      done is reduce staffing.  We have certainly



          15      delayed and deferred a lot of improvements over



          16      the years that, you know, has been needed.  We



          17      have pushed out a lot of upgrades in our



          18      telecommunications, a lot of our IT systems.  We



          19      made -- we made some investments in some areas



          20      but some areas we really haven't touched in a



          21      while and there are some things that we still



          22      need to do there.



          23               Vehicles and work equipment.  We



          24      purchase all the work equipment and vehicles for



          25      the utility and maintain them.  And it has been
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           1      about four years since we have bought any cars



           2      or work equipment other than maybe one or two.



           3      So we are starting to fall behind there and we



           4      are starting to see some of these units drive up



           5      our maintenance costs higher and higher.  And



           6      some of them are either -- even a piece of



           7      equipment that we have taken out of service so



           8      it is not available when we need it.  We are



           9      going to have to address this -- the situation,



          10      especially when we are building some of these



          11      other projects because these are the tools that



          12      we use to not only maintain but also to build



          13      the new projects that we are proposing.



          14               Tree trimming has taken a big hit.  The



          15      past budgets, we have had to cut our trimming



          16      budget by about a fifth.  We also were driven by



          17      inert to do a lot of tree trimming on our



          18      transmission lines because we really didn't have



          19      the budget to support that.  We just shifted



          20      money from our distribution work over to our



          21      transmission type of work.  The last two summers



          22      have been, you know, cooler than normal.  We



          23      have had storms that extend into the summertime.



          24      So not maintaining those trees have created a



          25      lot of outages and our community has suffered
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           1      through repeat outages.  We are hoping to build



           2      that back -- that tree trimming budget back up



           3      and get back on schedule.



           4               We have got about 34 locations which



           5      are substations and other facilities under



           6      electric operations.  And like Darrell talked



           7      about earlier, we have got roofing and HVAC



           8      systems, plumbing, things that we continue to



           9      push further and further out because we just



          10      didn't have the dollars to help support it.



          11               Parking surfaces, our grass cutting.



          12      It is not just these locations but all of our



          13      power plants, all of our water facilities, that



          14      number goes quite a bit up when you look at all



          15      the grass cutting.  Even the vacant lots that



          16      BPU used to have equipment on them.  But, you



          17      know, it's a vacant lot now and we still have to



          18      maintain those properties.  And a few years ago



          19      because of budget constraints we cut our grass



          20      cutting budget by about 25 percent and we



          21      haven't recovered from that yet.



          22               While we were going through some of the



          23      cuts, we have also made significant improvements



          24      to our system.  SCADA, which is the supervisory



          25      control system, that goes out and looks at all
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           1      of our substations, our energy control center,



           2      and can monitor all of our substations, the



           3      breakers, the transformers and control them.  We



           4      are starting to put in newer and better controls



           5      to make sure that the system control is what it



           6      needs to be not only today but into the future.



           7               We are also doing some major control



           8      work in our pump stations, too, to go along with



           9      that.



          10               We purchased a geographic information



          11      system which is basically a mapping system.  We



          12      have taken a lot of paper maps and put them into



          13      an asset database, and we are also extending



          14      that out to our designers.  What that means is



          15      we have a lot of -- a lot of our assets are on



          16      desktops now.  We are taking old drawings out of



          17      file cabinets, putting them into an electronic



          18      database.  They are able to make better



          19      decisions, know what is out in the system.  When



          20      we make modifications we can make changes to our



          21      mapping system, and then that information is



          22      useful to feed into our new outage management



          23      system.  That system went on line last year and



          24      is a major upgrade than what we had in place



          25      before.
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           1               What came with that is a new



           2      interactive voice response system.  So when you



           3      call into the system now there's a little bit



           4      different message.  What people don't see behind



           5      the scenes is we've cut our restoration efforts



           6      down significantly because the system takes the



           7      calls, routes them to and predicts where problem



           8      areas are and they show up on a map, this being



           9      created here and created within this product.



          10      All of our dispatchers, our crews, know right



          11      away where our outages are at so we can get our



          12      crews out there a lot quicker.  Where, you know,



          13      in the old days if we had 5,000 people out, then



          14      there was 5,000 individual work tickets created.



          15      And we had to just kind of sit down and group



          16      tickets together and kind of figure out what is



          17      going on.  The system does that automatically



          18      for 5,000 outages.  For 5,000 customers out, may



          19      only be 20 outages, 20 problems that create that



          20      many outages.  We can go out now and work 20



          21      problems and get people back on.



          22               Last month we had a storm where we had



          23      about 10,700 people out and it took us about a



          24      day and a half to go through that restoration



          25      process and get everybody back on.  I can't
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           1      remember any other time where we have made that



           2      much progress in that short period of time.



           3               We have got an asset management system



           4      for substation maintenance and pump station



           5      maintenance that we are continuing to improve.



           6      Our plan is to roll this into -- where we're



           7      pushing those work tickets out into the field.



           8      Some of our troubleshooters already have laptops



           9      so we are trying to create communications to



          10      push those work orders out and further increase



          11      efficiency.



          12               We have invested into a PILOT AMI



          13      system.  We have about 4,000 electric meters and



          14      about 1500 water meters that are the automated



          15      meter readers -- meters that are being read



          16      remotely.  That project is a project that we



          17      want to extend and expand.



          18               We applied for a smart grid grant from



          19      the DOE last year, just like almost every



          20      utility in the country.  We were not successful



          21      in getting the grant dollars but BPU has already



          22      had this project in its strategy.  And what we



          23      would like to do is build that system out in



          24      three years for the electric side of this, about



          25      a $13 million project.  What it will do for us
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           1      is create a lot of efficiency and reduce a lot



           2      of operating costs.



           3               Today we send a lot of vehicles back



           4      and forth to customers' houses for a number of



           5      reasons, to collect reads, to do -- collect



           6      rereads, and turn on and turn off for diversion.



           7      We can automate a lot of those work processes



           8      within this system.  We can also collect hourly



           9      reads.  What that will become is useful



          10      information to all of our customers and also



          11      enable our customers to be able to take that



          12      information and make better energy -- better



          13      choices with how they use energy.



          14               And there are some of our industrial



          15      customers that are already receiving hourly



          16      reads and they are making good business



          17      decisions based on having that data.  We can



          18      build up a load profile and that is taking a



          19      monthly or an hourly profile of what the



          20      customer's usage patterns are, and, there again,



          21      giving that back to the customer, whether it is



          22      by website or whether it is through one of these



          23      in-home displays or home area network systems.



          24               Darrell talked about demand side



          25      management.  Another thing that goes with that
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           1      is demand response.  The AMI system basically



           2      creates a communication system to and from the



           3      utility, to the customer's house and back.  One



           4      thing that a lot of utilities are doing is



           5      putting in programable thermostats.  But this



           6      will provide the communications network that



           7      will allow the utility to enter into contracts



           8      and to control these thermostats to help reduce



           9      peak loading especially in the summertime.



          10               The thing that we have been watching



          11      also is General Motors and several foreign



          12      carmakers have electric vehicles that they're



          13      proposing to roll out this year.  Our



          14      distribution system is really not -- we don't



          15      have enough controls.  We don't -- can't monitor



          16      it.  There is some sizing limits into -- in some



          17      of them.  So depending on where the charging



          18      stations show up, building this network and also



          19      doing some distribution upgrade is really going



          20      to be required.  So that when these charging



          21      stations start showing up all across our service



          22      territory, we can start providing that type of



          23      service and having systems that support, you



          24      know, the new Chevy Volt that I believe is



          25      scheduled to start this year.

�

                                                                 79







           1               This is our service centers.



           2      Maintenance -- our show-up area for most of our



           3      field crews to go out and -- these are the



           4      linemen, these are the other guys that go out



           5      and maintain our systems.  Some of the projects



           6      that we've pushed out or delayed are on some of



           7      the roofs and the HVACs are at this location.



           8      It's also at one of the 29 substations that are



           9      around.



          10               We have had some of this roof replaced



          11      through the main center.  Here is our inside



          12      warehouse.  We have got sections of roof here,



          13      we have got canopies that are rusted.  And we



          14      have got water that is coming inside the



          15      storeroom.  We have had to shift inventory



          16      around just to keep it from getting damaged.



          17      There is a project in our five-year forecast is



          18      to complete this.  This has been -- the last



          19      time we addressed it was about three years ago.



          20      We was delaying the final replacement for the



          21      last three years so we have elected to try to



          22      address this.



          23               And then, finally, my last slide is --



          24      this is what you typically see every day, you



          25      know, despite having -- not having enough cash
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           1      to address a lot of the -- and make a lot of the



           2      improvements that we want.  We still have people



           3      out providing services, working long hours doing



           4      the best we can to provide quality service to



           5      all of our customers.  These guys work through a



           6      lot of adverse weather conditions and they will



           7      continue to do that, but, you know, it is



           8      important that we start replacing and repairing



           9      more and more of this infrastructure and that



          10      will only benefit the customers that we all



          11      serve.



          12               I would like to now introduce Jim Epp,



          13      manager of water.



          14                     MR. EPP:  Thank you, Bill, and



          15      good evening.  My name is Jim Epp, I'm the



          16      manager of water operations.



          17               I want to start my presentation by



          18      briefly touching on the past 10 years.  The



          19      reason I want to do this is this is my



          20      opportunity to say thank you to the rate payer,



          21      to the community for the support you have shown



          22      for our water system.  We couldn't have done it



          23      without you.  We, the rate payer, the staff and



          24      the board has supported and completed



          25      significant improvements to the community water

�

                                                                 81







           1      supply and treatment transmission and storage



           2      systems.  These improvements will benefit our



           3      community for the next 50 years.



           4               This is where we were in 1993.



           5      Quindaro water treatment plant, it was anywhere



           6      from 50 to 80 years old.  It was very spread



           7      out.  It was expensive to operate.  Very



           8      expensive to maintain.  Labor intensive.  We had



           9      three operators per shift and it is in the



          10      floodplain.  Right here it is protected by a



          11      flood wall.  Still is protected by that same



          12      flood wall.



          13               In the early 1990s we started planning



          14      for what to do with this treatment plant,



          15      whether to stay there for the long run or to



          16      build a new plant.



          17               Then the flood in 1993 hit.  This is



          18      that same 14-foot high flood wall.  At this



          19      point it was within a couple feet of going over



          20      the top of it.



          21               This is the backside of that wall.  The



          22      water level about right here (indicating).  And



          23      the entire treatment plant area was literally a



          24      war zone.  We survived the flood, we stayed on



          25      line, and we suffered significant damage to our
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           1      filter building.  At this point in time through



           2      our rate payer support the decision was made to



           3      move to a different site and build a new



           4      treatment plant.



           5               And this is where we are today.  We are



           6      at our new Nearman water treatment plant.  It's



           7      above the 500-year floodplain on a bluff.



           8      Everything is housed in one building.  The



           9      laboratory, the filters, chemical feed



          10      equipment, high service pump station, reservoir,



          11      and then we have our basins out back.  This is a



          12      highly efficient plant.  It can operate with one



          13      person per shift on the second or third shifts.



          14      And it is an award winning plant.  It was



          15      awarded the -- from the American Water Works



          16      Association and Environmental Protection Agency



          17      the director's award for the partnership for



          18      safe drinking water.



          19               It features two horizontal collector



          20      wells.  They are located on the banks of the



          21      Missouri River.  I think this is one of our most



          22      important community assets.  Each well can



          23      produce 40 million gallons per day.  They are



          24      the largest in the country.  They are the



          25      largest because of the high productive aquifer
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           1      that lies below the Missouri River.



           2               This is a picture of that same



           3      collector well during a flood event.  This is



           4      another advantage of a collector well.  We have



           5      overhead power.  It can operate during a flood.



           6      It continues to draw water below the -- beneath



           7      the Missouri River during a drought condition.



           8      If there was a spill event on the river, it



           9      would probably flow right on by.  It also helps



          10      us to protect against Missouri River



          11      degradation.



          12               This is our second collector well.  It



          13      was completed about 2003.



          14               And a little more explanation on how a



          15      collector well works.  This is what you saw in



          16      the picture.  This is what is below ground.  It



          17      goes down 100 feet to almost bedrock.  This is



          18      the aquifer and these radials go out into the



          19      aquifer, collect the water into the main shaft,



          20      and then it is pumped out through these pumps to



          21      our water treatment plant.  And the Missouri



          22      River is right here (indicating).  The water



          23      flows down into the aquifer from the Missouri



          24      River so it continues to be recharged.  Again,



          25      this is one of the community's most important
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           1      assets.



           2               Also, in approximately 2003 -- no, 2006



           3      we completed the Robert L. Milan Pump station.



           4      It is a 30-million gallon per day station with a



           5      6-million gallon reservoir.  This helps us



           6      support growth to the west and provide storage



           7      for the entire system.



           8               This is 51st and Gibbs.  Recently



           9      completed 2-million gallon elevated tank.  Helps



          10      stabilize the pressure in this system, reduce



          11      main breaks and provide fire protection.



          12               So where we are today.  Don has already



          13      gone through this slide.  Our sales are down



          14      approximately 18 percent from 2006.  Why are



          15      sales down?  Economy, weather, flat to declining



          16      population, and conservation.  Conservation has



          17      been going on in the water industry for several



          18      years now.



          19               Where are we at with our BPU financial



          20      policy?  Our goal is to have 1.6 times debt



          21      service coverage, 60 days operating cash.  We



          22      were placed on a credit watch by our credit



          23      rating agencies.  If we don't shore up our



          24      credit rating, this would lead into lower credit



          25      ratings which means higher borrowing costs.
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           1               What have we done to cut our budget?



           2      We reduced operation and maintenance by 8



           3      percent.  We are holding 9 percent of our staff



           4      positions open.  Froze salaries and delayed



           5      capital improvement projects on aging



           6      infrastructure.



           7               Water division staffing.  Prior to



           8      opening the Nearman water treatment plant in



           9      2000, we had 118 authorized positions.  Today we



          10      have 108, and currently we have 99 of them



          11      filled.



          12               Going forward.  We need to replace



          13      aging infrastructure.  Our water system needs



          14      are 60 million in capital improvements to



          15      replace outdated control systems, replace aging



          16      water distribution infrastructure, improve our



          17      storage at the Nearman water treatment plant,



          18      and implement automated meter reading which



          19      Bill's already discussed.



          20               Aging infrastructure.  We need to



          21      increase our funding program to replace mains



          22      that are 50 to 100 years old.  Maintain our



          23      programs to replace old valves, hydrants and



          24      service lines.  Replace meters and implement



          25      automated meter reading.  Replace our outdated
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           1      control systems and our aging fleet.  We have



           2      delayed fleet replacement for four years now.



           3               This is what happens with aging water



           4      mains.  You have all probably seen one.  They



           5      are very expensive to repair.  We spend $500,000



           6      alone just in pavement repair for one of these



           7      main breaks and well over a million total a year



           8      just from repairing our main breaks.



           9               We average 600 per year.  80 percent of



          10      our main leaks are on 4-inch and smaller mains



          11      that are 50 to 100 years old.  We have 250 miles



          12      of these mains.  Total cost to replace them



          13      would be 66 million.  This is an expensive



          14      endeavor.  We can't do it all at once.  We're



          15      not proposing to spend all 66 million, but we



          16      are proposing to start a 10-year program at 1.5



          17      million per year to replace 35 miles of the most



          18      deteriorated mains.  Currently we only budget



          19      $400,000 per year.



          20               This is what an old 2-inch main looks



          21      like.  This is probably 50 years plus.  And it



          22      is very deteriorated.  And these are the types



          23      of mains that break and we are in need of



          24      repairing.



          25               A lot of these mains are east of 635.

�

                                                                 87







           1      This is 635 right here (indicating).  It is the



           2      older part of our system.  Here is the Kansas



           3      River.  A lot of these mains are located in the



           4      northeast and eastern parts of the county.



           5               Total cap improvements by area, we are



           6      proposing 60 million.  55 percent of that 60



           7      million are for systemwide improvements.



           8      Improvements that benefit everyone.  35 percent



           9      are for the eastern part of the county and 10



          10      percent for the western.



          11               Eastern water projects include Unified



          12      Government street projects, mill and overlay.



          13      When the city goes out and mill and overlay the



          14      street, we try to get out ahead of them to



          15      repair anything we need to repair.  So once it



          16      is done we're not in there tearing up the street



          17      when there is a main break.  So we do the best



          18      job we can to coordinate with the city.



          19               I mentioned our main leak replacement



          20      program.  Distribution system improvements.



          21      Service repair and replacement.  Fire hydrant



          22      and valve replacement.  Total $21 million.



          23               And, finally, the purpose for the water



          24      rate increase.  Very similar to electric,



          25      maintain our credit rating, to reduce costs in
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           1      borrowing for capital improvements, improve our



           2      debt service coverage to 1.4, and operating cash



           3      to 45 days.  And support capital improvements



           4      and replace our aging water distribution and



           5      control systems.



           6               And to conclude for the entire staff,



           7      reason for rate increase to improve our



           8      liquidity and debt coverage.  Support needed



           9      capital projects and upgrades to aging



          10      infrastructure.  Our BPU rates have been



          11      constant since 2007 and below the national



          12      average and lower than most surrounding



          13      utilities.



          14               And now I would like to bring back



          15      Mr. David Mehlhaff.



          16                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Jim.



          17               A couple of things.  First of all,



          18      thank you for your patience.  It has been a long



          19      night I know.  We have a lot to go through and



          20      this is just part of the public hearing process.



          21      We have a lot of details to go through, so thank



          22      you for your patience.



          23               What we want to do right now is we want



          24      to be able to take your questions that you



          25      filled out on the card.  After we do that, then
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           1      there will be time for public comments after



           2      that from those of you that have signed in on



           3      this sheet.  If you haven't signed in yet,



           4      please do so if you want to make some public



           5      comments.  The questions we have, we will answer



           6      those.



           7               I want to remind you the rate hearing



           8      will take place again tomorrow morning at 9:00



           9      a.m., same room, same place.  What we will do



          10      also after that we will have a more formalized



          11      detailed presentation by our partners of Black &



          12      Veatch, and then we will go -- continue in some



          13      of the technical portion of the rate hearing



          14      process.



          15               So we are going to take a very short,



          16      and I mean short, because it is a long night,



          17      five-minute break.  And I need the management



          18      staff to stay up here because I have a lot of



          19      questions I need to distribute to you that --



          20      which ones are most appropriate to answer some



          21      of these fine folks' questions that we have.  So



          22      a short five-minute break and we will right back



          23      here at 9:05.  Thank you.



          24                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Go ahead.



          25                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Judge.
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           1               My name is David Mehlhaff, public



           2      affairs office at BPU.  I'm going to try to



           3      answer quite a few of these questions.



           4      Conferred with the management team and want to



           5      thank all of those who have submitted your



           6      questions and then we will begin the -- we will



           7      take questions -- comments from the audience,



           8      those that filled out the card.



           9               "Why don't you raise the PILOT fee



          10      instead of a rate increase?"



          11               The PILOT fee, whatever happens with



          12      that we have nothing to do with.  That is a



          13      decision made by the Unified Government, by



          14      their commissioners, and so that is a question



          15      that only they can answer.  That is a decision



          16      whether that goes up and down that is entirely



          17      up to them.  The PILOT fee is just on a BPU



          18      bill.  We collect it.  It is a pass-through and



          19      that is up to the Unified Government.  Thank



          20      you, though.



          21               "How many lobbyists are currently



          22      employed by BPU in Washington, D.C. and Topeka?"



          23               We really only have one lobbyist and he



          24      is kind of a part-time lobbyist and that is Joe



          25      Dick.  Right there is Joe.  Raise your hand,
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           1      Joe.  He also does a lot of other things,



           2      community relations and dealing with the youth



           3      program and so forth.  Spends quite a bit of



           4      time in Topeka when the legislature is in



           5      session.  We do periodically when we need to



           6      will partner up with a lobbyist firm in



           7      Washington to try and go after some -- we try



           8      hard to go after some stimulus funds.  We were



           9      not successful in the first round.  We did get a



          10      STAG Grant of $500,000 that went towards water



          11      main replacement.  We are aggressively pursuing



          12      other STAG grants right now at this time.



          13               So, "When will BPU ask for another



          14      increase in salaries?  Will that come out of



          15      this increase?"



          16               At this time all salaries are frozen



          17      and will remain so until we feel this utility is



          18      in a lot better position.  So right now there is



          19      not even any discussion of that at this current



          20      time.  That is not an option at this moment.



          21               Joe, could you come answer this



          22      question.  You had a question on lobbyist work



          23      done out there in the western part of the state.



          24      Identify yourself please and your title.



          25                     MR. DICK:  Joe Dick, government
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           1      affairs officer, 540 Minnesota Avenue and



           2      Topeka, Kansas.



           3               The question is:  "In the past BPU



           4      lobbyists have rallied against the coal plant



           5      out west in the state.  Has this changed?"



           6               It never existed.  We were in a



           7      monetary position for three years on that



           8      particular coal-fired plant.  In fact, two years



           9      ago we were offered 25 megawatts of power.  We



          10      were given the first right of refusal of 25



          11      megawatts with that power plant if it became --



          12      if it went into existence.  On that particular



          13      issue it was vetoed by the governor.  We refused



          14      the 25 megawatts only because there wasn't a



          15      price, there wasn't a date, there wasn't a time,



          16      there wasn't a place.  It was all preliminary



          17      action taken by the Sunflower organization.



          18               So that is it.



          19                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Joe.



          20               "Does the timing of the rate increase



          21      have anything to do with the UG being broke?"



          22               No, okay.  And I think you saw by our



          23      financial situation why we are going after the



          24      proposed rate increase right now.



          25               We had a question here that Blake I
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           1      think is more of a technical question in nature.



           2      So identify yourself and repeat the question.



           3                     MR. ELLIOTT:  Again, Blake



           4      Elliott, electric supply planning, 540 Minnesota



           5      Avenue, Kansas City Board of Public Utilities.



           6               The question is:  If you raise rates,



           7      what will happen to the cost of the energy fee?



           8      And what is the cost of the energy fee?"



           9               Again, the energy rate component which



          10      is what I perceive you're asking in this



          11      question is totally independent of everything



          12      that we're asking for rate increases today.  The



          13      rate increases today will just affect base



          14      rates.  The energy rate component is just to



          15      recover costs when we expense fuel, when we buy



          16      and burn coal, when we burn natural gas, when we



          17      buy electricity from the wholesale market.  We



          18      collect those costs on a monthly basis.  We



          19      collect all those costs.  We collect how many



          20      retail sales we made during that particular



          21      month.  And there is a very detailed calculation



          22      that happens in the forecasting and in the



          23      reconciliation of that amount.  So this is --



          24      that fee is totally separate from the rate



          25      hearings that we are -- for the base rates that
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           1      we are talking about today.  Again, that is



           2      totally separate.



           3                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Blake.



           4               "Have you considered freezing raises?"



           5               Yes, raises are frozen.



           6               Furloughs.  At this time, no, we are



           7      down about as low as we can get from a staffing



           8      level.  We are down about 80 positions right now



           9      that have already been approved in the budget.



          10      If we cut much -- anymore we will not be able to



          11      service our community from an electric and water



          12      standpoint.



          13               "Have we considered changing health



          14      care coverage for BPU employees?"



          15               At this time we are in very sensitive



          16      union talks, at the very front end of that, and



          17      that will probably be part of that but it's too



          18      early to tell.  Thank you.



          19               "What will the rate increase go for?"



          20               I think we shared that with you this



          21      evening in very much detail.  And, also, it is



          22      in those leave-behind pieces.  If you need more



          23      of those to take to your friends and neighbors,



          24      by all means take them with you.  And also the



          25      frequently asked questions, if we need more, I
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           1      have plenty.



           2               I have a question, Darrell, on coal.



           3      Why don't you answer that and give your name and



           4      title again.



           5                     MR. DORSEY:  Sure.  Darrell



           6      Dorsey, manager of electric production and



           7      supply.



           8               Question was:  "How much are you paying



           9      for coal and how many day supply do you



          10      currently have?"



          11                The short answer would be most of our



          12      coal falls delivered price around 25 to 30



          13      dollars a ton.  The reason I say it's a short



          14      answer is we have multiple contracts for the



          15      different plants from different mines.  And



          16      those contracts go over different time periods



          17      so there's a wide range within that price range



          18      that coal falls -- pricing falls into.



          19               As far as our day supply, I don't have



          20      that figure with me.  I think at Quindaro the



          21      last report I saw we have around about a 30 to



          22      40-day supply.  Quindaro, we are a little more



          23      comfortable with a smaller supply.  For one



          24      thing it is a smaller coal yard, we can't handle



          25      as much coal, but it also can burn natural gas
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           1      so in a contingency situation we have back-up



           2      fuel.



           3               Nearman has probably 80 to 90 days of



           4      coal on the ground right now.  That is about --



           5      I want to say we have got about 250,000 tons



           6      give or take.  Again, I don't have the exact



           7      figures with me.  But Nearman does not have a



           8      back-up fuel.  It can only run on coal.  So we



           9      try to maintain the stronger coal pile.  We have



          10      been burning down that coal pile over the last



          11      few years.  We'll bring it down a little further



          12      yet this year with our current plans.



          13                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you,



          14      Darrell.



          15               "How many people in Kansas City,



          16      Kansas, take or read the Kansas Star or



          17      Wyandotte West?"



          18               I really don't know.  But "Why don't



          19      you mail this info," and I think what they maybe



          20      mean as far as the rate hearing information in



          21      the bills.  That is something we did not do.



          22      Did not choose to do merely from an expense



          23      standpoint, but let me tell you what we did do.



          24               What we have to do legally is post the



          25      meeting notice and the publication of record,
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           1      which in this area is the Echo.  We did that.



           2      We also purchased an ad space in the Kansas City



           3      Star.  We also sent out a news release that was



           4      carried by all four television stations in this



           5      market.  And also two radio stations in the



           6      market, I did interviews with them.  The Unified



           7      Government ran it on their website and several



           8      times on their electronic newsletter, reran it



           9      on our website.  The KC Kansan, Kansas City



          10      Kansan, ran it on their website.



          11               And so we did a lot more than what we



          12      were required to do to get the word out as best



          13      as we can and that is what we did there.  The



          14      Kansas City, Kansan and the website, it is on



          15      line.  All right.



          16               Jim Epp, there was one here I think



          17      that was multiple questions.  So why don't you



          18      go through the questions and identify yourself,



          19      please.



          20                     MR. EPP:  Jim Epp, manager of



          21      water operations.



          22               Three questions, multi parts.  "Using



          23      the average monthly water bill supplied by BPU



          24      as a base, if BPU's rates are already 21 percent



          25      higher than WaterOne's, why do we need even
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           1      larger increases over the next few years?"



           2               Our system is older than WaterOne's.



           3      Our infrastructure is 50 to 100 years old.  We



           4      have had no increase -- net increase in our



           5      population.  We have had to completely replace



           6      our water treatment facility, new plant, new



           7      supply, new transmission coming out of the



           8      plant.



           9               Again, I want to thank the rate payers



          10      for the support.  We have something that we can



          11      be very proud of and will last for 50 years into



          12      the future.  But we have had to face the



          13      replacement of aging infrastructure much sooner



          14      than WaterOne has.



          15               Plus WaterOne has experienced a net



          16      increase in population.  They have more



          17      customers to help pay for their infrastructure



          18      needs and we are much older than they are.  So I



          19      hope that is an adequate answer to that



          20      question.



          21               Two, "Are the higher rates to pay for



          22      debt services related to new facilities needed



          23      because of growth?"



          24               Again, we have got no net increase in



          25      our population.  We do have a shifting from east
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           1      to west.  Right now I feel like we are in very



           2      good shape with our infrastructure to support



           3      anything that is going to happen out west.  When



           4      a new development goes in out west, the



           5      developer pays for that main.  BPU does not pay



           6      for that, the developer pays for that.



           7               Also -- oh, excuse me.  As far as new



           8      facilities in the future, we have -- the



           9      majority of our infrastructure needs are for



          10      replacement.  We do have one new 4-million



          11      gallon reservoir we are requesting at the



          12      Nearman water treatment plant.  And that is



          13      because we are trying to get our total storage



          14      up to standard with our treatment plant



          15      capacity.  It is not because of any new growth.



          16      We are not projecting any new growth in our --



          17      as far as population, net population growth, in



          18      our cost of service study.  Very little.  But it



          19      is to bring our storage up to 10 percent total



          20      of our treatment capacity.  This will allow us



          21      to do some more demand side management with our



          22      pumping, similar to what WaterOne does.  Also



          23      provides storage for our cooling tower and



          24      storage for black star condition if we should



          25      ever experience that down at Nearman.
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           1               Third.  "Are the rates higher because



           2      growth isn't paying its fair share?  Is growth



           3      paying for growth?"



           4               Again, new developments, the mains are



           5      paid for by the developers.  We do have a system



           6      development fee.  It's not quite as high as



           7      WaterOne but it's fairly significant for new



           8      meters.



           9               Hopefully that answered your question.



          10      Okay, thank you, sir.  Very good questions.



          11                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  Thank you, Jim.



          12               Couple more questions left here.  "How



          13      much did the Black & Veatch study cost?  Who



          14      paid for the cost?"



          15               It came out of our operating budget.



          16      We are required to do a cost of service study



          17      every three years.  We have not done one since



          18      2003.  What it did cost, I'll be honest, it cost



          19      $270,000 over a two-year period.  That is what



          20      it cost.



          21               "Is it true that people in the service



          22      department make $65,000 a year?"



          23               Yes.  We have linemen who have



          24      extremely dangerous jobs.  They are up there in



          25      extreme conditions.  And engineers who have
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           1      years and years of experience, that is what they



           2      make.



           3               "How can the board make a decision when



           4      they do not attend the meetings?"



           5               The board will make the decision



           6      because they will be getting all the transcript,



           7      all the documents.  They are in the loop



           8      continually.  They get feedback.  They have gone



           9      to some of the community forums.  They get



          10      feedback on their own in talking to people in



          11      the community.  They are not allowed to speak



          12      out on the issue.  They need to gather



          13      information.  Once they gather information, then



          14      they will make their decision on the rate issue.



          15      But they are well informed.  This is an active



          16      board and they are talking to people all the



          17      time.  Staff, they have sat in, reviewed the



          18      cost of service study.  So they are in the loop



          19      and that is what we have had.



          20               We have four of our board members here



          21      tonight and I know we will have more tomorrow.



          22      We had five tonight total and they will also be



          23      getting this transcript and a lot of other



          24      information.  They -- trust me, this board won't



          25      make a decision until they're really well
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           1      informed because they ask a lot of great



           2      questions all the time.



           3               "How much will this windfall of the



           4      windfall will UG see from this rate increase?"



           5               I think probably somebody is referring



           6      to the PILOT.  And this is only an estimate.  In



           7      2010, it would be about $550,000 in electric,



           8      170,000 in water.  And that would be what we



           9      estimate at this time.



          10                     UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  In addition to?



          11                     UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  Yes.



          12                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  That is with the



          13      increase.



          14               Thank you for everyone submitting



          15      questions.  Appreciate it.  We did our best to



          16      answer them as honestly as we can.  And I'm



          17      always available if you have further questions.



          18      Like Jim said at the end, contact me any time.



          19      I will do my best to get you the answers or get



          20      you to people who do.



          21               You're Honor, this concludes our



          22      portion.  I'll turn it over to you.



          23                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you



          24      very much.



          25               Ladies and gentlemen, this portion of
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           1      the hearing is for public comments or statements



           2      other than those that have submitted written



           3      questions.  The individuals who have signed up



           4      on the sign-up sheet will be called in the order



           5      that they have entered their names on the



           6      sign-up sheet.  I ask you as I call your name,



           7      please restate your name and address, and then



           8      you can make your statement or comment.  And go



           9      to the podium, please, so that everybody can



          10      hear you.



          11               The first individual on the sign-up



          12      sheet is Bob Sixta.  Mr. Sixta, will you go to



          13      the podium, please.  And tell us your full name



          14      and address.



          15                     MR. SIXTA:  My name is Robert Lee



          16      Sixta.  That is S, as in Sam, I-X-T-A.  I live



          17      at 405 North 17th Street in KCK.  My question



          18      has already been submitted in a written one.  It



          19      has already been answered.  Thank you.



          20                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,



          21      sir.



          22                     THE WITNESS:  The next individual



          23      on the sign-up sheet is Donald Turner.  And,



          24      Mr. Turner, would you go to the podium.  State



          25      your -- restate your name and address, please.
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           1                     MR. TURNER:  Donald Turner, and I



           2      live at 4110 North 60th Street.  No. 1, I can't



           3      get a straight answer when I call down there.  I



           4      got two BPU bills because I have two light



           5      meters at my house.  One says that -- they're



           6      both the same size.  One answer got, oh, you're



           7      commercial.  I'm not commercial.



           8                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Tell you



           9      what, Mr. Turner, this is -- I don't think this



          10      is the forum to address your billing issues that



          11      you have.  I know they're very important to you,



          12      but --



          13                     MR. TURNER:  Yes, they are.



          14                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  -- this



          15      proceeding is -- concerns the proposed BPU rate



          16      increase.  And I think that there are some



          17      customer service individuals here that perhaps



          18      could help you at the end of this hearing, and



          19      that is Johnetta Hinson and Nan Wolfe.  Could



          20      you stand up, please, Ms. Wolfe and Ms. Hinson.



          21      And maybe you could talk -- Mr. Turner, maybe



          22      you could talk to them when we are finished



          23      here.



          24                     MR. TURNER:  Okay.  I have got a



          25      statement to make.
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           1                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.



           2                     MR. TURNER:  There -- don't



           3      forget, there are a lot of homes being repo'd or



           4      closed out that was customers.  They're not now.



           5      And a senior citizen here cannot afford anymore



           6      thing added on to them.  They have a hard time



           7      making the bill at this point what it is.  A gas



           8      serviceman was out to my house, one of my



           9      houses.  I told him to shut the gas off.  He



          10      said, well, I got to be moving along.  I got



          11      four houses here that I have got to shut off the



          12      gas because they haven't paid their bill.  That



          13      is just one time.



          14               So you ought to stop to think about the



          15      senior citizen.  It is hurting them.  I'm -- the



          16      only thing that I can depend on is my monthly



          17      retirement check and my wife's.  We didn't get



          18      any COLA this year, Social Security or civil



          19      service.  But you heist up -- the sales tax



          20      increase was voted in the other day.  So I think



          21      that that ought to be taken into consideration



          22      for senior citizens.  There are several senior



          23      citizens in here, and I have been a senior



          24      citizen for several years.



          25                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Not that
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           1      long.



           2                     MR. TURNER:  What was that



           3      comment?



           4                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  I said not



           5      that long, Mr. Turner.



           6                     MR. TURNER:  You probably



           7      wouldn't believe me.  I remember -- I remember



           8      the depression back in the 30s.  In fact, I got



           9      out and hoed the corn for a dollar a day.  I



          10      very well remember that.  I worked horses and



          11      mules, so you can draw from that.



          12               But that is what I'm saying, it is



          13      hurtful.  It is hurting us senior citizens by no



          14      means.  That is the reason some of us are



          15      already getting their gas cut off and I don't



          16      know how many for power -- or electricity.



          17               So, as I said, I got two meters at my



          18      house that I would like to get a straight



          19      accurate answer on it.  There.



          20                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,



          21      Mr. Turner.



          22                     MR. TURNER:  Okay.



          23                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  The next



          24      individual on the sign-up sheet is Robert



          25      Timmons.  Mr. Timmons, would you come up,
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           1      please, to the podium and restate your name and



           2      address.



           3                     MR. TIMMONS:  I'm Robert Timmons.



           4      401 Pleasanton Road with Central Solutions in



           5      the Fairfax district.



           6               This rate increase is going to be very



           7      burdensome on our business.  We are a



           8      manufacturing facility.  We use lots of your



           9      electricity and lots of your water.  As far as



          10      your aging infrastructure goes, poor management



          11      shouldn't be put onto your customers.



          12      Infrastructure in my building has to be planned



          13      for and paid for.  I can't go for that 23 to a



          14      35 percent increase on our product because we



          15      need to replace a fire line or we need to



          16      install mandatory backflow preventers on fire



          17      lines.  I don't think that it is thought through



          18      very well.  And I think if you're going to do a



          19      23 to 35 percent increase, not including the



          20      surcharges, I think it should have been spread



          21      out over a longer period of time.  Four years is



          22      just too quick for that big of an increase.



          23               Thank you.



          24                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,



          25      sir.
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           1               The next individual on the sign-up



           2      sheet is Michael Buhr, B-U-H-R.  Mr. Buhr.



           3                     MR. BAHR:  B-A-H-R, it's Bahr.



           4                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Bahr.



           5      Sorry Mr. Bahr.



           6                     MR. BAHR:  My name is Michael



           7      Bahr.  I live at 1416 Tauromee.  I've lived



           8      there for 35 years.



           9               I have a little bit to say about this



          10      increase.  This isn't the right time for BPU to



          11      raise any rates.  Information obtained from the



          12      public library by calling the reference desk



          13      about unemployment in Wyandotte County.  From



          14      the United States Bureau of Statistics, the



          15      unemployment rate in March 2010 in Wyandotte



          16      County is 10.6 percent.  That means there is



          17      over one out of ten out of work in Wyandotte



          18      county.



          19               City employees have to take one day off



          20      each month.  Some state courts have had rooms,



          21      courtrooms close one day a week for three weeks



          22      in a row.  The growth of Kansas City, Kansas, at



          23      the Legends has helped me until January of 2009.



          24      I work construction.  I have been a



          25      superintendent for one of the major construction
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           1      companies in the Kansas City area,



           2      Miller-Stauch.  Well, when the bottom fell out



           3      of the economy, that construction company lost



           4      all of its superintendents.  They took the



           5      people that were in the office and put them out



           6      in the field.  That put me out of a job.



           7               I've applied at Black & Veatch on a



           8      couple of jobs.  A lot of times you guys don't



           9      post where the jobs are located.  I've probably



          10      applied three times.



          11               Growth in Kansas City, Kansas, at the



          12      Legends has helped me, like I said, until



          13      January 2009.  And I was laid off because of



          14      lack of work.  That was the first time in 37



          15      years that I haven't worked in the summer going



          16      into the fall in 37 years.  That is how bad this



          17      economy has been.  Is right now.  And it is not



          18      getting better.  People are saying it is getting



          19      better.  Go look for a job in the construction



          20      field.  It is not getting better.  People want



          21      to pay you half of what you were making.



          22               I have been off work for a year and two



          23      months.  I've sent out over 200 resumes, cover



          24      letters and detail project lists.  Growth in



          25      Kansas City, has it helped at the Legends?  Has
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           1      it helped BPU any?  By the way you guys talk it



           2      hasn't helped anything.  I mean, that is what



           3      I'm getting from you.  But the growth isn't



           4      doing us any good out there.  Hasn't done any



           5      good as far as unemployment.



           6               Have you thought about reducing the pay



           7      for some of your people?  The government has



           8      reduced pay.  They took a day away a week or a



           9      month from them.  I know you said you held off



          10      on hiring.  Who is going to do all this work you



          11      are talking about?  Aren't you going to have to



          12      hire somebody to do that?  Can you do it with



          13      the people you have now?  I don't know.



          14               To reduce some of your costs, you could



          15      look around at this room.  Those doors right



          16      over there.  Who needs 8 foot doors in a



          17      conference room.  That takes four hinges to



          18      hang.  Most doors are 7 foot.  It takes three



          19      hinges to hang.  I know, I'm a carpenter.  I'm a



          20      superintendent.



          21               Same thing with this door, you're



          22      talking about cost.  Look around you, you can



          23      cut out cost if you want to.  You just have to



          24      look.



          25               That's all I have to say.
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           1                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,



           2      Mr. Bahr.



           3                     MR. BAHR:  Thank you for your



           4      time.



           5                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  The next



           6      individual on the sign-up sheet is Norm Scott.



           7      And Mr. Scott, are you here?  Apparently not.



           8               There is a -- Mr. Yarnell, I'm going to



           9      come back to you since you're one of the



          10      intervenors.



          11               The next individual is Carol O'Neal.



          12      Is Carol O'Neal here?



          13               The last person on the sign-up sheet is



          14      Marilyn While.



          15                     MS. WHITE:  White.



          16                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  White.  I'm



          17      sorry, Ms. White.



          18                     MS. WHITE:  Sorry.  My



          19      handwriting has gotten kind of bad as I have



          20      gotten older.



          21                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  It is my



          22      eyes.



          23                     MS. WHITE:  My name is Marilyn



          24      White and I live in your backyard, 614



          25      Washington Boulevard.
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           1               I can look out, you know, of my porch



           2      and look out and see BPU from my front yard.



           3      And it is very distressing sometimes, you know,



           4      when I'm at home trying to relax and storms come



           5      or even the wind sometimes blows very hard and



           6      my electricity goes out.  I can hear the



           7      transformers blow.  Hasn't happened lately



           8      because the last person you sent obviously knew



           9      what he was doing because for at least I would



          10      say four months or so I have had electricity no



          11      matter what the weather did.  So I think that --



          12      you know, I'd give you his name but I don't



          13      think I will.  That you really should be happy



          14      that you have such a good employee.



          15               Also, I just want to say that, you



          16      know, I'm a senior citizen.  I am on a fixed



          17      income and I have been able to manage my utility



          18      bills, you know, the ones that come.  But, you



          19      know, the utility bills keep going up and up.



          20      I'm -- part of my daily, monthly living is



          21      supplemented by Social Security.  And as you



          22      know, the good congressmen in Washington D.C.



          23      did not give us a cost of living wage because



          24      the cost of living didn't go up, it went down



          25      for us, not for them.  And they make for a lot
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           1      more money than I do.



           2               I am very uptight about the fact that



           3      the Unified Government is tacking their bills



           4      onto the BPU bill, and, therefore, you are going



           5      to get a lot of hell that the BPU -- that the



           6      Unified Government should be getting.  But, you



           7      know, I guess you have -- don't have any control



           8      over that.  But I want you to know to let them



           9      know that Marilyn said she doesn't like it



          10      because I think everybody ought to pay their own



          11      way themselves and the public ought to know



          12      exactly what the Unified Government is doing.



          13               Also, I'm a little bit uptight, just



          14      like the gentleman said, about all of this



          15      so-called economic status stuff that is coming



          16      to West Village, Village West.  I -- we just --



          17      the Unified Government just gave them a tax



          18      break.  Neil Harrison and Warren Buffet do not



          19      need tax breaks.  They could buy themselves this



          20      whole building many, many times over and



          21      probably all of us here.



          22               And I think it's a really -- and, you



          23      know, I guess dam is not really a bad word.  I



          24      think it is a dam shame that people like me who



          25      are on the lower end of the economy who have
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           1      scrimped and saved all their lives to work and



           2      try to save money.  I save money.  I still save



           3      money to this day out of the wages that I get



           4      every month that I earned, by the way.  And I



           5      think I'm doing pretty good, but I really resent



           6      the fact that these -- the people are making hay



           7      off of my dough, the money that I earned when I



           8      could be using it for myself.  I really think



           9      that, you know, life is not fair.  I don't know



          10      if it ever will be, but I think that the person



          11      on the lower end of the economic scale is really



          12      getting beat up more and more every day.  And,



          13      you know, it can't keep happening, although I



          14      think it will.



          15               Thank you.



          16                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,



          17      Mrs. White.



          18               Ms. Sixta, I'm sorry, I overlooked your



          19      name.  Please restate your name and address.



          20                     MS. SIXTA:  Mary Sue Sixta.  405



          21      North 17th Street.



          22               My comments are that when the lady was



          23      talking and the screen was up and they showed



          24      some of the increases, I wanted to calculated



          25      BPU water is going up 45 percent and the
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           1      electric bill is going up 36 percent over the



           2      next five years.  That is a tremendous increase.



           3      That is -- right now we are paying 145 dollars



           4      and some odd -- 149 dollars and some odd cents.



           5      We are probably going to be paying around 200



           6      within the next five years.



           7               My husband is about to retire.  He is



           8      the only one who is making the living for us



           9      right now.  We are going to barely be able to



          10      make it.  And then if the other utilities like



          11      AT&T and Kansas Gas Service go up, we are going



          12      to be very hard put to make the bills.  We are



          13      hard put to make them right now.  And personally



          14      I'm worried.



          15               Also, they're talking about controlling



          16      the customer load.  Okay, I have allergies



          17      during the summer and during the heat.  I need



          18      to have air conditioning to help filter the air



          19      when it gets real bad.



          20               Plus I have sleep apnea.  I have to --



          21      I have a CPAP machine I must use.  They tell me



          22      I'm one of the worst cases they've ever seen.



          23      My husband has sleep apnea.  We have to have



          24      those machines and they are going to use power.



          25      And they're going to tell us how much we can
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           1      use.  Does this mean that we have to either go



           2      without air conditioning or go without our CPAP



           3      machine in order to go to the power level they



           4      want?  Or are we going to have some place where



           5      we can call and say, hey, we need this certain



           6      amount of power, can we get it?  Or is it just



           7      going to be cut off because they think we are



           8      using too much?  I mean, for people that use an



           9      extra amount of power that don't really need it,



          10      like at Christmastime with too many lights, I



          11      understand.  But for medical reasons, this



          12      scares me.  People may need it for medical



          13      reasons.  But all you're talking about is



          14      controlling the load.



          15               And as far as all these expenses are



          16      concerned for new telephone poles and stuff and



          17      the services, I understand trimming the trees.



          18      Grass cutting, put decorative rocks out and make



          19      a design saying BPU in the front yard or the



          20      office or something and cut down on maintenance



          21      and how much it costs to cut the grass.  Do



          22      little things like this and it would improve



          23      entirely.



          24               Also, I know this has been discussed in



          25      the past, what about investing in a company that
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           1      has the rotaries that produce electrical power,



           2      possibly putting them on the houses.  Charging



           3      -- renting the equipment to the customer and



           4      then charging to maintain the equipment.



           5      California has a county that has done this.



           6      They got so spread out they couldn't get



           7      electricity to everybody.  So the houses out



           8      where they had trouble getting electricity to --



           9      the wires to them, they put an electrical system



          10      on the house to generate the electricity by



          11      themselves.  This is just an idea, but it might



          12      cut costs to rent the equipment and maintain it.



          13      You are saying you are having trouble getting



          14      electricity to everyone.  This is something you



          15      might want to consider.



          16               Cable is doing real good for TV.  Maybe



          17      BPU would do real good doing this at least out



          18      in rural areas where you have to go so far out



          19      to get the power out there.



          20               Thank you.



          21                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,



          22      Ms. Sixta.



          23               Are there any board members present



          24      that would like to comment or say anything?



          25                     (No response.)
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           1                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  As to the



           2      intervenors, Mr. Yarnell, would you -- do you



           3      have anything you would like to say?  If you



           4      would, please, go to the podium and state your



           5      full name and address.



           6                     MR. YARNELL:  My name is Rick



           7      Yarnell, 2424 Nebraska Court, Kansas City,



           8      Kansas.  I have filed written testimony and



           9      intervening with Kathy Peters and I expected



          10      discussions with her tonight that I will



          11      probably have modifications to the wording that



          12      I have submitted tonight and I will have that



          13      ready for tomorrow at the hearing at that point.



          14                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.



          15                     MR. YARNELL:  Thank you.



          16                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other



          17      intervenors that are present that would like to



          18      make a statement?



          19               Closing comments by the BPU.



          20                     MR. MEHLHAFF:  I just want to



          21      remind everyone tomorrow morning we'll pick up



          22      again with the rate hearing.  Same presentation



          23      you saw that was presented today, and will have



          24      an extended Black & Veatch presentation, again,



          25      to the technical portion here at nine o'clock.
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           1               I want to thank everyone for coming.



           2      Appreciate your time.  I know it's been a long



           3      night.  We thank you for your business.  Thank



           4      you.  God bless.



           5                     THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you



           6      very much.  We're adjourned.



           7               (Hearing commenced at 9:46 p.m.)
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